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OTAY WATER DISTRICT 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
DISTRICT BOARDROOM 

 
2554 SWEETWATER SPRINGS BOULEVARD 

SPRING VALLEY, CALIFORNIA 

 
WEDNESDAY 

November 5, 2014 
3:30 P.M. 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
4. APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF SEP-

TEMBER 3, 2014 
 

5. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – OPPORTUNITY FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
TO SPEAK TO THE BOARD ON ANY SUBJECT MATTER WITHIN THE 
BOARD'S JURISDICTION BUT NOT AN ITEM ON TODAY'S AGENDA 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
6. ITEMS TO BE ACTED UPON WITHOUT DISCUSSION, UNLESS A REQUEST 

IS MADE BY A MEMBER OF THE BOARD OR THE PUBLIC TO DISCUSS A 
PARTICULAR ITEM: 

 
a) APPROVE A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH ARRIETA CON-

STRUCTION, INC. FOR THE CALAVO BASIN SEWER REHABILITA-
TION – PHASE 1 PROJECT IN AN AMOUNT NOT-TO-EXCEED 
$529,490 
 

b) APPROVE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT WITH CAROLLO 
ENGINEERS, INC. FOR THE 2015 INTEGRATED WATER RESOURCES 
PLAN UPDATE IN AN AMOUNT NOT-TO-EXCEED $99,993 

 
c) APPROVE A PROFESSIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES CON-

TRACT WITH HELIX ENVIRONMENTAL FOR THE MAINTENANCE AND 
MONITORING OF THE SAN MIGUEL HABITAT MANAGEMENT AREA 
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AND CIP-ASSOCIATED MITIGATION PROJECTS FOR CALENDAR 
YEARS 2015, 2016, AND 2017 IN AN AMOUNT NOT-TO-EXCEED 
$476,173 

 
d) ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 548 AMENDING SECTION 6, CONFLICT OF 

INTEREST CODE, OF THE DISTRICT’S CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 
e) APPROVE THE DISTRICT BECOMING A MEMBER OF THE NATIONAL 

JOINT POWERS ALLIANCE, WHICH WOULD ENABLE THE DISTRICT 
TO ACCESS THE SUNLIFE POOL FOR SHORT AND LONG TERM DIS-
ABILITY; AND APPROVE THE DISTRICT JOINING THE CSAC EIA 
POOL FOR DENTAL THIRD PARTY ADMINISTRATOR SERVICES 

 
f) ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 4245 TO REVISE BOARD POLICY NO. 47, 

POLICY AGAINST DISCRIMINATION AND HARASSMENT AND COM-
PLAINT PROCEDURE 

 
g) ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 4244 AMENDING POLICY NO. 25, RE-

SERVE POLICY, OF THE DISTRICT’S CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 

7. ADMINISTRATION, FINANCE AND INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
 
a) APPROVE THE DISTRICT’S AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, IN-

CLUDING THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ UNQUALIFIED OPINION, 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 (DYCHITAN) 
 

8. BOARD 
 
a) DISCUSSION OF THE 2014 AND 2015 BOARD MEETING CALENDAR 

 
INFORMATIONAL ITEM 
 
9. THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE PROVIDED TO THE BOARD FOR INFORMA-

TIONAL PURPOSES ONLY.  NO ACTION IS REQUIRED ON THE FOLLOWING 
AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
a) UPDATE ON THE DISTRICT’S PLACEMENT OF A TEMPORARY MOR-

ATORIUM ON THE INSTALLATION OF NEW RECYCLED WATER FA-
CILITIES ON OTAY MESA (MARTIN) 
 

b) UPDATE ON THE OTAY WATER DISTRICT’S WATER USE TO DATE 
AND THE VARIOUS PROGRAMS AND SERVICES OFFERED 
THROUGH THE DISTRICT’S CONSERVATION DIVISION (CAREY) 
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c) UPDATE ON POTENTIAL DEMONSTRATION GARDEN TO BE LO-
CATED AT THE OTAY RANCH TOWN CENTER (CAREY) 

 
REPORTS 
 
10. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

a) SAN DIEGO COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY UPDATE 
 
11. DIRECTORS' REPORTS/REQUESTS 
 
12. PRESIDENT’S REPORT/REQUESTS 
 
RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 
 
13. CLOSED SESSION 

 
a) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 

[GOVERNMENT CODE §54956.9] 
 
PATRICIA MOSS v. OTAY WATER DISTRICT, et. al.; CASE NO. 37-2014-
00005818-CU-OE-CTL 
 

RETURN TO OPEN SESSION 
 
14. REPORT ON ANY ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION.  THE BOARD 

MAY ALSO TAKE ACTION ON ANY ITEMS POSTED IN CLOSED SESSION 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT  
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All items appearing on this agenda, whether or not expressly listed for action, may be 
deliberated and may be subject to action by the Board. 
 

The Agenda, and any attachments containing written information, are available at the 
District’s website at www.otaywater.gov.  Written changes to any items to be considered 
at the open meeting, or to any attachments, will be posted on the District’s website.  
Copies of the Agenda and all attachments are also available through the District 
Secretary by contacting her at (619) 670-2280. 
 

If you have any disability which would require accommodation in order to enable you to 
participate in this meeting, please call the District Secretary at (619) 670-2280 at least 
24 hours prior to the meeting. 
 

Certification of Posting 
 

 I certify that on October 31, 2014, I posted a copy of the foregoing agenda near 
the regular meeting place of the Board of Directors of Otay Water District, said time be-
ing at least 72 hours in advance of the regular meeting of the Board of Directors (Gov-

ernment Code Section §54954.2). 
 

 Executed at Spring Valley, California on October 31, 2014. 
 
 
      /s/ Susan Cruz, District Secretary   

http://www.otaywater.gov/
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MINUTES OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING OF THE 

OTAY WATER DISTRICT 
September 3, 2014 

 
1. The meeting was called to order by President Lopez at 3:38 p.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 

Directors Present: Croucher, Gonzalez, Lopez, Robak and Thompson 
 
Staff Present: General Manager Mark Watton, General Counsel Shinoff, 

Asst. GM German Alvarez, Chief of Engineering Rod 
Posada, Chief Financial Officer Joe Beachem, Chief of 
Information Technology Geoff Stevens, Chief of Operations 
Pedro Porras, Asst. Chief of Information Technology and 
Administration Adolfo Segura, District Secretary Susan 
Cruz and others per attached list. 

 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

A motion was made by Director Croucher, and seconded by Director Gonzalez to 
approve the agenda.  General Manager Watton indicated that due to a schedule 
change, Ms. Rosanna Carvacho of Brownstein Hyatt Farber and Schreck has a 
plane to catch and it is requested that her item, Legislative Update (Agenda Item 
9), be moved to the top of the agenda. 
 
Director Croucher accepted the amendment to his motion, Director Gonzalez 
seconded the motion and the motion carried with the following vote: 

 
Ayes: Directors Croucher, Gonzalez, Lopez, Robak and Thompson 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 

 
to approve the agenda as amended. 
 

5. APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF AUGUST 
6, 2014 
 
A motion was made by Director Thompson, seconded by Director Lopez and 
carried with the following vote: 

 
Ayes: Directors Croucher, Gonzalez, Lopez, Robak and Thompson 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 

tita.ramos-krogman
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Absent: None 
 
to approve the minutes of the regular meeting of August 6, 2014. 
 

6. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – OPPORTUNITY FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
TO SPEAK TO THE BOARD ON ANY SUBJECT MATTER WITHIN THE 
BOARD'S JURISDICTION BUT NOT AN ITEM ON TODAY'S AGENDA 
 
No one wished to be heard. 

 
7. LEGISLATIVE UPDATE 

 
Ms. Rosanna Carvacho, Brownstein Hyatt Farber and Schreck, indicated that 
she had forwarded a memo which she believes was included in the board 
materials for the August 2014 meeting. The memo outlined the remainder of the 
Legislative Calendar for the month of August.  She stated that the Legislature, 
based on the Constitution, must adjourn by August 31.  The Assembly actually 
adjourned on Saturday, August 30, at 2:30 a.m. and the Senate adjourned at 
3:20 a.m.  The Legislature is done for the year and the Governor has until 
September 30, 2014 to sign or veto all the bills that are now on his desk.  There 
are approximately 700 bills that are waiting his action. 
 
She stated that one of the items that was being discussed by the Legislature in 
early August was the Water Bond. The Governor introduced his bond in early 
July prior to the Legislature’s July summer recess.  In early August, following the 
recess, the Governor had communicated additional details regarding his 
proposed water bond.  Because there was already an $11.14 billion water bond 
slated for the November 2014 ballot, the Governor’s water bond required a 2/3 
vote by the legislature in both houses to replace the $11.14 billion bond with the 
Governor’s smaller bond. The main sticking point during the negotiations was the 
total amount of the bond.  At the end of the discussions, the Legislature passed a 
$7.5 billion bond that will appear on the November 2014 ballot. She indicated that 
the Governor was able to repurpose $425 million of previous bond funds which 
will indebt the State to only $7.12 billion in new bonds.  Another sticking point 
was how much would be slated for storage.  In the end, the Legislature agreed 
on allocating $2.7 billion for storage projects.  Ms. Carvacho noted some of the 
funding categories identified in the bond: 
 

 $5.5 billion for Desalination Projects 

 $125 million for Water Recycling Projects (Requires a 50% local match)  

 $52.5 million to the San Diego County and Southern Orange County  
 
The monies will be distributed throughout the State on a competitive basis.  She 
noted that the fate of the bond is up to the State of California voters during the 
November 2014 elections and it is hopeful that the voters will pass this smaller 
bond. 
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Ms. Carvacho also provided an update on legislation concerning groundwater.  
She stated the Legislature passed three bills on August 29, 2014 which are on 
the Governor’s desk for consideration and there is a commitment to do more.  
She stated that a $100 million was slated for the development of groundwater 
plans as there is a requirement that you must have a groundwater plan in order 
to receive monies under the IRWM section of the bond. There is also a 
requirement that a Groundwater Management Agency be formed (JPA) by 2017 
and that groundwater plans be submitted to the DWR by 2020. She noted that 
the State Water Board has the ability to step in if a local entity does not step 
forward to either form the management structure or submit a plan on time. 
 
She also shared that there are some changes in the Senate in Sacramento as 
three Senators have been suspended which has led to the Senate Leadership 
and other members of the Legislature to propose Political Reform Act bills for 
passage. There were a total of 61 bills introduced this year to amend the 
Political Reform Act and thirty-five (35) have passed the Legislature and are on 
the Governor’s desk for consideration.  The Governor has already vetoed one of 
the bills and is considering the remaining thirty-four.  One of the amendments to 
the Political Reform Act is to reduce the gift limit from $440 to $200 per year 
from a single source. AB1728 introduced by Assemblymember Garcia targets 
elected water boards.  It subjects elected water boards to existing provisions of 
state law limiting contributions to officials from entities with business before the 
agency involving a license, permit, or other entitlement for use.  The Special 
District Association and ACWA are opposed, but given the climate in 
Sacramento, it passed with a super majority and is on the Governor’s desk for 
consideration. 
 
She stated that the Drought is still a big issue at the State level and the State 
Water Board adopted emergency drought regulations which was highlighted in 
the memo she forwarded with the August board materials.  Those regulations 
went into effect on August 1, 2014 and it is hoped that it will encourage 
additional conservation throughout the State. 
 
Lastly she shared with regard to the Bay Delta Conservation Plan (BDCP) that 
the Legislature will be delaying any action on the BDCP.  The proposed Water 
Bond was BDCP neutral and it is hoped that it will not hurt the bond’s chances 
with the voters. 
 
In response to an inquiry from Director Thompson, Ms. Carvacho indicated that 
the $5 million dollar limit noted in the proposed Water Bond is related to 
desalination projects and was also noted in Proposition 50.  This, however, is 
connected to funding ($725 million) for water recycling projects.  There is also 
the Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) grant funding where the $5 
million limitation does not apply.  There is obviously the competitive grant issue 
where the monies is shared with agencies throughout the State. 
 
In response to an inquiry from Director Robak, General Manager Watton 
indicated that the Department of Water Resources will be putting together the 
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application for submission of grants. The District will be aggressive in applying 
for grants that it qualifies for under both recycled and desalination, but there is 
not a certainty that the District will be awarded any grants.  He noted that the 
District did apply for a grants under Proposition 50 and was successful in 
obtaining a $5 million grant. 

 
RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 
 
8. The board recessed to closed session at 4:00 p.m. to discuss the following 

matters: 
 
a) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS [GOVERNMENT CODE 

§54957.6] 
 

AGENCY DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES: PRESIDENT LOPEZ 
AND DIRECTOR 
THOMPSON 

 
EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATION: OTAY WATER DISTRICT EMPLOYEES’ 

ASSOCIATION 
 
AND 
 
ALL REPRESENTED AND UNREPRESENTED PERSONNEL 
INCLUDING MANAGEMENT AND CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES 
 

b) PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION [GOVERNMENT 
CODE §54957.6 

 
TITLE:  GENERAL MANAGER 

 
RETURN TO OPEN SESSION 

 

The board reconvened at 5:05 p.m. and General Counsel Shinoff reported that 
the board met in closed session and took no reportable actions. 
 

9. ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 4242 TO APPROVE THE MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING (MOU) BETWEEN THE OTAY WATER DISTRICT AND THE 
OTAY WATER DISTRICT EMPLOYEES’ ASSOCIATION EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 
2014 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2017, FOR THE FIELD EMPLOYEES AND 
ADMINISTRATIVE EMPLOYEES BARGAINING UNITS AND APPROVE 
EXTENDING THE SAME COST-OF-LIVING ADJUSTMENTS AND RELATED 
BENEFITS FOR THE MANAGEMENT AND CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES; 
AND ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 547 TO AMEND THE EMPLOYER-EMPLOYEE 
LABOR RELATIONS PROVISIONS OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 
Human Resources Manager Kelli Williamson indicated that all the information 
discussed by the Ad Hoc Employee Negotiations Committee and by the board in 
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closed sessions is available in the staff report provided to the board.  She 
inquired if the board had any specific questions. 
 
Director Thompson indicated that the Ad Hoc Employee Negotiations Committee 
worked hard with the Sr. Management Team and the Otay Water District 
Employee’s Association.  He stated that he felt that the parties have negotiated 
an agreement that is fair and protects the District’s ratepayers to keep costs from 
going up faster than inflation.  He thanked everyone for the work they have done 
in negotiating a fair agreement. 
 
President Lopez indicated that he has been involved in the last three (3) 
negotiations with the District’s Employee Association and he has been very 
pleased in all respects, especially with staff not only looking out for the interest of 
employees, but for the District as well. 
 
A motion was made by Director Thompson, seconded by Director Lopez and 
carried with the following vote: 

 
Ayes: Directors Croucher, Gonzalez, Lopez and Thompson 
Noes: Director Robak 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 

 
to approve staffs’ recommendations. 
 

10. APPROVE A NEW AGREEMENT WITH THE GENERAL MANAGER WITH A 
TERM ENDING SEPTEMBER 3, 2017 AND PROVIDING A 2.5% COST-OF-
LIVING ADJUSTMENT 
 

Director Thompson thanked General Manager Watton for the great job he is 
doing and that he felt that it is appropriate that the General Manager’s increase 
be at the same rate as the employees. 
 
President Lopez indicated that he is proud to have worked with General Manager 
Watton and that his high motivation and experience has brought growth to not 
only the General Manager, but also to members of the board.  He stated he is 
pleased with how the board and General Manager have been able to work 
together and that this is a reflection of General Manager Watton and staff.  He 
stated that it is appropriate to recognize his efforts with a cost-of-living 
adjustment. 
 
A motion was made by Director Croucher, seconded by Director Thompson and 
carried with the following vote: 

 
Ayes: Directors Croucher, Gonzalez, Lopez, Robak and Thompson 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 
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to approve a new agreement with the General Manager with a term ending 
September 3, 2017 and providing a 2.5% cost-of-living adjustment. 
 
General Manager Watton thanked the board and acknowledged the field staff, 
administrative staff, management and executive team.  He stated that the 
employees are the reason for the success that he enjoys.  He also stated that the 
stability and guidance that the board brings to the District highly contributes to his 
success and that of the staff as well. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
11. ITEMS TO BE ACTED UPON WITHOUT DISCUSSION, UNLESS A REQUEST 

IS MADE BY A MEMBER OF THE BOARD OR THE PUBLIC TO DISCUSS A 
PARTICULAR ITEM: 

 
Upon a motion by Director Croucher, seconded by Director Lopez and carried 
with the following vote: 

 
Ayes: Directors Croucher, Gonzalez, Lopez, Robak and Thompson 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 

 
to approve the following consent calendar items: 
 
a) AWARD TWO (2) PROFESSIONAL AS-NEEDED ENGINEERING 

DESIGN SERVICES CONTRACTS TO ARCADIS AND PSOMAS, EACH 
IN AN AMOUNT NOT-TO-EXCEED $300,000 FOR FISCAL YEARS 2015 
AND 2016.  THE TOTAL AMOUNT TO BE AWARDED OVER THE 
DURATION OF THE CONTRACT WILL NOT EXCEED $300,000 
WITHOUT ADDITIONAL BOARD AUTHORIZATION 
 

b) REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO EXECUTE AND RECORD GRANT 
DEEDS NECESSARY TO PERFECT TITLE ON THE OTAY WATER 
DISTRICT (APN 597-041-50-00) AND THE GORE (APN 597-041-51-00) 
PROPERTIES 

 
c) ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 4240, FIXING TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

FOR THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTIES OWNED BY 
THE OTAY LAND CO., LLC, APNs: 644-070-12, 14, 16, 17 AND 19-00 
INTO THE OTAY WATER DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NOS. 
22 AND 27 

 
d) APPROVE THE ADOPTION OF A MITIGATED NEGATIVE 

DECLARATION FOR THE 870-1 RESERVOIR ACCESS ROAD PAVING 
PROJECT 
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Director Thompson indicated that he wished to make a general comment with regard to 
consent calendar item “C.”  He acknowledged Mr. Jeff O’Conner of the Otay Land Co. 
who was in attendance of the District’s board meeting.  He stated that his organization 
is doing good work in east Chula Vista where they are developing large communities.  
He indicated that the District appreciates the work that they are doing. 
 
ACTION ITEMS 

 
12. ADMINISTRATION, FINANCE AND INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

 
a) ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 545 AMENDING SECTION 9, ANNEXATIONS 

AND DETACHMENTS 9.04 B AND C.4; SECTION 28 CONNECTION 
FEES AND CHARGES FOR POTABLE OR RECYCLED WATER 
SERVICE 28.01 A AND B; SECTION 53, CONDITIONS FOR SEWER 
SERVICE 53.03 A.1; AND APPENDIX A OF THE DISTRICT’S CODE OF 
ORDINANCES WHICH WILL INCORPORATE THE FOLLOWING 
CHANGES: 
 
i. UPDATE THE CURRENT WATER CAPACITY FEE (INCLUDING 

THE TRIAD FEE) AND NEW WATER SUPPLY FEE TO REFLECT 
THE VALUE OF THE DISTRICT’S CURRENT AND FUTURE 
ASSETS 

ii. UPDATE THE WATER ANNEXATION FEE TO REFLECT THE 
UPDATED “BUY-IN” FOR NEW CUSTOMERS ANNEXING INTO 
THE OTAY WATER DISTRICT BOUNDARIES 

iii. MODIFY THE SEWER CAPACITY FEE TO A NEW “COMBINED” 
METHODOLOGY OF CHARGING CAPACITY FEES WHICH IS 
CONSISTENT WITH THE METHODOLOGY USED FOR WATER, 
WHICH REFLECTS THE VALUE OF THE DISTRICT’S CURRENT 
AND FUTURE ASSETS 

 
Finance Manager Rita Bell indicated that staff is requesting that the board adopt 
Ordinance No. 545 modifying the District’s capacity and annexation fees.  She 
stated that every four (4) to six (6) years staff performs a study to ensure fairness 
of the developer fees and that “growth pays for growth” (new customers pay for 
their equitable share of new facilities and their proportionate share of the existing 
distribution system).  The District’s last fee study was performed in 2010 where 
changes were made to the water, capacity and annexation fee methodology and 
a new water supply fee was implemented.  She noted that the District had invited 
the local developers to the District’s board meeting today to make them aware of 
the changes that the District is proposing.  She introduced Mr. Tom Gould of 
HDR, the District’s consultant who performed the District’s rate study who would 
present the results of the rate study.  Please reference the Committee Action 
notes (Attachment A) attached to staff’s report for the details of Ms. Bell’s and 
Mr. Gould’s report. 
 
In response to an inquiry from Director Robak, Mr. Gould indicated that there is 
no change in the methodology utilized to calculate fees and this is the reason the 
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fees are generally the same as the fees the District has in place today.  He 
further noted that the District also adjusts its fees on a quarterly basis to take into 
account the time value of money and is another reason why there is not a huge 
difference between the new calculated fees and what the District currently has in 
place. 
 
Director Robak inquired what the average increase has been for these fees over 
the last 10 years.  Chief of Engineering Posada indicated that the average 
increase has been about 1.7%. 
 
In response to another inquiry from Direct Robak, Chief Financial Officer 
Beachem indicated that the District had invited the Developer Community to a 
meeting at the District to discuss the proposed changes to the fees and the 
methodology utilized by the District to calculate the fees.  Approximately four (4) 
developers attended.  After the study was completed, the District sent out notices 
to the Developer Community indicating the recommended changes to the fees 
and there were no comments received from the Development Community. 
 
Upon a motion by Director Robak, seconded by Director Croucher and carried 
with the following vote: 

 
Ayes: Directors Croucher, Gonzalez, Lopez, Robak and Thompson 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 

 
to approve staffs’ recommendation. 
 

13. BOARD 
 
a) DISCUSSION OF THE 2014 BOARD MEETING CALENDAR 
 
There were no changes to the 2014 Board Meeting Calendar. 
 

INFORMATIONAL ITEM 
 

14. THE FOLLOWING ITEM IS PROVIDED TO THE BOARD FOR 
INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY.  NO ACTION IS REQUIRED ON THE 
FOLLOWING AGENDA ITEM: 
 
a) FISCAL YEAR 2014 FOURTH QUARTER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 

PROGRAM REPORT 
 
Engineering Manager Dan Martin provided an update on the District’s fourth 
quarter of FY 2014 Capital Improvement Program.  He indicated that the FY 
2014 budget is broken into 63 projects totaling $13.9 million.  The overall 
expenditures for the fourth quarter are $8.5 million which is approximately 61% of 
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the FY 2014 budget.  Please reference the Committee Action notes (Attachment 
A) attached to staff’s report for the details of Mr. Martin’s report. 
 
In response to a question from Director Robak, Engineering Manager Martin 
indicated that the average life expectancy for the interior/exterior coating of a 
reservoir is approximately 20 years.  He indicated that the District inspects its 
reservoirs on a regular basis through diving inspections.  Mr. Martin indicated 
that the cost for the maintenance/new coatings is rolled into the CIP for 
maintenance/repairs of facilities. 
 
Engineering Manager Martin indicated in response to an inquiry from Director 
Thompson that there is a one (1) year warrantee on the coating of the tanks and 
a two (2) year warrantee on the cover/liners.  There is also a materials 
warrantee.  Staff noted that though there is a 20 year life expectancy on the 
coatings, the District performs ongoing maintenance (dive inspections, cleaning, 
maintaining the anodes, rust, etc.) on the reservoirs.  The District has a 
maintenance program and each reservoir is evaluated for maintenance needs on 
a periodic basis. 
 
b) INFORMATIONAL REPORT ON THE DISTRICT’S INTENT TO 

REDESIGN THE CURRENT DISTRICT WEBSITE 
 
Information Technology Manager Michael Kerr presented the District’s newly 
redesigned website.  He indicated that the new website was developed in 
tandem with the current District website and features a new responsive design 
that will adapt the page layout and content to the size of the user’s display or 
mobile device, which will improve the accessibility of content on the site for 
mobile devices, tablets, and traditional desktop computers.  It is expected that 
the new site will be launched in the early part of September 2014.  Please 
reference the Committee Action notes (Attachment A) attached to staff’s report 
for the details of Mr. Kerr’s report. 
 
Director Robak asked if the new website would be user friendly as far as 
updating the information.  Information Technology Manager Kerr indicated that it 
is user friendly and that training was held a week ago on developing and 
updating content on the site.  Also, security levels have been limited for staff, 
which prevents staff from making changes to just any part of the website.  It was 
indicated in response to another question from Director Robak that the entire 
website is mobile friendly. 
 
Information Technology Manager Kerr presented the actual website to the board 
and displayed some of the features of the website. 
 
Director Gonzalez inquired if the District will have an ‘app’ for customers to easily 
access their account and pay their bills.  Mr. Kerr indicated that the District 
currently did not have an app, but the website does have a bill pay button/icon 
which can be accessed through a mobile device.  Assistant Chief of 
Administrative and Information Technology Services indicated that the roll out of 
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the new website is Phase 1 of an ongoing plan.  Staff will be more active with 
updating the site as well as reviewing cost, security, governance, and 
performance.  In Phase II of the plan, staff will be evaluating a possible app. 

 
REPORTS 
 
15. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

SAN DIEGO COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY UPDATE 
 
Director Croucher stated that CWA has won its lawsuit against MWD.  MWD is 
filing an appeal.  The judge, however, ruled that their water rates are illegal as 
they violate cost of service requirements of the California State Statutes.  MWD 
is sending representatives to San Diego to try and gain support for a negotiated 
resolution between CWA and MWD.  He indicated as a reminder to our region’s 
Chambers, Kiwanis Clubs, the San Diego Taxpayer’s Association, etc., that it is 
not in the best interest of our region to negotiate with MWD.  Director Croucher 
reiterated that MWD lost the lawsuit and it was ruled that their rates were illegal.  
CWA will be sharing outreach information with all the member agencies 
regarding the lawsuit so the agencies are aware of the true facts of the lawsuit. 
 
Director Croucher indicated with regard to the State Water Bond that if it is 
passed by the voters, the San Diego region would receive approximately 11% of 
the funds.  He stated that this is positive and is a change from the past where the 
San Diego region only received $1.00 for every $5.00 that it is taxed for the bond.  
The region will be taxed 11.5% to fund the bond and approximately 11% will be 
brought back to the County. 
 
He stated that the Legislation, Conservation and Outreach Committee held a 
meeting at the Water Conservation Garden and the committee members were 
also provided a tour of the Garden. 
 
He also shared that he will be going to Sacramento where he will be participating 
on the interview panel selecting the legislative advocate consultant who will 
represent CWA in Sacramento. 
 
He indicated that CWA staff will be presenting at their next board meeting the 
rebates that are available to commercial and residential customers from both 
MWD, CWA, SDG&E and other programs.  They will also provide a list that can 
be shared with each of the member agencies. 
 
General Manager Watton indicated that CWA’s representative to MWD, Mr. 
Vince Mudd has just retired from CWA’s board.  CWA’s board will be considering 
appointing either Mss. Elsa Saxod or Yen Tu as it’s new representative.  Mss. 
Saxod and Tu are representatives from the City of San Diego and the MWD seat 
vacated by Mr. Mudd is unofficially a City of San Diego seat. 
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He also shared that CWA will be assisting the City of San Diego with their 
potable water reuse project. 
 
He further indicated that in the handouts he provided, there is information on 
CWA’s lawsuit with MWD.  He stated that it outlines the court’s decision and 
MWD’s position on the decision.  He stated there is also information provided on 
the Colorado River’s Hydrology which indicates the conditions of the lakes and 
storage, Proposition 1, the Water Conservation Garden, information on the 
predicted El Nino for this winter, and information on the 49 page letter from the 
EPA to the State with the opinion that the Bay Delta Plan could violate Federal 
Law. 
 
General Manager Watton then presented information from his report which 
included an update on small, minority and disadvantaged business outreach; the 
employee recognition luncheon; recruitments/personnel changes; the water 
waste reporting form on the District’s website; the District’s Standard & Poor’s 
rating review; water waste tracking; and the Rosarito Desalination Project. 
 

16. DIRECTORS' REPORTS/REQUESTS 
 

Director Robak indicated that he attended an East County Chamber of 
Commerce meeting and Mr. Allen Carlyle, the General Manager of Padre Dam 
MWD, presented their Advanced Water Purification Project.  He stated that the 
big component of their project is Direct Potable Reuse and commented, as many 
know, that it will take some time to get acceptance of the project. 
 
He indicated that the County of San Diego has been receiving negative press on 
a little water park that they located in front of their administrative building.  He 
stated that he understands that the District’s new public relations firm, (W)right 
On Communications, had handled the public outreach concerning the public’s 
view of having the water park in general.  He stated he was a little concerned 
about this and was still waiting on a response from (W)right On Communications. 
 
He noted that the Water Conservation Garden’s attendance has tripled.  He 
stated that this is not surprising as residents are looking for ways to save on their 
water bill and the Garden is the place to go to find ways to save water in your 
landscape. 
 
Director Croucher indicated that the California Special Districts Association 
(CSDA) will hold their annual conference at the end of the month and inquired if 
any of the Directors had signed up to attend.  He noted that the District receives 
incentive points towards credits to its premium for liability insurance for directors’ 
attendance.  He indicated that if the District has not yet maximized its incentive 
points, directors might consider attending the conference to maximize the money 
the District can save towards its liability insurance premium. 
 
Director Thompson indicated that he received an email from a customer who 
reported possible water theft that they witnessed from a hydrant within the 
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District’s service area  Staff had investigated the situation and it was found that 
there was no theft occurring and the water taken from the hydrant was authorized 
as the truck had a meter attached to it.  The meter measures the water taken 
from the hydrant which is then billed by the District.  A response was quickly 
provided to the customer and the customer was pleased with the quick reply form 
the District.  Director Thompson thanked staff, District Secretary Susan Cruz and 
Customer Service Manager Andrea Carey, for their quick response to the 
customer’s inquiry. 
 

17. PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
 

President Lopez reported on meetings he attended during the month of August 
2014 (a list of meetings he attended is attached).  He again congratulated staff 
on the successful completion of the negotiations on the Memorandum of 
Understanding with the Otay Water District Employees Association. 
 

18. ADJOURNMENT 
 

With no further business to come before the board, President Lopez adjourned 
the meeting at 6:20 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

     ___________________________________ 
           President 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
District Secretary 
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President’s Report 

September 3, 2014 Board Meeting 

 

A) Meetings attended during the Month of August 2014: 
 

1) August 1: Board Agenda Briefing.  Met with General Manager 
Watton and General Counsel Dan Shinoff to review items that 

will be presented at the August Board Meeting. 

 

2) August 6: Attended the District’s Regular Board Meeting. 
 

3) August 7:  Attended a meeting of the Metro Commission (see 
attached agenda) 

 

4) August 15:  .Committee Agenda Briefing.  Met with General 
Manager Watton to review items that will be presented at 

the August FA&C Committee meeting. 

 

5) August 18:   Attended the District’s Finance, 
Administration and Communications Committee.  Reviewed, 

discussed, and made recommendation on items that will be 

presented at the September board meeting. 

 

6) August 21: 
 

a. Met with Jerry Gumpel, International Counsel of 
Sheppard, Mullin, Richter & Hampton LLP, to discuss 

the Rosarito Desalination Project. Attendees: Mark 

Watton and Dan Shinoff 

 

b. CSDA Quarterly Dinner.  Received a presentation on, 
“Strategic Planning: Creating Balance for You and Your 

Organization.” 

 

7) August 29:  Board Agenda Briefing.  Met with General 
Manager Watton and General Counsel Dan Shinoff to review 

items that will be presented at the September Board 

Meeting. 

 



  

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
    
TYPE MEETING: Regular Board 

 
MEETING DATE: November 5, 2014 

SUBMITTED BY: 

 

 

Stephen Beppler 
Senior Civil Engineer 
 
Bob Kennedy 
Engineering Manager 
 

PROJECT: S2033-001103 
 

DIV. NO.:  5 

APPROVED BY: 
 

 Rod Posada, Chief, Engineering 

 German Alvarez, Assistant General Manager 

 Mark Watton, General Manager 
  
SUBJECT: Award of a Construction Contract to Arrieta Construction, Inc. 

for the Calavo Basin Sewer Rehabilitation - Phase 1 Project 
  

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Otay Water District (District) Board of Directors (Board) 
award a construction contract to Arrieta Construction, Inc. (Arrieta) 
and to authorize the General Manager to execute an agreement with 
Arrieta for the Calavo Basin Sewer Rehabilitation - Phase 1 Project 
in an amount-not-to exceed $529,490 (see Exhibit A for Project 
location). 
 
COMMITTEE ACTION:   
 
Please see Attachment A. 
 
PURPOSE: 
 
To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to enter into a 
construction contract with Arrieta for the Calavo Basin Sewer 
Rehabilitation - Phase 1 Project in an amount-not-to exceed $529,490. 
 

tita.ramos-krogman
Typewritten Text
AGENDA ITEM 6a
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ANALYSIS: 
 
The District provides sanitary sewer collection service in the 
Jamacha drainage basin located in the northern area of the District 
in Division 5.  Deficiencies throughout the sewer service area have 
been observed and documented by closed-circuit television inspection 
and condition assessment.  This first phase of sewer improvements 
consists of sewer system repairs at 14 locations within the Calavo 
Basin (see Exhibit A for Project location).  This project is the 
first of several that will address the noted deficiencies to maintain 
the sewer collection system.   
 
The sewer improvements involve the replacement of approximately 1,200 
linear feet of 8-inch gravity sewer, installation of about 220 linear 
feet of new 8-inch gravity sewer, 4 new sewer manholes, reconnection 
of sewer lines and laterals, maintaining sewer service, restoration 
of pavement and landscaping, removal of trees, traffic control, 
erosion control, protection of existing utilities, and all testing 
and inspection as required by the Contract Documents. 
 
The Project was advertised on July 31, 2014 on the District’s website 
and several other publications including the San Diego Daily 
Transcript.  A Pre-Bid Meeting was held on August 21, 2014, which was 
attended by one (1) general contractor and one (1) subcontractor.  
Due to the nature of the project and multiple project sites, no site 
visit was included with the Pre-Bid Meeting, attributing to the low 
turnout.  Two (2) addenda were sent out to all bidders and plan 
houses to distribute the County of San Diego Excavation Permit and 
address questions and clarifications to the contract documents during 
the bidding period.  Bids were publicly opened on September 11, 2014, 
with the following results: 
 
 CONTRACTOR TOTAL BID AMOUNT
1 Arrieta Construction, Inc. 

El Cajon, CA 
$529,490.00 

2 GRFCO Inc. 
Moreno Valley, CA 

$570,500.00 

3 Piperin Corp. 
Vista, CA 

$608,780.00 

4 Just Construction 
San Diego, CA 

$622,000.00 

5 Wier Construction 
Escondido, CA 

$710,460.00 

6 Burtech Pipeline, Inc. 
Encinitas, CA 

$721,000.00 

7 Blue Pacific Engineering & Construction 
San Diego, CA 

$785,700.00 
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The Engineer’s Estimate is $750,000. 
 
Staff reviewed the bids submitted for conformance with the contract 
requirements and determined that Arrieta was the lowest responsive 
and responsible bidder.  Arrieta holds a Class A, General 
Engineering, Contractor’s License, which meets the contract 
document’s requirements, and is valid through May 31, 2015.  The 
reference checks indicated an excellent performance record on similar 
projects.  An internet background search of the company was performed 
and revealed no outstanding issues with this company.  Arrieta 
previously worked with the District’s Engineering Department on two 
(2) projects, the Ralph W. Chapman Water Recycling Facility Forcemain 
Air/Vac Replacement and Access Road Improvements (R2086) and the PL-
12-Inch Upsize and Replacement Pipeline Projects (P2038, P2356, and 
P2387) and completed the work within budget and on schedule.   
 
Staff verified that the bid bond provided by Arrieta is valid.  Staff 
will also verify that Arrieta Performance Bond and Labor and 
Materials Bond are valid prior to execution of the contract. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:    Joe Beachem, Chief Financial Officer 
 
The total budget for CIP S2033, as approved in the FY 2015 budget, is 
$6,000,000.  Total expenditures, plus outstanding commitments and 
forecast including this contract, are $1,196,375.11.  See Attachment 
B for budget detail. 
 
Finance has determined that 100% of the funding is available from the 
Replacement Fund for CIP S2033. 
 
STRATEGIC GOAL: 
 
This Project supports the District’s Mission statement, “To provide 
high value water and wastewater services to the customers of the Otay 
Water District in a professional, effective, and efficient manner” 
and the General Manager’s Vision, “A District that is at the 
forefront in innovations to provide water services at affordable 
rates, with a reputation for outstanding customer service.” 
 
LEGAL IMPACT: 
 
None. 
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ATTACHMENT A 
 

SUBJECT/PROJECT: 
S2033-001103 

Award of a Construction Contract to Arrieta Construction, 
Inc. for the Calavo Basin Sewer Rehabilitation - Phase 1 
Project 

 
COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 
The Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee (Committee) 
reviewed this item at a meeting held on October 13, 2014, and the 
following comments were made: 
 

 Staff recommended that the board award a construction contract to 
Arrieta Construction, Inc. (Arrieta) and to authorize the General 
Manager to execute an agreement with Arrieta for the Calavo Basin 
Sewer Rehabilitation - Phase 1 Project in an amount-not-to exceed 
$529,490. 
 

 Staff stated that the District is in the process of addressing 
sanitary sewer collection system deficiencies identified by 
closed-circuit television inspection and condition assessment.  
Phase 1 of the sewer improvements consists of repairs at 14 
locations within the Calavo Basin.  The sewer improvements 
involve the replacement of about 1,200 feet of 8-inch sewer, 
installation of about 220 feet of new 8-inch sewer, new sewer 
manholes, reconnection of sewer lines and laterals, maintaining 
sewer service, restoration of pavement and landscaping, traffic 
control, and all testing and inspection as required by the 
Contract Documents. 
 

 Staff discussed the bid process and indicated that bids ranged 
from $529,490 to $785,700.  Results of the bid process are 
provided on Page 2 of the staff report. 
 

 It was indicated that staff reviewed the bids submitted for 
conformance with the contract requirements and determined that 
Arrieta was the lowest responsive and responsible bidder. 
 

 Staff noted that the District has previously worked with Arrieta 
on two (2) projects, the 14” Recycled Water Forcemain Air/Vac 
Replacement and Access Road Improvements and the PL-12-Inch 
Upsize and Replacement Pipeline Projects and completed the work 
within budget and on schedule.  Arrieta is readily available to 
provide the services required. 
 



 
 

Following the discussion, the committee supported staffs’ 
recommendation and presentation to the full board on the consent 
calendar. 
 



 
 

 

 
 

ATTACHMENT B – Budget Detail 
 

SUBJECT/PROJECT: 
S2033-001103 

Award of a Construction Contract to Arrieta Construction, 
Inc. for the Calavo Basin Sewer Rehabilitation - Phase 1 
Project 

 
Level Title1 Committed Expenditures Outstanding 

Commitment

Projected Final 

Cost

Vendor

Regulatory 

Agency Fees

$50.00  $50.00  $0.00  $50.00  PETTY CASH 

CUSTODIAN

Standard 

Salaries

$193,082.15  $193,082.15  $0.00  $193,082.15 

Total $193,132.15  $193,132.15  $0.00  $193,132.15 

$21,445.89  $21,445.89  $0.00  $21,445.89  SOUTHERN 

CALIFORNIA SOIL

$152,957.78  $152,957.78  $0.00  $152,957.78 AEGIS 

ENGINEERING 

MGMT INC

$20,720.00  $20,720.00  $0.00  $20,720.00 DARNELL & 

ASSOCIATES INC

Professional  

Legal  Fees

$79.52  $79.52  $0.00  $79.52  STUTZ ARTIANO 

SHINOFF

$384.90  $384.90  $0.00  $384.90  SAN DIEGO DAILY 

TRANSCRIPT

$750.00  $750.00  $0.00  $750.00 CHICAGO TITLE 

COMPANY

$1,653.87  $1,414.38  $239.49  $1,653.87 MAYER 

REPROGRAPHICS

Standard 

Salaries

$257,565.41  $257,565.41  $0.00  $257,565.41 

Total $455,557.37  $455,317.88  $239.49  $455,557.37 

$5,850.00  $5,850.00  $0.00  $5,850.00 ALYSON 

CONSULTING

$2,400.00  $2,400.00  $0.00  $2,400.00 RBF CONSULTING

Regulatory 

Agency Fees

$6,904.79  $6,904.79  $0.00  $6,904.79 COUNTY OF SAN 

DIEGO

Construction 

Contract

$529,490.00  $0.00  $529,490.00  $529,490.00 ARRIETA 

CONSTRUCTION

Standard 

Salaries

$3,040.80  $3,040.80  $0.00  $3,040.80 

Total $547,685.59  $18,195.59  $529,490.00  $547,685.59 

Budget $6,000,000.00 

Total  to Date $1,196,375.11  $666,645.62  $529,729.49  $1,196,375.11 

Planning

Design Consultant 

Contracts

Service 

Contracts

Construction Consultant 

Contracts

Ex
penditures through September 12, 2014. 
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STAFF REPORT 

 
    
TYPE MEETING: Regular Board 

 
MEETING DATE: November 5, 2014 

SUBMITTED BY: 

 

 

Stephen Beppler 
Senior Civil Engineer 
 
Bob Kennedy 
Engineering Manager 
 

PROJECT:  P1210-
001101 

DIV. NO. ALL 

APPROVED BY: 
 

 Rod Posada, Chief, Engineering 

 German Alvarez, Assistant General Manager 

 Mark Watton, General Manager 
  
SUBJECT: Award of a Professional Engineering Services Contract for the 

2015 Integrated Water Resources Plan Update to Carollo 
Engineers, Inc. 

  

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Otay Water District (District) Board of Directors (Board) 
award a professional services contract to Carollo Engineers, Inc. 
(Carollo) and to authorize the General Manager to execute an 
agreement with Carollo for the 2015 Integrated Water Resources Plan 
Update in an amount not-to-exceed $99,993. 
 
COMMITTEE ACTION:   
 
Please see Attachment A. 
 
PURPOSE: 
 
To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to enter into a 
professional engineering services contract with Carollo for the 2015 
Integrated Water Resources Plan Update (2015 IRP Update) in an amount 
not-to-exceed $99,993. 

tita.ramos-krogman
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ANALYSIS: 
 
The District requires the services of an engineering planning firm 
(Consultant) to provide professional engineering services as part of 
the District’s Integrated Water Resources Plan (IRP) Update for 2015 
(Capital Improvement Plan Number P1210).  The original IRP was 
completed on March 2, 2007 and approved by the District’s Board of 
Directors.  The plan identifies potential potable water and recycled 
water supply sources required to serve our customers at build-out 
conditions.   
 
The purpose of the 2015 IRP Update is to incorporate the significant 
changes the District has experienced to water demands and reflect the 
investigations and implementations made into many of the short-term 
and long-term water supply recommendations identified in the plan. 
The 2015 IRP Update must develop a phased approach to outline the 
water supply Capital Improvement Program (CIP) projects necessary to 
meet the projected customer demands through the year 2050.   
 
In accordance with the Board of Directors Policy Number 21, the 
District initiated the consultant selection process on June 24, 2014, 
by placing an advertisement in the San Diego Daily Transcript, and 
posting the Project on the District’s website for Professional 
Engineering Services.  The advertisements attracted Letters of 
Interest and Statements of Qualifications from six (6) consulting 
firms.  A Pre-Proposal Meeting was held on July 17, 2014. Six (6) 
people representing five (5) prime consulting firms attended the 
meeting.  
 
On October 14, 2013, proposals were received from the following three 
(3) consulting firms: 
 

1. RMC 
2. Carollo Engineers, Inc. 
3. Gillingham Water Planning and Engineering, Inc. 

The Gillingham team included two of the prime engineering firms that 
submitted letters of interest, Atkins and DLM Engineering, Inc.  

After the proposals were evaluated and ranked by a five-member review 
panel consisting of District Engineering, Finance, and Operations 
staff, it was determined that the panel had numerous questions on all 
three (3) proposals and that their rank was sufficiently close to 
warrant all being invited to make an oral presentation and respond to 
questions from the panel.  After conducting the interviews on        
September 11, 2014, the panel completed the consultant ranking 
process and concluded that Carollo had the best approach to the 
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Project at the best overall value to the District.  Carollo is 
currently providing engineering services to the District for the 
design of the 870-2 Pump Station Replacement.  A summary of the 
complete evaluation is shown in Attachment B.    

Carollo submitted the Company Background Questionnaire as required by 
the RFP and staff did not find any significant issues.  In addition, 
staff checked their references and performed an internet search on 
the company.  Staff found the references to be excellent and did not 
find any outstanding issues with the internet search. 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Joe Beachem, Chief Financial Officer 
 
The professional services contract to Carollo for the 2015 IRP Update 
in an amount not-to-exceed $99,993 will be spent over Fiscal Years 
(FY) 2015 and 2016.  $40,000 is projected to be spent in FY 2015 for 
the 2015 IRP Update and this expenditure is included in the FY 2015 
operating budget for planning outside services.   
 
Approximately $60,000 is projected to be included with the FY 2016 
budget development process to complete the 2015 IRP Update.  The 
Project Manager anticipates that the FY 2016 budget, if approved, 
will be sufficient to complete the 2015 IRP Update. 
 
STRATEGIC GOAL: 
 
This Project supports the District’s Mission statement, “To provide 
high value water and wastewater services to the customers of the Otay 
Water District in a professional, effective, and efficient manner” 
and the General Manager’s Vision, “A District that is at the 
forefront in innovations to provide water services at affordable 
rates, with a reputation for outstanding customer service.” 

 
LEGAL IMPACT: 
 
None. 
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ATTACHMENT A 
 

SUBJECT/PROJECT: 
 

P1210-001101 

Award of a Professional Engineering Services Contract for 
Production of the 2015 Integrated Water Resources Plan 
Update to Carollo Engineers, Inc. 

 
COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 
The Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee (Committee) 
reviewed this item at a meeting held on October 13, 2014, and the 
following comments were made: 
 

 Staff recommended that the board award a professional services 
contract to Carollo Engineers, Inc. (Carollo) and to authorize 
the General Manager to execute an agreement with Carollo for the 
2015 Integrated Water Resources Plan Update in an amount not-to-
exceed $99,993. 
 

 It was discussed that the District’s current Integrated Water 
Resources Plan (IRP) was completed in 2007 and that it identifies 
potential potable water and recycled water supply sources 
required to serve our customers through build-out conditions.  
The purpose of the 2015 IRP Update is to incorporate the 
significant changes the District has experienced to water demands 
and reflect the investigations and implementations made into many 
of the short-term and long-term water supply recommendations 
identified in the plan. 
 

 Staff noted that the 2015 IRP Update will develop a phased 
approach to outline the water supply CIP projects necessary to 
meet the projected customer demands through the year 2050. 
 

 Staff discussed the selection process of the consultant and 
indicated that the process was in accordance of Policy 21.  
Attachment B of the staff report provides results of how each 
firm was scored. 
 

 It was indicated that Carollo received the highest overall scores 
based on their experience, proposed method to accomplish the 
work, and their overall value to the District. 
 

 The District has previously worked with Carollo.  Staff stated 
that Carollo is currently providing engineering services on the 



 

 

design of the 870-2 Pump Station Replacement.  Carollo is readily 
available to provide the services required. 
 

 The Committee inquired about the significant difference in the 
proposed rates from the three (3) candidates, which ranged from 
$99,993 to $230,802.  Staff stated that Carollo proposed to meet 
the identified scope of work for an update of the District’s 
Integrated Water Resources Plan and therefore was able to provide 
the lowest proposed fee for the project.  It appeared the other 
candidates proposed to revisit and expand on the identified scope 
of work, which required more work hours for their personnel and 
resulted in significantly higher proposed fees than Carollo. 

 
Following the discussion, the committee supported staffs’ 
recommendation and presentation to the full board on the consent 
calendar. 
 



Qualifications of 
Team

Responsiveness 
and Project 

Understanding

Technical and 
Management 

Approach

INDIVIDUAL 
SUBTOTAL - 

WRITTEN

AVERAGE 
SUBTOTAL - 

WRITTEN
Proposed Fee

Consultant's 
Commitment to 

DBE

TOTAL - 
WRITTEN

Additional 
Creativity and 

Insight 

Strength of 
Project Manager 

Presentation and 
Communication 

Skills 

Responses to 
Questions 

INDIVIDUAL 
TOTAL - ORAL

AVERAGE 
TOTAL ORAL

TOTAL 
SCORE

30 25 30 85 85 15 Y/N 100 15 15 10 10 50 50 150
Poor/Good/ 
Excellent

Pedro Porras 23 21 23 67 11 12 10 7 40

Kevin Cameron 27 24 28 79 11 13 7 7 38

Jeff Marchioro 27 22 26 75 12 13 8 7 40

Dan Martin 26 24 26 76 13 13 8 8 42

Kevin Koeppen 26 24 29 79 10 11 7 7 35

Pedro Porras 26 24 25 75 13 13 9 8 43

Kevin Cameron 28 20 24 72 13 14 9 8 44

Jeff Marchioro 26 21 25 72 14 12 9 9 44

Dan Martin 27 23 25 75 14 14 9 9 46

Kevin Koeppen 23 24 29 76 12 13 9 8 42

Pedro Porras 27 24 25 76 13 14 10 9 46

Kevin Cameron 26 22 26 74 12 12 7 7 38

Jeff Marchioro 29 24 28 81 13 13 7 6 39

Dan Martin 27 24 27 78 12 12 7 7 38

Kevin Koeppen 29 20 29 78 13 13 9 9 44

     Note: Review Panel does not see or consider rates when scoring other categories. Rates are scored by the PM, who is not on Review Panel.
Consultant Rate Position Score

Carollo $99,993 lowest 15
Gillingham $193,330 second 5

RMC $230,802 highest 1

123

75 12939

44

RATES SCORING CHART

41RMC 77 1 Y 78 119
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STAFF REPORT 

 
    
TYPE MEETING: Regular Board 

 
MEETING DATE: November 5, 2014 

SUBMITTED BY: 

 

 

Lisa Coburn-Boyd 
Environmental Compliance 
Specialist 
 
Bob Kennedy 
Engineering Manager 
 

PROJECTS: P2495-001101 
P1253-001101 

DIV. NO. 4 

APPROVED BY: 
 

 Rod Posada, Chief, Engineering 

 German Alvarez, Assistant General Manager 

 Mark Watton, General Manager 
  
SUBJECT: Award of a Professional Environmental Services Contract for 

the San Miguel Habitat Management Area and  
CIP-Associated Mitigation Projects for Calendar Years 2015 
through 2017 

  

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Otay Water District (District) Board of Directors (Board) 
award a Professional Environmental Services Contract to Helix 
Environmental for the maintenance and monitoring of the San Miguel 
Habitat Management Area and CIP-Associated Mitigation Projects for 
calendar years 2015, 2016, and 2017 and authorizes the General 
Manager to execute an agreement in an amount not-to-exceed $476,173 
(see Exhibit A for location map.) 
 
COMMITTEE ACTION:   
 
Please see Attachment A. 
 
PURPOSE: 
 
That the Board authorizes the General Manager to execute a 
professional environmental services agreement with Helix 
Environmental in an amount not-to-exceed $476,173 for the maintenance 
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and monitoring of the San Miguel Habitat Management Area and CIP-
Associated Mitigation Projects for calendar years 2015, 2016, and 
2017. 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
The District’s Habitat Management Area (HMA) is a 230-acre, 
designated biological reserve located within the District’s 509-acre 
Use Area property within the City of Chula Vista.  The HMA serves as 
a mitigation bank with credits that can be utilized to offset habitat 
impacts associated with District projects and facilities.  It also 
serves as a habitat restoration area for vegetation impacts 
associated with the construction of District CIP projects.  The 
District is required to conduct biological monitoring, provide 
continuous maintenance, and submit annual reports to the U.S. Fish 
and Wildlife Service and the California Department of Fish & Wildlife 
for the HMA.  The HMA has been in existence since 1997 and is 
required to be monitored and maintained in perpetuity.  Individual 
restoration areas associated with CIP projects at the HMA generally 
have a 3 to 5 year maintenance, monitoring, and reporting period. 
 
Currently, Merkel & Associates is the firm that has the contract for 
the HMA maintenance and monitoring.  Their contract will conclude on 
December 31, 2014.  In order to have a new consultant on board 
immediately following the end of the current contract so that 
maintenance services are not neglected, the District solicited 
Professional Environmental Consulting Services from consulting firms 
by placing an advertisement on the District’s website and in various 
other publications including the San Diego Daily Transcript.  Twelve 
(12) firms submitted a Letter of Interest and Statement of 
Qualifications.  The Request for Proposal (RFP) was sent to all 
twelve (12) firms resulting in eight (8) proposals received on    
August 28, 2014 from the following consulting firms: 
 

 AMEC 
 ECORP 
 Hanan & Associates 
 Helix Environmental 
 Merkel & Associates 
 RECON Environmental 
 Rincon 
 Tierra Data 

 
In accordance with the District’s Policy 21, Staff evaluated and 
scored all written proposals and interviewed four (4) firms on    
August 23, 2014.  Helix Environmental received the highest score for 
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their services based on their extensive experience in the management 
of habitat areas, comprehensive understanding of the scope of work, 
proposed method to accomplish the work, and overall strength of their 
project team.  A summary of the complete evaluation is shown in 
Attachment B.  
 
Staff worked with Helix Environmental in negotiating the fee for 
services, which resulted in a fee decrease of $98,074 from their  
original proposal fee of $574,247, yielding the revised proposed fee 
of $476,173.  The reduction of fee was based on a reduction in the  
maintenance hours for the overall HMA and the cactus wren project. 
Based on District staff’s past 7 years of experience managing the HMA 
contract, Helix had over-estimated the hours for these two (2) tasks 
and the new hours are more appropriate without compromising the 
effort that will be required.  Staff reviewed the new level of effort 
and the revised fee and concluded that the modifications were 
appropriate. 
 
Helix Environmental submitted the Company Background Questionnaire as 
required by the RFP and staff did not find any significant issues.  
In addition, staff checked their references and performed an internet 
search on the company.  Staff found the references to be excellent 
and did not find any outstanding issues with the internet search.   
 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Joe Beachem, Chief Financial Officer 

 
The committed funds for this contract totaling $476,173 will be 
expended from Calendar Year 2015 through Calendar Year 2017 
encompassing Fiscal Years 2015-2018 and are budgeted for in the 
Operating Budget (approximately 30%)and the CIP Budget (approximately 
70%).  The costs for the remainder of Fiscal Year 2015 are covered by 
the existing CIP and operating budget.  The contract amount also 
includes the work being done for the Cactus Wren project grant 
through the SANDAG TransNet program and the costs for this work will 
be reimbursed to the District by SANDAG between January 2015 through  
August 2016 (end of the project), a total of approximately $40,000.  
 
Costs falling within the future fiscal years will be budgeted for in 
the normal budget process accordingly.   
 
Based on a review of the financial budgets, the Project Manager 
anticipates that both the Operating Budget and the budget for CIP 
P2495 will be sufficient to support the Project. 
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STRATEGIC GOAL: 
 
This Project supports the District’s Mission statement, “To provide 
high value water and wastewater services to the customers of the Otay 
Water District in a professional, effective, and efficient manner” 
and the General Manager’s Vision, “A District that is at the 
forefront in innovations to provide water services at affordable 
rates, with a reputation for outstanding customer service.” 

 
LEGAL IMPACT: 
 
None. 
 
 
LCB/BK:jf 
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ATTACHMENT A 
 

SUBJECT/PROJECTS: 
P2495-001101 &     
P1253-001101    

Award of a Professional Environmental Services Contract for 
the San Miguel Habitat Management Area and CIP-Associated 
Mitigation Projects for Calendar Years 2015 through 2017 

 
 
COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 
The Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee (Committee) 
reviewed this item at a meeting held on October 13, 2014, and the 
following comments were made: 
 

 Staff recommended that the Board award a Professional 
Environmental Services Contract to Helix Environmental for the 
maintenance and monitoring of the San Miguel Habitat Management 
Area and CIP-Associated Mitigation Projects for calendar years 
2015, 2016, and 2017 and authorizes the General Manager to 
execute an agreement in an amount not-to-exceed $476,173. 
 

 Staff stated that the San Miguel HMA is the District’s 230-acre 
designated biological reserve within our 509-acre Use Area 
property located in the City of Chula Vista.  The HMA serves as a 
mitigation bank with credits that can be utilized to offset 
habitat impacts associated with District projects and facilities.  
It also serves as a habitat restoration area for vegetation 
impacts associated with the construction of District CIP 
projects. 
 

 It was discussed that the District is required to conduct 
biological monitoring, provide continuous maintenance, and submit 
annual reports to the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and the 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife for the HMA.  The HMA 
has been in existence since 1997 and is required to be monitored 
and maintained in perpetuity.  Individual restoration areas 
associated with CIP projects at the HMA generally have a 3 to 5 
year maintenance, monitoring, and reporting period. 
 

 It was indicated that Staff followed the District’s Policy 21 for 
the selection process.  Page 2 of the staff report provides 



 

 

details of the selection process and Attachment B of the staff 
report provides a summary of the proposal rankings. 
 

 Staff stated that Helix Environmental received the highest rating 
and their references were checked and were found to be excellent. 
 

 Staff has worked with Helix Environmental in negotiating a 
decrease of their original fee of $547,247. Based on staff’s 
experience with the effort required to maintain the HMA, the 
hours for the maintenance of the HMA and the Cactus Wren project 
were over-estimated by Helix.  The new level of effort is more 
appropriate without compromising the effort required.  The fee 
was reduced by $98,074, making the total project amount $476,173. 
 

 In response to a question by the Committee, staff indicated that 
Hanan and Associates did have the lowest bid ($277,998) but did 
not have extensive experience in the management of habitat areas; 
Hanan and Associate’s experience is mostly in marine environment.  
It was also indicated that the firm had only one employee with 
extensive experience in habitat management, which was a concern 
as it questions the firm’s reliability of being readily available 
when needed. 
 

Following the discussion, the committee supported staffs’ 
recommendation and presentation to the full board on the consent 
calendar. 
 



 

 
ATTACHMENT B – Summary of Proposal Rankings 

 

SUBJECT/PROJECT: 

 
Award of a Professional Environmental Services Contract for the San Miguel Habitat 

Management Area and CIP-Associated Mitigation Projects for Calendar Years 2015 through 2017 

 

Qualifications of 

Team

Responsiveness, 

Project 

Understanding

Technical and 

Management 

Approach

INDIVIDUAL 

SUBTOTAL - 

WRITTEN

AVERAGE 

SUBTOTAL - 

WRITTEN

Proposed Fee*

Consultant's 

Commitment to 

DBE

AVERAGE 

TOTAL 

WRITTEN

Additional 

Creativity and 

Insight

Strength of 

Project Manager

Presentation, 

Communication 

Skills

Quality of 

Response to 

Questions

INDIVIDUAL 

TOTAL - ORAL

AVERAGE 

TOTAL ORAL

30 25 30 85 85 15 Y/N 100 15 15 10 10 50 50 150
Poor/Good/ 

Excellent

Steve Beppler 27 22 27 76

Kevin Cameron 28 24 28 80

Dan Martin 28 24 28 80

Kent Payne 25 21 24 70

Chad Thompson 27 23 26 76

Steve Beppler 24 23 24 71

Kevin Cameron 25 23 26 74

Dan Martin 25 20 25 70

Kent Payne 25 22 25 72

Chad Thompson 25 22 25 72

Steve Beppler 21 23 26 70 10 13 7 6 36

Kevin Cameron 25 21 23 69 11 12 7 7 37

Dan Martin 25 20 25 70 12 11 7 7 37

Kent Payne 20 21 22 63 10 13 7 9 39

Chad Thompson 23 20 24 67 12 14 9 7 42

Steve Beppler 27 23 25 75 13 11 8 7 39

Kevin Cameron 28 24 27 79 14 14 9 9 46

Dan Martin 29 23 28 80 14 14 9 9 46

Kent Payne 29 25 28 82 12 12 9 7 40

Chad Thompson 27 22 27 76 14 14 9 9 46

Steve Beppler 25 20 26 71

Kevin Cameron 24 19 24 67

Dan Martin 23 18 23 64

Kent Payne 25 20 19 64

Chad Thompson 25 19 26 70

Steve Beppler 29 24 26 79 11 10 7 6 34

Kevin Cameron 29 24 29 82 12 12 8 7 39

Dan Martin 29 24 29 82 12 12 8 8 40

Kent Payne 28 25 26 79 11 11 7 7 36

Chad Thompson 28 24 28 80 11 13 8 8 40

Steve Beppler 26 18 21 65

Kevin Cameron 26 21 21 68

Dan Martin 23 18 21 62

Kent Payne 23 18 20 61

Chad Thompson 25 20 22 67

Steve Beppler 27 22 28 77 13 9 8 7 37

Kevin Cameron 28 24 28 80 14 13 8 8 43

Dan Martin 25 23 25 73 13 12 8 8 41

Kent Payne 28 24 28 80 12 10 8 8 38

Chad Thompson 25 23 25 73 13 13 9 8 43

Consultant Proposed Fee Position Score

Hanan $277,998 lowest 15

Rincon $346,153 13

Merkel $360,499 12

ECORP $569,337 5

Helix $574,247 5

Tierra Data $581,105 5

RECON $605,990 4

AMEC $697,193 highest 1

121

76

72

68

E

Y 79 79

Y

77

126

Merkel 12

43

REFERENCES

83

1

5

15

5

WRITTEN

77

 TOTAL SCORE

78

67

Y 83

77

Y 77

MAXIMUM POINTS

Helix Y

38

ORAL

Hanan

ECORP

AMEC

RECON 80 4 Y 84 38 122

Rincon 65 4 Y 69 69

San Miguel HMA & CIP-Associated Mitigation Projects Services Contract

FEE SCORING CHART

122Tierra Data 77 5 Y 82 40
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STAFF REPORT 

 
    
TYPE MEETING: Regular Board 

 
MEETING DATE: November 5, 2014 

SUBMITTED BY: 

 

 

Mark Watton 
General Manager 
 

PROJECT: Various DIV. NO. ALL 

APPROVED BY: 
 

 Susan Cruz, District Secretary 

 Mark Watton, General Manager 
  
SUBJECT: ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 548 AMENDING SECTION 6, CONFLICT OF 

INTEREST CODE, OF THE DISTRICT’S CODE OF ORDINANCES  
  

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Board adopt Ordinance No. 548 amending Section 6, Conflict 
of Interest Code, of the District’s Code of Ordinances to expand the 
list of positions required to file a Form 700 and amend the 
disclosure categories.  The updates and amendments are reflected in 
Exhibit A of Attachment B. 
 
COMMITTEE ACTION:   
 
Please see attachment A. 
 
PURPOSE: 
 
To amend the District’s Conflict of Interest Code contained within 
the District’s Code of Ordinances to expand the list of positions 
required to file a Form 700 and amend the disclosure categories. 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
As required by the Political Reform Act (“Act”), staff and General 
Counsel have conducted a biennial review of the District’s Conflict 
of Interest Code (“COI Code”).  The District desires to expand the 
list of positions required to file a Form 700 to include the 
Assistant Chief of Administrative Services and Information Technology 
and Assistant Chief of Water Operations as these positions 
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participate in the making of decisions that may have a material 
affect on financial interests as established by the District’s COI 
Code. In addition, Counsel suggested that the District amend the 
disclosure categories for several positions that are required to file 
a Form 700 as follows:  
 
Chief of Administrative Services  1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 
 
Chief Financial Officer    1, 2, 5, 6, 7 
 
Chief Information Officer   1, 2, 3, 6, 7 
 
Chief of Engineering    1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 7 
 
Chief of Water Operations   1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 7 

These proposed changes to the COI Code are reflected in Exhibit A to 
Attachment B of this staff report. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   Joe Beachem, Chief Financial Officer 

 
None. 
 

 
LEGAL IMPACT: 
 
None. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 

Attachment A: Committee Action 
Attachment B: Ordinance No. 548, Amending Conflict of Interest 

Code 
 

 



 

 

 
   

ATTACHMENT A 
 

SUBJECT/PROJECT: 
 

 

ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 548 AMENDING SECTION 6, CONFLICT OF 
INTEREST CODE, OF THE DISTRICT’S CODE OF ORDINANCES 

 
 
COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 
The Finance, Administration and Communications Committee reviewed this 
item at a meeting held on October 21, 2014 and the following comments 
were made: 
 

 The Conflict of Interest Code is reviewed biannually as required 
by the Political Reform Act. 
 

 Staff is proposing that the titles of Assistant Chief of 
Administrative Services and Information Technology and Assistant 
Chief of Water Operations be add as positions required to file a 
Form 700. 
 

 Staff is also proposing adding additional reporting categories 
for several positions for consistency among the senior level 
positions. 
 

Upon completion of the discussion, the committee supported staffs’ 
recommendation and presentation to the full board on the consent 
calendar. 
 
Following the committee meeting, the District made a decision to 
upgrade the Inspection Supervisor position to Field Services Manager.  
This position would oversee the Inspections and Surveying areas of the 
Engineering Division.  As the position would participate in the making 
of decisions that may have a material affect on the District’s 
financial interests, it is being designated as one of the positions 
required to file a Form 700.  Its reporting categories are identified 
as 1, 2, 3, 4, and 7.  Staff is including this position and its 
identified reporting categories with the proposed amendments presented 
by Ordinance No. 548, to Section 6, Conflict of Interest Code, of the 
District’s Code of Ordinances. 
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ORDINANCE NO. 548 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE OTAY WATER DISTRICT 

AMENDING SECTION 6, 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE, 

OF THE DISTRICT’S CODE OF ORDINANCE 
 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of Otay Water 
District that the District’s Code of Ordinances, Section 6, 
Conflict of Interest Code, be amended to expand the list of 
positions required to file a Form 700 and amend the disclosure 
categories.  The amendments are presented in Exhibit A attached 
to this ordinance. 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the amendments to 
Section 6, Conflict of Interest Code, to the District’s Code of 
Ordinances shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 
 
 
 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of 
the Otay Water District at a regular meeting duly held this 5th 
day of November 2014, by the following vote: 
 
 
 AYES:  
 NOES:  
 ABSENT:  
 ABSTAIN:  
 
 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
        President 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
 District Secretary 

Attachment B
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DIVISION I DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION 
 
CHAPTER 5  PERSONNEL PRACTICES 
 
SECTION 6  CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 
 
6.01 DEFINITIONS 
 

The definitions contained in the Political Reform Act of 1974, 
regulations of the Fair Political Practices Commission (2 Cal. Code of 
Regs. Sections 18100, et seq.), and any amendments to the Act or 
regulations, are incorporated by reference into this conflict of 
interest code. 
 
6.02 DESIGNATED EMPLOYEES 
 

The persons holding positions listed in the Appendix are 
designated employees.  It has been determined that these persons make 
or participate in the making of decisions which may foreseeably have a 
material effect on financial interests. 
 
6.03 DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES 
 

This Code does not establish any disclosure obligation for those 
designated employees who are also specified in Government Code Section 
87200 if they are designated in this code in that same capacity or if 
the geographical jurisdiction of this agency is the same as or is 
wholly included within the jurisdiction in which those persons must 
report their financial interest pursuant to Article 2 of Chapter 2 of 
the Political Reform Act, Government Code Sections 87200, et seq.1  In 
addition, this code does not establish any disclosure obligation for 
any designated public officials who are designated in a conflict of 
interest code for another agency, if all of the following apply: 

 
(A) The geographical jurisdiction of this agency is the same as 

or is wholly included within the jurisdiction of the other agency; 
 
(B) The disclosure assigned in the code of the other agency is 

the same as that required under article 2 of chapter 7 of the 
Political Reform Act, Government Code Section 87200; and 

 
(C) The filing officer is the same for both agencies. 

                     
1 Designated employees who are required to file statements of economic interest under 
any other agency’s Conflict of Interest Code or under Article 2 for a different 
jurisdiction, may expand their statement of economic interests to cover reportable 
interest in both jurisdictions, and file copies of this expanded statement with both 
entities in lieu of filing separate and district statements, provided that each copy 
of such expanded statement filed in place of an original is signed and verified by 
the designated employee as if it were an original.  See Government Code Section 
81004. 

Exhibit A 
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Such persons are covered by this Code for disqualification 

purposes only.  With respect to all other designated employees, the 
disclosure categories set forth in the Appendix specify which kinds of 
financial interest are reportable.  Such a designated employee shall 
disclose in his or her statement of economic interest those financial 
interests he or she has which are of the kind described in the 
disclosure categories to which he or she is assigned in the Appendix.  
It has been determined that the financial interests set forth in a 
designated employee’s disclosure categories are the kinds of financial 
interest which he or she foreseeably can affect materially through the 
conduct of his or her office. 
 
6.04 STATEMENTS OF ECONOMIC INTERESTS:  PLACE OF FILING 
 

All officials and employees required to submit a statement of 
economic interest (employees in Designated Positions) shall file their 
statements with the General Manager, or his or her designee.  The 
District shall make and retain a copy of all statements filed by 
Designated Positions and forward the originals of such statements to 
the Executive Office of the Board of Supervisors of San Diego County.  
All retained statements, originals or copies shall be available for 
public inspection and reproduction.  (Cal. Gov’t Code § 81008)2 
 
6.05 STATEMENTS OF ECONOMIC INTERESTS:  TIME OF FILING 

 
(A) Initial Statements.  All designated employees employed by 

the agency on the effective date of this code, as originally adopted, 
promulgated and approved by the code reviewing body, shall file 
statements within 30 days after the effective date of this code.  
Thereafter, each person already in a position when it is designated by 
an amendment to this code shall file an initial statement within 30 
days after the effective date of the amendment. 

 
(B) Assuming Office Statements.  All persons assuming designated 

positions after the effective date of this code shall file statements 
within 30 days after assuming the designated positions, or if subject 
to State Senate confirmation, 30 days after being nominated or 
appointed. 

 
(C) Annual Statements.  All designated employees shall file 

statements no later than April 1. 
 
(D) Leaving Office Statements.  All persons who leave designated 

positions shall file statements within 30 days after leaving office. 
 

                     
2 See Government Code section 81010 and 2 Cal. Code of Regs. section 18115 for the 
duties of filing officers and persons in agencies who make and retain copies of 
statements and forward the originals to the filing officer. 
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6.06 STATEMENTS FOR PERSONS WHO RESIGN PRIOR TO ASSUMING OFFICE 
 

Any person who resigns within 12 months of initial appointment, 
or within 30 days of the date of notice provided by the filing officer 
to file an assuming office statement, is not deemed to have assumed 
office or left office, provided he or she did not make or participate 
in the making of, or use his or her position to influence any decision 
and did not receive or become entitled to receive any form of payment 
as a result of his or her appointment.  Such persons shall not file 
either an assuming or a leaving office statement. 

 
(A) Any person who resigns a position within 30 days of the date 

of a notice from the filing officer shall do both of the following: 
 
1. File a written resignation with the appointing power; and 
 
2. File a written statement with the filing officer declaring 

under penalty of perjury that during the period between 
appointment and resignation he or she did not make, 
participate in the making, or use the position to influence 
any decision of the agency or receive, or become entitled to 
receive, any form of payment by virtue of being appointed to 
the position. 

 
6.07 CONTENTS OF AND PERIOD COVERED BY STATEMENTS OF ECONOMIC 

INTERESTS 
 

(A) Contents of Initial Statements 
 

Initial statements shall disclose any reportable investments, 
interests in real property and business positions held on the 
effective date of the code and income received during the 12 months 
prior to the effective date of the code. 

 
(B) Contents of Assuming Office Statements 
 
Assuming office statements shall disclose any reportable 

investments, interests in real property and business positions held on 
the date of assuming office or on the date of appointment, and income 
received during the 12 months prior to the date of assuming office or 
the date of being appointed, respectively. 
 

(C) Contents of Annual Statements 
 

Annual statements shall disclose any reportable investments, 
interests in real property, income and business positions held or 
received during the previous calendar year provided, however, that the 
period covered by an employee’s first annual statement shall begin on 
the effective date of the code or the date of assuming office, 
whichever is later. 
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(D) Contents of Leaving Office Statements 

 
Leaving office statements shall disclose reportable investments, 

interest in real property, income and business positions held or 
received during the period between the closing date of the last 
statement filed and the date of leaving office. 
 
6.08 MANNER OF REPORTING 
 

Statements of economic interest shall be made on forms prescribed 
by the Fair Political Practices Commission and supplied by the agency, 
and shall contain the following information: 

 
(A) Investments and Real Property Disclosure 

 
When an investment or an interest in real property3 is required to 

be reported4, the statement shall contain the following: 
 
1. A statement of the nature of the investment or interest; 
 
2. The name of the business entity in which each investment is 

held, and a general description of the business activity in 
which the business entity is engaged; 

 
3. The address or other precise location of the real property; 
 
4. A statement whether the fair market value of the investment 

or interest in real property exceeds two thousand dollars 
($2,000), exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000), exceeds 
one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000), or exceeds one 
million dollars ($1,000,000). 

 
(B) Personal Income Disclosure 

 
When personal income is required to be reported5, the statement 

shall contain: 

                     
3 For the purpose of disclosure only (not disqualification), an interest in real 
property does not include the principal residence of the filer. 
 
4 Investments and interests in real property which have a fair market value of less 
than $2,000 are not investments and interests in real property within the meaning of 
the Political Reform Act.  However, investments or interests in real property of an 
individual include those held by the individual’s spouse and dependent children as 
well as a pro rata share of any investment or interest in real property of any 
business entity or trust in which the individual, spouse and dependent children own, 
in the aggregate, a direct, indirect or beneficial interest of 10 percent or greater. 
5 A designated employee’s income includes his or her community property interest in 
the income of his or her spouse but does not include salary or reimbursement for 
expenses received from a state, local or federal government agency. 
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1. The name and address of each source of income aggregating 

$500 or more in value or $50 or more in value if the income 
was a gift, and a general description of the business 
activity, if any, of each source; 

 
2. A statement whether the aggregate value of income from each 

source, or in the case of a loan, the highest amount owed to 
each source, was one thousand dollars ($1,000) or less, 
greater than one thousand dollars ($1,000), greater than ten 
thousand dollars ($10,000), or greater than one hundred 
thousand dollars ($100,000); 

 
3. A description of the consideration, if any, for which the 

income was received; 
 
4. In the case of a gift, the name, address and business 

activity of the donor and any intermediary through which the 
gift was made; a description of the gift; the amount or 
value of the gift; and the date on which the gift was 
received; 

 
5. File In the case of a loan, the annual interest rate and the 

security, if any, given for the loan. 
 

(C) Business Entity Income Disclosure 
 

When income of a business entity, including income of a sole 
proprietorship is required to be reported6, the statement shall 
contain: 

 
 
1. The name, address and a general description of the business 

activity of the business entity; 
 
2. The name of every person from whom the business entity 

received payments if the filer’s pro rata share of gross 
receipts from such person was equal to or greater than 
$10,000. 

 
(D) Business Position Disclosure 
 
When business positions are required to be reported, a designated 

employee shall list the name and address of each business entity in 

                     
6 Income of a business entity is reportable if the direct, indirect or beneficial 
interest of the filer and the filer’s spouse in the business entity aggregates a 10 
percent or greater interest.  In addition, the disclosure of persons who are clients 
or customers of a business entity is required only if the clients or customers are 
within one of the disclosure categories of the filer. 
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which he or she is a director, officer, partner, trustee, employee or 
in which he or she holds any position of management, a description of 
the business activity in which the business entity is engaged, and the 
designated employee’s position with the business entity. 

 
(E) Acquisition or Disposal During Reporting Period 

 
In the case of an annual or leaving office statement, if an 

investment or an interest in real property was partially or wholly 
acquired or disposed of during the period covered by the statement, 
the statement shall contain the date of acquisition or disposal. 
 
6.09 PROHIBITION ON RECEIPT OF HONORARIA 

A. No designated public official shall accept any honorarium from 
any source, if the member or employee would be required to report the 
receipt of income or gifts from that source on his or her statement of 
economic interests. 

Subdivisions (a), (b), and (c) of Government Code Section 89501 shall 
apply to the prohibitions in this section. 

This section shall not limit or prohibit payments, advances, or reim-
bursements for travel and related lodging and subsistence authorized 
by Government Code section 89506. 
 
6.10 PROHIBITION ON RECEIPT OF GIFTS IN EXCESS OF AMOUNT 

ESTABLISHED BY LAW7 

A. No designated public official shall accept gifts with a total 
value of more than the maximum amount established by law, in any 
calendar year, from any single source, if the member or employee would 
be required to report the receipt of income or gifts from that source 
on his or her statement of economic interests. 

Subdivisions (e), (f), and (g) of Government Code section 89503 shall 
apply to the prohibitions in this section. 
 
6.11 LOANS TO PUBLIC OFFICIALS 

A. No elected officer of a state or local government agency shall, 
from the date of his or her election to office through the date that 
he or she vacates office, receive a personal loan from any officer, 
employee, member, or consultant of the state or local government 
                     
7 Designated Persons are prohibited from accepting gifts from any single source in a 
calendar year with a total value in excess of designated amounts.  See Govt. Code § 
89503, sub-divisions (e), (f) and (g).  [Note: Pursuant to 2 CCR § 18940.2 (b), the 
FPPC adjusts the gift limit every odd-numbered year to reflect changes in the 
Consumer Price Index; therefore, the $390 limit adopted by the FPPC in January of 
2007 will be updated in January 2009 and every odd year thereafter, until further 
notice.] 
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agency in which the elected officer holds office or over which the 
elected officer’s agency has direction and control. 

B. No public official who is exempt from the state civil service 
system pursuant to subdivisions (c), (d), (e), (f), and (g) of Section 
4 of Article VII of the Constitution shall, while he or she holds 
office, receive a personal loan from any officer, employee, member, or 
consultant of the state or local government agency in which the public 
official holds office or over which the public official’s agency has 
direction and control. This subdivision shall not apply to loans made 
to a public official whose duties are solely secretarial, clerical, or 
manual. 

C. No elected officer of a state or local government agency shall, 
from the date of his or her election to office through the date that 
he or she vacates office, receive a personal loan from any person who 
has a contract with the state or local government agency to which that 
elected officer has been elected or over which that elected officer’s 
agency has direction and control. This subdivision shall not apply to 
loans made by banks or other financial institutions or to any 
indebtedness created as part of a retail installment or credit card 
transaction, if the loan is made or the indebtedness created in the 
lender’s regular course of business on terms available to members of 
the public without regard to the elected officer’s official status. 

D. No public official who is exempt from the state civil service 
system pursuant to subdivisions (c), (d), (e), (f), and (g) of Section 
4 of Article VII of the Constitution shall, while he or she holds 
office, receive a personal loan from any person who has a contract 
with the state or local government agency to which that elected 
officer has been elected or over which that elected officer’s agency 
has direction and control. This subdivision shall not apply to loans 
made by banks or other financial institutions or to any indebtedness 
created as part of a retail installment or credit card transaction, if 
the loan is made or the indebtedness created in the lender’s regular 
course of business on terms available to members of the public without 
regard to the elected officer’s official status. This subdivision 
shall not apply to loans made to a public official whose duties are 
solely secretarial, clerical, or manual. 

E. This section shall not apply to the following: 

1. Loans made to the campaign committee of an elected officer 
or candidate for elective office. 

2. Loans made by a public official’s spouse, child, parent, 
grandparent, grandchild, brother, sister, parent-in-law, brother-in-
law, sister-in-law, nephew, niece, aunt, uncle, or first cousin, or 
the spouse of any such persons, provided that the person making the 
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loan is not acting as an agent or intermediary for any person not 
otherwise exempted under this section. 

3. Loans from a person which, in the aggregate, do not exceed 
five hundred dollars ($500) at any given time.  

4. Loans made, or offered in writing, before January 1, 1998.  
 
6.12 LOAN TERMS 

A. Except as set forth in subdivision (B), no elected officer of a 
state or local government agency shall, from the date of his or her 
election to office through the date he or she vacates office, receive 
a personal loan of five hundred dollars ($500) or more, except when 
the loan is in writing and clearly states the terms of the loan, 
including the parties to the loan agreement, date of the loan, amount 
of the loan, term of the loan, date or dates when payments shall be 
due on the loan and the amount of the payments, and the rate of 
interest paid on the loan. 

B. This section shall not apply to the following types of loans: 

1. Loans made to the campaign committee of the elected officer. 

2. Loans made to the elected officer by his or her spouse, 
child, parent, grandparent, grandchild, brother, sister, parent-in-
law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, nephew, niece, aunt, uncle, or 
first cousin, or the spouse of any such person, provided that the 
person making the loan is not acting as an agent or intermediary for 
any person not otherwise exempted under this section. 

3. Loans made, or offered in writing, before January 1, 1998.  

4. Nothing in this section shall exempt any person from any 
other provision of Title 9 of the Government Code. 
 
6.13 PERSONAL LOANS 

A. Except as set forth in subdivision (B), a personal loan received 
by any designated public official shall become a gift to the 
designated public official for the purposes of this section in the 
following circumstances: 

1. If the loan has a defined date or dates for repayment, when 
the statute of limitations for filing an action for default has 
expired. 

2. If the loan has no defined date or dates for repayment, when 
one year has elapsed from the later of the following: 

a. The date the loan was made. 



   
 

 

6-9

b. The date the last payment of one hundred dollars ($100) 
or more was made on the loan. 

c. The date upon which the debtor has made payments on the 
loan aggregating to less than two hundred fifty dollars ($250) during 
the previous 12 months. 

B. This section shall not apply to the following types of loans: 

1. A loan made to the campaign committee of an elected officer 
or a candidate for elective office. 

2. A loan that would otherwise not be a gift as defined in this 
title. 

3. A loan that would otherwise be a gift as set forth under 
subdivision (A), but on which the creditor has taken reasonable action 
to collect the balance due. 

4. A loan that would otherwise be a gift as set forth under 
subdivision (A), but on which the creditor, based on reasonable 
business considerations, has not undertaken collection action.  Except 
in a criminal action, a creditor who claims that a loan is not a gift 
on the basis of this paragraph has the burden of proving that the 
decision for not taking collection action was based on reasonable 
business considerations. 

5. A loan made to a debtor who has filed for bankruptcy and the 
loan is ultimately discharged in bankruptcy. 

C. Nothing in this section shall exempt any person from any other 
provisions of Title 9 of the Government Code. 
 
6.14 DISQUALIFICATION 
 

No designated employee shall make, participate in making, or in 
any way attempt to use his or her official position to influence the 
making of any governmental decision which he or she knows or has 
reason to know will have a reasonably foreseeable material financial 
effect, distinguishable from its effect on the public generally, on 
the official or a member of his or her immediate family or on: 

 
(A) Any business entity in which the designated employee has a 

direct or indirect investment worth $2,000 or more; 
 
(B) Any real property in which the designated employee has a 

direct or indirect interest worth $2,000 or more; 
 
(C) Any source of income, other than gifts and other than loans 

by a commercial lending institution in the regular course of 
business on terms available to the public without regard to 
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official status, aggregating $500 or more in value provided 
to, received by or promised to the designated employee 
within 12 months prior to the time when the decision is 
made; 

 
(D) Any business entity in which the designated employee is a 

director, officer, partner, trustee, employee, or holds any 
position of management; or 

 
(E) Any donor of, or any intermediary or agent for a donor of, a 

gift or gifts aggregating to the maximum amount established 
by law, or more, in value provided to, received by, or 
promised to the designated employee within 12 months prior 
to the time when the decision is made. 

 
6.15 LEGALLY REQUIRED PARTICIPATION 

No designated public official shall be prevented from making or 
participating in the making of any decision to the extent his or her 
participation is legally required for the decision to be made.  The 
fact that the vote of a designated public official who is on a voting 
body is needed to break a tie does not make his or her participation 
legally required for purposes of this section. 
 
6.16 DISQUALIFICATION OF STATE OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES 
 

In addition to the general disqualification provisions of Section 
6.14, no state administrative official shall make, participate in 
making, or use his or her official position to influence any 
governmental decision directly relating to any contract where the 
state administrative official knows or has reason to know that any 
party to the contract is a person with whom the state administrative 
official, or any member of his or her immediate family has, within 12 
months prior to the time when the official action is to be taken: 
 

(A) Engaged in a business transaction or transactions on terms 
not available to members of the public, regarding any 
investment or interest in real property; or 

 

(B) Engaged in a business transaction or transactions on terms 
not available to members of the public regarding the 
rendering of goods or services totaling in value $1000 or 
more. 

 
6.17 DISCLOSURE OF DISQUALIFYING INTEREST 
 

When a designated public official determines that he or she 
should not make a governmental decision because he or she has a 
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disqualifying interest in it, the determination not to act may be 
accompanied by disclosure of the disqualifying interest. 
 
6.18 ASSISTANCE OF THE COMMISSION AND COUNSEL 
 

Any designated employee who is unsure of his or her duties under 
this code may request assistance from the Fair Political Practices 
Commission pursuant to Government Code Section 83114 or from the 
attorney for his or her agency, provided that nothing in this section 
requires the attorney for the agency to issue any formal or informal 
opinion. 
 
6.19 VIOLATIONS 
 

This code has the force and effect of law.  Designated employees 
violating any provision of this code are subject to the 
administrative, criminal and civil sanctions provided in the Political 
Reform Act, Government Code Sections 81000 – 91015.  In addition, a 
decision in relation to which a violation of the disqualification 
provisions of this code or of Government Code Section 87100 or 87450 
has occurred may be set aside as void pursuant to Government Code 
Section 91003. 
 
6.20 PROHIBITED TRANSACTIONS 
 

Members of the Board of Directors and Designated Employees shall 
comply with the Prohibited Transactions policy, annexed hereto as 
Exhibit A, pursuant to California Government Code Sections 1090, et 
seq. 
 
6.21 INCOMPATIBLE ACTIVITIES 
 

Members of the Board of Directors, District officers, and all 
other District employees shall comply with the Incompatible Activities 
policy, annexed hereto as Exhibit B, pursuant to California Government 
Code Sections 1126, et seq. 



   
 

 

6-12

APPENDIX 
 

OTAY WATER DISTRICT 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 

DESIGNATED POSITIONS 
 
The Treasurer and all District Officials who manage the investment of 
public funds are included in and governed by this Conflict of Interest 
Code only with respect to its disqualification provisions.  For 
purposes of disclosure, the Treasurer and all District Officials who 
manage the investment of public funds are governed by the statutory 
conflict of interest provisions of Article 2 of Chapter 7 of the 
Political Reform Act of 1974.  (Government Code Sections 87200, et 
seq.) 
 
DESIGNATED EMPLOYEES’ 
TITLE OR FUNCTION__   DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES ASSIGNED 
 
Members of the Board of Directors  1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 
 
General Manager     1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 
 
District Secretary     6 
 
Assistant Chief Administrative  

Services and Information Tech. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 
 
Assistant Chief of Water Operations 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 7 
 
Assistant. General Manager,    1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 
 
Chief of Administrative Services  1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 
 
Chief Financial Officer    1, 2, 5, 6, 7 
 
Chief Information Officer   1, 2, 3, 6, 7 
 
Chief of Engineering    1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 7 
 
Chief of Water Operations   1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 7 

Associate Civil Engineer    1, 2, 3, 4, 7 

Communications Officer    6 

Customer Service Manager    2, 5, 7 

Environmental Compliance  
Specialist     1, 2, 3, 4, 7 
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Engineering Manager/     1, 2, 3, 4, 7 
 
Field Services Manager     1, 2, 3, 4, 7 
 
Finance Manager, Controller, 

and Budget     2, 5, 7 
 
Finance Manager, Treasury, 

and Accounting     2, 5, 7 

GIS Manager      3, 6, 7 

Human Resources Manager    3, 6 

IT Manager      3, 6, 7 

Network Engineer     3, 6, 7 

Purchasing and Facilities Manager  2, 6 

Safety and Security Administrator  1, 2, 3, 4, 6 

Senior Buyer      6 

Senior Civil Engineer    1, 2, 3, 4, 7 

System Operations Manager   1, 2, 3, 4, 7 

Utility Services Manager    1, 2, 3, 4, 7 

Water Conservation Manager   2, 3, 4, 6 

Consultant8      1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 

                     
8 Consultants are required to file disclosure statements where they:  (a) conduct research and arrive at 
conclusions with respect to rendition of information, advice, recommendation or counsel independent of 
control and direction of the agency or any agency official other than normal contract monitoring; and (b) 
possess no authority with respect to any agency decision beyond the rendition of information, advice, 
recommendation or counsel.  The determination as to whether a consultant shall be required to file a 
disclosure statement shall be made by the General Manager or his or her designee. 
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APPENDIX, CONTINUED 
 

DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES 
 
The disclosure categories listed below identify the types of 
investments, business entities, sources of income, or real property 
which the designated employee must disclose for each disclosure 
category to which he or she is assigned. 
 
Category 1: All investments and business positions in, and sources 
of income from, all business entities that do business or own real 
property in the District, plan to do business or own real property in 
the District within the next year or have done business or owned real 
property in the District within the past two years. 
 
Category 2: All interests in real property which are located in 
whole or in part within, or not more than two (2) miles outside the 
boundaries of the District. 
 
Category 3: All investments and business positions in, and sources 
of income from, business entities subject to the regulatory, permit or 
licensing authority of the Designated Employee’s Department, will be 
subject to such authority within the next year or have been subject to 
such authority within the past two years. 
 
Category 4: All investments, business positions, and sources of 
income from, business entities that are engaged in land development, 
construction or the acquisition or sale of real property in the 
District, plan to engage in such activities in the District within the 
next year or have engaged in such activities in the District within 
the past two years. 
 
Category 5: All investments and business positions in, and sources 
of income from, business entities that are banking, savings and loan 
or other financial institutions. 
 
Category 6: All investments and business positions in, and sources 
of income from, business entities that provide services, supplies, 
materials, machinery or equipment of a type purchased, leased, used, 
or administered by the District. 
 
Category 7: All investments and business positions in, and sources 
of income from, business entities that provide services, supplies, 
materials, machinery or equipment of a type purchased, leased, used, 
or administered by the Designated Employee’s Department. 
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EXHIBIT A 
 

Prohibited Transactions for Specified Personnel 
 
Members of the Board of Directors (“Members”) shall comply with this 
Prohibited Transactions policy pursuant to California Government Code 
§§ 1090, et seq. 
 
Members shall not be financially interested in any contract made by 
them in their official capacity, or by any body or board of which they 
are members.  Members shall not be purchasers at any sale or vendors 
at any purchase made by them in their official capacity.  Members 
shall not be deemed to be interested in a contract entered into by a 
body or board of which they are members if the Member has only a 
remote interest in the contract and if the fact of that interest is 
disclosed to the body or board of which the Member is a member and 
noted in its official records, and thereafter the body or board 
authorizes, approves, or ratifies the contract in good faith by a vote 
of its membership sufficient for the purpose without counting the vote 
or votes of the Board of Directors member with the remote interest.  
“Remote interest” shall be defined as in California Government Code  
§ 1091(b). 
 
Members shall not be considered to be financially interested in a 
contract if their interest is including, but not limited to, any of 
the following (Government Code § 1091.5): 
 

1. That of an officer in being reimbursed for his/her actual 
and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of an official 
duty; 

 
2. That of a recipient of public services generally provided by 

the public body or board of which he/she is a member, on the same 
terms and conditions as if he or she were not a member of the 
board; 

 
3. That of a landlord or tenant of the contracting party if 

such contracting party is the federal government or any federal 
department or agency, this state or an adjoining state, any 
department or agency of this state or an adjoining state, any 
county or city of this state or an adjoining state, or an public 
corporation or special, judicial or other public district of this 
state or an adjoining state unless the subject matter of such 
contract is the property in which such officer or employee has 
such interest as landlord or tenant in which even his/her 
interest shall be deemed a remote interest within the meaning of, 
and subject to, the provisions of Government Code 1091; 

 
4. That of a spouse of an officer or employee of a public 

agency if his/her spouse’s employment or office-holding has 
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existed for at least one year prior to his/her election or 
appointment; 

 
5. That of a non-salaried member of a nonprofit corporation, 

provided that such interest is disclosed to the board at the time 
of the first consideration of the contract, and provided further 
that such interest is noted in its official records; 

 
6. That of a non-compensated officer of a nonprofit, tax-exempt 

corporation, which, as one of its primary purposes, supports the 
functions of the board or to which the board has legal obligation 
to give particular consideration, and provided further that such 
interest is noted in its official records; 

 
7. That of compensation for employment with a governmental 

agency, other than the governmental agency that employs the 
officer or employee, provided that the interest is disclosed to 
the board at the time of consideration of the contract, and 
provided further that the interest is noted in its official 
records; 

 
8. That of an attorney of the contracting party of that of an 

owner, officer, employee or agent of a firm which renders, or has 
rendered, service to the contracting party in the capacity of 
stockbroker, insurance agent, insurance broker, real estate 
agent, or real estate broker if these individuals have not 
received and will not receive remuneration, consideration, or a 
commission as a result of the contract and if these individuals 
have an ownership interest of less than 10 percent in the law 
practice or firm, stock brokerage firm, insurance firm or real 
estate firm. 

 
In addition, Members shall not be deemed to be interested in a 
contract made pursuant to competitive bidding under a procedure 
established by law if their sole interest is that of an officer, 
director, or employee of a bank or savings and loan association with 
which a party to the contract has the relationship of borrower or 
depositor, debtor or creditor (Government Code § 1091.5). 
 
Authority: 
 
California Government Code §§ 1090, et seq. 
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EXHIBIT B 
 

Incompatible Activities Policy 
 
District officers, members of the Board of Directors, and all other 
District employees (collectively, “district personnel”) shall comply 
with this Incompatible Activities policy pursuant to California 
Government Code §§ 1126, et seq. 
 
District personnel shall not engage in any employment, activity, or 
enterprise for compensation which is inconsistent, incompatible, in 
conflict with, or inimical to his or her duties as a member of the 
Board of Directors, or with the duties, functions, or responsibilities 
of his or her appointing power or the agency by which he or she is 
employed. 
 
The outside employment, activity, or enterprise of district personnel 
is prohibited if it:  (1) involves the use for private gain or 
advantage of his or her local District time, facilities, equipment and 
supplies; or the badge, uniform, prestige, or influence of his or her 
local District office or employment or, (2) involves receipt or 
acceptance by district personnel of any money or other consideration 
from anyone other than the District for the performance of an act 
which district personnel, if not performing such act, would be 
required or expected to render in the regular course or hours of their 
local District employment or as a part of their duties as a local 
District officer or employee or, (3) involves the time demands as 
would render performance of his or her duties as a local district 
personnel member less efficient. 
 
Nothing in this policy shall be interpreted to prohibit any outside 
employment, activity, counsel, or enterprise on behalf of another 
governmental entity, subject to common law and professional conflict 
of interest rules. 
 
Copies of this regulation shall be posted in prominent places at the 
District Office.  District personnel who violate this regulation may 
be subject to discipline as set forth in the applicable Code of 
Ordinances and Policies.  Board of Directors members who violate this 
section may be subject to censure.  Disciplinary appeals by district 
personnel shall be handled pursuant to applicable Code of Ordinances 
and Policies. 
 
Authority: 
 
California Government Code §§ 1125, et seq. 
 



 
 

  

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
    
TYPE MEETING: Regular Board MEETING DATE: November 5, 2014 

  PROJECT: Various DIV. NO. ALL 

SUBMITTED BY: Kelli Williamson 
Human Resources Manager 

 

APPROVED BY: 
 

 Adolfo Segura, Asst. Chief, Administrative Services & IT 

 German Alvarez, Assistant General Manager 

 Mark Watton, General Manager 
 

SUBJECT: REQUEST BOARD APPROVAL TO CHANGE SHORT AND LONG TERM DISABILITY 
INSURANCE CARRIERS AND DENTAL THIRD PARTY ADMINISTRATOR 

 

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board: 
 

a. Authorize the General Manager to take the steps necessary to have 
the Otay Water District (District) become a member the National 
Joint Powers Alliance (NJPA), which would enable the District to 
access the SunLife pool for Short and Long Term Disability; and 

 

b. Authorize the General Manager to take the steps necessary to have 
the District join the CSAC EIA pool for Dental Third Party 
Administrator services. 

 
COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 
See “Attachment A”.  
 
PURPOSE: 
 
Authorize the General Manager to take the steps necessary to join the 
SunLife pool for Short and Long Term Disability benefits through 
membership in the NJPA, and to join the CSAC EIA pool for Dental Third 
Party Administrator services. 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
The District works with Alliant Employee Benefits, its benefit 
consultant, on an annual basis to review insurance plans to ensure that 
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the District is receiving the highest level of service at the most cost-
effective prices. We are nearing the end of a three year rate guarantee 
for the Short and Long Term Disability Plan and are at the end of an 
annual contract with our Dental Third Party Administrator. Alliant 
recently provided information on both plans which shows that there are 
more cost-effective options.  The District believes it will continue to 
receive the highest level of service while creating a long-term savings 
for the District by changing carriers for both plans. 
 
Short and Long Term Disability 
 
The Short and Long Term Disability insurance provides protection for 
employees when they are unable to work due to an injury or illness by 
providing 66 2/3% of their base salary.  There is a 30-day elimination 
period before an employee would be eligible to receive disability 
payment.  The District is currently with The Hartford for our Short and 
Long Term Disability Plans.  
 
The Hartford initially provided the District with an annual renewal 
rate with an increase of 31%. This increase is due to our high claims 
experience during the three years we have been their client. Alliant 
contacted six other providers, including two benefit pools, to receive 
bids. 
 

Hartford  
(original renewal) $88,131 

Hartford 
(negotiated renewal) $67,098 

CIGNA IEA Program $60,626 
Guardian Declined 
MetLife Declined 
SunLife $58,250 
UNUM $75,749 
VOYA (aka ING) CSAC $105,294 

 
As you can see from the chart above, two companies declined to quote 
since their rates would not be competitive (Guardian and MetLife), and 
two companies provided quotes but the quotes were not competitive (UNUM 
and VOYA). Alliant also gathered information from two benefit pools 
(SunLife and CIGNA). Both were able to provide competitive rates and 
Alliant was able use this information to re-negotiate with The Hartford 
to maintain the current cost. The Hartford rate pass, however, is still 
more than the bids offered by SunLife and CIGNA. 
 
Based on the District’s claims experience and in anticipation of 
potential long term savings, District staff recommends switching to the 
SunLife Short and Long Term Disability pool.  
 
In order to qualify for this pooled program with SunLife, the District 
will be required to become a member of National Joint Powers Alliance 
(Attachment B). This national arrangement places the District into the 
largest pool established for the public entity sector, pooling all 



experience for the entire membership.  The District still owns and 
maintains its disability contracts and benefit schedules but eliminates 
experience rating and the risk of future large increases specifically 
to our premiums.  There is no financial or organizational liability to 
NJPA or to its organization activities. 
  
Dental Insurance 
 
The District currently uses Delta Dental as the Third Party 
Administrator to the self-funded Dental Plan. Delta Dental charges an 
administration fee (ASO) based on a per-member per-month (PMPM) figure. 
The current rate is $7.50 PMPM and the proposed rate beginning January 
1, 2015 is $8.15, an 8.7% increase. 
 
Beginning next year, the District is interested in moving our dental 
program to the Alliant pooled program to control future renewal ASO 
increases.  This is the first year that this pool has been made available 
to outside participants that already have an ASO contract in place with 
Delta Dental. Although the District proposes to move to the pooled 
program, Delta Dental would continue to provide network savings, handle 
claims processing and underwriting.  The District will be required to 
pay an $8.50 PMPM ASO fee for the first year in the program (2015). 
This includes the $8.15 ASO Delta Dental fee and a $0.35 fee for 
Preferred Benefit Insurance Administrators to provide eligibility and 
billing/reconciliation services. Other related work would transition to 
Alliant and the CSAC EIA program. Beginning in 2016, the District would 
pay the reduced ASO fee of approximately $6.81 PMPM (including all fees 
based on 2015 rates) in the Alliant program, a 20% reduction from our 
current fee.  Alliant’s underwriters predict this ASO fee will be 
reduced in the 2016 renewal due to overall growth in the pool.   
 
Insurance Pools 
 
These pools are less expensive than continuing with an arrangement 
similar to what the District currently has outside of the pool, and 
would also alleviate the need to bid our provider continuously every 
few years.  There will be some set up required for District staff under 
the new arrangement, however, this will not result in any changes to 
the plan design or dental providers and the change will be seamless for 
the employees and retirees.  Should the District decide to change 
carriers in the future, the District may do so by providing a 30-day 
notice to the carriers.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   Joe Beachem, Chief Financial Officer 
 
If approved the combined annual savings on the disability and dental 
plans is approximately $13,048 per year.  This savings does not account 
for the initial staff time cost that will be necessary to coordinate 
the change.  As the current cost levels were budgeted, the recommended 
lower cost options would be more than covered by the current budget.   
 
The current estimated cost of Short and Long Term Disability insurance 
is approximately $67,098 based on the District’s payroll provided to 



our benefit consultant and has been budgeted through the annual budget 
process. By changing carriers, the estimated annual cost is $58,250, a 
savings of $8,848 per year (13.2%). The SunLife premium will be 
guaranteed for three years.  The only fluctuation will be due to payroll 
increasing, which means the District could yield greater savings.      
 
For the dental plan, the District will pay the renewal fee of $8.15 
PMPM which has been budgeted through the annual budget process, plus an 
additional $0.35 PMPM fee for the first year. Beginning the second year, 
it is estimated the fee will be $6.81 PMPM or possibly less. Annually, 
the fee will be approximately $21,300 next year and approximately 
$17,100 or less in future years, resulting in an annual cost-savings of 
approximately $4,200, a 19.7% decrease. 
  
STRATEGIC GOAL: 
 
Optimize the District’s Operating Efficiency. 
 
LEGAL IMPACT: 
 
None. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

Attachment A – Committee Action Report 
 
Attachment B – Membership Agreement for the National Joint Powers  
               Alliance 

 
  



 
 

 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

SUBJECT/PROJECT: 

REQUEST BOARD APPROVAL TO CHANGE SHORT AND LONG TERM 
DISABILITY INSURANCE CARRIERS AND DENTAL THIRD PARTY 
ADMINISTRATOR 

 
COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 
The Finance, Administration and Communications Committee reviewed this 
item at a meeting held on October 21, 2014 and the following comments 
were made: 
 

 Staff works with the District’s Benefit Consultant, Alliant 
Employee Benefits (Alliant) on an annual basis to prepare for 
open enrollment.  This year staff reviewed the District’s short 
and long term disability carrier. 
 

 The District’s short and long term disability insurance is 
nearing the end of the three (3) year rate guarantee. 
 

 Short and long term disability insurance covers 2/3 of the 
employee’s salary and supplements State Disability/Workers’ 
Compensation if the employee is off for more than 30 days.  The 
District wishes to provide a cost effective benefit, as well as, 
assure a high credible service. 
 

 Hartford is the District’s current short and long term disability 
carrier and has provided the service for three (3) years.  They 
had originally proposed a 31% rate increase based on the number 
of claims they have experienced with the District over the three 
(3) years that they have provided the service to the District. 
 

 In response to the increase in Hartford’s premium, Alliant bid 
out the carrier services to six (6) providers and received four 
(4) bids, including two (2) from pooled benefit providers CIGNA 
and SunLife (see page 2 of staffs’ report).  Both provided 
competitive rates and Alliant was able to re-negotiate with 
Hartford to maintain the current cost.  Though Hartford 
maintained their rate, it was still higher than the rates bid by 
CIGNA and SunLife. 
 

 SunLife’s bid of $58,250 provides a 13% decrease.  Staff is 
proposing that the District contract with SunLife for short and 
long term disability insurance.  They are offering a three (3) 



 

 

year rate guarantee which would provide a savings of 
approximately $9,000 per year for the same level of benefits. 
 

 To qualify for SunLife’s pooled program, the District will be 
required to become a member of the National Joint Powers Alliance 
(NJPA).  This pool is the largest established for the public 
entity sector pooling all experience for the entire membership. 
 

 There  would be no cost if the District wished to move out of the 
Hartford plan and into SunLife.  Termination just requires a 30-
day notice with either carrier. 
 

 The committee inquired if the District is only a member of the 
NJPA as long it has a policy through the NJPA.  Staff indicated 
that they believe as long as the District is in a pooled program 
offered by NJPA, it is a member.  Staff, following the meeting, 
confirmed that the relationship with NJPA would end if the 
District was no longer a participant in a pooled policy that they 
offer. 
 

 The District currently utilizes Delta Dental as its 3rd Party 
Administrator for its self-funded dental plan.  Delta Dental 
charges an administration fee (ASO) based on a per-member per-
month (PMPM) figure.  They are proposing an ASO fee of $8.15 next 
year which is a 8.7% increase.  The percentage increase is a 
little higher than the average. 
 

 Alliant has a pooled program through the CSAC EIA Program which 
is similar to SDRMA’s pooled program for medical insurance.  This 
is the first year that the pool is available to outside 
participants.  As long as the District has the ASO contract in 
place with Delta Dental, it can participate in the pool.  Should 
the District decide to move to the pooled plan, in the first year 
in the pool, the District will pay a slightly higher fee ($8.50 
PMPM) and after the first year the fee will be reduced about 20% 
or $6.81 PMPM.  The fee could possibly drop in future years as 
the pool grows.  The contract with Delta Dental is not a large 
contract ($20,000), but over the long run, the District would 
save approximately $4,000 per year over multiple years. 
 

 Delta Dental will continue to be the District’s third party 
administrator and there will be no changes to the plan design.  
The District will still get all the claim discounts and there is 
no change to the list of dental providers.  It should be a 
seamless transfer for the employees. 
 



 

 

 In response to an inquiry from the committee, staff indicated 
that the Dental program does not have a set period of time for 
the contract, it is an annual contract.  The indicated 20% 
savings or $6.81 PMPM is an estimate.  The $6.81 is the fee the 
current pool members are paying.  They anticipate that the fee 
will drop as the pool grows (spreading cost over a larger 
membership), but there is no guarantee. 
 

 Staff indicated in response to another inquiry from the committee 
concerning the Short and Long Term Disability contract, should 
the District decide to contract with SunLife, the District would 
be providing Hartford with a 30-day notice of the District’s 
intent to terminate their contract.  Staff noted that Hartford is 
aware that the District is bidding the insurance services. 
 

 It was indicated in response to an inquiry from the committee 
that the District works with its consultant on an annual basis to 
review cost and services for these contracts.  The consultant 
reviews the market and may propose various options that would be 
most cost effective for the District. 

 
Upon completion of the discussion, the committee supported staffs’ 
recommendation and presentation to the full board on the consent 
calendar. 
 



 
MEMBERSHIP AGREEMENT 
PARTICIPATING MEMBER 

	
  

09/21/2010                                                                 
 

 

This Agreement, made and entered into this 

     

 day of 

     

 , 20 

     

 , 

by and between National Joint Powers Alliance®, hereinafter referred to as "NJPA" and 

     

  hereinafter referred to as the "Applicant".   
 

Witnesseth:  
That for a good and valuable consideration of the premises, mutual terms, covenants, provisions, and conditions 
hereafter set forth, it is agreed by and between the parties as follows:  

  
Whereas, the NJPA is created by Minnesota Statute §123A.21 (with membership further defined in M.S. §471.59) 
to serve cities, counties, towns, public or private schools, political subdivisions of Minnesota or another state, 
another state, any agency of the State of Minnesota or the United States including instrumentalities of a 
governmental unit and all non-profits; and   
  
Whereas, NJPA's purpose as defined in M.S. §123A.21 is to assist in meeting specific needs of clients which could 
be better provided by NJPA than by the members themselves; and     
  
Whereas, the NJPA Board of Directors has established the ability for an "Applicant" desiring to participate in 
NJPA contracts and procurement programs to become a Participating Member; and   
  
Whereas, the NJPA Board of Directors has determined that Participating Members will have no financial or 
organizational liability to NJPA or to its organizational activities;   

  
Now Therefore, it is hereby stipulated and agreed that the "Applicant" Agency desires to be a Participating Member of 
NJPA with contract purchasing benefits, in accordance with terms and conditions of the applicable contract(s), and that 
NJPA hereby grants said Membership to said "Applicant."   

  
Term:  
This continuing agreement shall remain in force or until either party elects to dissolve the Agreement by written notice.   

  
THEREFORE, IN WITNESS THEREOF,  
the parties hereto have executed this Agreement the day and year written above.  

Member Name:   

National Joint Powers Alliance® 
200 1st Street NE, Suite 1 
Staples, MN 56479 

By 

     

  

     

 
 AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE  AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE 

Its 

     

  

     

 
  TITLE  TITLE 

 

     

  

     

 
  DATE 

 
 

 DATE 

 



 
MEMBERSHIP AGREEMENT 
PARTICIPATING MEMBER 

	
  

09/21/2010                                                                 
 

 

PATICIPATING MEMBER INFORMATION 

Applicant Name:  

Address:  

   

Please indicate an address to which your  
Membership materials may be delivered.  

 
Thank you. 

Federal ID Number:   

Contact Person:   

Title:   

E-mail:   

Phone:   

Website   
 

APPLICANT ORGANIZATION TYPE: 

 K-12  

 Government or Municipality  

 Higher Education  

 Non-Profit  

 Other (please specify):  
 

I WAS REFERRED BY:                              (please specify) 

 Advertisement  

 Current NJPA Member  

 Vendor Representative  

 Trade Show  

 NJPA Website  

 Other  
 

Completed applications may be returned to:  
National Joint Powers Alliance ® 
200 First Street NE, Suite 1 
Staples, MN 56479 

Duff Erholtz 
phone 218-894-5490 
fax  218-894-3045 
e-mail duff.erholtz@njpaoop.org 



  

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
    
TYPE MEETING: Regular Board MEETING DATE: November 5, 2014 

  PROJECT:  DIV. NO. ALL 

SUBMITTED BY: Kelli Williamson 
Human Resources Manager 

  

APPROVED BY: 
 

 Adolfo Segura, Assistant Chief, Admin. Services and IT 

 German Alvarez, Assistant General Manager 

 Mark Watton, General Manager 
  
SUBJECT: ADOPT RESOLUTION #4245 TO REVISE THE POLICY AGAINST 

DISCRIMINATION AND HARASSMENT AND COMPLAINT PROCEDURE (BOARD 
POLICY #47)  

  

 
 
GENERAL MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board adopt Resolution #4245 to revise Board Policy #47, Policy 
Against Discrimination and Harassment and Complaint Procedure. 
 
COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 
Please see “Attachment A”. 
 
PURPOSE: 
 
To request that the Board adopt Resolution #4245 and approve revisions 
to Board Policy #47, Policy Against Discrimination and Harassment and 
Complaint Procedure (Attachment B). 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
Consistent with the District’s Strategic Plan, the District regularly 
reviews policies and procedures to ensure they are streamlined and are 
clear and consistent with applicable laws. 
 
After consultation with General Counsel, District staff is recommending 
revisions to the attached policy.  This policy was also reviewed with 
the Otay Water District Employees’ Association (Association). The 
Association has agreed to the policy as presented.  Updates deemed 
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appropriate at this time are detailed below and revisions are shown in 
the attached strike-through versions of the policy (Exhibit 1).   
 
Policy Against Discrimination and Harassment and Complaint Procedure 
(Board Policy #47) 
Based on recent legislative updates, District staff is recommending minor 
revisions to the attached policy to clarify certain protected 
classifications to include military and veteran status, gender identity, 
gender expression and related updates. 
 
Based on the above, it is requested that the Board of Directors adopt 
Resolution #4245 in support of the proposed revisions.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   Joe Beachem, Chief Financial Officer 

None.  
 
STRATEGIC GOAL: 
 
Optimize the District’s Operating Efficiency. 

 
LEGAL IMPACT: 
 
None. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Attachment A – Committee Action Report 
 
Attachment B – Resolution #4245 

 

Exhibit 1 – Draft Copy, Policy Against Discrimination  
and Harassment and Complaint Procedure (Board Policy #47)  

 
Attachment C – Proposed Copy, Policy Against Discrimination and 

Harassment and Complaint Procedure (Board Policy #47) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

SUBJECT/PROJECT: 

ADOPT RESOLUTION #4245 TO REVISE THE POLICY AGAINST 
DISCRIMINATION AND HARASSMENT AND COMPLAINT PROCEDURE (BOARD 
POLICY #47) 

 
 
COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 
The Finance, Administration and Communications Committee reviewed this 
item at a meeting held on October 21, 2014 and the following comments 
were made: 
 

 Staff periodically reviews the District’s policies and 
procedures. 
 

 Following a review of Policy No. 47, Policy Against 
Discrimination and Harassment and Complaint Procedure, staff is 
proposing revisions to the policy to add new identified protected 
classes, such as, military or veteran status, etc. 
 

 Though the District’s policy does cover newly identified classes 
with a statement that indicates, “any other protected classes as 
recognized by federal, state or local laws,” staff is proposing 
the changes so that Policy No. 47 corresponds with the changes 
made to the Memorandum of Understanding’s (MOU) Nondiscrimination 
Section which was recently updated.  The proposed revisions 
include all new protected classes. 
 

 Staff is recommending that the board adopt Resolution No. 4245 to 
adopt the proposed amendments to Policy No. 47. 
 

Upon completion of the discussion, the committee supported staffs’ 
recommendation and presentation to the full board on the consent 
calendar. 



 

 1

RESOLUTION NO. 4245 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
OF THE OTAY WATER DISTRICT TO  

REVISE DISTRICT POLICY  
 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Otay Water District 

have established policies, procedures, ordinances, and 

resolutions for the efficient operation of the District; and 

 WHEREAS, it is the policy of the District to establish 

procedures to review policies, procedures, ordinances, and 

resolutions periodically to ensure they are current and 

relevant; and  

WHEREAS, District staff has identified Board Policy #47, 

Policy Against Discrimination and Harassment and Complaint 

Procedure, as requiring revisions as per the attached strike-

through copies. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of 

Directors of the Otay Water District amends the Board 

Policies indicated above in the form presented to the Board 

at this meeting. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of 

the Otay Water District at a regular meeting held this 5th of 

November, 2014.     

          __________________________ 
                  President 

ATTEST: 
 

___________________________ 
       Secretary 
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OTAY WATER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY 
 

Subject: POLICY AGAINST DISCRIMINATION AND 
HARASSMENT AND COMPLAINT PROCEDURE  

 

Policy 
Number 

Date 
Adopted 

Date 
Revised 

 47 10/11/05 10/5/11 
11/5/14 

 

Page 1 of 5 
 

PURPOSE 
 

The purpose of this policy is to (i) advise all employees that the 
Otay Water District (“District”) disapproves of and will not 
tolerate unlawful discrimination or harassment of its employees, or 
retaliation against those who report such behavior, and (ii) set 
forth a procedure for investigating and resolving internal 
complaints of discrimination, harassment, or retaliation. 
 
POLICY 
 
The District is committed to providing a work environment free of 
unlawful discrimination, harassment, or retaliation against those 
who report discrimination or harassment. Discrimination or 
harassment based on sex (including gender, gender identity, gender 
expression, pregnancy, childbirth or related medical condition), 
race, color, religionreligious creed, national origin, ancestry, 
physical or mental disability, medical condition, genetic 
information, marital status, age, sexual orientation, military or 
veteran status or any other basis protected by federal, state or 
local law is prohibited.  Discrimination or harassment based on the 
perception that a person has any of those characteristics, or is 
associated with a person who has or is perceived as having any of 
those characteristics, is prohibited.  Retaliation against any 
person who complains of unlawful discrimination or harassment or who 
provides evidence relating to such a complaint, is prohibited. 
 
This Policy applies to all terms and conditions of employment, 
including, but not limited to: hiring, placement, advancement, 
promotion, disciplinary action, layoff, recall, transfer, leave of 
absence, compensation and training.  It applies to each District 
employee, member of the Board of Directors, and to all vendors 
conducting business with the District.  Similarly, the District will 
not tolerate discrimination or harassment by its employees of non-
employees with whom the District employees have a business, service 
or professional relationship.  The District will also attempt to 
protect employees from harassment by non-employees in the workplace. 
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DEFINITIONS 
 
Discrimination – Any decision or action that is based on an 
individual’s status as a member of a protected class that adversely 
affects a District employee or the employee’s work conditions, terms 
of employment, or work environment. 
 
Harassment – Any decision or action that is based on a District 
employee’s status as a member of a protected class, made for the 
purpose or having the effect of adversely affecting that employee’s 
work conditions, terms of employment, or work environment.  
Harassment may include, but is not limited to: 

 Verbal conduct such as epithets, derogatory jokes or 
comments, slurs, or unwelcome sexual advances, invitations or 
comments; 

 Visual displays such as derogatory and/or sexually-oriented 
posters, photography, cartoons, drawings or gestures; 

 Physical conduct including assault, unwanted touching, 
intentionally blocking normal movement or interfering with 
work; 

 Threats and demands to submit to sexual requests as a 
condition of continued employment or to avoid an adverse 
consequence, and offers of employment benefits in return for 
sexual favors. 

Such conduct constitutes harassment when (1) submission to the 
conduct is made either an explicit or implicit condition of 
employment; (2) submission or rejection of the conduct is used as 
the basis for an employment decision; or (3) the harassment 
interferes with an employee’s work performance or creates an 
intimidating, hostile, or offensive work environment. 
 
Protected Class – Any class of persons who share a common sex , 
race, color, religionus creed, national origin, ancestry, physical 
or mental disability, medical condition, genetic information, 
marital status, age, sexual orientation, military or veteran status 
or any other “protected class” recognized by federal, state or local 
laws.  For purposes of this definition, “sex” includes gender, 
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gender identity, gender expression, pregnancy, childbirth, or a 
pregnancy- or childbirth-related medical condition. 
 
Retaliation – Any decision or action that is based on the fact that 
a District employee has previously complained of discrimination, 
harassment, or retaliation prohibited by this Policy (regardless of 
whether a formal complaint has been made) or has provided evidence 
in the investigation of another District employee’s complaint under 
this Policy, made for the purpose of adversely affecting the 
employee’s conditions of employment, terms of employment, or work 
environment. 
 
Sexual Harassment – A form of harassment that is based on an 
employee’s gender but which objectively and subjectively creates an 
adverse impact on the employee regardless of the purpose or intent 
of the alleged harasser. 
 
COMPLAINT PROCEDURE 
 
An employee or job applicant who believes he or she has been the 
victim of discrimination, harassment, or retaliation by a District 
employee, a member of the Board of Directors, or a vendor may make a 
complaint verbally, or in writing by completing the District’s 
Discrimination and Harassment Complaint Form.  An employee may make 
a complaint to any of the following:  

 Human Resources; 
 Any supervisor, manager, Department Chief, Assistant General 

Manager, or General Manager; 
 Complaints against the General Manager should be directed to 

the President of the Board of Directors. 
 

Applicants may make a complaint to any of the following: 
 Human Resources or;  
 General Manager. 

 
Any person described above shall forward each written discrimination 
complaint to the General Manager or designee immediately of 
receiving the complaint or having knowledge of the complaint.  If a 
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complaint is made verbally, the person receiving the complaint shall 
notify Human Resources immediately. 
 
Every reported complaint of discrimination, harassment or 
retaliation will be investigated thoroughly and promptly.  If any 
manager, supervisor, Assistant Department Chief, Department Chief, 
or Assistant General Manager becomes aware of or suspects 
discrimination, harassment, or retaliation against a District 
employee or applicant, or any allegation thereof, he/she must 
immediately notify the Human Resources Manager of the relevant facts 
and circumstances. 
 
The General Manager or designee may conduct the investigation of 
alleged discrimination, harassment, or retaliation, or may delegate 
responsibility for the investigation to another District management 
employee.  If the complaint is against the General Manager, the 
President of the Board of Directors shall be responsible for 
conducting the investigation, assigning another management employee, 
or outside investigator and overseeing the investigation. If the 
complaint is against the Board of Directors, the General Manager 
shall be responsible for contracting with an outside investigator to 
conduct the investigation. The Board will take appropriate action 
based on the findings. 
 
During its investigation, the District shall take appropriate steps 
to protect the privacy of all parties involved.  However, This this 
shall not be construed to justify refusing to inform a person who 
has been accused of violating this Policy of the identity of the 
complainant and witnesses against him/her, however.  Reports of 
discrimination, harassment, or retaliation may not be made 
anonymously, but information regarding any report and subsequent 
investigation will be disseminated on a “need to know” basis. 
 
In the event that an investigation will take longer than 60 calendar 
days to complete, the investigator must notify the complainant of 
this fact prior to the expiration of 60 days and provide an 
anticipated completion date, in writing. 
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If a finding is made that discrimination, harassment, or retaliation 
has occurred, the District shall take remedial action appropriate to 
the circumstances, which may include disciplinary action up to and 
including termination for an employee who has violated this Policy 
or sanctions for a vendor who has violated this Policy. 
 
Every District employee has a duty to participate in good faith in 
any investigation conducted under this Policy.  Failure to 
participate in good faith is a ground for disciplinary action 
appropriate to the circumstances.  All employees are encouraged to 
report in good faith discrimination, harassment, or retaliation.  
The District will not tolerate retaliation against any employee 
making a good faith complaint of discrimination, harassment or 
retaliation, or for cooperating in an investigation.  However, 
reports made maliciously or in bad faith may subject an employee to 
disciplinary action appropriate to the circumstances up to and 
including termination. 
 
The action of making a complaint does not preclude a complainant 
from filing a complaint with the appropriate State or Federal 
agency.  For information as to where to file a claim, an employee 
may contact the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission at 
www.eeoc.gov or (213) 894-1000 or the Department of Fair Employment 
and Housing at www.dfeh.ca.gov or (800) 884-1684. 
 
 
 
 
 
POLICY HISTORY 
 
Human Resources Policy and Procedure, Effective August 4, 1993. 
Board Policy adopted October 11, 2005. 
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PURPOSE 
 

The purpose of this policy is to (i) advise all employees that the 
Otay Water District (“District”) disapproves of and will not 
tolerate unlawful discrimination or harassment of its employees, or 
retaliation against those who report such behavior, and (ii) set 
forth a procedure for investigating and resolving internal 
complaints of discrimination, harassment, or retaliation. 
 
POLICY 
 
The District is committed to providing a work environment free of 
unlawful discrimination, harassment, or retaliation against those 
who report discrimination or harassment. Discrimination or 
harassment based on sex (including gender, gender identity, gender 
expression, pregnancy, childbirth or related medical condition), 
race, color, religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical or 
mental disability, medical condition, genetic information, marital 
status, age, sexual orientation, military or veteran status or any 
other basis protected by federal, state or local law is prohibited.  
Discrimination or harassment based on the perception that a person 
has any of those characteristics, or is associated with a person who 
has or is perceived as having any of those characteristics, is 
prohibited.  Retaliation against any person who complains of 
unlawful discrimination or harassment or who provides evidence 
relating to such a complaint, is prohibited. 
 
This Policy applies to all terms and conditions of employment, 
including, but not limited to: hiring, placement, advancement, 
promotion, disciplinary action, layoff, recall, transfer, leave of 
absence, compensation and training.  It applies to each District 
employee, member of the Board of Directors, and to all vendors 
conducting business with the District.  Similarly, the District will 
not tolerate discrimination or harassment by its employees of non-
employees with whom the District employees have a business, service 
or professional relationship.  The District will also attempt to 
protect employees from harassment by non-employees in the workplace. 
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DEFINITIONS 
 
Discrimination – Any decision or action that is based on an 
individual’s status as a member of a protected class that adversely 
affects a District employee or the employee’s work conditions, terms 
of employment, or work environment. 
 
Harassment – Any decision or action that is based on a District 
employee’s status as a member of a protected class, made for the 
purpose or having the effect of adversely affecting that employee’s 
work conditions, terms of employment, or work environment.  
Harassment may include, but is not limited to: 

 Verbal conduct such as epithets, derogatory jokes or 
comments, slurs, or unwelcome sexual advances, invitations or 
comments; 

 Visual displays such as derogatory and/or sexually-oriented 
posters, photography, cartoons, drawings or gestures; 

 Physical conduct including assault, unwanted touching, 
intentionally blocking normal movement or interfering with 
work; 

 Threats and demands to submit to sexual requests as a 
condition of continued employment or to avoid an adverse 
consequence, and offers of employment benefits in return for 
sexual favors. 

Such conduct constitutes harassment when (1) submission to the 
conduct is made either an explicit or implicit condition of 
employment; (2) submission or rejection of the conduct is used as 
the basis for an employment decision; or (3) the harassment 
interferes with an employee’s work performance or creates an 
intimidating, hostile, or offensive work environment. 
 
Protected Class – Any class of persons who share a common sex , 
race, color, religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical or 
mental disability, medical condition, genetic information, marital 
status, age, sexual orientation, military or veteran status or any 
other “protected class” recognized by federal, state or local laws.  
For purposes of this definition, “sex” includes gender, gender 
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identity, gender expression, pregnancy, childbirth, or a pregnancy- 
or childbirth-related medical condition. 
 
Retaliation – Any decision or action that is based on the fact that 
a District employee has previously complained of discrimination, 
harassment, or retaliation prohibited by this Policy (regardless of 
whether a formal complaint has been made) or has provided evidence 
in the investigation of another District employee’s complaint under 
this Policy, made for the purpose of adversely affecting the 
employee’s conditions of employment, terms of employment, or work 
environment. 
 
Sexual Harassment – A form of harassment that is based on an 
employee’s gender but which objectively and subjectively creates an 
adverse impact on the employee regardless of the purpose or intent 
of the alleged harasser. 
 
COMPLAINT PROCEDURE 
 
An employee or job applicant who believes he or she has been the 
victim of discrimination, harassment, or retaliation by a District 
employee, a member of the Board of Directors, or a vendor may make a 
complaint verbally, or in writing by completing the District’s 
Discrimination and Harassment Complaint Form.  An employee may make 
a complaint to any of the following:  

 Human Resources; 
 Any supervisor, manager, Department Chief, Assistant General 

Manager, or General Manager; 
 Complaints against the General Manager should be directed to 

the President of the Board of Directors. 
 

Applicants may make a complaint to any of the following: 
 Human Resources or;  
 General Manager. 

 
Any person described above shall forward each written discrimination 
complaint to the General Manager or designee immediately of 
receiving the complaint or having knowledge of the complaint.  If a 
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complaint is made verbally, the person receiving the complaint shall 
notify Human Resources immediately. 
 
Every reported complaint of discrimination, harassment or 
retaliation will be investigated thoroughly and promptly.  If any 
manager, supervisor, Assistant Department Chief, Department Chief, 
or Assistant General Manager becomes aware of or suspects 
discrimination, harassment, or retaliation against a District 
employee or applicant, or any allegation thereof, he/she must 
immediately notify the Human Resources Manager of the relevant facts 
and circumstances. 
 
The General Manager or designee may conduct the investigation of 
alleged discrimination, harassment, or retaliation, or may delegate 
responsibility for the investigation to another District management 
employee.  If the complaint is against the General Manager, the 
President of the Board of Directors shall be responsible for 
conducting the investigation, assigning another management employee, 
or outside investigator and overseeing the investigation. If the 
complaint is against the Board of Directors, the General Manager 
shall be responsible for contracting with an outside investigator to 
conduct the investigation. The Board will take appropriate action 
based on the findings. 
 
During its investigation, the District shall take appropriate steps 
to protect the privacy of all parties involved.  However, this shall 
not be construed to justify refusing to inform a person who has been 
accused of violating this Policy of the identity of the complainant 
and witnesses against him/her.  Reports of discrimination, 
harassment, or retaliation may not be made anonymously, but 
information regarding any report and subsequent investigation will 
be disseminated on a “need to know” basis. 
 
In the event that an investigation will take longer than 60 calendar 
days to complete, the investigator must notify the complainant of 
this fact prior to the expiration of 60 days and provide an 
anticipated completion date, in writing. 
 
If a finding is made that discrimination, harassment, or retaliation 
has occurred, the District shall take remedial action appropriate to 
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the circumstances, which may include disciplinary action up to and 
including termination for an employee who has violated this Policy 
or sanctions for a vendor who has violated this Policy. 
 
Every District employee has a duty to participate in good faith in 
any investigation conducted under this Policy.  Failure to 
participate in good faith is a ground for disciplinary action 
appropriate to the circumstances.  All employees are encouraged to 
report in good faith discrimination, harassment, or retaliation.  
The District will not tolerate retaliation against any employee 
making a good faith complaint of discrimination, harassment or 
retaliation, or for cooperating in an investigation.  However, 
reports made maliciously or in bad faith may subject an employee to 
disciplinary action appropriate to the circumstances up to and 
including termination. 
 
The action of making a complaint does not preclude a complainant 
from filing a complaint with the appropriate State or Federal 
agency.  For information as to where to file a claim, an employee 
may contact the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission at 
www.eeoc.gov or (213) 894-1000 or the Department of Fair Employment 
and Housing at www.dfeh.ca.gov or (800) 884-1684. 
 
 
 
 
 
POLICY HISTORY 
 
Human Resources Policy and Procedure, Effective August 4, 1993. 
Board Policy adopted October 11, 2005. 
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TYPE MEETING: Regular Board MEETING DATE: November 5, 2014 

SUBMITTED BY: Rita Bell, Finance Manager PROJECT:  DIV. NO. All 

APPROVED BY: 
 
 

 Joseph R. Beachem, Chief Financial Officer 

 German Alvarez, Assistant General Manager 

 Mark Watton, General Manager 

SUBJECT: Adopt Resolution No. 4244 Amending Policy No. 25, the Reserve 
Policy, of the District’s Code of Ordinances  

  

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board adopt Resolution No. 4244 amending Policy No. 25, the 
Reserve Policy, of the District’s Code of Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE ACTION:    
 
Please see Attachment A. 
 
PURPOSE: 
 
To present to the Board three revisions of the Reserve Policy.  
First, to reflect the changes to the Water and Sewer Capacity and 
Annexation Fees as a result of the study.  Second, to remove the 
Special Rates and Charges related to North District, Improvement 
Districts (IDs) 1, 3, 9, and 10 which have reached the end of the 
intended purpose of these fees.  Lastly, to modify the descriptions 
of the 1% property tax, OPEB, and betterment sources.  In addition, 
four definitions in the Reserve Policy Glossary were changed to 
reflect current practices. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
In August 2012, the Reserve Policy was modified to incorporate the 
results of a water and sewer capacity fee and annexation fee study 
which changed the methodology of calculation and created a new water 
supply fee.  As a result of these Board approved changes, the new 
sources and uses of fees were incorporated into the Reserve Policy.   
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ANALYSIS: 
 
In September 2014, the District adopted new water and sewer capacity 
and annexation fees as the result of a study performed by HDR.  The 
most significant change due to the study was to create a sewer 
annexation fee and to calculate two sewer capacity fees based on 
whether the parcel is located within or outside of an ID.  
Additionally, a change was made to reflect the percentage allocation 
between the expansion and the “buy-in” portion of the water capacity 
fee.  The proposed modifications to the Reserve Policy reflect these 
approved changes in fees.  
 
In addition, after reviewing the basis of the calculation of the 
annexation fee it appeared this fee more closely fits into the 
general use revenue.  Legal counsel agreed with this change and 
accordingly, staff is recommending the necessary modifications to the 
Reserve Policy.  
  
On January 1, 2014, the special rates and charges for IDs 1 and 3 
expired.  In March 2014 the Board voted to eliminate the special 
rates and charges for IDs 9, 10, and North District effective January 
1, 2015, since the purpose of these special fees has been achieved.  
Accordingly, any reference to these special fees is being removed 
from the Reserve Policy. 
 
As part of continuous quality assurance review performed by staff, 
some necessary changes to the descriptions of the 1% property tax, 
the OPEB reserve, and the sources of the betterment fund as well as 
glossary definitions, were identified and are being recommended for 
Board approval.  These changes are consistent with both staff’s and 
legal counsel’s understanding of the sources and uses of District 
revenues. 
 
The proposed policy is in alignment with the District’s financial 
plan and is an integral part of the annual rate model update which 
impacts the District’s rates and fees. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:    
 
None. 
 
STRATEGIC GOAL: 
 
The District ensures its continued financial health through long-term 
financial planning and debt planning. 
 
LEGAL IMPACT:   
  
None. 
     



 

 

Attachments: 
 

A) Committee Action  
B) Resolution No. 4244 

Exhibit I Strike-through Policy No. 25  
C) Proposed Policy No. 25 

 
  



 

 

 

 
   

ATTACHMENT A 
 

SUBJECT/PROJECT: 
 

 

Adopt Resolution No. 4244 Amending Policy No. 25, the 
Reserve Policy, of the District’s Code of Ordinances 

 
 
COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 
The Finance, Administration and Communications Committee 
reviewed this item at a meeting held on October 21, 2014 and the 
following comments were made: 
 

 Staff is requesting that the board adopt Resolution No. 
4244 amending Policy 25, the Reserve Policy of the 
District’s Code of Ordinances. 
 

 Periodically staff reviews the District’s Reserve Policy 
and typically revisions to the policy are presented 
following adopted changes to the District’s capacity and 
annexation fees. 
 

 The District adopted changes to the sewer and capacity fees 
in September.  The District also changed the methodology in 
the calculation of the sewer capacity and annexation fees.  
These changes require that the Reserve Policy be updated to 
reflect the modifications. 
 

 The District also discontinued, through board action in 
June 2014, the special rates and charges related to the 
North District for Improvement Districts (IDs) 1, 3, 9 and 
10 as the purpose of these fees have been achieved.  The 
discontinuation of these fees have been taken into 
consideration in the FY2015 budget.  This change, as well, 
is being updated within the District’s Reserve Policy. 
 

 Staff is also recommending modifying the descriptions of 
the 1% property tax, OPEB, and betterment sources within 
the Reserve Policy. 
 

 The Reserve Policy is very important in the annual 
budgeting process and in the rate model as the policy sets 



 

 

guidelines for the budget.  The rating agencies also 
reference the District’s Reserve Policy when reviewing the 
financial strength of the District. 

 
Upon completion of the discussion, the committee supported 
staffs’ recommendation and presentation to the full board on the 
consent calendar. 
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RESOLUTION NO.4244 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
OTAY WATER DISTRICT AMENDING  
RESERVE POLICY NO. 25 OF THE  
DISTRICT’S CODE OF ORDINANCES 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Otay Water District Board of Directors have 

been presented with an amended Reserve Policy No. 25 of the 

District’s Code of Ordinances for the financial management of the 

Otay Water District; and 

WHEREAS, the amended Reserve Policy has been reviewed and 

considered by the Board, and it is in the interest of the 

District to adopt the amended Reserve Policy; and  

WHEREAS, the strike-through copy of the proposed policy is 

attached as Exhibit 1 to this resolution; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED by 

the Board of Directors of the Otay Water District that the 

amended Policy No. 25, incorporated herein as Attachment C, is 

hereby adopted. 

 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of 

Otay Water District at a board meeting held this 5th day of 

November, 2014, by the following vote: 

  Ayes:  
 Noes:  
 Abstain:  
 Absent:  
 
 
 
   
      
 
 
 

________________________ 
       President 
 

Attachment B
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ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
District Secretary 
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1.0 The District 
 
The Otay Water District is a California municipal water district, 
authorized in 1956 by the State Legislature under the provisions 
of the Municipal Water District Act of 1911.  The District is a 
"revenue neutral" public agency; meaning each end user pays their 
fair share of the District's costs of water acquisition, 
construction of infrastructure, and the operation and maintenance 
of the public water facilities.  
 
The District provides water service within its boundaries, and 
provides sewer and recycled water service within certain portions 
of the District.  As such, the District operates three distinct 
business segments: 
 

 Potable water 
 Recycled water 
 Sewer 
 

Each of these business segments has an identifiable customer base.  
In addition, the developer community, large and small, makes up a 
significant class of customer for each business segment.  As a 
result, the District has four distinct customer service types:  
 

 Developers 
 Potable water users 
 Recycled water users 
 Sewer users 

 
The District has established practices and developed computer 
systems that have enabled the District to maintain a clear 
separation between the service costs relating to each of its four 
customer service types.  Regardless of customer class, financial 
principles regarding cost allocation and fund accounting are 
fundamental to the District’s Reserve Policy.  These principles 
are derived from the statements of the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB), and from oversight and advisory bodies 
such as the California State Auditor, the Little Hoover 
Commission, and the Government Finance Officers Association 
(GFOA).  These have significant impacts on how the finances of  
the District are organized and how financial processes work within 
the organization. 

Exhibit 1 
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1.1 The District’s Use of Financial Resources 
 
All of the District’s expenditures fall into two broad categories: 
operating costs and capital expenditures.  The operating costs 
include costs relating to the purchase and delivery of potable and 
recycled water, and the transportation and treatment of sewage.  
The capital expenditures support the construction of 
infrastructure necessary to deliver services.  The District uses 
various funds to support the operating and capital efforts.  
Operations and maintenance is financed only by rates and charges, 
also called pay-as-you-go, while capital infrastructure is 
financed using two financing methods: pay-as-you-go and debt 
issuance (requiring annual debt service).  The Capital Improvement 
Program (CIP) and the two funding methods support the 
construction, betterment, and replacement of infrastructure in all 
three business areas: potable, recycled, and sewer.   
 
The District establishes different funds to track revenues 
allocated to different activities.  Once established, each fund 
receives financial resources up to the levels defined in this 
policy.  Every year, as a part of the annual budget process, the 
District’s rate model is updated for each fund with the current 
fund balances and the estimated revenues and expenditures for the 
next six years.  The expenditure requirements and financial 
resources are then evaluated to ensure that the existing fund 
balances and additional revenues are sufficient within the current 
budget cycle and for the next five years to maintain target fund 
levels.  If a deficit is identified, then options for transfers, 
shifting CIP projects, debt, cost saving measures, and/or rate 
increases are evaluated. 
 
1.2 The District’s Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 
 
The planning, design, and construction costs of all capital 
facilities within the three business segments are allocated to 
four cost types and corresponding fund categories: New Water 
Supply, Expansion, Replacement, and/or Betterment.  The allocation 
to these four cost types is defined in the District’s Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP) and is determined by an engineering 
analysis that identifies which type of customer will benefit from 
each facility, planned or existing.  The costs of the capital 



    OTAY WATER DISTRICT 

     BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY 
 

Subject Policy 
Number 

Date 
Adopted 

Date 
Revised 

 RESERVE POLICY 25 2/10/93 8/1/121
1/5/14

 

Page 3 of 47 

improvements are borne by either existing users or by the 
developing areas, or by a combination of the two, as applicable. 
This Reserve Policy protects both the existing users and the 
developing areas from incurring unwarranted costs.  Developing 
areas are not required to finance facilities that are replacement 
or betterment and established areas are not required to replace 
facilities before they are worn out because of new development. 
However, to ensure a fair allocation of costs, each facility has 
the potential to be classified into any or all of the four cost 
types.  In addition to these cost types there are occasional CIPs 
that may be billable to a third party, if for example a third 
party requires a District facility be relocated.  Paragraphs a 
through d below, describe how the costs of capital facilities are 
financed through various fees. 
 

a. New Water Supply 
The portion of a new supply project that benefits new users 
is financed from the reserves in the New Water Supply Fund 
category.  These reserves are primarily derived from proceeds 
of the new water supply fee.  The New Water Supply Fund is 
restricted, meaning the amounts credited to this fund are 
accounted for separately and are used solely for the 
planning, design, and construction of the new water supply 
expansion facilities.  Debt financing may also be a temporary 
financial resource to finance new water supply projects.  The 
District has a Debt Policy (Policy No. 45) that guides the 
debt issuance process.  Any debt proceeds used for this 
purpose would be restricted in nature and tracked separately.  
General use reserves may also be placed in the Designated New 
Water Supply Fund and used for water supply projects. 

 
b. Expansion 
The portion of a CIP project that benefits new users is 
financed from the reserves in the Expansion Fund category. 
These reserves are primarily derived from proceeds of the 
“incremental” portion of the capacity fees collected within 
developing areas.  Capacity fees are accounted for separately 
and used for the planning, design, and construction of 
expansion facilities.  Additionally, expansion may be 
financed by annexation fees or the “buy-in” portion of the 
capacity fee. Both of these fees arewhich is restricted for 
CIP purposes, but not specifically for expansion.  Debt 
financing may also be a temporary financial resource for 
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expansion projects.  General use reserves may also be placed 
in the Designated Expansion Fund and used for expansion 
projects. 
 
c. Replacement 
The portion of a CIP project that benefits existing users by 
replacing an existing facility is financed from the reserves 
in the Replacement Fund category.  Replacement of facilities 
may be financed with proceeds of annexation fees, the “buy-
in” portion of the capacity fees, general use reserves held 
in the Designated Replacement Fund, and debt proceeds.  The 
various funding sources available for replacement projects is 
anticipated to provide the necessary flexibility to begin 
projects while any necessary debt financing is being 
obtained.  

 
d. Betterment 
Facilities that improve reliability, meet new regulations, or 
create increased levels of service are considered betterment 
facilities that benefit existing users.  The reserves in the 
Betterment Fund category are used to finance these projects 
or portions of projects.  Certain user rates, and charges, 
and betterment fees are restricted geographically for 
betterment of facilities, but may also be used for general 
maintenance of facilities in that area.  Proceeds of the 
annexation fee and the “buy-in” portion of the capacity fees 
may also be used to finance betterment projects.  General use 
reserves may be placed in the Designated Betterment Fund and 
used for betterment projects.  
   

1.21 Relocations 
Occasionally, relocation of a District facility is required by a 
third party.  If the District has a superior easement the 
relocation cost will be paid by the third party, but only to the 
extent that the District does not benefit from the relocation.  
When relocation is required, a CIP project may be created which is 
wholly or partially financed by a third party.  On occasion, the 
District will require that its own facilities be relocated.  
Depending on the nature of the facilities, the financial resources 
for these projects could be from new water supply, expansion, 
replacement, betterment or third party financing.  Each project is 
individually negotiated with the third party based on the facts 
and circumstances of the relocation.  Occasionally, the District 
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will improve the facilities that are being relocated.  When 
determining how to allocate costs to various funds the following 
guideline is suggested: if a project has more than five years of 
useful life remaining, an incremental cost view should be 
considered; if the project has less than five years of useful life 
remaining, a pro-rata cost approach should be considered.  Also, 
the likelihood the District will benefit from an asset’s life 
extension should be evaluated prior to allocating costs. 
 
1.22 Oversizing 
If deemed reasonable by the District, in connection with the 
construction of backbone facilities, a developer may be required 
to oversize new facilities for future development.  The developer 
is reimbursed for incremental oversizing costs as per Policy  
No. 26.  These reimbursements are not available for the 
distribution system within a development which is an obligation 
of the developer. 
 
1.23 Exclusion of Developed Areas from Expansion Costs 
Developed areas are assumed to have sufficient supply and capacity 
to meet their current requirements as provided by the developers.  
In addition, they are considered to have borne capital financial 
costs that are at least proportionate to the benefits they have 
received from capital facilities.  Accordingly, no regional 
capital financing costs are allocated to these areas so that they 
will not incur any costs for newly developing areas, except for 
capital projects that produce district-wide benefit or cost 
savings. 
 
1.24 Improvement Districts (IDs)  
Improvement Districts (IDs) are established to facilitate the 
financing of particular improvements by the specific 
beneficiaries.  The District has a number of improvement districts 
that were established for General Obligation (GO) debt repayment. 
Most GO debt has been paid off and it is unlikely that the 
District will issue additional GO debt.  Improvement districts 
continue to be used for other purposes: 1) to distinguish sewer 
customers from water customers on the county tax roll; or 2) to 
place parcels on the county tax roll for the collection of 
availability fees; or 3) for charging special water rates.   
 
Over the years, the District moved to a district-wide perspective 
of financing improvements.  This philosophy is evident by the 
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district-wide capacity and annexation fees.  The District also 
uses district-wide water rates.  As time goes on, it is expected 
that IDs will continue to outgrow their purpose and their use will 
diminish. 
 
1.3 The Purpose of the Policy 
 
Public entities accumulate and maintain reserves to ensure both 
financial stability and continuous availability of services.  
Financial stability and the resulting improved credit quality 
allow the public entity to weather times of uncertainty and the 
impact of negative events, both major and minor.  Reserves allow 
for the ongoing maintenance of property and timely payment of 
expenses even when such expenses exceed money available from a 
single fiscal period.  In the final analysis, the type and level 
of reserves are driven by the type and magnitude of uncertainty 
faced by the public entity.  
 
A “reserve” has a number of meanings, as follows: 
 

 Working capital is required to insure timely payment of 
obligations. 
 

 A buffer against volatility in revenues. 
 

 Liquidity is required to obtain other goods and services 
(e.g., bank services). 

 

 Designated money to protect creditors. 
 

 Money set aside to replace assets at the end of their useful 
lives. 
 

 Money set aside to repair or replace assets damaged or 
destroyed at unanticipated times. 

 
It is important to note that reserves, fund balance, and net 
assets are not the same.  Fund balance and net assets are 
accounting terms and may not always be in the form of cash or 
liquid investments.  Fund balances and net assets may not always 
be reserves unless a designation of all or a portion of fund 
balance is made.  In addition, the term fund balance was replaced 
by net assets as codified by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB).  
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In short, reserves are the liquid assets of the District, 
accumulated and maintained for application to finance contingent 
future activities, whether known or unanticipated, operating or 
capital in nature.  The District’s Reserve Policy governs the 
management and use of these financial resources.  Few policies 
have a more significant impact on the financial health and 
stability of the District.  This policy explains several key 
financial concepts used by the District and provides some 
background information to the overall strategies and practices 
utilized.  The District has a fiduciary obligation to its 
customers, to manage and direct the use of public funds for the 
purpose of providing water and sewer services in an efficient and 
financially sound manner.   
 
1.4 Policy Guidelines 
 
In 2000, the Little Hoover Commission reviewed the levels of 
reserve funds for special districts in California and prepared a 
report reflecting that special districts were accumulating 
unreasonable levels of funds.  As a proactive response, the 
California Special Districts Association (CSDA) prepared Reserve 
Guidelines for its members.  The Reserve Guidelines were 
significant in noting that reserve levels need to be in context of 
the organization’s overall business model and capital improvement 
plan. 
 
There are a number of potential events which the District should 
consider in the development of reserves: 
 

 Economic Uncertainty - performance of the regional economy 
and the impact of that performance on demand for water.  
 

 Weather - the amount of rainfall and the impact of weather on 
the availability and the cost of water as well as the demand 
for water.  
 

 Government Mandates - the impact of federal and state 
regulation, particularly environmental regulation. 
 

 Tax Changes - limitations on the District’s taxing and 
spending powers through the passage of a voter referendum, 
the impound of District property taxes or the removal of the 
District’s power to levy property taxes, further increases to 
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Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund (ERAF) contributions or 
changes in calculation methodology. 
 

 Operating Costs - increases in operating and maintenance 
costs because of inflation, labor agreement or other 
modification. 
 

 Force Majeure - unanticipated expenditures resulting from 
natural disasters or intentional acts. 
 

 Emergency Maintenance - unanticipated expenditures resulting 
from unexpected failure of assets (e.g., rupture in the 
primary transmission system). 
 

 Unexpected Variation in Cash Flow - the incidence of 
additional costs or decreased revenues that require short-
term borrowing in the absence of sufficient financial 
resources. 

 
The California State Auditor has, in its oversight role, offered a 
number of quality recommendations for the development of reserve 
policies as outlined in its report entitled, “California’s 
Independent Water Districts: Reserve Amounts Are Not Always 
Sufficiently Justified, and Some Expenses and Contract Decisions 
Are Questionable,” dated June 2004, Report No. 2003-137.  All of 
these recommendations have been incorporated into this policy in 
an effort to address key issues surrounding the management and use 
of District reserves.  The detailed objectives as identified by 
the State Auditor are as follows: 
 

 Distinguish between restricted and unrestricted reserves. 
 

 Establish distinct purposes for all reserves. 
 

 Set target levels, including minimums and maximums, for the 
accumulation of reserves. 
 

 Identify the events or conditions that prompt the use of 
reserves. 
 

 Conform to plans to acquire or build capital assets.  
 

 Receive Board approval and that it is in writing. 
 

 Require periodic review of reserve balances and rationale for 
maintaining them. 
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Yet, the State Auditor’s report acknowledges that the California 
Constitution (Article XIII B, Section 5) is vague in its 
provisions governing the accumulation and use of reserves.1  

                     
1 California State Auditor, Bureau of State Audits, “California’s Independent Water Districts: Reserve Amounts Are 
Not Always Sufficiently Justified, and Some Expenses and Contract Decisions Are Questionable,” dated June 2004,  
2003-137; p. 8. 
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Specifically, the Constitution states that “each entity of the 
government can establish contingency, emergency, unemployment, 
reserve, sinking fund…or similar funds as it shall deem reasonable 
and proper.”2  Similarly, the State’s Water Code does not impose 
any requirements as to specific or recommended reserve fund 
levels.  As a result, the public finance community as a whole has 
yet to settle on any real objective standards for the level of 
reserve funds appropriate for governmental enterprises.  This lack 
of consensus as to specific standards is indicative of the wide 
variance of the financial and operations context for different 
districts and different contingencies justifying reserves.   
 
The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) in its 
“Recommended Practice on Appropriate Level of Unreserved Fund 
Balance in the General Fund” (2002) states that in 
establishing a policy governing the level of unreserved fund 
balance in the general fund, a government should consider a 
variety of factors. These include: 

 
 The predictability of its revenues and the volatility of 

its expenditures (i.e., higher levels of the unreserved 
fund balances may be needed if significant revenue 
sources are subject to unpredictable fluctuations or if 
operating expenditures are highly volatile). 

 

 The availability of resources in other funds as well as 
the potential drain upon general fund resources from 
other funds (i.e., the availability of resources in 
other funds may reduce the amount of the unreserved fund 
balance needed in the general fund, just as deficits in 
other funds may require that a higher level of 
unreserved fund balance be maintained in the general 
fund). 
 

 Liquidity (i.e., a disparity between when financial 
resources actually become available to make payments and  
the average maturity of related liabilities may require 
that a higher level of resources be maintained). 
 

 Designations (i.e., governments may wish to maintain 
higher levels of the unreserved fund balance to 

                     
2 California Constitution, Article XIII B, Section 5.  
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compensate for any portion of unreserved fund balance 
already designated for a specific purpose). 

In the preparation of this policy, each of the CSDA guidelines and 
the GFOA recommendations has been considered.  In addition, all 
seven objectives provided by the State Auditor are specifically 
addressed for each reserve.  The District wholly supports the 
State Auditor’s efforts to bring a high-level of quality to 
reserve governance and establishing a standard of performance.  
 
The District recognizes that the customer pays for services 
provided.  Quality management requires that periodic valuations be 
performed so that fees and charges can be set at appropriate 
levels to recover the cost of service.  The District’s Reserve 
Policy has been drafted with consideration of the GFOA, CSDA, and 
State Auditor’s general guidelines as provided above.  In 
addition, the District has adopted the following principles in the 
management of its financial resources:  
 

 Reserves are held and used only for the purpose for which 
they are collected.  This is done to maintain equity among 
customers. 
 

 Each of the service types is tracked separately so that 
expenditures and revenues can be monitored and evaluated for 
each customer type.  This provides the District with the 
necessary information to appropriately charge for each of the 
services.   
 

 Separation of operations and maintenance from capital 
expenditures occurs within each of the service types.  This 
is done because the financing of these expenditures is often 
on different timelines or use different reserves.  
 

 The District will hold its reserves at responsible and 
prudent levels.  This policy sets minimum, maximum, and 
target levels for each of the various funds.  This has been 
done so that the District can maintain reserves to meet the 
purpose for which the funds were established.  The levels are 
set by reference to line items in the District’s financial 
statements and approved budgets.  This allows reserve levels 
to adjust to the District’s changing financial circumstances.  
 

 Debt financing of facilities provides intergenerational 
equity and maintains rates at reasonable levels.  This equity 
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is accomplished with long-term financing which spreads the 
cost of facilities over the life of the facilities.  The 
burden to pay for facilities is then paid by those who use 
them.  The District could amass significant reserves by pre-
collecting financial resources in a Replacement Reserve Fund 
allowing the District to cash finance all replacements.  
However, this would require significant rate increases 
burdening the current customers and creating reserve levels 
difficult to defend to the ratepayers or other oversight 
entities.  

 
These concepts are fundamental to the way the District manages its 
funds and have a direct impact on the way rates and charges are 
set.  The District performs annual budget evaluations and updates 
its rate model on an annual basis to monitor and adjust the 
various funds and revenue sources.  The separation, tracking, and 
projecting of the various funds and expenditures create the 
essential information necessary for the equitable rate structure 
maintained by the District.  The annual review preserves the 
balance between services provided and the fees charged.  This 
review also insures that reserves will be available to continue to 
serve the District’s customers. 
 
Financial Sources 
 
2.0 Developers 
 

a. Meter Installation Charges (General Use)  
Meter fees are charges collected for new water service 
connections.  Fees vary depending upon meter size and type of 
service.  The costs associated with meter installations are 
included in the Operating Expenses section of the budget. 
These charges are financed by developers. 

 
b. Developer Deposits (General Use) 
These deposits are for the engineering and operations 
services provided to developers.  They are tracked separately 
for each developer and any excess amount is returned to the 
developer. 
 

 

c. Water Annexation Fees (General UseRestricted)Is this 
restricted? 
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Annexation fees3 are collected as a condition of annexing 
into the District’s potable and or recycled water facilities. 
Since the existing facilities have been built and maintained 
by developers or customers within the District, the 
annexation fee is calculated based on the present value of 
all property taxes (1% property tax and availability fees) 
paid by existing and prior customers.  The annexation fee 
insures that future users finance a portion of facilities 
that were sized, built, and maintained for both existing and 
future users.reimburses existing customers for past 
contributions so that all customers have contributed more 
equally to water facilities.  Proceeds of annexation fees are 
unrestricted and can may be used for any expansion, 
replacement, or betterment projects.  These reserves may be 
shifted back and forth as financing needs change.general fund 
purposes.  
 
d. Sewer Annexation Fees (UnrRestrictedGeneral Use) Is this 
restricted? 
d. A sewer annexation fee is collected when property is 
annexed into an improvement district.  This fee is calculated 
using the “buy-in” basis and therefore is unrestricted. Since 
the existing facilities have been built and maintained by 
developers or customers within the Districta sewer IDs, the 
annexation fee is calculated based on the present value of 
all availability fees paid by existing and prior customers.  
The annexation fee reimburses existing customers for past 
contributions so that all customers have contributed more 
equally to sewer facilities. insures that future users 
finance a portion of facilities that were sized, built, and 
maintained for both existing and future users.  Proceeds of 
the annexation fees are unrestricted and canmay be used for 
any general fund purposes. 
 are restricted and can be used for expansion, replacement, 
or betterment projects.  These reserves may be shifted back 
and forth as financing needs change. 
 
e. New Water Supply Fee (Restricted) 
New water supply fees4 are based on the cost of the expansion 
portion of new water supply projects divided by the number of 

                     
3 Code of Ordinances, Section 9. 
4 Code of Ordinances, Section 28 
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future equivalent dwelling units (EDU).  The new water supply 
fee covers the cost of planning, design, construction, and 
financing associated with facilities for the District’s new 
supply needs.  These fees are paid by developers.  The 
proceeds of this fee may be used only for new potable or 
recycled water supply projects.  Although the fees collected 
are not restricted separately, one portion for potable and 
the other for recycled, they are tracked separately. 

 
f. Water Capacity Fees (Restricted) 
Water Ccapacity fees4 are based on the value of existing and 
future facilities divided by the number of existing and 
future equivalent dwelling units.  This method of calculating 
capacity fees is called the combined method, where the “buy-
in” portion of the capacity fee covers costs to repay 
existing customers for the facilities that they have built, 
and where the “incremental” portion of the capacity fee 
covers the cost of future expansion facilities.  The “buy-in” 
portion of the capacity fee is restricted to pay for 
planning, design, construction, and financing associated with 
expansion, replacement or betterment facilities.  The “buy-
in” portion may be shifted back and forth between expansion, 
betterment or replacement as the financing needs change.  The 
“incremental” portion of the capacity fee is limited to 
planning, design, construction, and financing exclusively for 
expansion facilities (excluding new water supply expansion).  
 
g. Sewer Capacity Fees (Restricted) 
Sewer capacity fees are based on the value of existing and 
future facilities divided by the number of existing and 
future equivalent dwelling units.  This method of calculating 
capacity fees is called the combined method, whereuses the 
“buy-in” portion process whereof the capacity fee covers cost 
to repay existing customers for the facilities that they have 
built, and where the “incremental” portion of the capacity 
fee covers the cost of future expansion facilities.  At 
anythe time an expansion project is determinedplanned, the 
fee calculation will include the cost of the expansion 
project and the expansion EDUs, making this calculation a 
combined approach.  The “buy-in” portion of the capacity fee 
is restricted to pay for planning, design, construction, and 
financing associated with expansion, replacement or 
betterment facilities.  The “buy-in” portion may be shifted 
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back and forth between expansion, betterment or replacement 
as the financing needs change.  The “incremental” portion of 
the capacity fee is limited to planning, design, 
construction, and financing exclusively for expansion 
facilities.  For parcels within a sewer ID the calculation 
excludes the tax debt already paid by these customers 
therefore, producing a lower fee than for parcels outside of 
a sewer ID.  The capacity fees are restricted to pay for 
planning, design, construction, and financing associated with 
the expansion, replacement, or betterment of facilities.   
 

 
Facility needs are based on projected land use planning. Changes 
in anticipated future land use occur and can alter projected 
facility requirements.  Thus, both the anticipated facilities 
needs and their projected costs change over time as regulatory 
agencies make changes to land use.  The District periodically 
reviews the capacity fee calculation to accommodate such 
variations.  These fees are paid by developers.  
 
The District’s construction of infrastructure occurs prior to the 
addition of EDUs.  This sequence serves two purposes: one it 
ensures that the District can serve the pending construction as it 
is completed; and two, it is more efficient to oversize many 
facilities at the outset rather than build for the current need 
and then reconstruct when the future need is realized.  As a 
result of this strategy, the District has financed construction 
with bond financing as the existing expansion reserves are 
depleted. 

 
The water capacity fee is calculated based on the combined 
recycled and potable water systems needs.  This methodology is 
used because the two water systems work hand-in-hand.  All 
capacity fees can be used for either potable or recycled but must 
be tracked to distinguish between the “buy-in” and “incremental” 
portions as described above.  So, while capacity fees are not 
restricted separately by potable and recycled, they are tracked 
separately. 
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2.1 Customers/Users 
 

a. Uniform Rates and Charges (General Use) 
Charges to users for water, sewer, and recycled water are 
uniform throughout the District for similar customer types.  

 
b. Monthly System Fees (General Use)  
This is a fixed revenue source that is charged monthly.  The 
amount of the charge is based on the meter size.   

 
c. Energy Charges (General Use) 
The energy pumping fee is a charge per Unit of water for each 
100 feet of lift, or fraction thereof, above the base 
elevation of 450 feet.  This charge is placed on the monthly 
water bills of all water customers. 

 
d. Penalties (General Use) 
Penalties are added to the monthly water and sewer bills for 
late charges, locks, etc. 

 
e. Pass-through Fixed Charges (General Use)  
A fixed monthly charge to the District’s customers intended 
to collect sufficient funds to pass-through the increased 

DEVELOPERS

Diagram 2.0:  Flow of Funds ‐ Developer Sources
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fixed costs from the County Water Authority (CWA) and the 
Metropolitan Water District (MWD). 
 
f. Special Rates and Charges (UnrRestrictedGeneral Use) 
In addition to the uniform water and sewer charges, the 
District currently has five a special water rates and one 
sewer rate for the Russell Square lift station.  The five 
water rates are Russell Square fee is for construction, 
installation, and maintenance or repair of water storage 
reservoirs, pump stations, and water lines the Russell Square 
lift station.  Each of these rates and charges must be used 
within the respective geographic areas from which they are 
collected.  These special charges are listed below:  This fee 
is collected in accordance with the Russell Square sewer 
charge (see Code of Ordinances Section 53.03B). 
 

 North District water charge (Code section 25.03G) 
 ID 9 water charge (Code section 25.03H) 
 ID 3 water charge (Code section 25.03I) 
 ID 10 water charge (Code section 25.03I) 
 La Presa water charge (Code section 25.03I)  
 Russell Square sewer charge (Code section 53.04C) 

 
When these rates were established they were for the specific 
purpose of constructing, installing, and maintaining the 
water and sewer systems in the areas in which the fees were 
collected.  Therefore, these are restricted reserves by 
geographic area as well as by purpose.  These rates and 
charges can also be used for maintenance; unlike the 
availability fees (discussed in 2.2 B.).  These six special 
rates and charges along with availability fees are tracked 
separately, by geographic area, so they can be individually 
evaluated to maintain the targeted reserve levels.  To meet 
this need, each special rate and charge is accounted for in a 
“sub-fund” of the Betterment Fund.  
 
g. Temporary Meter Fees (General Use/Restricted) 
Water charges, in lieu of capacity fees, are charged on 
temporary meters.  This is done because temporary meters use 
system capacity but they are not charged a capacity fee.  
Temporary water use is charged at two times the water rate 
with the added charge placed in the Restricted Expansion 
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Fund.  The primary users of these temporary meters are 
developers; however, general customers also use these for 
various purposes. 
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2.2 County-Collected Taxes and Fees 
 

a. General Levy Property Tax Receipts (1% Property Tax) 
(General Use) 

In 1978, Proposition 13 limited the levy of ad valorem 
property taxes on real property to one percent of the 
assessed value of such property.  Subsequent legislation,  
AB 8, established that the receipts from the one percent levy 
were to be distributed to taxing agencies proportionate to 
each agency’s general levy receipts prior to Proposition 13.  
Taxes received are for general use.  Spending limits for the 
District are governed by the 1979 passage of California 
Proposition 4, Limitations of Government Appropriations (GANN 
limit).  Proposition 4 places an appropriation limit on most 
spending from tax proceeds. 
 
b. Availability Charges (General Use/Restricted) 
The District levies availability charges each year in 
developed and undeveloped areas.  Current legislation 
provides that any amount up to $10 per parcel is general use 
and any amount over $10 per parcel is restricted to be 
expended in and for the improvement district (ID) within 

CUSTOMERS / USERS

      Diagram 2.1:  Flow of Funds ‐ Customer Sources
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which it is collected.  Accordingly, the District may use 
availability charges in excess of $10 toward costs of water 
and sewer facilities which are either, expansion, betterment, 
or replacement of facilities consistent with the purpose of 
the ID in which they are collected.  This portion of the 
proceeds of availability charges is geographically restricted 
and restricted by purpose.  As costs are incurred on these 
projects the respective IDs are charged, reducing the 
reserves.  To the extent that availability charges are not 
used for the purpose for which they are collected, they must 
be returned to the property owners that paid them.  The 
District has historically used these reserves for betterment 
capital facilities thus, the restricted reserves are 
accounted for in “sub-funds” of the Betterment Fund  
(see 2.1 f.). 
 
c.  Improvement District General Obligation (GO) Bond 

Assessments (Restricted) 
The District has historically issued general obligation (GO) 
debt and establishes an improvement district for the 
repayment of that debt.  When this financing method is used, 
the county tax roll can be used to collect special taxes or 
assessments within the ID to pay the debt obligation.  The 
proceeds of the debt are restricted for the purpose as 
defined in the bond documents. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.3 Miscellaneous Income 
 

a. Miscellaneous Rents and Leases (General Use) 
Revenues received from the rental and lease of District 
property are general use revenues.  Not only are they 

COUNTY COLLECTED TAXES AND FEES
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periodic revenues, but there is also a one-time fee charged 
with the setup of each new lease.  The District incurs 
expenses related to these rents and leases.  The one-time 
fees are calculated to recover the costs to setup the leases.  

 
b. Sewer Billing Fees (General Use) 
Sewer billing fees are general use revenues.  The District 
provides processing and billing services to the City of Chula 
Vista to bill and collect from their customers for sewer 
service.  These fees are to recover the cost the District 
incurs to provide this service. 

 
c. Interest Income or Expense Allocation (General Use, 

Designated, and Restricted) 
Interest income (expense) will be allocated every month based 
upon each fund's month-ending balance.  In this way, each 
fund receives credit for interest earned by that fund and 
each fund with a negative balance is charged for the use of 
the other fund’s reserves. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
2.4 Debt Issuance 
 
  a. Loans (General/Restricted Use) 

As the District determines that additional financing is 
required for a particular purpose, the option of borrowing is 
considered.  The determination to borrow is made as a part of 
the annual rate model update and is evaluated in accordance 
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with the Debt Policy before it is recommended to the Board 
for action.  As an option to bond indebtedness, loans are 
available to satisfy short-term financing needs.  These loans 
may or may not be contractually restricted for a particular 
purpose. 
 

 b. General Obligation (GO) Bonds (Restricted) 
As the District becomes more developed it becomes less likely 
that general obligation debt will be used as it requires a 
vote of the public to be approved.  Bond proceeds are 
restricted for the construction of those facilities 
identified in the GO bond issuance.  Occasionally, specific 
portions of bond proceeds may be allocated for the repayment 
of the principal and interest, also called debt service, on 
these bonds.  As the District determines that additional 
financing is required for a particular purpose, the option of 
debt issuance is considered.  The determination to issue debt 
is made as a part of the annual rate model update and is 
evaluated in accordance with the Debt Policy before it is 
recommended to the Board for action. 
 

  c. Certificates of Participation (COPs) (Restricted)  
General revenues of the District are pledged as security for 
Certificates of Participation (COPs) indebtedness.  If the 
District determines that additional financing is required for 
a particular purpose, the option of debt issuance is 
considered.  The determination to issue debt is made as a 
part of the annual rate model update and is evaluated in 
accordance with the Debt Policy before it is recommended to 
the Board for action.  This form of financing has become the 
industry’s preferred form of financing as it does not require 
a vote of the general public. 
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2.5 Inter-fund Transfers  

 
Each year in the budgeting process, future fund levels are 
projected for the next six years.  Based on these projections 
transfers are recommended.  Reserves may be transferred 
between Unrestricted or Designated Funds and the General Fund 
(see 4.0 “Funding Levels” and 4.1 “Fund Transfers”).  
Reserves may not be transferred to or from any of the 
restricted funds unless it is between two restricted funds 
with a shared purpose. 
 

Fund Types and Categories 
 
3.0 General Funds 

 
a. Purpose 
The General Fund is neither restricted nor designated.  The 
District maintains one General Fund for each business segment 
(water, sewer, and recycled).  This fund holds the working 
capital and emergency operating reserves.  While the General 
Fund has a short-term focus to finance the District’s annual 
operations, it is supported by the six-year rate model.  This 
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fund is primarily used to finance the operations of the 
District; however, it can be used for any District purpose.   
 
This fund can be used to supplement the District’s rates and 
charges and be a temporary source of revenue to balance the 
Operating Budget.  This fund can also be used to avoid spikes 
in the rates or significant and abrupt increases. It is an 
industry practice to have a fund that can be used to 
stabilize rates.  This would only occur if there was a 
temporary need for reserves that would smooth out a rate 
spike or to ramp up what would otherwise be a dramatic rate 
increase.  
 
The General Fund also plays a role in the debt planning of 
the District.  This fund is viewed by the debt markets as a 
commitment by the District to ensure financial stability of 
the rates and charges of the District.  The District is 
anticipated to need a number of debt issuances over the years 
and this fund will help the District not only to stabilize 
rate fluctuations but also to access low cost financing for 
future projects. 
 
b. Sources 
Meter installation charges, temporary meter fees, uniform 
rates and charges, monthly system fees, energy charges, 
penalties, pass-through fixed charges, general levy property 
tax receipts, water annexation fees, availability charges, 
miscellaneous rents and leases, sewer billing fees, interest 
income or expense allocation, loans, and a portion of the 
temporary water sales.  
 
The sewer general fund receives sewer charges, penalties, 
availability charges, sewer annexation fees (calculated on 
the “buy-in” basis), and interest income or expense 
allocation. 

  
c. Funding Levels 

I. Minimum Level – The minimum reserve level for each 
business segment of the General Fund is three 
months of operating budget expenses (evaluated 
separately for each segment).   



    OTAY WATER DISTRICT 

     BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY 
 

Subject Policy 
Number 

Date 
Adopted 

Date 
Revised 

 RESERVE POLICY 25 2/10/93 8/1/121
1/5/14

 

Page 25 of 47 

 
II. Maximum Level – The maximum reserve level for the 

General Fund is nine months of operating budget 
expenses.  In the event that this fund exceeds the 
seven month level, the excess will be evaluated or 
transferred to one or more of the designated funds. 

 
III. Target Level – The target level of reserves is 

three months of operating budget expenses.  In the 
event that the fund drops below the target level, 
rate increases or fund transfers would be 
considered. 

 
3.1 Designated Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) Fund 
 

a. Purpose 
Designated Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) reserves are 
“general use” reserves that have been set apart by Board 
action to finance the medical benefits of qualified retirees 
as outlined in the District’s benefits plan.  This fund is 
available to hold any Board designated OPEB funds.District 
fund holds only a portion of the total OPEB reserves.  The 
other portion is held in The District also has a trust at 
CalPERS and is restricted for the purpose of financing the 
OPEB liability.  Money held in the CalPERS trust restricts 
the funds from any use other than OPEB.  The two portions 
funds are considered jointly when looking at target reserve 
levels.  Every two years, the fund is evaluated by an 
actuarial study is performedy to update the annual financing 
requirements.  Changes in the actuarial valuation may result 
from changes in benefit levels, employee population, health 
insurance costs, or general market conditions. The reserves 
held by the District are currently designated and may be 
placed into the CalPERS trust to legally restrict the funds, 
removing the District’s legal access to these reserves.   
 
b. Sources 
The OPEB liability may be financed by general use reserves 
coming from user rates and charges, either from an operating 
budget expenditure or from interfund transfers.  Transfers of 
unrestricted reserves may come from the various designated 
funds or from the General Fund.  As a part of the normal 
budget process, annual operating revenues have been 
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sufficient to finance the ongoing needs of this designated 
fund.  While debt financing is also an option, the District 
has only used user rates and charges to finance this fund. 
 
c. Funding Levels 

I. Minimum Level – The minimum reserve level for this 
fund is equal to the District’s OPEB liability as 
determined by the actuarial study.  When 
considering the reserve level of this fund, both 
the District held OPEB reserves and CalPERS held 
OPEB reserves must be considered jointly. 

 
II. Maximum Level – The maximum reserve level for this 

fund is equal to the District’s OPEB liability as 
determined by the actuarial study.  In the event 
that the two funds, as described above, exceed the 
OPEB liability, the District will reduce the annual 
funding levels as defined by the actuarial study. 

 
III. Target Level – The target reserve level for this 

fund is equal to the District’s OPEB liability as 
determined by the actuarial study.  In the event 
that the two funds, as described above, fall below 
the OPEB liability, the District will increase the 
annual funding levels as defined by the actuarial 
study. 

 
3.2 New Water Supply Fund Category 
 

a. Purpose 
The New Water Supply Fund category is to finance the 
expansion portion of new water supply projects and is 
therefore to be paid by developers.  When considering the 
reserve level of the New Water Supply category; the New Water 
Supply Fund, the New Water Supply Debt Fund, and the 
Designated New Water Supply Fund all work in concert and must 
be considered jointly. 
 
b. Sources 
The New Water Supply Fund receives reserves only from the new 
water supply fee.  Other funds within the new water supply 
category of funds receive debt proceeds and general use 
reserves through a designation to this category. 
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c. Funding Levels 

I. Minimum Level – As the District matures the CIP 
will move to purely replacement projects.  As the 
District moves through its lifecycle the need for 
new water supply reserves will decrease and may be 
reduced to zero. 

 
II. Maximum Level – The maximum reserve level for the 

new water supply category of funds is limited to 
five years of the unfinanced new water supply 
facilities as described in the District’s CIP 
Budget.  To determine the unfinanced amount, the 
total new water supply financing needs must be 
reduced by the projected new water supply revenues, 
general fund designations, and bond financing.  If 
the combined new water supply reserves exceed the 
target level, the District should consider 
transferring designated reserves to meet other 
purposes, reduce the new water supply fee, or 
change the timing of the new water supply projects. 

 
III. Target Level – In order to facilitate debt 

financing of the new water supply, it is important 
that the various new water supply funds retain an 
overall reserve level of six months, prior to any 
attempt to obtain debt financing.  This reserve 
level allows the District the time necessary to 
issue additional debt without depleting new water 
supply reserves.  If the combined new water supply 
reserve levels drop below six months of 
expenditures, this would trigger a transfer of 
general use reserves, a bond sale, or a change in 
the timing of new water supply projects.  Bond 
proceeds would be placed in the Restricted New 
Water Supply Debt Fund while transfers would be 
placed in the Designated New Water Supply Fund. 
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3.3 Expansion Fund Category 

a. Purpose  
The Expansion Fund category is to finance the expansion 
portion of capital projects and therefore is to be paid for 
by developers.  When considering the reserve levels of the 
expansion category, the following funds work in concert and 
must be considered jointly: the Expansion Fund, Expansion 
Debt Fund, Annexation Fund (potable and recycled only), 
Capital Improvement Fund, and the Designated Expansion Fund.  

 
Restricted Funds 

 

  Unrestricted and  
Undesignated Funding  
            Sources 

 
 Funding Source  New Water 

Supply Fees 

Debt 
Proceeds

 
Restricted Funds 

 
Restricted Funds 

 
 

Designated Funds 

 New Water 
Supply Fund 

Expansion 
New Water 
Supply  Fund 

Designated 
New Water 
Supply Fund

Debt Fund 

General Fund – Rates and Charges

New Water 
Supply Fund 
Category 

New Water 
Supply  

Debt Fund

 

Diagram 3.2:  New Water Supply Fund Category
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Potable and recycled reserves are considered jointly while 
sewer is evaluated separately.  

 
b. Sources 
The Expansion Fund is financed by water charges in lieu of 
capacity fees (for temporary meters) and the “incremental” 
portion of the capacity fee.  The other funds in this 
category may also be financed by debt proceeds, annexation 
fees, the “buy-in” portion of the capacity fee, and the 
general fund through a designation of reserves. 

 
c. Funding Levels 

I. Minimum Level – As the District matures the CIP 
will move to purely replacement and betterment 
projects.  As the District moves through this 
lifecycle the need for expansion reserves will 
decrease and may be reduced to zero. 

 
II. Maximum Level – The maximum reserve level for the 

expansion category of funds is limited to five 
years of unfinanced expansion facilities as 
described in the District’s CIP Budget.  To 
determine the unfinanced amount, the total 
financing needs must be reduced by the projected 
expansion revenues, bond financing, and any 
restricted or general fund revenues allocated to 
this fund category.  If the combined expansion 
reserves exceed target levels, the District should 
consider reducing capacity fees, reallocating 
restricted or designated funds to meet other 
purposes, or shifting the timing of expansion 
projects. 

 
III. Target Level – The target level is six months of 

expansion expenditures.  It is important that the 
expansion reserves remain at a minimum of six 
months of expansion expenditures.  This reserve 
level allows the District the time necessary to 
issue additional debt without depleting expansion 
reserves.  If the combined expansion reserves drop 
below six months of expenditures this would trigger 
a transfer of general use reserves, a bond sale, an 
adjustment to the timing of expansion projects, or 
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a reallocation of restricted reserves.  Bond 
proceeds would be placed in the Restricted Bond 
Fund, transfers of general use reserves would be 
placed in the Designated Expansion Fund, and 
transfers of restricted reserves would be placed in 
either the Expansion Annexation Fund or the 
Expansion Capital Improvement Fund. 
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  Unrestricted and  
Undesignated Funding  
          Sources 

Diagram 3.3:  Expansion Fund Category 
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(1) For Water Capacity Fees 32.4% goes into the Expansion fund and 67.6% goes into 
the Capital Improvement Fund. For Sewer Capacity Fees, 100% would gogoes to the 
Capital Improvement Fund to be used for replacement or betterment.  
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3.4 Replacement Fund Category 
 
a. Purpose  

The Replacement Fund category is to finance replacement 
projects.  When considering the reserve levels of the 
replacement category of funds, the following funds work 
in concert and must be considered jointly: the 
Annexation Fund, Debt Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, 
and the Designated Replacement Fund.  The purpose of 
these reserves is to pay for the replacement of capital 
infrastructure and capital purchases.  These reserves 
are not to be used for the replacement of non-capital 
items.   

 
With the District’s development of its financial systems 
and the greater need and ability to separate and track 
reserves, the replacement reserves have been separated 
into three funds: water, recycled, and sewer.   
 
Projects undertaken solely for the purpose of replacing 
major capital equipment or facilities, i.e., where the 
cost exceeds $10,000 for capital purchases or $20,000 
for infrastructure items, generally these are not 
considered normal maintenance.  When the cost is below 
$10,000, the costs are financed annually as operational 
maintenance.  As charges are incurred on replacement 
projects the reserves are deducted from the respective 
Replacement Funds on a monthly basis.  
 

b. Sources 
The various funds in this category are financed by debt 
proceeds, annexation fees, the “buy-in” portion of the 
capacity fee, and general fund designations. 

 
c. Funding Levels 

I. Minimum Level – The minimum reserve level of this 
category of funds is 3% of the historical value of 
existing assets as identified in the District’s 
current financial statements.  Potable, recycled, 
and sewer replacement are evaluated separately. 

 
II. Maximum Level – The maximum reserve level of this 

category of funds is 6% of existing assets.  If the 
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combined replacement reserves exceed target levels, 
the District should consider transferring 
annexation fees or the “buy-in” portion of the 
capacity fee to meet other purposes.  Another 
consideration would be to shift the timing of 
replacement projects. 

 
III. Target Level – The target reserve level of this 

category of funds is 4% of existing assets.  In the 
event that the reserves fall below the recommended 
target level, the District should consider 
transferring annexation fees or the “buy-in” 
portion of the capacity fee.  The District should 
also consider shifting the timing of replacement 
projects or issuing debt to support the planned 
level of facility replacement.  The District will 
act based on the annual six-year rate model, to 
insure that at the end of that planning horizon the 
reserves exceed the minimum level and is 
approaching the target level. 
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(1) For Water Capacity Fees 67.6% goes into the Capital Improvement Fund. 

For Sewer Capacity Fees, 100% would gogoes to the Capital Improvement 
Fund to be used for replacement or betterment.  

 
3.5 Betterment Fund Category 
 

a. Purpose 
The Betterment Fund category is to finance the 
betterment portion of capital projects with a portion 
going to maintenance of the potable, recycled, and sewer 
systems.  The District maintains separate Betterment 
Fund categories, one for each improvement district.  An 
improvement district is a legally defined geographic 
area usually established for the purpose of bond 
financing of facilities.  The betterment reserves within 
these funds are restricted by law for use within the 
improvement district in which the fees were collected 
(Water Code 71631.6).  However, the legal restriction of 
this reserve depends upon the particular revenue source. 
(See Section 2.1 2 fb. for a review of the special rates 
and availability fees). 

 
When considering the reserve levels of the betterment 
category of funds, the following funds work in concert 
and must be considered jointly: the Betterment Fund, 
Annexation Fund, Debt Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, 
and Designated Betterment Fund. 

 
b. Sources 

The Betterment Fund category receives restricted 
revenues by improvement district via special water rates 
and from availability fees (the first $10 is 
unrestricted, while amounts over $10 are restricted) 
collected through the county tax roll.  Betterment may 
also be financed by debt proceeds, annexation fees, the 
“buy-in” portion of the capacity fee, as well as the 
general fund through a designation of reserves. 

 
c. Funding Levels 

I. Minimum Level – As the District matures the CIP 
will move to purely replacement projects.  As the 
District moves through this lifecycle the need for 
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betterment reserves will decrease and may be 
reduced to zero.   
 

II. Maximum Level – The maximum reserve level for the 
betterment category of funds is limited to five 
years of unfinanced betterment facilities as 
described in the District’s CIP Budget. To 
determine the unfinanced amount, the total 
financing need must be reduced by the projected 
betterment revenues, bond financing, annexation, 
and general fund designations.  If this maximum is 
exceeded, then the District should evaluate 
reductions in the special water rates and 
availability fees, transferring designated reserves 
to meet other purposes, or shifting the timing of 
betterment projects. 

 
III. Target Level – The target is six months of 

betterment expenditures.  It is important that the 
betterment reserves remain at a minimum of six 
months of betterment expenditures.  This reserve 
level allows the District the time necessary to 
issue additional debt without depleting betterment 
reserves.  If the combined betterment reserves drop 
below six months of expenditures this would trigger 
a transfer of general use reserves, a bond sale, or 
an adjustment to the timing of betterment projects.  
Bond proceeds would be placed in the Betterment 
Bond Fund while transfers would be placed in the 
Designated Betterment Fund. 
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Diagram 3.6:  Fund Targets 
 

Fund or Fund 
Category 

Actions to Consider if 
below Target 

Target  Maximum 

New Supply Fund 
Category 

New supply fee 
increase, bond 
financing, or transfer to 
designation designated 
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Annexation Fund 

Total of all funds in fund 
category = six months 
of capital expenditures 

Nexus of cost to fee 

Expansion Fund 
Category 

Capacity fee increase, 
bond financing, or 
transfer to 
designatedion or to CIF 
Funds or Annexation 
Fund 

Total of all funds in fund 
category = six months 
of capital expenditures 

Nexus of cost to fee 

Replacement Fund 
Category 

Bond financing, or 
transfer to 
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Fund 

Total of all funds in fund 
category = 4% of 
infrastructure 

Nexus of cost to fee 

Betterment Fund 
Category 

Bond financing, or 
transfer to 
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Fund 

Total of all funds in fund 
category = six months 
of capital expenditures 

5 years unfunded needs 

Debt Reserve Fund 
Increase tax collection 
or rates 

One semi‐annual 
payment 

Two semi‐annual 
payments 

OPEB Fund  Fund transfers  Full funding  Full funding 

General Fund 
Rate increase or fund 
transfers 

Three months of 
operating budget 
expenses 

Nine months of 
operating budget 
expenses 

Note:  The annexation fee for sewer is a general fund revenue. 

 
Additional Restricted Funds 
 
4.0  Capital Improvement Fund 
 

a. Purpose 
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The “Capital Improvement Fund’s sole purpose is to track the 
“buy-in” portion of the capacity fee and to ensure these fees 
are expended solely for the purpose for which they were  
collected.  In this case it is to pay for facilities that 
were in existence at the time this fee was established.  
These fees may be used for expansion, replacement, or 
betterment projects or any debt related to these categories.  
These water capacity fees may also be used for either the 
potable or the recycled systems.  As capacity fees are 
collected, the “buy-in” portion of the fee is allocated as 
needed to one of three capital improvement funds, one in each 
of the Expansion, Replacement, and Betterment Fund 
categories.  These reserves are used to pay debt or offset 
any negative balance within these three categories of funds.  
For sewer, these fees fund the Expansion, Replacement, or 
Betterment Fund cateagories.  These fees may not be used to 
finance the New Water Supply category, as there were no new 
water supply facilities in existence at the time the new 
methodology for capacity fees was established. 

 
b. Sources 
The “buy-in” portion of the capacity fee collected after  
June 30, 2010 or after September 30, 2014 for sewer. 

 
c. Funding Levels 
There are no minimums, maximums, or target levels for these 
reserves on an individual basis.  The allocation of this fee 
to the various capital improvement funds is dependent on the 
overall reserve levels within each fund category. 

 
4.1 Annexation Fund 
 

a. Purpose 
The Annexation Fund’s sole purpose is to track the potable, 
and recycled, and sewer annexation fees collected and to 
ensure these fees are expended solely for the purpose for 
which they were collected.  The annexation fees may be used 
for expansion, replacement, or betterment projects or any 
debt related to these categories.  These fees may be used for 
either the potable or recycled systems.  These reserves may 
not be used to finance the New Water Supply category, as it 
was not in existence at the time the fee was established.  As 
these fees are collected they are allocated as needed to one 
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of three capital improvement funds, one in each of the 
Expansion, Replacement, and Better Fund categories. 

 
b. Sources 
Potable and recycled annexation fees collected after  
June 30, 2010 or after September 30, 2014 for sewer. 
 
c. Uses 
There are no minimums, maximums, or target levels for these 
reserves on an individual basis.  The allocation of this fee 
to the various Annexation Funds is dependent on the overall 
reserve levels within each fund category. 

 
4.21 Debt Reserve Fund 
 

a.  Purpose 
The Debt Reserve Fund is established to hold the proceeds 
from the various debt issuances.  There are two types of 
debt, General Obligation bonds and Certificates of 
Participation bonds.  The proceeds are transferred to the New 
Water Supply, Expansion, Replacement, or Betterment Debt 
Funds as they are expended for various facilities within 
those fund categories.  As repayment of the debt occurs, the 
balances within these individual funds are reduced so that 
the financial impact of issuing debt is tracked within the 
category for which the debt was issued. 

 
b.  Sources 
Debt proceeds. 

 
c.  Uses   
There are no minimums, maximums, or target levels for this 
fund on an individual basis.  This fund is available on an as 
needed basis to fund CIP projects for new water supply, 
expansion, replacement, or betterment.  From a funding level 
perspective, these reserves are evaluated in the context of 
all the various funds within each fund category. 
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Fund Transfers 
 
5.0 Funding Levels 
 
As described in the preceding sections, the District maintains 
reserves for its operating and capital activities.  These reserves 
can be of three types: 1) undesignated or general use reserves, 
2) designated, and 3) restricted for a specific purpose.  The 
restricted reserves can be restricted geographically and/or by 
purpose.  The District maintains various funds to track the 
various designations and restrictions.  The source of the money 
for each fund was discussed along with the purpose, source of 
funds, and levels.  Key characteristics of these funds are the 
target levels, minimums, and maximums.  The funding levels must be 
viewed in the context of the economic environment, political 
environment, and in light of the District’s rate model.  The 
District’s six-year rate model not only shows the current balance 
but also shows the trend of the fund balances.  Often the trend of 
the fund is a greater indicator of financial stability than is the 
current balance. 
 
The rate model is updated each year with the budget process and 
evaluates each fund over the next six years.  The rate model will 
take into account the general economic environment, looking at the 
development rate, supply rate increases, the possibility of 
raising rates, capital infrastructure spending, and strategic plan 
initiatives.  The fund balances may at times be over or under the 
target amount.  This is not only acceptable but expected.  The 
rate model provides an empirical estimate of the conformance 
between the projected District’s financial activities and the 
guidelines of this policy.  
 
5.1 Fund Transfers 
 
Reserves within the District’s various designated funds come from 
interfund transfers of unrestricted general use reserves.  It is 
important to note that the District has the ability to use general 
use reserves for any business purpose.  General use reserves may 
be transferred to and from any unrestricted fund for any business 
need.  Designated reserves are general use reserves which have 
been set aside for a specific purpose by Board action.  These 
reserves can only be used for the purpose they were designated, or 
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with Board action they may be used for any other business purpose.  
While general use reserves may be used for any restricted purpose 
they may not be transferred to Restricted Funds due to the 
sensitivity of the tracking of restricted reserves.  If reserves 
are needed for a restricted purpose they are transferred to a 
Designated Fund within the fund category with that particular 
purpose.  Reserves restricted to a fund category may only be used 
within that category and may not be transferred to another 
category.  For example, the new water supply fee and the 
“incremental” portion of the capacity fee are restricted reserves 
for a specific purpose, and may not be transferred to another 
category as no other category has the same purpose.  However, the 
“buy-in” portion of the capacity fees and annexation fees are 
restricted for purposes that are shared by more than one category 
of funds and may therefore be transferred to a restricted fund 
within another fund category as long as it shares the same 
purpose.  
 
In many situations reserve transfers are expected as some fund 
categories will exceed their maximums or drop below their 
minimums.  Only fund categories that are below the stated target 
are eligible to receive transferred reserves.  Fund categories 
that exceed their maximums are first to be considered for 
transfers out, followed by funds that exceed their targets.  Funds 
that exceed their minimums are also available for reserve 
transfers out, but only when other options are not available.   
 
The rationale for prioritizing reserve transfers is based on the 
immediacy of the need and the availability of reserves from other 
funding sources.  For example, the General Fund is first to 
receive reserves when it drops below its target or minimum levels.  
This is because of the immediate and ongoing nature of the 
expenditures that are served by this fund.  The operation of the 
District is first and foremost of the objectives of the District.  
On the other end of the spectrum, the Replacement Fund has a long-
term perspective and will be used to partially finance replacement 
assets for many years to come.  Debt financing is available to 
respond to this long term, foreseeable, and planned cash flow.  
This fund is less likely to have immediate needs and has other 
financing options. 
 
When making the determination of when transfers are necessary, all 
funds within a fund category work as a group.  The combined 
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balance of the restricted and designated funds is looked at when 
determining whether the fund category requires additional funding 
from the Restricted Capital Improvement Fund, Restricted 
Annexation Fund, Restricted Debt Fund, or the General Fund.  
Because the Capital Improvement Fund and Annexation Fund may 
finance expansion, replacement or betterment reserves may be 
transferred between these fund categories, but only back and forth 
within its own type of restricted fund.  
 
As an example, if during the rate model update process it was 
determined that the Expansion Funds (designated and restricted) 
would drop and stay below the minimum during the six-year planning 
horizon, this would trigger a bond sale, a transfer of general use 
reserves, and/or a transfer of restricted reserves.  If in the 
cash planning process, it was anticipated that the General Fund 
would remain above target during the planning horizon and that the 
trend did not present a problematic underfunded status, then 
General Fund reserves would be considered available for transfer 
prior to making proceeds available from a bond sale.  Also, if 
during this period the Betterment Fund category was anticipated to 
exceed its maximum, then reserves from either the Designated 
Betterment Fund, the Annexation Fund, or the Capital Improvement 
Fund would be transferred to the corresponding Expansion Fund 
prior to a bond sale.  All funds are evaluated to determine which 
has the greatest need or availability of reserves before any 
reserve transfer recommendation is presented to the Board. 
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GLOSSARY 
 
The Reserve Policy contains terminology that is unique to public 
finance and budgeting.  The following glossary provides assistance 
in understanding these terms. 
 
Annexation Fees:  When water service is requested for land outside 
the boundaries of the District, the land to be serviced must first 
be annexed.  For sewer service the land must be annexed into an 
improvement district within the District.   
 
Assets:  Resources owned or held by Otay Water District that has 
monetary value.  
 
Availability Fees:  The District levies charges each year in 
developed areas to be used for upgrades, betterment, or 
replacement and in undeveloped areas to provide a source of 
funding for planning, mapping, and preliminary design of 
facilities to meet future development.  Current legislation 
provides that any availability charge in excess of $10.00 per acre 
shall be used only for the purpose of the improvement district for 
which it was assessed.  
 
Betterment Fees:  In addition to other applicable water rates and 
charges, water customers pay a fee based on water service zone or 
Improvement District.  These fees are restricted for use in the 
area where they are collected and may be used for the construction 
and maintenance of facilities. 
 
Bond:  A written promise to pay a sum of money on a specific date 
at a specified interest rate.  The interest payments and the 
repayment of the principal are authorized in a District bond 
resolution.  The most common types of bonds are General Obligation 
(GO) bonds and Certificates of Participation (COPs).  These are 
frequently used for construction of large capital projects such as 
buildings, reservoirs, pipelines and pump stations. 
 
Capital Equipment:  Fixed assets such as vehicles, marine 
equipment, computers, furniture, technical instruments, etc. which 
have a life expectancy of more than two years and a value over 
$10,000. 
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Capital Improvement Program:  A long-range plan of the District 
for the construction, rehabilitation and modernization of the 
District-owned and operated infrastructure. 
 
CWA:  The County Water Authority was organized in 1944 under the 
State County Water Authority Act for the primary purpose of 
importing Colorado River water to augment the local water supplies 
of the Authority's member agencies.  The Authority purchases water 
from the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD) 
which imports water from the Colorado River and the State Water 
Project. 
 
Debt Service:  The District's obligation to pay the principal and 
interest of bonds and other debt instruments according to a 
predetermined payment schedule. 
 
Expenditures/Expenses:  These terms refer to the outflow of funds 
paid or to be paid for an asset, goods, or services obtained 
regardless of when actually paid for.  (Note: An encumbrance is 
not an expenditure).  An encumbrance reserves funds to be expended 
in a future period. 
 
Fund:  An account used to track the collection and use of monies 
for a specifically defined purpose. 
 
Fund Balance:  The current funds on hand resulting from the 
historical collection and use of monies.  The difference between 
assets and liabilities reported in the District’s Operating Fund 
plus residual equities or balances and changes therein, from the 
results of operations. 
 
Interest Income:  Earnings from the investment portfolio.  Per 
District Policy Number 25, interest income will be allocated to 
the various funds each month based upon each fund’s prior month-
ending balance. 
 
Late Charges/Penalties:  Charges and penalties are imposed on 
customer accounts for late payments, returned payments, and other 
infringements of the District’s Code of Ordinances.  
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1% Property Tax:  In 1978, Proposition 13 limited general levy 
property tax rates for all taxing authorities to a total rate of 
1% of full cash value.  Subsequent legislation, AB 8, established 
that the receipts from the 1% levy were to be distributed to 
taxing agencies according to approximately the same proportions 
received prior to Proposition 13.  Funds received are to be used 
for facilities construction or debt service on bonds sold to build 
facilities. 
 
Operating Budget:  The portion of the budget that pertains to 
daily operations that provide basic governmental services.  The 
operating budget contains appropriations for such expenditures as 
personnel, supplies, utilities, materials, travel and fuel, and 
does not include purchases of major capital plant or equipment 
which is budgeted for separately in the Capital Budget.  The 
Operating Budget also identifies planned non-operating revenues 
and expenses. 
 
Revenue:  Monies that the District receives as income.  It 
includes such items as water sales and sewer fees.  Estimated 
revenues are those expected to be collected during the fiscal 
year. 
 
Russell Square:  A sewer lift station constructed in 1983 that 
serves four properties in the Russell Square Development.   
 
System Fees:  Each water service customer pays a monthly system 
charge for water system replacement, maintenance, and operation 
expenses.  The charge is based on the size of the meter and class 
of service.   
 
Tax Collection for Bond Debtes:  California Water Code Section 
72091 authorizes the District, as a municipal water district, to 
levy ad valorem property taxes which are equal to the amount 
required to make annual payments for principal and interest on 
General Obligation bonds approved by the voters prior to July 1, 
1978. 
 
Unit:  A Unit of water is 100 cubic feet or 748 gallons of water. 
 
Water Rates:  Rates vary among classes of service and are measured 
in Units.  The water rates for residential customers are based on 
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an accelerated block structure.  As more Units are consumed, a 
higher Unit rate is charged.  Effective in 2009, all non-
residential customers are charged for water based on a tiered rate 
structure in which water rates are based on meter size and amount 
of Units consumed.   
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1.0 The District 

 

The Otay Water District is a California municipal water district, 

authorized in 1956 by the State Legislature under the provisions 

of the Municipal Water District Act of 1911.  The District is a 

"revenue neutral" public agency; meaning each end user pays their 

fair share of the District's costs of water acquisition, 

construction of infrastructure, and the operation and maintenance 

of the public water facilities.  

 

The District provides water service within its boundaries, and 

provides sewer and recycled water service within certain portions 

of the District.  As such, the District operates three distinct 

business segments: 

 

 Potable water 

 Recycled water 

 Sewer 

 

Each of these business segments has an identifiable customer base.  

In addition, the developer community, large and small, makes up a 

significant class of customer for each business segment.  As a 

result, the District has four distinct customer service types:  

 

 Developers 

 Potable water users 

 Recycled water users 

 Sewer users 

 

The District has established practices and developed computer 

systems that have enabled the District to maintain a clear 

separation between the service costs relating to each of its four 

customer service types.  Regardless of customer class, financial 

principles regarding cost allocation and fund accounting are 

fundamental to the District’s Reserve Policy.  These principles 

are derived from the statements of the Governmental Accounting 

Standards Board (GASB), and from oversight and advisory bodies 

such as the California State Auditor, the Little Hoover 

Commission, and the Government Finance Officers Association 

(GFOA).  These have significant impacts on how the finances of  

the District are organized and how financial processes work within 

the organization. 

 Attachment C 



    OTAY WATER DISTRICT 

     BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY 

 

Subject Policy 
Number 

Date 
Adopted 

Date 
Revised 

 RESERVE POLICY 25 2/10/93 11/5/14 

 

Page 2 of 42 

 

1.1 The District’s Use of Financial Resources 

 

All of the District’s expenditures fall into two broad categories: 

operating costs and capital expenditures.  The operating costs 

include costs relating to the purchase and delivery of potable and 

recycled water, and the transportation and treatment of sewage.  

The capital expenditures support the construction of 

infrastructure necessary to deliver services.  The District uses 

various funds to support the operating and capital efforts.  

Operations and maintenance is financed only by rates and charges, 

also called pay-as-you-go, while capital infrastructure is 

financed using two financing methods: pay-as-you-go and debt 

issuance (requiring annual debt service).  The Capital Improvement 

Program (CIP) and the two funding methods support the 

construction, betterment, and replacement of infrastructure in all 

three business areas: potable, recycled, and sewer.   

 

The District establishes different funds to track revenues 

allocated to different activities.  Once established, each fund 

receives financial resources up to the levels defined in this 

policy.  Every year, as a part of the annual budget process, the 

District’s rate model is updated for each fund with the current 

fund balances and the estimated revenues and expenditures for the 

next six years.  The expenditure requirements and financial 

resources are then evaluated to ensure that the existing fund 

balances and additional revenues are sufficient within the current 

budget cycle and for the next five years to maintain target fund 

levels.  If a deficit is identified, then options for transfers, 

shifting CIP projects, debt, cost saving measures, and/or rate 

increases are evaluated. 

 

1.2 The District’s Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 

 

The planning, design, and construction costs of all capital 

facilities within the three business segments are allocated to 

four cost types and corresponding fund categories: New Water 

Supply, Expansion, Replacement, and/or Betterment.  The allocation 

to these four cost types is defined in the District’s Capital 

Improvement Program (CIP) and is determined by an engineering 

analysis that identifies which type of customer will benefit from 

each facility, planned or existing.  The costs of the capital 
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improvements are borne by either existing users or by the 

developing areas, or by a combination of the two, as applicable. 

This Reserve Policy protects both the existing users and the 

developing areas from incurring unwarranted costs.  Developing 

areas are not required to finance facilities that are replacement 

or betterment and established areas are not required to replace 

facilities before they are worn out because of new development. 

However, to ensure a fair allocation of costs, each facility has 

the potential to be classified into any or all of the four cost 

types.  In addition to these cost types there are occasional CIPs 

that may be billable to a third party, if for example a third 

party requires a District facility be relocated.  Paragraphs a 

through d below, describe how the costs of capital facilities are 

financed through various fees. 

 

a. New Water Supply 

The portion of a new supply project that benefits new users 

is financed from the reserves in the New Water Supply Fund 

category.  These reserves are primarily derived from proceeds 

of the new water supply fee.  The New Water Supply Fund is 

restricted, meaning the amounts credited to this fund are 

accounted for separately and are used solely for the 

planning, design, and construction of the new water supply 

expansion facilities.  Debt financing may also be a temporary 

financial resource to finance new water supply projects.  The 

District has a Debt Policy (Policy No. 45) that guides the 

debt issuance process.  Any debt proceeds used for this 

purpose would be restricted in nature and tracked separately.  

General use reserves may also be placed in the Designated New 

Water Supply Fund and used for water supply projects. 

 

b. Expansion 

The portion of a CIP project that benefits new users is 

financed from the reserves in the Expansion Fund category. 

These reserves are primarily derived from proceeds of the 

“incremental” portion of the capacity fees collected within 

developing areas.  Capacity fees are accounted for separately 

and used for the planning, design, and construction of 

expansion facilities.  Additionally, expansion may be 

financed by the “buy-in” portion of the capacity fee which is 

restricted for CIP purposes, but not specifically for 

expansion.  Debt financing may also be a temporary financial 

resource for expansion projects.  General use reserves may 
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also be placed in the Designated Expansion Fund and used for 

expansion projects. 

 

c. Replacement 

The portion of a CIP project that benefits existing users by 

replacing an existing facility is financed from the reserves 

in the Replacement Fund category.  Replacement of facilities 

may be financed with proceeds of the “buy-in” portion of the 

capacity fees, general use reserves held in the Designated 

Replacement Fund, and debt proceeds.  The various funding 

sources available for replacement projects is anticipated to 

provide the necessary flexibility to begin projects while any 

necessary debt financing is being obtained.  

 

d. Betterment 

Facilities that improve reliability, meet new regulations, or 

create increased levels of service are considered betterment 

facilities that benefit existing users.  The reserves in the 

Betterment Fund category are used to finance these projects 

or portions of projects.  Proceeds of the “buy-in” portion of 

the capacity fees may also be used to finance betterment 

projects.  General use reserves may be placed in the 

Designated Betterment Fund and used for betterment projects.  

   

1.21 Relocations 
Occasionally, relocation of a District facility is required by a 

third party.  If the District has a superior easement the 

relocation cost will be paid by the third party, but only to the 

extent that the District does not benefit from the relocation.  

When relocation is required, a CIP project may be created which is 

wholly or partially financed by a third party.  On occasion, the 

District will require that its own facilities be relocated.  

Depending on the nature of the facilities, the financial resources 

for these projects could be from new water supply, expansion, 

replacement, betterment or third party financing.  Each project is 

individually negotiated with the third party based on the facts 

and circumstances of the relocation.  Occasionally, the District 

will improve the facilities that are being relocated.  When 

determining how to allocate costs to various funds the following 

guideline is suggested: if a project has more than five years of 

useful life remaining, an incremental cost view should be 

considered; if the project has less than five years of useful life 

remaining, a pro-rata cost approach should be considered.  Also, 
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the likelihood the District will benefit from an asset’s life 

extension should be evaluated prior to allocating costs. 

 

1.22 Oversizing 

If deemed reasonable by the District, in connection with the 

construction of backbone facilities, a developer may be required 

to oversize new facilities for future development.  The developer 

is reimbursed for incremental oversizing costs as per Policy  

No. 26.  These reimbursements are not available for the 

distribution system within a development which is an obligation 

of the developer. 

 

1.23 Exclusion of Developed Areas from Expansion Costs 

Developed areas are assumed to have sufficient supply and capacity 

to meet their current requirements as provided by the developers.  

In addition, they are considered to have borne capital financial 

costs that are at least proportionate to the benefits they have 

received from capital facilities.  Accordingly, no regional 

capital financing costs are allocated to these areas so that they 

will not incur any costs for newly developing areas, except for 

capital projects that produce district-wide benefit or cost 

savings. 

 

1.24 Improvement Districts (IDs)  

Improvement Districts (IDs) are established to facilitate the 

financing of particular improvements by the specific 

beneficiaries.  The District has a number of improvement districts 

that were established for General Obligation (GO) debt repayment. 

Most GO debt has been paid off and it is unlikely that the 

District will issue additional GO debt.  Improvement districts 

continue to be used for other purposes: 1) to distinguish sewer 

customers from water customers on the county tax roll; or 2) to 

place parcels on the county tax roll for the collection of 

availability fees.   

 

Over the years, the District moved to a district-wide perspective 

of financing improvements.  This philosophy is evident by the 

district-wide capacity and annexation fees.  The District also 

uses district-wide water rates.  As time goes on, it is expected 

that IDs will continue to outgrow their purpose and their use will 

diminish. 
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1.3 The Purpose of the Policy 

 

Public entities accumulate and maintain reserves to ensure both 

financial stability and continuous availability of services.  

Financial stability and the resulting improved credit quality 

allow the public entity to weather times of uncertainty and the 

impact of negative events, both major and minor.  Reserves allow 

for the ongoing maintenance of property and timely payment of 

expenses even when such expenses exceed money available from a 

single fiscal period.  In the final analysis, the type and level 

of reserves are driven by the type and magnitude of uncertainty 

faced by the public entity.  

 

A “reserve” has a number of meanings, as follows: 

 

 Working capital is required to insure timely payment of 

obligations. 
 

 A buffer against volatility in revenues. 
 

 Liquidity is required to obtain other goods and services 

(e.g., bank services). 
 

 Designated money to protect creditors. 
 

 Money set aside to replace assets at the end of their useful 

lives. 
 

 Money set aside to repair or replace assets damaged or 

destroyed at unanticipated times. 

 

It is important to note that reserves, fund balance, and net 

assets are not the same.  Fund balance and net assets are 

accounting terms and may not always be in the form of cash or 

liquid investments.  Fund balances and net assets may not always 

be reserves unless a designation of all or a portion of fund 

balance is made.  In addition, the term fund balance was replaced 

by net assets as codified by the Governmental Accounting Standards 

Board (GASB).  

 

In short, reserves are the liquid assets of the District, 

accumulated and maintained for application to finance contingent 

future activities, whether known or unanticipated, operating or 

capital in nature.  The District’s Reserve Policy governs the 
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management and use of these financial resources.  Few policies 

have a more significant impact on the financial health and 

stability of the District.  This policy explains several key 

financial concepts used by the District and provides some 

background information to the overall strategies and practices 

utilized.  The District has a fiduciary obligation to its 

customers, to manage and direct the use of public funds for the 

purpose of providing water and sewer services in an efficient and 

financially sound manner.   

 

1.4 Policy Guidelines 

 

In 2000, the Little Hoover Commission reviewed the levels of 

reserve funds for special districts in California and prepared a 

report reflecting that special districts were accumulating 

unreasonable levels of funds.  As a proactive response, the 

California Special Districts Association (CSDA) prepared Reserve 

Guidelines for its members.  The Reserve Guidelines were 

significant in noting that reserve levels need to be in context of 

the organization’s overall business model and capital improvement 

plan. 

 

There are a number of potential events which the District should 

consider in the development of reserves: 

 

 Economic Uncertainty - performance of the regional economy 

and the impact of that performance on demand for water.  
 

 Weather - the amount of rainfall and the impact of weather on 

the availability and the cost of water as well as the demand 

for water.  
 

 Government Mandates - the impact of federal and state 

regulation, particularly environmental regulation. 
 

 Tax Changes - limitations on the District’s taxing and 

spending powers through the passage of a voter referendum, 

the impound of District property taxes or the removal of the 

District’s power to levy property taxes, further increases to 

Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund (ERAF) contributions or 

changes in calculation methodology. 
 

 Operating Costs - increases in operating and maintenance 

costs because of inflation, labor agreement or other 

modification. 
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 Force Majeure - unanticipated expenditures resulting from 

natural disasters or intentional acts. 
 

 Emergency Maintenance - unanticipated expenditures resulting 

from unexpected failure of assets (e.g., rupture in the 

primary transmission system). 
 

 Unexpected Variation in Cash Flow - the incidence of 

additional costs or decreased revenues that require short-

term borrowing in the absence of sufficient financial 

resources. 

 

The California State Auditor has, in its oversight role, offered a 

number of quality recommendations for the development of reserve 

policies as outlined in its report entitled, “California’s 

Independent Water Districts: Reserve Amounts Are Not Always 

Sufficiently Justified, and Some Expenses and Contract Decisions 

Are Questionable,” dated June 2004, Report No. 2003-137.  All of 

these recommendations have been incorporated into this policy in 

an effort to address key issues surrounding the management and use 

of District reserves.  The detailed objectives as identified by 

the State Auditor are as follows: 

 

 Distinguish between restricted and unrestricted reserves. 
 

 Establish distinct purposes for all reserves. 
 

 Set target levels, including minimums and maximums, for the 

accumulation of reserves. 
 

 Identify the events or conditions that prompt the use of 

reserves. 
 

 Conform to plans to acquire or build capital assets.  
 

 Receive Board approval and that it is in writing. 
 

 Require periodic review of reserve balances and rationale for 

maintaining them. 

 

Yet, the State Auditor’s report acknowledges that the California 

Constitution (Article XIII B, Section 5) is vague in its 

provisions governing the accumulation and use of reserves.1  

                     
1 California State Auditor, Bureau of State Audits, “California’s Independent Water Districts: Reserve Amounts Are 

Not Always Sufficiently Justified, and Some Expenses and Contract Decisions Are Questionable,” dated June 2004,  

2003-137; p. 8. 



    OTAY WATER DISTRICT 

     BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY 

 

Subject Policy 
Number 

Date 
Adopted 

Date 
Revised 

 RESERVE POLICY 25 2/10/93 11/5/14 

 

Page 9 of 42 

Specifically, the Constitution states that “each entity of the 

government can establish contingency, emergency, unemployment, 

reserve, sinking fund…or similar funds as it shall deem reasonable 

and proper.”2  Similarly, the State’s Water Code does not impose 

any requirements as to specific or recommended reserve fund 

levels.  As a result, the public finance community as a whole has 

yet to settle on any real objective standards for the level of 

reserve funds appropriate for governmental enterprises.  This lack 

of consensus as to specific standards is indicative of the wide 

variance of the financial and operations context for different 

districts and different contingencies justifying reserves.   

 

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) in its 

“Recommended Practice on Appropriate Level of Unreserved Fund 

Balance in the General Fund” (2002) states that in 

establishing a policy governing the level of unreserved fund 

balance in the general fund, a government should consider a 

variety of factors. These include: 

 

 The predictability of its revenues and the volatility of 

its expenditures (i.e., higher levels of the unreserved 

fund balances may be needed if significant revenue 

sources are subject to unpredictable fluctuations or if 

operating expenditures are highly volatile). 
 

 The availability of resources in other funds as well as 

the potential drain upon general fund resources from 

other funds (i.e., the availability of resources in 

other funds may reduce the amount of the unreserved fund 

balance needed in the general fund, just as deficits in 

other funds may require that a higher level of 

unreserved fund balance be maintained in the general 

fund). 
 

 Liquidity (i.e., a disparity between when financial 

resources actually become available to make payments and  

the average maturity of related liabilities may require 

that a higher level of resources be maintained). 
 

 Designations (i.e., governments may wish to maintain 

higher levels of the unreserved fund balance to 

compensate for any portion of unreserved fund balance 

already designated for a specific purpose). 

                     
2 California Constitution, Article XIII B, Section 5.  
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In the preparation of this policy, each of the CSDA guidelines and 

the GFOA recommendations has been considered.  In addition, all 

seven objectives provided by the State Auditor are specifically 

addressed for each reserve.  The District wholly supports the 

State Auditor’s efforts to bring a high-level of quality to 

reserve governance and establishing a standard of performance.  

 

The District recognizes that the customer pays for services 

provided.  Quality management requires that periodic valuations be 

performed so that fees and charges can be set at appropriate 

levels to recover the cost of service.  The District’s Reserve 

Policy has been drafted with consideration of the GFOA, CSDA, and 

State Auditor’s general guidelines as provided above.  In 

addition, the District has adopted the following principles in the 

management of its financial resources:  

 

 Reserves are held and used only for the purpose for which 

they are collected.  This is done to maintain equity among 

customers. 
 

 Each of the service types is tracked separately so that 

expenditures and revenues can be monitored and evaluated for 

each customer type.  This provides the District with the 

necessary information to appropriately charge for each of the 

services.   
 

 Separation of operations and maintenance from capital 

expenditures occurs within each of the service types.  This 

is done because the financing of these expenditures is often 

on different timelines or use different reserves.  
 

 The District will hold its reserves at responsible and 

prudent levels.  This policy sets minimum, maximum, and 

target levels for each of the various funds.  This has been 

done so that the District can maintain reserves to meet the 

purpose for which the funds were established.  The levels are 

set by reference to line items in the District’s financial 

statements and approved budgets.  This allows reserve levels 

to adjust to the District’s changing financial circumstances.  
 

 Debt financing of facilities provides intergenerational 

equity and maintains rates at reasonable levels.  This equity 

is accomplished with long-term financing which spreads the 

cost of facilities over the life of the facilities.  The 

burden to pay for facilities is then paid by those who use 
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them.  The District could amass significant reserves by pre-

collecting financial resources in a Replacement Reserve Fund 

allowing the District to cash finance all replacements.  

However, this would require significant rate increases 

burdening the current customers and creating reserve levels 

difficult to defend to the ratepayers or other oversight 

entities.  

 

These concepts are fundamental to the way the District manages its 

funds and have a direct impact on the way rates and charges are 

set.  The District performs annual budget evaluations and updates 

its rate model on an annual basis to monitor and adjust the 

various funds and revenue sources.  The separation, tracking, and 

projecting of the various funds and expenditures create the 

essential information necessary for the equitable rate structure 

maintained by the District.  The annual review preserves the 

balance between services provided and the fees charged.  This 

review also insures that reserves will be available to continue to 

serve the District’s customers. 

 

Financial Sources 

 

2.0 Developers 

 

a. Meter Installation Charges (General Use)  

Meter fees are charges collected for new water service 

connections.  Fees vary depending upon meter size and type of 

service.  The costs associated with meter installations are 

included in the Operating Expenses section of the budget. 

These charges are financed by developers. 

 

b. Developer Deposits (General Use) 

These deposits are for the engineering and operations 

services provided to developers.  They are tracked separately 

for each developer and any excess amount is returned to the 

developer. 

 
 

c. Water Annexation Fees (General Use) 

Annexation fees3 are collected as a condition of annexing 

into the District’s potable or recycled water facilities. 

Since the existing facilities have been built and maintained 

                     
3 Code of Ordinances, Section 9. 
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by developers or customers within the District, the 

annexation fee is calculated based on the present value of 

all property taxes (1% property tax and availability fees) 

paid by existing and prior customers.  The annexation fee 

reimburses existing customers for past contributions so that 

all customers have contributed more equally to water 

facilities.  Proceeds of annexation fees are unrestricted and 

may be used for any general fund purpose.  

 

d. Sewer Annexation Fees (General Use)   

A sewer annexation fee is collected when property is annexed 

into an improvement district.   Since the existing facilities 

have been built and maintained by developers or customers 

within a sewer IDs, the annexation fee is calculated based on 

the present value of all availability fees paid by existing 

and prior customers.  The annexation fee reimburses existing 

customers for past contributions so that all customers have 

contributed more equally to sewer facilities. Proceeds of the 

annexation fees are unrestricted and may be used for any 

general fund purpose. 

 

e. New Water Supply Fee (Restricted) 

New water supply fees4 are based on the cost of the expansion 

portion of new water supply projects divided by the number of 

future equivalent dwelling units (EDU).  The new water supply 

fee covers the cost of planning, design, construction, and 

financing associated with facilities for the District’s new 

supply needs.  These fees are paid by developers.  The 

proceeds of this fee may be used only for new potable or 

recycled water supply projects.  Although the fees collected 

are not restricted separately, one portion for potable and 

the other for recycled, they are tracked separately. 

 

f. Water Capacity Fees (Restricted) 

Water capacity fees4 are based on the value of existing and 

future facilities divided by the number of existing and 

future equivalent dwelling units.  This method of calculating 

capacity fees is called the combined method, where the “buy-

in” portion of the capacity fee covers costs to repay 

existing customers for the facilities that they have built, 

and where the “incremental” portion of the capacity fee 

covers the cost of future expansion facilities.  The “buy-in” 

                     
4 Code of Ordinances, Section 28 
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portion of the capacity fee is restricted to pay for 

planning, design, construction, and financing associated with 

expansion, replacement or betterment facilities.  The “buy-

in” portion may be shifted back and forth between expansion, 

betterment or replacement as the financing needs change.  The 

“incremental” portion of the capacity fee is limited to 

planning, design, construction, and financing exclusively for 

expansion facilities (excluding new water supply expansion).  

 

g. Sewer Capacity Fees (Restricted) 

Sewer capacity fees are based on the value of existing and 

future facilities divided by the number of existing and 

future equivalent dwelling units.  This method of calculating 

capacity fees is called the combined method, where the “buy-

in” portion of the capacity fee covers cost to repay existing 

customers for the facilities that they have built, and where 

the “incremental” portion of the capacity fee covers the cost 

of future expansion facilities.    The “buy-in” portion of 

the capacity fee is restricted to pay for planning, design, 

construction, and financing associated with expansion, 

replacement or betterment facilities.  The “buy-in” portion 

may be shifted back and forth between expansion, betterment 

or replacement as the financing needs change.  The 

“incremental” portion of the capacity fee is limited to 

planning, design, construction, and financing exclusively for 

expansion facilities.  For parcels within a sewer ID the 

calculation excludes the tax debt already paid by these 

customers therefore, producing a lower fee than for parcels 

outside of a sewer ID.  The capacity fees are restricted to 

pay for planning, design, construction, and financing 

associated with the expansion, replacement, or betterment of 

facilities.   

 

 

Facility needs are based on projected land use planning. Changes 

in anticipated future land use occur and can alter projected 

facility requirements.  Thus, both the anticipated facilities 

needs and their projected costs change over time as regulatory 

agencies make changes to land use.  The District periodically 

reviews the capacity fee calculation to accommodate such 

variations.  These fees are paid by developers.  
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The District’s construction of infrastructure occurs prior to the 

addition of EDUs.  This sequence serves two purposes: one it 

ensures that the District can serve the pending construction as it 

is completed; and two, it is more efficient to oversize many 

facilities at the outset rather than build for the current need 

and then reconstruct when the future need is realized.  As a 

result of this strategy, the District has financed construction 

with bond financing as the existing expansion reserves are 

depleted. 

 

The water capacity fee is calculated based on the combined 

recycled and potable water systems’ needs.  This methodology is 

used because the two water systems work hand-in-hand.  All 

capacity fees can be used for either potable or recycled but must 

be tracked to distinguish between the “buy-in” and “incremental” 

portions as described above.  So, while capacity fees are not 

restricted separately by potable and recycled, they are tracked 

separately. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.1 Customers/Users 

 

a. Uniform Rates and Charges (General Use) 

Charges to users for water, sewer, and recycled water are 

uniform throughout the District for similar customer types.  

DEVELOPERS 

Diagram 2.0:  Flow of Funds - Developer Sources 
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b. Monthly System Fees (General Use)  

This is a fixed revenue source that is charged monthly.  The 

amount of the charge is based on the meter size.   

 

c. Energy Charges (General Use) 

The energy pumping fee is a charge per Unit of water for each 

100 feet of lift, or fraction thereof, above the base 

elevation of 450 feet.  This charge is placed on the monthly 

water bills of all water customers. 

 

d. Penalties (General Use) 

Penalties are added to the monthly water and sewer bills for 

late charges, locks, etc. 

 

e. Pass-through Fixed Charges (General Use)  

A fixed monthly charge to the District’s customers intended 

to collect sufficient funds to pass-through the increased 

fixed costs from the County Water Authority (CWA) and the 

Metropolitan Water District (MWD). 

 

f. Special Rates and Charges (General Use) 

In addition to the uniform water and sewer charges, the 

District has a special sewer rate for the Russell Square lift 

station.  The Russell Square fee is for construction, 

installation, maintenance or repair of the Russell Square 

lift station.   This fee is collected in accordance with the 

Russell Square sewer charge (see Code of Ordinances Section 

53.03B). 

 

g. Temporary Meter Fees (General Use/Restricted) 

Water charges, in lieu of capacity fees, are charged on 

temporary meters.  This is done because temporary meters use 

system capacity but they are not charged a capacity fee.  

Temporary water use is charged at two times the water rate 

with the added charge placed in the Restricted Expansion 

Fund.  The primary users of these temporary meters are 

developers; however, general customers also use these for 

various purposes. 
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2.2 County-Collected Taxes and Fees 

 

a. General Levy Property Tax Receipts (1% Property Tax) 

(General Use) 

In 1978, Proposition 13 limited the levy of ad valorem 

property taxes on real property to one percent of the 

assessed value of such property.  Subsequent legislation,  

AB 8, established that the receipts from the one percent levy 

were to be distributed to taxing agencies proportionate to 

each agency’s general levy receipts prior to Proposition 13.  

Taxes received are for general use.  Spending limits for the 

District are governed by the 1979 passage of California 

Proposition 4, Limitations of Government Appropriations (GANN 

limit).  Proposition 4 places an appropriation limit on most 

spending from tax proceeds. 

 

b. Availability Charges (General Use/Restricted) 

The District levies availability charges each year in 

developed and undeveloped areas.  Current legislation 

provides that any amount up to $10 per parcel is general use 

and any amount over $10 per parcel is restricted to be 

expended in and for the improvement district (ID) within 

CUSTOMERS / USERS 

      Diagram 2.1:  Flow of Funds - Customer Sources 
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which it is collected.  Accordingly, the District may use 

availability charges in excess of $10 toward costs of water 

and sewer facilities which are either, expansion, betterment, 

or replacement of facilities consistent with the purpose of 

the ID in which they are collected.  This portion of the 

proceeds of availability charges is geographically restricted 

and restricted by purpose.  As costs are incurred on these 

projects the respective IDs are charged, reducing the 

reserves.  To the extent that availability charges are not 

used for the purpose for which they are collected, they must 

be returned to the property owners that paid them.  The 

District has historically used these reserves for betterment 

capital facilities thus, the restricted reserves are 

accounted for in “sub-funds” of the Betterment Fund  

(See 2.1 f.). 

 

c.  Improvement District General Obligation (GO) Bond 

Assessments (Restricted) 

The District has historically issued general obligation (GO) 

debt and establishes an improvement district for the 

repayment of that debt.  When this financing method is used, 

the county tax roll can be used to collect special taxes or 

assessments within the ID to pay the debt obligation.  The 

proceeds of the debt are restricted for the purpose as 

defined in the bond documents. 
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2.3 Miscellaneous Income 

 

a. Miscellaneous Rents and Leases (General Use) 

Revenues received from the rental and lease of District 

property are general use revenues.  Not only are they 

periodic revenues, but there is also a one-time fee charged 

with the setup of each new lease.  The District incurs 

expenses related to these rents and leases.  The one-time 

fees are calculated to recover the costs to setup the leases.  

 

b. Sewer Billing Fees (General Use) 

Sewer billing fees are general use revenues.  The District 

provides processing and billing services to the City of Chula 

Vista to bill and collect from their customers for sewer 

service.  These fees are to recover the cost the District 

incurs to provide this service. 

 

c. Interest Income or Expense Allocation (General Use, 

Designated, and Restricted) 

Interest income (expense) will be allocated every month based 

upon each fund's month-ending balance.  In this way, each 

fund receives credit for interest earned by that fund and 

each fund with a negative balance is charged for the use of 

the other fund’s reserves. 
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2.4 Debt Issuance 

 

  a. Loans (General/Restricted Use) 

As the District determines that additional financing is 

required for a particular purpose, the option of borrowing is 

considered.  The determination to borrow is made as a part of 

the annual rate model update and is evaluated in accordance 

with the Debt Policy before it is recommended to the Board 

for action.  As an option to bond indebtedness, loans are 

available to satisfy short-term financing needs.  These loans 

may or may not be contractually restricted for a particular 

purpose. 

 

 b. General Obligation (GO) Bonds (Restricted) 

As the District becomes more developed it becomes less likely 

that general obligation debt will be used as it requires a 

vote of the public to be approved.  Bond proceeds are 

restricted for the construction of those facilities 

identified in the GO bond issuance.  Occasionally, specific 

portions of bond proceeds may be allocated for the repayment 

of the principal and interest, also called debt service, on 

these bonds.  As the District determines that additional 

financing is required for a particular purpose, the option of 

debt issuance is considered.  The determination to issue debt 

is made as a part of the annual rate model update and is 

evaluated in accordance with the Debt Policy before it is 

recommended to the Board for action. 

 

  c. Certificates of Participation (COPs) (Restricted)  

General revenues of the District are pledged as security for 

Certificates of Participation (COPs) indebtedness.  If the 

District determines that additional financing is required for 

a particular purpose, the option of debt issuance is 

considered.  The determination to issue debt is made as a 

part of the annual rate model update and is evaluated in 

accordance with the Debt Policy before it is recommended to 

the Board for action.  This form of financing has become the 

industry’s preferred form of financing as it does not require 

a vote of the general public. 
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2.5 Inter-fund Transfers  

 

Each year in the budgeting process, future fund levels are 

projected for the next six years.  Based on these projections 

transfers are recommended.  Reserves may be transferred 

between Unrestricted or Designated Funds and the General Fund 

(see 4.0 “Funding Levels” and 4.1 “Fund Transfers”).  

Reserves may not be transferred to or from any of the 

restricted funds unless it is between two restricted funds 

with a shared purpose. 

 

Fund Types and Categories 

 

3.0 General Funds 

 

a. Purpose 

The General Fund is neither restricted nor designated.  The 

District maintains one General Fund for each business segment 

(water, sewer, and recycled).  This fund holds the working 

capital and emergency operating reserves.  While the General 

Fund has a short-term focus to finance the District’s annual 

operations, it is supported by the six-year rate model.  This 
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fund is primarily used to finance the operations of the 

District; however, it can be used for any District purpose.   

 

This fund can be used to supplement the District’s rates and 

charges and be a temporary source of revenue to balance the 

Operating Budget.  This fund can also be used to avoid spikes 

in the rates or significant and abrupt increases. It is an 

industry practice to have a fund that can be used to 

stabilize rates.  This would only occur if there was a 

temporary need for reserves that would smooth out a rate 

spike or to ramp up what would otherwise be a dramatic rate 

increase.  

 

The General Fund also plays a role in the debt planning of 

the District.  This fund is viewed by the debt markets as a 

commitment by the District to ensure financial stability of 

the rates and charges of the District.  The District is 

anticipated to need a number of debt issuances over the years 

and this fund will help the District not only to stabilize 

rate fluctuations but also to access low cost financing for 

future projects. 

 

b. Sources 

Meter installation charges, temporary meter fees, uniform 

rates and charges, monthly system fees, energy charges, 

penalties, pass-through fixed charges, general levy property 

tax receipts, water annexation fees, availability charges, 

miscellaneous rents and leases, sewer billing fees, interest 

income or expense allocation, loans, and a portion of the 

temporary water sales.  

 

The sewer general fund receives sewer charges, penalties, 

availability charges, sewer annexation fees, and interest 

income or expense allocation. 

  

c. Funding Levels 

I. Minimum Level – The minimum reserve level for each 

business segment of the General Fund is three 

months of operating budget expenses (evaluated 

separately for each segment).   
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II. Maximum Level – The maximum reserve level for the 

General Fund is nine months of operating budget 

expenses.  In the event that this fund exceeds the 

seven month level, the excess will be evaluated or 

transferred to one or more of the designated funds. 

 

III. Target Level – The target level of reserves is 

three months of operating budget expenses.  In the 

event that the fund drops below the target level, 

rate increases or fund transfers would be 

considered. 

 

3.1 Designated Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) Fund 

 

a. Purpose 

Designated Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) reserves are 

“general use” reserves that have been set apart by Board 

action to finance the medical benefits of qualified retirees 

as outlined in the District’s benefits plan.  This fund is 

available to hold any Board designated OPEB funds. The 

District also has a trust at CalPERS and is restricted for 

the purpose of financing the OPEB liability.  Money held in 

the CalPERS trust restricts the funds from any use other than 

OPEB.  The two funds are considered jointly when looking at 

target reserve levels.  Every two years, actuarial study is 

performed to update the annual financing requirements.  

Changes in the actuarial valuation may result from changes in 

benefit levels, employee population, health insurance costs, 

or general market conditions.  

 

b. Sources 

The OPEB liability may be financed by general use reserves 

coming from user rates and charges, either from an operating 

budget expenditure or from interfund transfers.  Transfers of 

unrestricted reserves may come from the various designated 

funds or from the General Fund.  As a part of the normal 

budget process, annual operating revenues have been 

sufficient to finance the ongoing needs of this designated 

fund.  While debt financing is also an option, the District 

has only used user rates and charges to finance this fund. 
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c. Funding Levels 

I. Minimum Level – The minimum reserve level for this 

fund is equal to the District’s OPEB liability as 

determined by the actuarial study.  When 

considering the reserve level of this fund, both 

the District held OPEB reserves and CalPERS held 

OPEB reserves must be considered jointly. 

 

II. Maximum Level – The maximum reserve level for this 

fund is equal to the District’s OPEB liability as 

determined by the actuarial study.  In the event 

that the two funds, as described above, exceed the 

OPEB liability, the District will reduce the annual 

funding levels as defined by the actuarial study. 

 

III. Target Level – The target reserve level for this 

fund is equal to the District’s OPEB liability as 

determined by the actuarial study.  In the event 

that the two funds, as described above, fall below 

the OPEB liability, the District will increase the 

annual funding levels as defined by the actuarial 

study. 

 

3.2 New Water Supply Fund Category 

 

a. Purpose 

The New Water Supply Fund category is to finance the 

expansion portion of new water supply projects and is 

therefore to be paid by developers.  When considering the 

reserve level of the New Water Supply category; the New Water 

Supply Fund, the New Water Supply Debt Fund, and the 

Designated New Water Supply Fund all work in concert and must 

be considered jointly. 

 

b. Sources 

The New Water Supply Fund receives reserves only from the new 

water supply fee.  Other funds within the new water supply 

category of funds receive debt proceeds and general use 

reserves through a designation to this category. 
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c. Funding Levels 

I. Minimum Level – As the District matures the CIP 

will move to purely replacement projects.  As the 

District moves through its lifecycle the need for 

new water supply reserves will decrease and may be 

reduced to zero. 

 

II. Maximum Level – The maximum reserve level for the 

new water supply category of funds is limited to 

five years of the unfinanced new water supply 

facilities as described in the District’s CIP 

Budget.  To determine the unfinanced amount, the 

total new water supply financing needs must be 

reduced by the projected new water supply revenues, 

general fund designations, and bond financing.  If 

the combined new water supply reserves exceed the 

target level, the District should consider 

transferring designated reserves to meet other 

purposes, reduce the new water supply fee, or 

change the timing of the new water supply projects. 

 

III. Target Level – In order to facilitate debt 

financing of the new water supply, it is important 

that the various new water supply funds retain an 

overall reserve level of six months, prior to any 

attempt to obtain debt financing.  This reserve 

level allows the District the time necessary to 

issue additional debt without depleting new water 

supply reserves.  If the combined new water supply 

reserve levels drop below six months of 

expenditures, this would trigger a transfer of 

general use reserves, a bond sale, or a change in 

the timing of new water supply projects.  Bond 

proceeds would be placed in the Restricted New 

Water Supply Debt Fund while transfers would be 

placed in the Designated New Water Supply Fund. 
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3.3 Expansion Fund Category 

a. Purpose  

The Expansion Fund category is to finance the expansion 

portion of capital projects and therefore is to be paid for 

by developers.  When considering the reserve levels of the 

expansion category, the following funds work in concert and 

must be considered jointly: the Expansion Fund, Expansion 

Debt Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, and the Designated 

Expansion Fund.  Potable and recycled reserves are considered 

jointly while sewer is evaluated separately.  
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Diagram 3.2:  New Water Supply Fund Category 
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b. Sources 

The Expansion Fund is financed by water charges in lieu of 

capacity fees (for temporary meters) and the “incremental” 

portion of the capacity fee.  The other funds in this 

category may also be financed by debt proceeds, the “buy-in” 

portion of the capacity fee, and the general fund through a 

designation of reserves. 

 

c. Funding Levels 

I. Minimum Level – As the District matures the CIP 

will move to purely replacement and betterment 

projects.  As the District moves through this 

lifecycle the need for expansion reserves will 

decrease and may be reduced to zero. 

 

II. Maximum Level – The maximum reserve level for the 

expansion category of funds is limited to five 

years of unfinanced expansion facilities as 

described in the District’s CIP Budget.  To 

determine the unfinanced amount, the total 

financing needs must be reduced by the projected 

expansion revenues, bond financing, and any 

restricted or general fund revenues allocated to 

this fund category.  If the combined expansion 

reserves exceed target levels, the District should 

consider reducing capacity fees, reallocating 

restricted or designated funds to meet other 

purposes, or shifting the timing of expansion 

projects. 

 

III. Target Level – The target level is six months of 

expansion expenditures.  It is important that the 

expansion reserves remain at a minimum of six 

months of expansion expenditures.  This reserve 

level allows the District the time necessary to 

issue additional debt without depleting expansion 

reserves.  If the combined expansion reserves drop 

below six months of expenditures this would trigger 

a transfer of general use reserves, a bond sale, an 

adjustment to the timing of expansion projects, or 

a reallocation of restricted reserves.  Bond 

proceeds would be placed in the Restricted Bond 
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Fund, transfers of general use reserves would be 

placed in the Designated Expansion Fund, and 

transfers of restricted reserves would be placed in 

the Expansion Capital Improvement Fund. 
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(1) For Water Capacity Fees 32.4% goes into the Expansion fund and 67.6% goes into 

the Capital Improvement Fund. For Sewer Capacity Fees 100% goes into the Capital 
Improvement Fund.  
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3.4 Replacement Fund Category 

 

a. Purpose  

The Replacement Fund category is to finance replacement 

projects.  When considering the reserve levels of the 

replacement category of funds, the following funds work 

in concert and must be considered jointly: the Debt 

Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, and the Designated 

Replacement Fund.  The purpose of these reserves is to 

pay for the replacement of capital infrastructure and 

capital purchases.  These reserves are not to be used 

for the replacement of non-capital items.   

 

With the District’s development of its financial systems 

and the greater need and ability to separate and track 

reserves, the replacement reserves have been separated 

into three funds: water, recycled, and sewer.   

 

Projects undertaken solely for the purpose of replacing 

major capital equipment or facilities, i.e., where the 

cost exceeds $10,000 for capital purchases or $20,000 

for infrastructure items, generally these are not 

considered normal maintenance.  When the cost is below 

$10,000, the costs are financed annually as operational 

maintenance.  As charges are incurred on replacement 

projects the reserves are deducted from the respective 

Replacement Funds on a monthly basis.  

 

b. Sources 

The various funds in this category are financed by debt 

proceeds, the “buy-in” portion of the capacity fee, and 

general fund designations. 

 

c. Funding Levels 

I. Minimum Level – The minimum reserve level of this 

category of funds is 3% of the historical value of 

existing assets as identified in the District’s 

current financial statements.  Potable, recycled, 

and sewer replacement are evaluated separately. 

 

II. Maximum Level – The maximum reserve level of this 

category of funds is 6% of existing assets.  If the 
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combined replacement reserves exceed target levels, 

the District should consider transferring the “buy-

in” portion of the capacity fee to meet other 

purposes.  Another consideration would be to shift 

the timing of replacement projects. 

 

III. Target Level – The target reserve level of this 

category of funds is 4% of existing assets.  In the 

event that the reserves fall below the recommended 

target level, the District should consider 

transferring the “buy-in” portion of the capacity 

fee.  The District should also consider shifting 

the timing of replacement projects or issuing debt 

to support the planned level of facility 

replacement.  The District will act based on the 

annual six-year rate model, to insure that at the 

end of that planning horizon the reserves exceed 

the minimum level and is approaching the target 

level. 
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(1) For Water Capacity Fees 67.6% goes into the Capital Improvement Fund. 

For Sewer Capacity Fees 100% goes into the Capital Improvement Fund.  
 

3.5 Betterment Fund Category 

 

a. Purpose 

The Betterment Fund category is to finance the 

betterment portion of capital projects with a portion 

going to maintenance of the potable, recycled, and sewer 

systems.  The District maintains separate Betterment 

Fund categories, one for each improvement district.  An 

improvement district is a legally defined geographic 

area usually established for the purpose of bond 

financing of facilities.  The betterment reserves within 

 

 Funding Source 
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Undesignated Funding  
          Sources 
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Diagram 3.4:  Replacement Fund Category  
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these funds are restricted by law for use within the 

improvement district in which the fees were collected 

(Water Code 71631.6).  However, the legal restriction of 

this reserve depends upon the particular revenue source. 

(See Section 2.2 b. for a review of the availability 

fees). 

 

When considering the reserve levels of the betterment 

category of funds, the following funds work in concert 

and must be considered jointly: the Betterment Fund, 

Debt Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, and Designated 

Betterment Fund. 

 

b. Sources 

The Betterment Fund category receives restricted 

revenues by improvement district from availability fees 

(the first $10 is unrestricted, while amounts over $10 

are restricted) collected through the county tax roll.  

Betterment may also be financed by debt proceeds, the 

“buy-in” portion of the capacity fee, as well as the 

general fund through a designation of reserves. 

 

c. Funding Levels 

I. Minimum Level – As the District matures the CIP 

will move to purely replacement projects.  As the 

District moves through this lifecycle the need for 

betterment reserves will decrease and may be 

reduced to zero.   

 

II. Maximum Level – The maximum reserve level for the 

betterment category of funds is limited to five 

years of unfinanced betterment facilities as 

described in the District’s CIP Budget. To 

determine the unfinanced amount, the total 

financing need must be reduced by the projected 

betterment revenues, bond financing, and general 

fund designations.  If this maximum is exceeded, 

then the District should evaluate reductions in the 

special water rates and availability fees, 

transferring designated reserves to meet other 

purposes, or shifting the timing of betterment 

projects. 
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III. Target Level – The target is six months of 

betterment expenditures.  It is important that the 

betterment reserves remain at a minimum of six 

months of betterment expenditures.  This reserve 

level allows the District the time necessary to 

issue additional debt without depleting betterment 

reserves.  If the combined betterment reserves drop 

below six months of expenditures this would trigger 

a transfer of general use reserves, a bond sale, or 

an adjustment to the timing of betterment projects.  

Bond proceeds would be placed in the Betterment 

Bond Fund while transfers would be placed in the 

Designated Betterment Fund. 
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    Diagram 3.5:  Betterment Fund Category 
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(1) The portion of charges over $10 per parcel is restricted. 

(2) For Water Capacity Fees 67.6% goes into the Capital Improvement Fund. For Sewer 

Capacity Fees 100% goes into the Capital Improvement Fund.  
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Diagram 3.6:  Fund Targets 
 

Fund or Fund 
Category 

Actions to Consider if 
below Target 

Target Maximum 

New Supply Fund 
Category 

New supply fee 
increase, bond 
financing, or transfer to 
designated or CIF Funds 

Total of all funds in fund 
category = six months 
of capital expenditures 

Nexus of cost to fee 

Expansion Fund 
Category 

Capacity fee increase, 
bond financing, or 
transfer to designated 
or CIF Funds  

Total of all funds in fund 
category = six months 
of capital expenditures 

Nexus of cost to fee 

Replacement Fund 
Category 

Bond financing, or 
transfer to designated 
or CIF Funds  

Total of all funds in fund 
category = 4% of 
infrastructure 

Nexus of cost to fee 

Betterment Fund 
Category 

Bond financing, or 
transfer to designated 
or CIF Funds  

Total of all funds in fund 
category = six months 
of capital expenditures 

5 years unfunded needs 

Debt Reserve Fund 
Increase tax collection 
or rates 

One semi-annual 
payment 

Two semi-annual 
payments 

OPEB Fund Fund transfers Full funding Full funding 

General Fund 
Rate increase or fund 
transfers 

Three months of 
operating budget 
expenses 

Nine months of 
operating budget 
expenses 

 
Additional Restricted Funds 

 

4.0  Capital Improvement Fund 

 

a. Purpose 

The “Capital Improvement Fund’s sole purpose is to track the 

“buy-in” portion of the capacity fee and to ensure these fees 

are expended solely for the purpose for which they were  

collected.  In this case it is to pay for facilities that 

were in existence at the time this fee was established.  
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These fees may be used for expansion, replacement, or 

betterment projects or any debt related to these categories.  

The water capacity fees may also be used for either the 

potable or the recycled systems.  As capacity fees are 

collected, the “buy-in” portion of the fee is allocated as 

needed to one of three capital improvement funds, one in each 

of the Expansion, Replacement, and Betterment Fund 

categories.  These reserves are used to pay debt or offset 

any negative balance within these three categories of funds.  

For sewer, these fees fund the Expansion, Replacement, or 

Betterment Fund categories.  These fees may not be used to 

finance the New Water Supply category, as there were no new 

water supply facilities in existence at the time the new 

methodology for capacity fees was established. 

 

b. Sources 

The “buy-in” portion of the capacity fee collected after  

June 30, 2010 or after September 30, 2014 for sewer. 

 

c. Funding Levels 

There are no minimums, maximums, or target levels for these 

reserves on an individual basis.  The allocation of this fee 

to the various capital improvement funds is dependent on the 

overall reserve levels within each fund category. 

 

4.1 Debt Reserve Fund 

 

a.  Purpose 

The Debt Reserve Fund is established to hold the proceeds 

from the various debt issuances.  There are two types of 

debt, General Obligation bonds and Certificates of 

Participation bonds.  The proceeds are transferred to the New 

Water Supply, Expansion, Replacement, or Betterment Debt 

Funds as they are expended for various facilities within 

those fund categories.  As repayment of the debt occurs, the 

balances within these individual funds are reduced so that 

the financial impact of issuing debt is tracked within the 

category for which the debt was issued. 

 

b.  Sources 

Debt proceeds. 

 

c.  Uses   
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There are no minimums, maximums, or target levels for this 

fund on an individual basis.  This fund is available on an as 

needed basis to fund CIP projects for new water supply, 

expansion, replacement, or betterment.  From a funding level 

perspective, these reserves are evaluated in the context of 

all the various funds within each fund category. 

 

Fund Transfers 

 

5.0 Funding Levels 

 

As described in the preceding sections, the District maintains 

reserves for its operating and capital activities.  These reserves 

can be of three types: 1) undesignated or general use reserves, 

2) designated, and 3) restricted for a specific purpose.  The 

restricted reserves can be restricted geographically and/or by 

purpose.  The District maintains various funds to track the 

various designations and restrictions.  The source of the money 

for each fund was discussed along with the purpose, source of 

funds, and levels.  Key characteristics of these funds are the 

target levels, minimums, and maximums.  The funding levels must be 

viewed in the context of the economic environment, political 

environment, and in light of the District’s rate model.  The 

District’s six-year rate model not only shows the current balance 

but also shows the trend of the fund balances.  Often the trend of 

the fund is a greater indicator of financial stability than is the 

current balance. 

 

The rate model is updated each year with the budget process and 

evaluates each fund over the next six years.  The rate model will 

take into account the general economic environment, looking at the 

development rate, supply rate increases, the possibility of 

raising rates, capital infrastructure spending, and strategic plan 

initiatives.  The fund balances may at times be over or under the 

target amount.  This is not only acceptable but expected.  The 

rate model provides an empirical estimate of the conformance 

between the projected District’s financial activities and the 

guidelines of this policy.  
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5.1 Fund Transfers 

 

Reserves within the District’s various designated funds come from 

interfund transfers of unrestricted general use reserves.  It is 

important to note that the District has the ability to use general 

use reserves for any business purpose.  General use reserves may 

be transferred to and from any unrestricted fund for any business 

need.  Designated reserves are general use reserves which have 

been set aside for a specific purpose by Board action.  These 

reserves can only be used for the purpose they were designated, or 

with Board action they may be used for any other business purpose.  

While general use reserves may be used for any restricted purpose 

they may not be transferred to Restricted Funds due to the 

sensitivity of the tracking of restricted reserves.  If reserves 

are needed for a restricted purpose they are transferred to a 

Designated Fund within the fund category with that particular 

purpose.  Reserves restricted to a fund category may only be used 

within that category and may not be transferred to another 

category.  For example, the new water supply fee and the 

“incremental” portion of the capacity fee are restricted reserves 

for a specific purpose, and may not be transferred to another 

category as no other category has the same purpose.  However, the 

“buy-in” portion of the capacity fees are restricted for purposes 

that are shared by more than one category of funds and may 

therefore be transferred to a restricted fund within another fund 

category as long as it shares the same purpose.  

 

In many situations reserve transfers are expected as some fund 

categories will exceed their maximums or drop below their 

minimums.  Only fund categories that are below the stated target 

are eligible to receive transferred reserves.  Fund categories 

that exceed their maximums are first to be considered for 

transfers out, followed by funds that exceed their targets.  Funds 

that exceed their minimums are also available for reserve 

transfers out, but only when other options are not available.   

 

The rationale for prioritizing reserve transfers is based on the 

immediacy of the need and the availability of reserves from other 

funding sources.  For example, the General Fund is first to 

receive reserves when it drops below its target or minimum levels.  

This is because of the immediate and ongoing nature of the 

expenditures that are served by this fund.  The operation of the 
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District is first and foremost of the objectives of the District.  

On the other end of the spectrum, the Replacement Fund has a long-

term perspective and will be used to partially finance replacement 

assets for many years to come.  Debt financing is available to 

respond to this long term, foreseeable, and planned cash flow.  

This fund is less likely to have immediate needs and has other 

financing options. 

 

When making the determination of when transfers are necessary, all 

funds within a fund category work as a group.  The combined 

balance of the restricted and designated funds is looked at when 

determining whether the fund category requires additional funding 

from the Restricted Capital Improvement Fund, Restricted Debt 

Fund, or the General Fund.  Because the Capital Improvement Fund 

may finance expansion, replacement or betterment reserves may be 

transferred between these fund categories, but only back and forth 

within its own type of restricted fund.  

 

As an example, if during the rate model update process it was 

determined that the Expansion Funds (designated and restricted) 

would drop and stay below the minimum during the six-year planning 

horizon, this would trigger a bond sale, a transfer of general use 

reserves, and/or a transfer of restricted reserves.  If in the 

cash planning process, it was anticipated that the General Fund 

would remain above target during the planning horizon and that the 

trend did not present a problematic underfunded status, then 

General Fund reserves would be considered available for transfer 

prior to making proceeds available from a bond sale.  Also, if 

during this period the Betterment Fund category was anticipated to 

exceed its maximum, then reserves from either the Designated 

Betterment Fund, or the Capital Improvement Fund would be 

transferred to the corresponding Expansion Fund prior to a bond 

sale.  All funds are evaluated to determine which has the greatest 

need or availability of reserves before any reserve transfer 

recommendation is presented to the Board. 
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GLOSSARY 
 

The Reserve Policy contains terminology that is unique to public 

finance and budgeting.  The following glossary provides assistance 

in understanding these terms. 

 

Annexation Fees:  When water service is requested for land outside 

the boundaries of the District, the land to be serviced must first 

be annexed.  For sewer service the land must be annexed into an 

improvement district within the District.   

 

Assets:  Resources owned or held by Otay Water District that has 

monetary value.  

 

Availability Fees:  The District levies charges each year in 

developed areas to be used for upgrades, betterment, or 

replacement and in undeveloped areas to provide a source of 

funding for planning, mapping, and preliminary design of 

facilities to meet future development.  Current legislation 

provides that any availability charge in excess of $10.00 per acre 

shall be used only for the purpose of the improvement district for 

which it was assessed.  

 

Bond:  A written promise to pay a sum of money on a specific date 

at a specified interest rate.  The interest payments and the 

repayment of the principal are authorized in a District bond 

resolution.  The most common types of bonds are General Obligation 

(GO) bonds and Certificates of Participation (COPs).  These are 

frequently used for construction of large capital projects such as 

buildings, reservoirs, pipelines and pump stations. 

 

Capital Equipment:  Fixed assets such as vehicles, marine 

equipment, computers, furniture, technical instruments, etc. which 

have a life expectancy of more than two years and a value over 

$10,000. 

 

Capital Improvement Program:  A long-range plan of the District 

for the construction, rehabilitation and modernization of the 

District-owned and operated infrastructure. 
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CWA:  The County Water Authority was organized in 1944 under the 

State County Water Authority Act for the primary purpose of 

importing Colorado River water to augment the local water supplies 

of the Authority's member agencies.  The Authority purchases water 

from the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD) 

which imports water from the Colorado River and the State Water 

Project. 

 

Debt Service:  The District's obligation to pay the principal and 

interest of bonds and other debt instruments according to a 

predetermined payment schedule. 

 

Expenditures/Expenses:  These terms refer to the outflow of funds 

paid or to be paid for an asset, goods, or services obtained 

regardless of when actually paid for.  (Note: An encumbrance is 

not an expenditure).  An encumbrance reserves funds to be expended 

in a future period. 

 

Fund:  An account used to track the collection and use of monies 

for a specifically defined purpose. 

 

Fund Balance:  The current funds on hand resulting from the 

historical collection and use of monies.  The difference between 

assets and liabilities reported in the District’s Operating Fund 

plus residual equities or balances and changes therein, from the 

results of operations. 

 

Interest Income:  Earnings from the investment portfolio.  Per 

District Policy Number 25, interest income will be allocated to 

the various funds each month based upon each fund’s prior month-

ending balance. 

 

Late Charges/Penalties:  Charges and penalties are imposed on 

customer accounts for late payments, returned payments, and other 

infringements of the District’s Code of Ordinances.  

 

1% Property Tax:  In 1978, Proposition 13 limited general levy 

property tax rates for all taxing authorities to a total rate of 

1% of full cash value.  Subsequent legislation, AB 8, established 

that the receipts from the 1% levy were to be distributed to 

taxing agencies according to approximately the same proportions 

received prior to Proposition 13.   
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Operating Budget:  The portion of the budget that pertains to 

daily operations that provide basic governmental services.  The 

operating budget contains appropriations for such expenditures as 

personnel, supplies, utilities, materials, travel and fuel, and 

does not include purchases of major capital plant or equipment 

which is budgeted for separately in the Capital Budget.  The 

Operating Budget also identifies planned non-operating revenues 

and expenses. 

 

Revenue:  Monies that the District receives as income.  It 

includes such items as water sales and sewer fees.  Estimated 

revenues are those expected to be collected during the fiscal 

year. 

 

Russell Square:  A sewer lift station constructed in 1983 that 

serves four properties in the Russell Square Development.   

 

System Fees:  Each water service customer pays a monthly system 

charge for water system replacement, maintenance, and operation 

expenses.  The charge is based on the size of the meter and class 

of service.   

 

Tax Collection for Bond Debt:  California Water Code Section 72091 

authorizes the District, as a municipal water district, to levy ad 

valorem property taxes which are equal to the amount required to 

make annual payments for principal and interest on General 

Obligation bonds approved by the voters prior to July 1, 1978. 

 

Unit:  A Unit of water is 100 cubic feet or 748 gallons of water. 

 

Water Rates:  Rates vary among classes of service and are measured 

in Units.  The water rates for residential customers are based on 

an accelerated block structure.  As more Units are consumed, a 

higher Unit rate is charged.  Effective in 2009, all non-

residential customers are charged for water based on a tiered rate 

structure in which water rates are based on meter size and amount 

of Units consumed.   
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SUBJECT: Approve the District’s Audited Financial Statements for the 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 
  

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Board approve the District’s Audited Financial Statements 
(Attachment B), including the Independent Auditors’ unqualified 
opinion, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. 
 
COMMITTEE ACTION:   
 
See Attachment A. 
 
PURPOSE: 
 
To inform the Board of the significant financial events which 
occurred during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 as reflected in 
the audited financial statements. 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
Teaman, Ramirez & Smith, Inc., performed the audit and found that, in 
all material respects, the financial statements correctly represent 

tita.ramos-krogman
Typewritten Text
AGENDA ITEM 7a



 2

the financial position of the District.  They found no material 
errors in the financial records or statements (Attachment D).  
 
Total Assets: 
 
Total assets decreased by $5.7 million or .99% during Fiscal Year 
2014, to $576.6 million, due primarily to depreciation and the 
expenditure of CIP planning and environmental costs that do not 
qualify as capital costs under the Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles(GAAP).  Another significant factor was the annual payment 
of long-term debt. 
 
Deferred Outflows: 
 
In June 2013, the District issued $7.7 million of 2013 Water Revenue 
Refunding Bonds for an advanced refunding of its 2004 Certificates of 
Participation, which will be called on September 1, 2014.  Excluding 
costs of issuance the District received $8.5 million in proceeds, 
including a $1.0 million premium, to fund the $8.1 million of 
outstanding principal and $.4 million of remaining interest payments.  
In accordance with GASB Nos. 23 and 65, the remaining interest 
payments of $.1 million in FY2014 and $.4 million in FY2013 are 
reflected as a deferred outflow of resources on the Statement of Net 
Position. 
 
Total Liabilities & Net Positions: 
 
Total liabilities decreased by approximately $2.6 million or 1.96% 
from the previous fiscal year, to $131.9 million.  This is 
attributable to a decrease in long-term debt of $3.7 million. 
 
The decrease in total assets of $5.7 million and decrease in deferred 
outflow of resources of $.3 million, along with the decrease in total 
liabilities of $2.6 million, yields a decrease in net 
positions(equity) of $3.4 million or .76%, to $444.8 million. 
 
Capital Contributions: 
 
Capital contributions for the year totaled $3.4 million during Fiscal 
Year 2014, an increase of $.6 million or 22.24% from Fiscal Year 2013 
contributions.  This increase is  mainly due to the increased in 
contributed fixed assets. 
 
Results of Operations: 
 
Operating revenues increased $9.1 million or 11.89%, mainly as a 
result of the overall increase in water rates from the prior fiscal 



 3

year and increases in units sold due to drier weather and higher 
temperatures. 
 
Cost of water sales increased $5.5 million or 10.81% due to the 
increase in CWA water costs.  
 
Non-Operating Revenues & Expenses: 
 
Non-operating revenues increased $0.1 million or .22%, to $7.8 
million for FY2014.  The increase was primarily a result of increased 
investment income.  
 
Additional Audit Correspondence: 
 
As a part of completing the audit engagement, the audit firm also 
provides the following letters summarizing their observations and 
conclusions concerning the District’s overall financial processes: 
 

 Management Letter:  The auditors did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal controls that they considered to be 
material weaknesses.  See Attachment C. 
 

 Audit Committee Letter:  This letter describes overall aspects 
of the audit to include audit principles, performance, 
dealings with management, and significant findings or issues. 
 
There were no transactions entered into by the District during 
the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance 
or consensus.  All significant transactions have been 
recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.   
 
There were no disagreements with management concerning 
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matters, and 
there were no significant difficulties in dealing with 
management in performing the audit.  See Attachment D. 

 
 Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures:  A review of the 

District’s investment portfolio at year end, and a sample of 
specific investment transactions completed throughout the 
fiscal year was performed and there were no exceptions to 
compliance from the District’s Investment Policy.  See 
Attachment E. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

None. 
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STRATEGIC GOAL: 
 
The District ensures its continued financial health through long-term 
financial planning, formalized financial policies, enhanced budget 
controls, fair pricing, debt planning, and improved financial 
reporting.   

 
LEGAL IMPACT: 
 
None. 
 
 

Attachments: 
 

A) Committee Action Form 
B) Audited Annual Financial Statements 
C) Management Letter 
D) Audit Committee Letter 
E) Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures 

 
  
    

 
 



 

 

 
   

ATTACHMENT A 
 

SUBJECT/PROJECT: 
 

 

Approve the District’s Audited Financial Statements for the 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

 
 
COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 
The Finance, Administration and Communications Committee reviewed this 
item at a meeting held on October 21, 2014 and the following comments 
were made: 
 

 Staff is recommending that the Board approve the District’s 
audited financial statements, including the Independent Auditors’ 
unqualified opinion for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. 
 

 Teaman, Ramirez & Smith, Inc. performed the District’s audit and 
found that, in all material respects, the financial statements 
correctly represent the financial position of the District. 
 

 Staff reviewed the District’s financials for the year ending June 
30, 2014 and indicated: 
 

 Total assets decreased $5.7 million due to depreciation 
which was offset by investments in capital infrastructure, 
contributions and improved operating results. 

 Total cash and cash equivalents decreased $7.4 million to 
$30.6 million due to a shift from cash and cash equivalents 
to investments.  On a combined basis cash, cash equivalents 
and investments increased from $82.7 million to $84.4 
million.  This increase was due to actual revenues exceeding 
budgeted revenues for the year. 

 Total liabilities decreased by $2.6 million, which is 
attributable to the reduction in long-term debt. 

 Capital contributions for the year totaled $3.4 million, 
which is an increase of $0.6 million from FY13.  The 
increase is mainly due to the economy slowly picking up. 

 The changes in position, deferred outflows and liabilities 
resulted in a $3.4 million reduction in net positions. 

 Operating revenues increased $9.1 million while water costs 
increased $5.5 million due to increases in water rates and 



 

 

volume, while depreciation and general and administrative 
expenses decreased $400,000. 

 The Districts net position as of June 30, 2014 was $444.8 
million. 

 
 The auditors found no material errors in the financial records or 

statements and there were no transactions entered into by the 
District during the year for which there is lack of authoritative 
guidance or consensus. 
 

 Messrs. Rich Teaman, Sr. Partner, and Joshua Calhoun, Sr. 
Auditor, of Teaman Ramirez & Smith, Inc., were in attendance of 
the meeting and provided a review of the audit process and 
results of the audit. 
 

 Mr. Teaman indicated that his firm will be issuing a clean 
unqualified opinion.  This is the highest level opinion that 
can be received on an audit. 

 In performing the audit, his firm tested transactions, 
assessed risk and internal controls, and compliance with 
internal policies and laws and regulations. 

 He stated along with the financial statements, the audit 
firm issues several reports: 

o Management Letter which reviews internal controls and 
financial compliance which is required under government 
auditing standards.  His firm had no findings or 
exceptions to report.  He noted in the prior year, 
there were findings and those have been resolved. 

o Agreed-Upon Procedures Report indicates their firms 
review of investment transactions in relation to the 
District’s Investment Policy and State Law.  His firm 
found no instances of non-compliance. 

o SAS 114 Report arose from cases such as Enron, where 
the board claimed that they were not aware of the 
auditors issues/concerns and never really interacted 
with the auditors.  This report provides the auditors 
an opportunity to report to the board what transpired 
on the audit; if there were problems, if staff was 
unresponsive, etc.  He stated that the audit went very 
well and they did not have any issues or problems 
during the audit.  He stated that his firm has nothing 
to report. 

 
 Mr. Teaman indicated during the course of the audit, there may be 

items that arise that are not an internal control problem and are 
not a significant deficiency, but are items that they feel should 
be addressed.  These are day-to-day minor items which are not 



 

 

mentioned in their report, but they do review such items with the 
Finance Department and possibly the General Manager if they feel 
it is warranted.  They noted two such items: 
 

 The District has a policy that addresses fraud and risk 
assessment and it is felt that the District should also 
provide some periodic training for staff.  The District has 
provided such training since this issue was brought to the 
District’s attention which addresses this issue. 

 The District should update its Capital Asset Policy related 
to the depreciation of component unit infrastructure which 
may be depreciated at a different rate than the rest of the 
District’s infrastructure.  It is an accepted practice, but 
the District’s policy did not reflect this practice.  It was 
suggested that this practice be reflected in the District’s 
policy and staff is updating the policy. 
 

 Mr. Teaman indicated that he felt that the District is an 
extremely well run organization. 
 

 The committee indicated that they were very pleased with the 
process and welcomed the auditors opinion and comments on areas 
that could pose a liability or where the District can improve.  
This provides the District an opportunity to address these areas. 
 

 The committee further indicated that generally with the 
transition of auditing firms, it is in the first year that you 
might tend to find something as there are new eyes reviewing the 
financials.  The committee was pleased with the outcome of the 
audit.  They were also appreciative of their work and in the fact 
that there was a smooth transition between audit firms which is a 
testament to the quality of work being accomplished at the 
District. 
 

 The committee noted that the District’s OPEB Fund is 70% funded 
and asked the audit firm to comment on how the District compares 
with other agencies.  Mr. Teaman indicated that the District is 
quite a bit ahead in the funding of its OPEB Fund compared to 
other agencies. 

 
Upon completion of the discussion, the committee accepted staffs’ 
report and supported presentation to the full board as an action item. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Otay Water District 
Spring Valley, California 
 
 
Report on Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the Otay Water District (the “District”), 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.   
 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of 
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the State Controller’s 
Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the District’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal 
control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 
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Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position 
of the business-type activities of the Otay Water District as of June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position and 
cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America, as well as the accounting systems prescribed by the California State Controller’s Office and California regulations 
governing Special Districts. 
 

Other Matters 
 
Prior Period Financial Statements 

 
The financial statements of the District as of June 30, 2013, were audited by other auditors whose report dated October 22, 2013, 
expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements.  Additionally, those statements included an emphasis of matter paragraph 
describing the implementation of GASB standards and an other matter paragraph relating to required supplementary information 
and other information. 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis, 
Schedule of Funding Progress for PERS, and DPHP on pages 3-10 and 47 be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated ________ __, 2014, on our 
consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
 
Riverside, California 
________ __, 2014 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

3 
 

  
As management of the Otay Water District (the “District”), we offer readers of the District’s financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the District’s financial performance during the fiscal 
year ending June 30, 2014.  Please read it in conjunction with the District’s financial statements that 
follow Management’s Discussion and Analysis.  All amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed 
in millions of dollars. 

 
Financial Highlights 
 

 The assets of the District exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $444.8 million (net 
position).  Of this amount, $83.0 million (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the District’s ongoing 
obligations to citizens and creditors. 

 

 Total assets decreased by $5.7 million or .99% during Fiscal Year 2014, to $576.6 million, due primarily to 
depreciation offset by investments in capital infrastructure, contributions and improved operating results.   

 
 
 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial 
statements, which are comprised of the following:  1) Statements of Net Position, 2) Statements of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, 3) Statements of Cash Flows, and 4) Notes to the 
Financial Statements.  This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic 
financial statements. 
 
The Statements of Net Position presents information on all of the District’s assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position.  Over 
time, increases or decreases in net positions may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial 
position of the District is improving or weakening. 
 
The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents information showing how 
the District’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net positions are 
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of 
related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will 
only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation 
leave). 
 
The Statements of Cash Flows presents information on cash receipts and payments for the fiscal year. 
 
The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data supplied in each of the specific financial statements listed above. 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

4 
 

 
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain 
required supplementary information concerning the District’s progress in funding its obligation to provide 
pension benefits to its employees. 
 
Financial Analysis: 
As noted, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of an entity’s financial position.  In the 
case of the District, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources by $444.8 million at the close of the most recent fiscal year. 
 
By far the largest portion of the District’s net position, $357.9 million (80%), reflects its investment in 
capital assets, less any remaining outstanding debt used to acquire those assets.  The District uses these 
capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future 
spending.  Although the District’s investment in its capital assets is reported effectively as a resource, it 
should be noted that the resources needed to repay the debt must be provided from other sources, since 
the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

 
Statements of Net Position 

(In Millions of Dollars) 
 

 
  2014   2013   2012     
Assets       
Current and Other Assets $ 109.9 $ 106.3 $ 109.9    
Capital Assets  466.7  476.0  480.8    
Total Assets  576.6  582.3  590.7    
       
Deferred Outflows of Resources       
Deferred Amount on Refunding  0.1  0.4  0.0    
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources  0.1  0.4  0.0    
 
Liabilities 

      

Long-Term Debt Outstanding  105.3  109.0  112.0    
Other Liabilities  26.6  25.5  24.6    
Total Liabilities  131.9  134.5  136.6    
       
Net Position       
Net Investment in Capital Assets  357.9  376.5  381.7    
Restricted for Debt Service  3.9  4.6  4.7    
Unrestricted  83.0  67.1  67.7    
Total Net Position $ 444.8 $ 448.2 $ 454.1    
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While the District’s operations and population continue to grow, albeit at slower rates than in prior years, 
the pattern of reduced growth of the District’s Net Position is indicative of the reduction in new 
development projects within the District.  This reduction is a result of the ongoing national housing slump 
and slow recovery from financial crisis. 
 
In FY-2014 the District has fully used the remainder of the $51.2 million proceeds from the issuance of its 
2010 Water Revenue Bonds program (See Note 4 in the Notes to Financial Statements) for its CIP program 
(See Note 3 in the Notes to Financial Statements)  as seen by the increase in Capital Assets of $3.4 million 
before accumulated depreciation. The District also saw a decrease in Long-Term Debt of $3.7 million due 
to the annual payments of long-term debt. 
 
Certain planning and environmental study costs associated with capital projects such as the Otay Mesa 
Desalination and Disinfection System or San Miguel Habitat Management/Mitigation Area do not qualify 
as capital costs under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and are included in the miscellaneous 
expenses of the District.  For FY-2013 and FY-2014 those expenses were $1.6 million and $2.9 million, 
respectively.   
 
For the entire financial reporting period, Fiscal Years 2014 and 2013, Total Net Position decreased 
approximately $3.4 million for FY-2014, to $444.8 million, as compared to FY-2013 when Net Position 
decreased by $5.9 million.  At the end of FY-2014 the District is able to report positive balances in all 
categories of net position.  This situation also held true for the prior two fiscal years.   
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Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

(In Millions of Dollars) 
 

         
 2014 2013 2012     
        
Water Sales $  81.3 $               72.2  $  63.8    
Wastewater Revenue                    2.8                    2.6                    2.4  
Connection and Other Fees                    1.9                    2.1                    2.2  
Non-operating Revenues  7.8  7.7   8.4    
Total Revenues  93.8  84.6   76.8    
        
Depreciation Expense  16.1  16.5   15.2    
Other Operating Expense  76.5  70.8   65.8    
Non-operating Expense  8.0  6.0   5.7    
Total Expenses  100.6  93.3   86.7    
        
Loss Before Capital        
   Contributions  (6.8)  (8.7)   (9.9)    
        
Capital Contributions  3.4  2.8   6.8    
        
Change in Net Position 
 

 (3.4)  (5.9)   (3.1) 
  

   

Beginning Net Position  448.2  454.1   457.2    
Ending Net Position $ 444.8 $ 448.2  $ 454.1    

 
Water Sales increased by $9.1 million in FY-2014 and $8.4 million in FY-2013, mainly due to rate increases 
in both years and an increase in units sold in FY14 due to the ongoing drought conditions.  The slowdown 
in District growth, as a result of the economic crisis, continues to impact the District as Connection and 
Other Fees revenues declined by $0.2 million in FY-2014 and $0.1 million in FY-2013. 
 
Other Operating Expense increased predominantly due to the increase in Cost of Water Sales, from a 
combination of the increased price-per-acre-foot of water obtained from the Los Angeles Metropolitan 
Water District of 7.7%, and 4.0% from San Diego County Water Authority, brought on by the high cost of 
supply programs as well as higher energy and operating costs.  Increases in units purchased in FY14 also 
contributed to the increases in Operating Expenses. 
 
The slowdown in the economy appears to have leveled off. However, during the nationwide housing 
mortgage crisis, developers had either slowed-down or totally stopped work on many projects until 
economic conditions improve and the demand for growth returns.  The development that has returned has 
done so at a much slower rate. This has resulted in Capital Contributions remaining low over the last 3 
years, compared to the extended growth of the previous 10 years.  While this slowdown now appears to 
have stabilized, the District was also aided in its Capital Contributions through the receipt of additional 
federal grant monies and state reimbursements of $169,000 in FY-2014 and $184,000 in FY-2013. 
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Non-operating Revenues 

 
Non-operating Revenues by Major Source 

(In Millions of Dollars) 
 

 2014 2013 2012  
     
Taxes and Assessments     $  3.5   $  3.5    $  3.5 
Rents and Leases                    1.3                    1.3                    1.2 
Other Non-operating Revenue  3.0  2.9  3.7 
     
Total Non-operating Revenues   $ 7.8   $ 7.7    $ 8.4 
     

 
The District’s non-operating revenues increased by $0.1 million in FY-2014 and decreased by $0.8 million 
in FY-2013.  The decrease in FY-2013 was primarily a result of decreased miscellaneous and investment 
earnings. 
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration 
 
The District’s capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) as of June 30, 2014, totaled $466.7 million. 
Included in this amount is land. The District’s capital assets decreased by 2.0% for FY-2014 and by 1.0% 
in FY-2013. 
 

Capital Assets 
(In Millions of Dollars) 

         
 2014 2013 2012     
        
Land $ 13.7 $ 13.7  $ 13.7    
Construction in Progress  11.7  17.1   17.5    
Water System  465.9  458.8   452.1    
Recycled Water System  110.3  108.9   108.0    
Sewer System  41.2  41.2   37.8    
Field Equipment  8.8  8.9   8.6    
Buildings  18.9  18.8   18.6    
Transportation Equipment  3.3  3.5   3.2    
Communication Equipment  2.9  2.6   2.5    
Office Equipment  17.5  17.3   17.2    
  694.2  690.8   679.2    
Less Accumulated        
Depreciation  (227.5)  (214.8)   (198.4)    
        
Net Capital Assets $ 466.7 $ 476.0  $ 480.8    

 
 

As indicated by figures in the table above, the majority of capital assets added during both fiscal years 
were related to the potable and recycled water systems. In addition, the majority of the cost of 
construction-in-progress is also related to these water systems.  Additional information on the District’s 
capital assets can be found in Note 3 of the Notes to Financial Statements. 

 
At June 30, 2014, the District had $105.3 million in outstanding debt (net of $3.5 million of maturities 
occurring in FY-2015), which consisted of the following: 
 
 

    General Obligation Bonds $    5.3 
    Certificates of Participation   45.0 
    Revenue Bonds     55.0 
    Total Long-Term Debt  $            105.3  
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In June 2013, the District issued $7.7 million of 2013 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds for an advance 
refunding of its 2004 Certificates of Participation, which will be called on September 1, 2014.  Excluding 
costs of issuance the District received $8.5 million in proceeds, including a $1.0 million premium, to fund 
the $8.1 million of outstanding principal and $0.4 million of remaining interest payments.  In accordance 
with GASB Nos. 23 and 65, the remaining interest payments of $0.1 million in FY-2014 and $0.4 million in 
FY-2013 are reflected as a deferred outflow of resources on the Statement of Net Position. 
 
Additional information on the District’s long-term debt can be found in Note 4 of the Notes to Financial 
Statements. 

 
Fiscal Year 2014-2015 Budget 
 
Growth in the San Diego area has declined over the last 4 years, but is now slowly improving.  This 
modest shift is also being reflected in the demand for housing.  Although San Diego received less than 
normal rainfall in Fiscal Year 2014, the District is expecting that San Diego’s rainfall will return to its 
average pattern and volume in the coming years.  Water sales volumes are expected to increase slightly, 
by less than one percent over FY-2014 actual sales as the economy improves and both hotter and drier 
than normal climatic conditions persist.  Higher usage is expected to occur even as efforts to promote 
water conservation ramp-up due to the adoption of emergency drought regulations.  The coming years 
will continue to pose challenges for those in California’s water community.  It is uncertain if the 
challenges facing the Sacramento-San Joaquin Bay Delta, the source of 30% of Southern California’s 
water supply, will be addressed.  In addition, proposals to construct tunnels under the Bay Delta are 
extremely costly, face tremendous environmental obstacles, and will be tested and challenged in the 
court as well as at the ballot box.  The combination of these factors add to the cost of providing a stable 
supply of water as water providers look to new and more costly sources of water. 
 
The District is currently at about 75% of its projected ultimate population, serving approximately 213,000 
people.  Long-term, this percentage should continue to increase as the District's service area continues 
to develop and grow.  Ultimately, the District is projected to serve approximately 285,000 people, with an 
average daily demand of 46 million gallons per day (MGD).  Currently, the District services the needs of 
this growing population by purchasing water from CWA, who in turn purchases its water from MWD and 
the Imperial Irrigation District (IID).  Otay takes delivery of the water through several connections of large 
diameter pipelines owned and operated by CWA.  The District currently receives treated water from CWA 
directly and from Helix Water District via contract with CWA.  In addition, the District has an emergency 
agreement with the City of San Diego to purchase water in the case of a shutdown of the main treated 
water source.  The City of San Diego also has a long-term contract with the District to provide recycled 
water for landscape and irrigation usage.  Through innovative agreements like these, benefits can be 
achieved by both parties by using excess capacity of another agency, and diversifying local supply, 
thereby increasing reliability. 
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Financial 
 
The District is projected to deliver approximately 29,192 acre-feet of potable water to 49,257 potable 
customer accounts during Fiscal Year 2014-2015.  Management feels that these projections are realistic 
after accounting for low growth, supply changes, and a focus on conservation.   A combination of factors, 
including the ongoing drought and recession, have created challenges in developing economic 
projections for the current fiscal year.  Both unemployment and levels of distressed activity in the 
commercial and residential resale market have improved from their economic crisis peaks.  However, 
both economic indicators remain significantly above the levels of the boom years from 2001 to 2005.  The 
ongoing negative impacts to the District of the economic indicators and conservation are partially offset 
by growth as the District’s commercial and residential permits have shown slow and steady 
improvement from the lows of the economic crisis.   While all of these factors impact the region’s water 
usage, people’s need for water remains an underlying constant.  Staff continues working diligently on 
developing new water supplies as they work through the financial impacts of conservation and the 
modest economic turnaround. 
 
Management is unaware of any other conditions that could have a significant impact on the District’s 
current financial position, net position, or operating results. 
 
Contacting the District’s Financial Management 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Otay Water District’s finances for 
the Board of Directors, citizens, creditors, and other interested parties.  Questions concerning any of the 
information provided in the report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the 
District’s Finance Department, 2554 Sweetwater Springs Blvd., Spring Valley, CA 91978-2004. 
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2014 2013

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Notes 1 and 2) 30,493,474$        33,958,281$        
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents (Notes 1 and 2) 116,639               4,087,042            
Investments (Note 2) 27,631,622          16,258,960          
Board Designated Investments (Note 2) 21,605,368          14,860,502          
Restricted Investments (Notes 1 and 2) 4,564,972            13,560,004          
Accounts Receivable, Net 12,879,121          11,856,029          
Accrued Interest Receivable 83,679                 53,950                 
Taxes and Availability Charges Receivable, Net 333,589               431,159               
Restricted Taxes and Availability Charges Receivable, Net 41,091                 41,657                 
Inventories 775,007               800,085               
Prepaid Items and Other Receivables 1,047,708            1,072,706            

Total Current Assets 99,572,270          96,980,375          

Non-current Assets:
Net OPEB Asset (Note 7) 10,385,336          9,345,437            

Capital Assets (Note 3):
Land 13,714,963          13,714,963          
Construction in Progress 11,642,506          17,110,048          
Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation 441,293,934        445,203,648        

Total Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation 466,651,403        476,028,659        

Total Non-current Assets 477,036,739        485,374,096        

Total Assets 576,609,009        582,354,471        

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Amount on Refunding 78,118                 390,591               

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 78,118$               390,591$             

Continued

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statements.
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2014 2013

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Current Maturities of Long-term Debt (Note 4) 3,495,000$          3,470,000$          
Accounts Payable 11,906,026          11,733,543          
Accrued Payroll Liabilities 3,054,520            2,755,421            
Other Accrued Liabilities 3,397,500            3,487,430            
Customer and Developer Deposits 2,418,754            1,756,983            
Accrued Liabilities 1,564,992            1,518,651            
Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets:

Restricted Accrued Interest 70,804                 76,154                 

Total Current Liabilities 25,907,596          24,798,182          

Non-current Liabilities:
Long-term Debt (Note 4):

General Obligation Bonds 5,283,563            5,849,918            
Certificates of Participation 44,980,314          46,465,525          
Revenue Bonds 55,058,490          56,678,987          

Other Non-current Liabilities 649,344               718,543               

Total Non-current Liabilities 105,971,711        109,712,973        

Total Liabilities 131,879,307        134,511,155        

NET POSITION
Net Investment  in Capital Assets 357,912,154        376,549,168        
Restricted for Debt Service 3,855,673            4,612,890            
Unrestricted 83,039,993          67,071,849          

Total Net Position 444,807,820$      448,233,907$      

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION - CONTINUED

JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statements.
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2014 2013

OPERATING REVENUES
Water Sales 81,287,164$        72,187,081$        
Wastewater Revenue 2,791,523 2,625,087
Connection and Other Fees 1,946,886 2,069,220

Total Operating Revenues 86,025,573 76,881,388

OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of Water Sales 56,068,147 50,600,551
Wastewater 1,834,465 1,638,354
Administrative and General 18,608,603 18,550,811
Depreciation 16,055,808 16,545,622

Total Operating Expenses 92,567,023 87,335,338

Operating Income (Loss) (6,541,450) (10,453,950)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment Earnings 522,286 22,155
Taxes and Assessments 3,537,162 3,545,595
Availability Charges 729,961 707,881
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets (426,140) (546,799)
Rents and Leases 1,317,736 1,276,914
Miscellaneous Revenues 2,088,132 2,780,603
Donations (119,687) (120,684)
Interest Expense (4,872,060) (3,977,538)
Miscellaneous Expenses (3,054,447) (1,917,389)

Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) (277,057) 1,770,738

Income (Loss) Before Capital Contributions (6,818,507) (8,683,212)

Capital Contributions 3,392,420 2,775,132

Change in Net Position (3,426,087) (5,908,080)

Total Net Position, Beginning 448,233,907 454,141,987

Total Net Position, Ending 444,807,820$      448,233,907$      

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statements.
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2014 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers 83,717,366$       73,425,100$      
Receipts from Connections and Other Fees 1,946,886 2,069,220
Other Receipts 2,088,132 2,780,603
Payments to Suppliers (57,217,950) (50,206,581)
Payments to Employees (19,974,636) (20,491,758)
Other Payments (3,231,510) (2,038,073)

Net Cash Provided By (Used For) Operating Activities 7,328,288 5,538,511

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from Taxes and Assessments 3,635,298 3,612,045
Receipts from Property Rents and Leases 1,202,050 1,276,914

Net Cash Provided By (Used For) Noncapital and Related
Financing Activities 4,837,348 4,888,959

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Capital Contributions 1,903,528 1,515,238
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets 102,574              -                         
Proceeds from Debt Related Taxes and Assessments 729,961 707,881
Net Proceeds from Issuance of Long-Term Debt -                         8,329,385          
Retirements of Long-Term Debt -                         (8,100,000)         
Principal Payments on Long-Term Debt (3,470,000) (3,320,000)
Interest Payments and Fees (4,518,596) (5,201,467)
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (5,718,373) (10,035,376)

Net Cash Provided By (Used For) Capital and Related 
Financing Activities (10,970,906) (16,104,339)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest Received on Investments 492,557 395,773
Proceeds from Sale and Maturities of Investments 52,121,219 68,832,000
Purchase of Investments (61,243,716) (60,638,762)

Net Cash Provided By (Used For) Investing Activities (8,629,940) 8,589,011

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (7,435,210) 2,912,142

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning 38,045,323 35,133,181

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending 30,610,113$       38,045,323$      

Continued

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
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2014 2013

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Flows
Provided By (Used For) Operating Activities:

Operating Income (Loss) (6,541,450)$       (10,453,950)$     
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to

 Net Cash Provided By (Used For) Operating Activities:
Depreciation 16,055,808         16,545,622        
Miscellaneous Revenues 2,088,132           2,780,603          
Miscellaneous Expenses (3,231,510)         (2,038,073)         
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable (1,023,092)         (1,280,059)         
(Increase) Decrease in Inventory 25,078                (10,316)              
(Increase) Decrease  in Net OPEB Asset (1,039,899)         (1,023,535)         
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Items and Other Receivables 20,997                153,997             
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 172,483              1,255,177          
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Payroll and Related Expenses 299,099              164,149             
Increase (Decrease) in Other Accrued Liabilities (89,930)              (445,012)            
Increase (Decrease) in Customer Deposits 661,771              (107,009)            
Increase (Decrease) in Prepaid Capacity Fees (69,199)              (3,083)                

Net Cash Provided By (Used For) Operating Activities 7,328,288$         5,538,511$        

Schedule of Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 30,493,474$       33,958,281$      
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 116,639              4,087,042          

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 30,610,113$       38,045,323$      

Supplemental Disclosures
Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities Consisted of the Following:

Contributed Capital for Water and Sewer System 1,488,893$         1,259,894$        
Change in Fair Value of Investments and Recognized Gains/Losses 201,891              (353,950)            
Amortization Related to Long-term Debt 177,063              154,246             

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - CONTINUED

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statements.
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 1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

 A) Reporting Entity 
 
 The reporting entity Otay Water District (the “District”) includes the accounts of the District and the Otay Water 

District Financing Authority (the “Financing Authority”). 
 
 The Otay Water District (the “District”) is a public entity established in 1956 pursuant to the Municipal Water District 

Law of 1911 (Section 711 et. Seq. of the California Water Code) for the purpose of providing water and sewer services 
to the properties in the District.  The District is governed by a Board of Directors consisting of five directors elected by 
geographical divisions based on District population for a four-year alternating term. 

 
 The District formed the Financing Authority on March 3, 2010 under the Joint Exercise of Powers Act, constituting 

Articles 1 through 4 (commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5, Division 7, Title 1 of the California Government 
Code.  The Financing Authority was formed to assist the District in the financing of public capital improvements. 

 
 The financial statements present the District and its component units.  The District is the primary government unit.  

Component units are those entities which are financially accountable to the primary government, either because the 
District appoints a voting majority of the component unit’s board, or because the component unit will provide a 
financial benefit or impose a financial burden on the District.  The District has accounted for the Financing Authority as 
a “blended” component unit.  Despite being legally separate, the Financing Authority is so intertwined with the District 
that it is in substance, part of the District’s operations.  Accordingly, the balances and transactions of this component 
unit are reported within the funds of the District.  Separate financial statements are not issued for the Financing 
Authority. 

 

B) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 
 

Measurement focus is a term used to describe “which” transactions are recorded within the various financial 
statements.  Basis of accounting refers to “when” transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement focus 
applied.  The accompanying financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus, and 
the accrual basis of accounting.  Under the economic measurement focus all assets and liabilities (whether current or 
noncurrent) associated with these activities are included on the Statements of Net Position.  The Statements of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net 
position.  Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded 
when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
 
The District reports its activities as an enterprise fund, which is used to account for operations that are financed and 
operated in a manner similar to a private business enterprise, where the intent of the District is that the costs (including 
depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered 
primarily through user charges. 
 
The basic financial statements of the Otay Water District have been prepared in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for governmental accounting financial reporting purposes. 
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 1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 
 

 B) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation - Continued 
 

Net position of the District is classified into three components:  (1) net investment in capital assets, (2) restricted net 
position, and (3) unrestricted net position.  These classifications are defined as follows: 

 
 Net Investment in Capital Assets 
 

This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the 
outstanding balances of notes or borrowing that are attributable to the acquisition of the assets, construction, or 
improvement of those assets.  If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds at year-end, the portion of the debt 
attributable to the unspent proceeds are not included in the calculation of the net investment in capital assets. 
 
Restricted Net Position 
 
This component of net position consists of net position with constrained use through external constraints imposed by 
creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributions, or laws or regulations of other governments or 
constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
 
Unrestricted Net Position 
 
This component of net position consists of net position that do not meet the definition of “net investment in capital 
assets” or “restricted net position”. 
 
The District distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from those revenues and expenses that are nonoperating.  
Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated by water sales and wastewater services while operating 
expenses pertain directly to the furnishing of those services.  Nonoperating revenues and expenses are those revenues 
and expenses generated that are not associated with the normal business of supplying water and wastewater treatment 
services. 
 
The District recognizes revenues from water sales, wastewater revenues, and meter fees as they are earned.  Taxes and 
assessments are recognized as revenues based upon amounts reported to the District by the County of San Diego, net of 
allowance for delinquencies of $41,631 and $52,535 at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. 
 
Additionally, capacity fee contributions received which are related to specific operating expenses are offset against 
those expenses and included in Cost of Water Sales in the Statements of Revenues and Expenses and Changes in Net 
Position. 
 
Sometimes the District will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant 
proceeds) and unrestricted resources.  In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted - net position and 
unrestricted - net position, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be 
applied. 
 
It is the District’s practice to consider restricted - net position to have been depleted before unrestricted - net position is 
applied, however it is at the Board’s discretion. 
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 1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 
 

 C) New Accounting Pronouncements 
  

Implemented 
 
The GASB has issued Statement No. 66, “Technical Corrections – 2012; an amendment of GASB Statements No. 10 
and No. 62.”  The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after 
December 15 2012. Currently, the Statement is not applicable to the District. 

 
Pending Accounting Standards 
 
GASB has issued the following statements which impact the District’s financial reporting requirements in the future: 
 

 GASB 68 - “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27”, 
effective for the fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014. 
 

 GASB 69 - “Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations”, effective for periods 
beginning after December 15, 2013. 
 

 GASB 70 - “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees”, effective for the 
periods beginning after June 15, 2013. 

 

 D) Deferred Outflows / Inflows of Resources 
 

In addition to assets, the statements of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of 
resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net 
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources 
(expense/expenditure) until then.  The District has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category, deferred 
amount on refunding, which resulted from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition 
price.  This amount is shown as deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statements of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of 
resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net 
position that applies to a future period(s) and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  
The District does not have any type of these items as of June 30, 2014 or June 30, 2013. 

 

 E) Statements of Cash Flows 
 

For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, the District considers all highly liquid investments (including 
restricted assets) with a maturity period, at purchase, of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 
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 1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 
 

F) Investments 
 

Investments are stated at their fair value, which represents the quoted or stated market value.  Investments that are 
not traded on a market, such as investments in external pools, are valued based on the stated fair value as 
represented by the external pool.  All investments are stated at their fair value, the District has not elected to report 
certain investments at amortized costs. 

 
G) Inventory and Prepaids 

 
 Inventory consists primarily of materials used in the construction and maintenance of the water and sewer system and is 

valued at weighted average cost.  Both inventory and prepaids use the consumption method whereby they are reported 
as an asset and expensed as they are consumed. 

 

H) Capital Assets 
 

 Capital assets are recorded at cost, where historical records are available, and at an estimated historical cost where no 
historical records exist.  Infrastructure assets in excess of $20,000 and other capital assets in excess of $10,000 are 
capitalized if they have an expected useful life of two years or more.  The District will also capitalize individual 
purchases under the capitalization threshold if they are part of a new capital program.  The cost of purchased and self-
constructed additions to utility plant and major replacements of property are capitalized.  Costs include materials, direct 
labor, transportation, and such indirect items as engineering, supervision, employee fringe benefits, overhead, and 
interest incurred during the construction period.  Repairs, maintenance, and minor replacements of property are charged 
to expense.  Donated assets are capitalized at their approximate fair market value on the date contributed. 

 
The District capitalizes interest on construction projects up to the point in time that the project is substantially 
completed.  Capitalized interest for fiscal years ending June 30, 2014 and 2013 of $176,782 and $995,721, respectively, 
is included in the cost of water system assets and is depreciated on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives 
of such assets. 

 
 Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

 
Water System  15-70 Years 
Field Equipment  2-50 Years 
Buildings  30-50 Years 
Communication Equipment  2-10 Years 
Transportation Equipment  2-4 Years 
Office Equipment  2-10 Years 
Recycled Water System  50-75 Years 
Sewer System  25-50 Years 
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 1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 
 

I) Compensated Absences 
 

It is the District’s policy to record vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave as an expense and liability as benefits 
accrue to employees.  As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, total accrued paid time off was $2,352,861 and $2,120,399, 
respectively. 

 

 J) Classification of Liabilities 
 

Certain current liabilities have been classified as current liabilities payable from restricted assets as they will be 
funded from restricted assets.  

 

 K) Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
 
 The District charges doubtful accounts arising from water sales receivable to bad debt expense when it is probable that 

the accounts will be uncollectible.  Uncollectible accounts are determined by the allowance method based upon prior 
experience and management’s assessment of the collectibility of existing specific accounts.  The allowance for doubtful 
accounts was $152,680 and $150,000 for 2014 and 2013, respectively. 

 

 L) Property Taxes 
 

Tax levies are limited to 1% of full market value (at time of purchase) which results in a tax rate of $1.00 per $100 
assessed valuation, under the provisions of Proposition 13.  Tax rates for voter-approved indebtedness are excluded 
from this limitation. 

 
The County of San Diego (the “County”) bills and collects property taxes on behalf of the District.  The County’s tax 
calendar year is July 1 to June 30.  Property taxes attach as a lien on property on January 1.  Taxes are levied on July 1 
and are payable in two equal installments on November 1 and February 1, and become delinquent after December 10 
and April 10, respectively. 

 

 M) Use of Estimates  
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States 
of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 

 N) Reclassifications 
 

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts to conform to the current year presentation. 
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 2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
 The primary goals of the District’s Investment Policy are to assure compliance with all Federal, State, and Local laws 

governing the investment of funds under the control of the organization, protect the principal of investments entrusted, and 
generate income under the parameters of such policies. 
 
Cash and Investments are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows: 

 
 2014 2013 
Statement of Net Position: 
 
 Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 30,493,474 $ 33,958,281 
 Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 116,639 4,087,042 
 Investments  27,631,622 16,258,960 
 Board Designated Investments 21,605,368 14,860,502 
 Restricted Investments 4,564,972 13,560,004 
 
 Total Cash and Investments $ 84,412,075 $ 82,724,789 

 
 Cash and Investments consist of the following:  
 

 2014 2013 
 
Cash on Hand $ 2,950 $ 2,950 
Deposits with Financial Institutions 2,065,122 1,107,051 
Investments 82,344,003 81,614,788 
 
 Total Cash and Investments $ 84,412,075 $ 82,724,789 

 

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Investment Policy 
 

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the District by the California Government Code 
(or the District’s Investment Policy, where more restrictive).  The table also identifies certain provisions of the 
California Government Code (or the District’s Investment Policy, where more restrictive) that address interest rate risk, 
credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.  This table does not address investments of debt proceeds held by bond 
trustee that are governed by the provisions of debt agreements of the District, rather than the general provisions of the 
California Government Code or the District’s Investment Policy. 
 

Maximum  Maximum
  Authorized Maximum Percentage  Investment
 Investment Type Maturity  Of Portfolio(1)  In One Issuer
  
U.S. Treasury Obligations  5 years None None 
U.S. Government Sponsored Entities  5 years None None 
Certificates of Deposit  5 years 15% None 
Corporate Medium-Term Notes  5 years 15% None 
Commercial Paper 270 days 15% 10% 
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 15% None 
County Pooled Investment Funds N/A None None 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None 

 
   (1) Excluding amounts held by bond trustee that are not subject to California Government Code restrictions. 
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 2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS - Continued 
 

 Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements 
 

Investments of debt proceeds held by the bond trustee are governed by provisions of the debt agreements, rather than the 
general provisions of the California Government Code or the District’s Investment Policy.   

 

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 
 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.  
Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest 
rates.  One of the ways that the District manages its exposure to interest rates risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter 
term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities, so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or 
coming close to maturity evenly over time, as necessary, to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. 

 
 Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District’s investments to market interest rate fluctuations are 

provided by the following tables that show the distribution of the District’s investments by maturity as of June 30, 2014 and 
2013. 

 

 June 30, 2014 
 

    Remaining Maturity (in Months) 
    12 Months   13 to 24   25 to 60   More Than 
 Investment Type     Or Less   Months   Months   60 Months 
          
U.S. Government Sponsored Entities $ 53,716,144  $ 3,005,760  $ 7,001,050  $ 43,709,334  $ -
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)  11,368,272   11,368,272   -   -   -
San Diego County Pool  17,143,000   17,143,000   -   -   -
Money Market Funds  116,587   116,587   -   -   -
          
 Total $ 82,344,003  $ 31,633,619  $ 7,001,050  $ 43,709,334  $ -

 
 

 June 30, 2013 
 

    Remaining Maturity (in Months) 
    12 Months   13 to 24   25 to 60   More Than 
 Investment Type     Or Less   Months   Months   60 Months 
          
U.S. Government Sponsored Entities $ 44,599,731  $ 3,002,850  $ 17,974,890  $ 23,621,991 $ -
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)  17,032,057   17,032,057   -   -  -
San Diego County Pool  19,983,000   19,983,000   -   -  -
          
 Total $ 81,614,788  $ 40,017,907  $ 17,974,890  $ 23,621,991 $ -
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 2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS - Continued 
 

 Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 
 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment.  
This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.  Presented below is 
the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California Government Code or the District’s Investment Policy, or 
debt agreements, and the Moody’s ratings as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 for each investment type. 
 

June 30, 2014 
 
   Legal         Not 
 Investment Type     Rating   AAA   AA    A-1   Rated 
            
U.S. Government Sponsored Entities $ 53,716,144  N/A  $ 53,716,144 $ -  $ -  $ -
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)  11,368,272  N/A   -  -   -   11,368,272
San Diego County Pool  17,143,000  N/A   -  -   -   17,143,000
Money Market Funds  116,587  N/A   -  -   116,587   -
            
 Total $ 82,344,003    $ 53,716,144 $ -  $ 116,587  $ 28,511,272
 
 

 June 30, 2013 
 

   Minimum   Rating as of Year End 
   Legal        Not 
 Investment Type     Rating   AAA   AA    Rated 
          
U.S. Government Sponsored Entities $ 44,599,731  N/A  $ 44,599,731  $ -  $ -
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)  17,032,057  N/A   -   -   17,032,057
San Diego County Pool  19,983,000  N/A   -   -   19,983,000
          
 Total $ 81,614,788    $ 44,599,731  $ -  $ 37,015,057
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 2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS - Continued 
 

 Concentration of Credit Risk 
 

The investment policy of the District contains various limitations on the amounts that can be invested in any one type or 
group of investments and in any issuer, beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code, Sections 53600 through 
53692. Investments in any one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, and external investment pools) that 
represent 5% or more of total District investments as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:  
 

June 30, 2014 
 

 Issuer   Investment Type   Reported Amount  
   
Federal Home Loan Bank U.S. Government Sponsored Entities $ 19,723,794 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp U.S. Government Sponsored Entities $ 17,997,640 
Federal National Mortgage Association U.S. Government Sponsored Entities $ 7,986,280 
Federal Farm Credit Banks U.S. Government Sponsored Entities $ 8,008,430 

 

 June 30, 2013 
 

 Issuer   Investment Type   Reported Amount  
   
Federal Home Loan Bank U.S. Government Sponsored Entities $ 12,961,010 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp U.S. Government Sponsored Entities $ 9,720,091 
Federal National Mortgage Association U.S. Government Sponsored Entities $ 4,976,820 
Federal Farm Credit Banks U.S. Government Sponsored Entities $ 14,955,390 

 

 Custodial Credit Risk 
 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a government 
will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an 
outside party.  The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., 
broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities 
that are in the possession of another party.  The California Government Code and the District’s investment policy do not 
contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other 
than the following provision for deposits:  The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure 
deposits made by state or local government units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository 
regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit).  The market value of the pledged securities in the 
collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies.  California law also allows 
financial institutions to secure deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured 
public deposits. 
 
As of June 30, 2014, $1,553,944 of the District’s deposits with financial institutions in excess of federal depository 
insurance limits were held in collateralized accounts.  As of June 30, 2013, $1,063,279 of the District’s deposits with 
financial institutions in excess of federal depository insurance limits were held in collateralized accounts. 
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 2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS - Continued 
 

 Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 
 

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by California 
Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California.  The fair value of the 
District’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon District’s pro-
rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that 
portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded 
on an amortized cost-basis. 
 

 San Diego County Pooled Fund 
 
 The San Diego County Pooled Investment Fund (SDCPIF) is pooled investment fund program governed by the County of 

San Diego Board of Supervisors, and administered by the County of San Diego Treasurers and Tax Collector.  Investments 
in SDCPIF are highly liquid as deposits and withdrawals can be made at anytime without penalty. 

 
 The County of San Diego’s bank deposits are either federally insured or collateralized in accordance with the California 

Government Code.  Pool detail is included in the County of San Diego Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).  
Copies of the CAFR may be obtained from the County of San Diego Auditor-Controller’s Office - 1600 Pacific Coast 
Highway, San Diego California 92101. 

 

 Collateral for Deposits 
 

All cash is entirely insured or collateralized. 
 
 Under the provisions of the California Government Code, California banks and savings and loan associations are required to 

secure the District’s deposits by pledging government securities as collateral.  The market value of the pledged securities 
must equal at least 110% of the District’s deposits.  California law also allows financial institutions to secure District 
deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the District’s total deposits. 

 
 The District may waive the 110% collateral requirement for deposits which are insured up to $250,000 by the FDIC. 
 

 Board Designated Investments 
 
 Investments are Board restricted for the cost of the following District projects: 
 

 2014  2013 
    
New Water Supply  $ 322,087  $ 863,973 
Expansion  6,078   369,791 
Replacement  21,277,203   13,626,738 
    
 Total $ 21,605,368  $ 14,860,502 
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 2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS - Continued 
 

 Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

 2014  2013 
    
Debt Service:    
 Water Revenue Bond Series 2010 $ 116,639  $ 4,087,042 
    
 Total $ 116,639  $ 4,087,042 

 

 Restricted Investments 
 

 2014  2013 
    
Debt Service:    
 General Obligation Bond ID No. 27-2009 $ 812,239  $ 917,708 
 Water Revenue Bond Series 2010A  1,026,909   1,029,999 
 Water Revenue Bond Series 2010B  2,696,849   11,602,893 
Construction:     
 Betterment  28,975   9,404 
    
 Total $ 4,564,972  $ 13,560,004 
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 3) CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
 The following is a summary of changes in Capital Assets for the year ended June 30, 2014: 
 

  Beginning       Ending 
  Balance    Additions   Deletions    Balance 
Capital Assets, Not Depreciated        
 Land $ 13,714,963  $ -  $ -  $ 13,714,963
 Construction in Progress  17,110,048   8,498,574   (13,966,116)   11,642,506
        
 Total Capital Assets Not Depreciated  30,825,011   8,498,574   (13,966,116)   25,357,469
        
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated        
 Infrastructure  608,634,474   11,562,280   (2,848,379)   617,348,375
 Field Equipment  8,934,034   144,207   (265,548)   8,812,693
 Buildings  18,849,509   79,370   -   18,928,879
 Transportation Equipment  3,497,789   422,566   (611,753)   3,308,602
 Communication Equipment  2,562,480   428,140   (110,479)   2,880,141
 Office Equipment  17,298,342   274,011   (59,160)   17,513,193
        
 Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated  659,776,628   12,910,574   (3,895,319)   668,791,883
        
Less Accumulated Depreciation:        
 Infrastructure  181,997,301   13,313,914   (2,086,011)   193,225,204
 Field Equipment  7,579,663   181,393   (265,548)   7,495,508
 Buildings  7,832,547   504,021   -   8,336,568
 Transportation Equipment  2,615,775   295,826   (611,753)   2,299,848
 Communication Equipment  1,448,152   408,940   (110,479)   1,746,613
 Office Equipment   13,099,542   1,351,714   (57,048)   14,394,208
         
 Total Accumulated Depreciation  214,572,980   16,055,808   (3,130,839)   227,497,949
        
 Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated,  
 Net 

 
 445,203,648 

  
 (3,145,234)

  
 (764,480) 

  
 441,293,934

         
 Total Capital Assets, Net $ 476,028,659  $ 5,353,340  $ (14,730,596)  $ 466,651,403

 
 
 Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $16,055,808. 
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 3) CAPITAL ASSETS - Continued 
 
 The following is a summary of changes in Capital Assets for the year ended June 30, 2013: 
 

  Beginning       Ending 
  Balance    Additions   Deletions    Balance 
Capital Assets, Not Depreciated        
 Land $ 13,703,463  $ 11,500  $ -  $ 13,714,963
 Construction in Progress  17,452,274   11,751,086   (12,093,312)   17,110,048
        
 Total Capital Assets Not Depreciated  31,155,737   11,762,586   (12,093,312)   30,825,011
        
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated        
 Infrastructure  597,894,929   11,620,876   (881,331)   608,634,474
 Field Equipment  8,602,060   331,974   -   8,934,034
 Buildings  18,649,209   200,300   -   18,849,509
 Transportation Equipment  3,221,249   277,860   (1,320)   3,497,789
 Communication Equipment  2,514,151   81,670   (33,341)   2,562,480
 Office Equipment  17,201,420   209,037   (112,115)   17,298,342
        
 Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated  648,083,018   12,721,717   (1,028,107)   659,776,628
        
Less Accumulated Depreciation:        
 Infrastructure  169,258,402   12,993,086   (254,187)   181,997,301
 Field Equipment  7,373,481   206,182   -   7,579,663
 Buildings  7,347,820   484,727   -   7,832,547
 Transportation Equipment  2,306,300   310,796   (1,321)   2,615,775
 Communication Equipment  1,035,846   445,648   (33,342)   1,448,152
 Office Equipment   11,086,817   2,105,183   (92,458)   13,099,542
         
 Total Accumulated Depreciation  198,408,666   16,545,622   (381,308)   214,572,980
        
 Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated,  
 Net 

 
 449,674,352 

  
 (3,823,905)

  
 (646,799) 

  
 445,203,648

         
 Total Capital Assets, Net $ 480,830,089  $ 7,938,681  $ (12,740,111)  $ 476,028,659

 
 
 Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2013 was $16,545,622. 
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 4) LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
 Long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2014 are as follows: 
 
  Beginning       Ending  Due Within 
  Balance   Additions   Deletions   Balance   One Year 
General Obligation Bonds:          
 Improvement District No. 27 - 2009 $ 6,235,000  $ -  $ 535,000  $ 5,700,000  $ 550,000
 Unamortized Bond Premium  149,918   -   16,355   133,563   -
          
  Net General Obligation Bonds  6,384,918   -   551,355   5,833,563   550,000
          
Certificates of Participation:          
 1996 Certificates of Participation  10,400,000   -   500,000   9,900,000   500,000
 2007 Certificates of Participation  37,745,000   -   955,000   36,790,000   995,000
 1996 COPS Unamortized Discount  (10,432)  -   (745)   (9,687)   -
 2007 COPS Unamortized Discount  (214,043)  -   (9,044)   (204,999)   -
          
 Net Certificates of Participation  47,920,525   -   1,445,211   46,475,314   1,495,000
          
Revenue Bonds:          
 2010 Water Revenue Bonds Series A  12,255,000   -   820,000   11,435,000   845,000
 2010 Water Revenue Bonds Series B  36,355,000   -   -   36,355,000   -
 2013 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds  7,735,000   -   660,000   7,075,000   605,000
 2010 Series A Unamortized Premium  837,019   -   74,402   762,617   -
 2013 Bonds Unamortized Premium  976,968   -   96,095   880,873   -
          
 Net Revenue Bonds  58,158,987   -   1,650,497   56,508,490   1,450,000
          
 Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 112,464,430  $ -  $ 3,647,063  $ 108,817,367  $ 3,495,000
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 4) LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued 
 
 Long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2013 are as follows: 
 
  Beginning        
  Balance       Ending  Due Within 
  (As Restated)   Additions   Deletions   Balance   One Year 
General Obligation Bonds:          
 Improvement District No. 27 - 2009 $ 6,755,000  $ -  $ 520,000  $ 6,235,000  $ 535,000
 Unamortized Bond Premium  166,271   -   16,353   149,918   -
          
  Net General Obligation Bonds  6,921,271   -   536,353   6,384,918   535,000
          
Certificates of Participation:          
 1996 Certificates of Participation  10,900,000   -   500,000   10,400,000   500,000
 2004 Certificates of Participation  8,680,000   -   8,680,000   -   -
 2007 Certificates of Participation  38,665,000   -   920,000   37,745,000   955,000
 1996 COPS Unamortized Discount  (11,178)  -   (746)   (10,432)   -
 2007 COPS Unamortized Discount  (223,087)  -   (9,044)   (214,043)   -
 2004 COPS Unamortized Premium  13,005   -   13,005   -   -
          
 Net Certificates of Participation  58,023,740   -   10,103,215   47,920,525   1,455,000
          
Revenue Bonds:          
 2010 Water Revenue Bonds Series A  13,055,000   -   800,000   12,255,000   820,000
 2010 Water Revenue Bonds Series B  36,355,000   -   -   36,355,000   -
 2010 Series A Unamortized Premium  911,421   -   74,402   837,019   -
 2013 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds  -   7,735,000   -   7,735,000   660,000
 2013 Bonds Unamortized Premium  -   984,976   8,008   976,968   -
          
 Net Revenue Bonds  50,321,421   8,719,976   882,410   58,158,987   1,480,000
          
 Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 115,266,432  $ 8,719,976  $ 11,521,978  $ 112,464,430  $ 3,470,000
 
 

 General Obligation Bonds 
 
 In June 1998, the District issued $11,835,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bonds.  The proceeds of this issue, together 

with other lawfully available monies, were to be used to establish an irrevocable escrow to advance refund and defease in 
their entirety the District’s previous outstanding General Obligation Bond issue.  In November 2009, the District issued 
$7,780,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bonds Improvement District No. 27-2009 to refund the 1998 issue.  The 
proceeds from the bond issue were $7,989,884, which included an original issue premium of $209,884.  An amount of 
$7,824,647, which consisted of unpaid principal and accrued interest, was deposited into an escrow fund.  Pursuant to an 
optional redemption clause in the 1998 bonds, the District was able to redeem the 1998 bonds, without premium at any time 
after September 1, 2009.  On December 15, 2009 the 1998 bonds were refunded. 
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 4) LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued 
 

 General Obligation Bonds - Continued 
 

 These bonds are general obligations of Improvement District No. 27 (ID 27) of the District.  The Board of Directors has the 
power and is obligated to levy annual ad valorem taxes without limitation, as to rate or amount for payment of the bonds and 
the interest upon all property which is within ID 27 and subject to taxation.  The General Obligation Bonds are payable from 
District-wide tax revenues.  The Board may utilize other sources for servicing the bond debt and interest. 

 
The Improvement District No. 27-2009 General Obligation Refunding Bonds have interest rates from 3.00% to 4.00% with 
maturities through Fiscal Year 2023. 

 
Future debt service requirements for the bonds are as follows: 
 

For the Year Ended      
  June 30,   Principal   Interest   Total  

      
2015 $ 550,000  $ 204,162  $ 754,162 
2016  570,000   187,362   757,362 
2017  585,000   169,306   754,306 
2018  605,000   147,700   752,700 
2019  635,000   122,900   757,900 

2020-2023  2,755,000   225,100   2,980,100 
      

 $ 5,700,000  $ 1,056,530  $ 6,756,530 
 

 Certificates of Participation (COPS) 
 
 In June 1996, COPS with face value of $15,400,000 were sold by the Otay Service Corporation to finance the cost of 

design, acquisition, and construction of certain capital improvements.  An installment purchase agreement between the 
District, as Buyer, and the Corporation, as Seller, was executed for the scheduled payment of principal and interest 
associated with the COPS.  The installment payments are to be paid from taxes and “net revenues,” as described in the 
installment agreement.  The certificates bear interest at a variable weekly rate not to exceed 12%.  The variable interest rate 
is tied to the 30-day LIBOR index and the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association (SIFMA) index.  An 
irrevocable letter of credit facility is necessary to market the District’s variable rate debt.  This facility is with Union Bank 
and covers the outstanding principal and interest.  The facility expires on June 29, 2017.  The interest rate at June 30, 2014 
was 0.15%.  The installment payments are to be paid annually at $350,000 to $900,000 from September 1, 1996 through 
September 1, 2026. 

 
In July 2004, Refunding Certificates of Participation (COPS) with a face value of $12,270,000 were sold by the Otay 
Service Corporation to advance refund $11,680,000 of outstanding 1993 COPS.  An installment agreement between the 
District, as Buyer, and the Corporation, as Seller, was executed for the scheduled payment of principal and interest 
associated with the COPS. 
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 4) LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued 
 

Certificates of Participation (COPS) - Continued 
 

In March 2007, Revenue Certificates of Participation (COPS) with face value of $42,000,000 were sold by the Otay Service 
Corporation to improve the District’s water storage system and distribution facilities. An installment purchase agreement 
between the District, as a Buyer, and the Corporation, as Seller, was executed for the scheduled payment of principal and 
interest associated with the COPS. The installment payments are to be paid from taxes and “net revenues,” as described in 
the installment agreement.  The certificates are due in annual installments of $785,000 to $2,445,000 from September 1, 
2007 through September 1, 2036; bearing interest at 3.7% to 4.47%. 
 

Defeased Certificate of Participation (COPS) 
 
In June 2013, the July 2004 COPS were refunded with the issuance of the 2013 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds (see 
Revenue Bonds on page 33).  Proceeds of $8,575,519, which consisted of unpaid principal and accrued interest, were used 
to establish an irrevocable escrow to advance refund and defease in their entirety the District’s 2004 COPS.  Pursuant to an 
optional redemption clause in the 2004 COPS, the District will be able to redeem the 2004 bonds, without premium at any 
time after September 1, 2014.  As a result, the 2004 COPS are considered to be defeased and the liability of those bonds has 
been removed from long-term liabilities.  The outstanding balance at June 30, 2014 is $7,500,000. 
 
There is no aggregate reserve requirement for the COPS.  Future debt service requirements for the certificates are as 
follows: 
 

For the Year  1996 COPS   2007 COPS  
Ended June 30,  Principal   Interest*   Principal   Interest  

        
2015 $ 500,000  $ 14,225  $ 995,000  $ 1,517,301 
2016  600,000   13,350   1,035,000   1,479,239 
2017  600,000   12,450   1,075,000   1,439,408 
2018  600,000   11,550   1,115,000   1,397,798 
2019  700,000   10,525   1,155,000   1,354,234 

2020-2024  3,900,000   35,925   6,515,000   6,031,444 
2025-2029  3,000,000   5,550   7,995,000   4,538,196 
2030-2034  -   -   9,875,000   2,644,028 
2035-2036  -   -   7,030,000   470,094 

        
 $ 9,900,000  $ 103,575  $ 36,790,000  $ 20,871,742 

 
  *Variable Rate - Interest reflected at June 30, 2014 at a rate of 0.15%. 
 
 

The two COP debt issues contain various covenants and restrictions, principally that the District fix, prescribe, revise and 
collect rates, fees and charges for the Water System which will at lease sufficient to yield, during each fiscal year, taxes and 
net revenues equal to one hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of the debt service for such fiscal year.  The District was in 
compliance with these rate covenants for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. 
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 4) LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued 
 

 Water Revenue Bonds 
 
 In April 2010, Water Revenue Bonds with a face value of $50,195,000 were sold by the Otay Water District Financing 

Authority to provide funds for the construction of water storage and transmission facilities.  The bond issue consisted of two 
series; Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A (Non-AMT Tax Exempt) with a face value of $13,840,000 plus a $1,078,824 
original issue premium, and Water Revenue Bonds Series 2010B (Taxable Build America Bonds) with a face value of 
$36,255,000.  The Series 2010A bonds are due in annual installments of $785,000 to $1,295,000 from September 1, 2012 
through September 1, 2025; bearing interest at 2% to 5.25%.  The Series 2010B bonds are due in annual installments of 
$1,365,000 to $3,505,000 from September 1, 2026 through September 1, 2040; bearing interest at 6.377% to 6.577%.  
Interest on both Series is payable on September 1, 2010 and semiannually thereafter on March 1st and September 1st of each 
year until maturity or earlier redemption.  The installment payments are to be made from Taxes and Net Revenues of the 
Water System as described in the installment purchase agreement, on parity with the payments required to be made by the 
District for the 1996, and 2007 Certificates of Participation described above and the 2013 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds 
described below. 

 
 The proceeds of the bonds will be used to fund the project described above as well as to fund reserve funds of $1,030,688 

(Series 2010A) and $2,707,418 (Series 2010B).  $542,666 was used to fund various costs of issuance. 
 
 The original issue premium is being amortized over the 14 year life of the Series 2010A bonds.  Amortization for the year 

ending June 30, 2014 was $74,402 and is included in interest expense.  The unamortized premium at June 30, 2014 is 
$762,617. 

 
 The 2010 Water Revenue Bonds contains various covenants and restrictions, principally that the District fix, prescribe, 

revise and collection rates, fees and charges for the Water System which will at lease sufficient to yield, during each fiscal 
year, taxes and net revenues equal to one hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of the debt service for such fiscal year.  The 
District was in compliance with these rate covenants for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. 

 
 In June 2013, the 2013 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds were issued to defease the 2004 Refunding Certificates of 

Participation.  The bonds were issued with a face value of $7,735,000 plus a $984,975 original issue premium.  The bonds 
are due in annual installments of $660,000 to $835,000 from September 1, 2013 through September 1, 2023; bearing 
interest at 1% to 4%.  The installment payments are to be made from Taxes and Net Revenues of the Water System, on 
parity with the payments required to be made by the District for the 1996, and 2007 Certificates of Participation and the 
2010A and 2010B described above. 

 
 The original issue premium is being amortized over the 11 year life of the Series 2013 bonds.  Amortization for the year 

ending June 30, 2014 was $96,095 and is included in interest expense.  The unamortized premium at June 30, 2014 is 
$880,873. 
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 4) LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued 
 

 Water Revenue Bonds - Continued 
 
 The total amount outstanding at June 30, 2014 and aggregate maturities of the revenue bonds for the fiscal years subsequent 

to June 30, 2014, are as follows: 
 

 
For the Year 

 2010 Water Revenue Bond  
 Series A  

  2010 Water Revenue Bond  
 Series B  

  2013 Water Revenue 
 Refunding Bonds 

Ended June 30,  Principal    Interest   Principal   Interest   Principal   Interest 
            

2015 $ 845,000  $ 508,563  $ -  $ 2,371,868  $ 605,000  $ 258,700
2016  870,000   478,488   -   2,371,868   615,000   243,425
2017  900,000   443,088   -   2,371,868   635,000   221,500
2018  940,000   406,288   -   2,371,868   660,000   195,600
2019  975,000   367,988   -   2,371,868   685,000   168,700

2020-2024  5,610,000   1,068,687   -   11,859,342   3,875,000   399,500
2025-2029  1,295,000   33,994   6,000,000   11,123,436   -   -
2030-2034  -   -   9,925,000   8,425,226   -   -
2035-2039  -   -   13,635,000   4,590,582   -   -
2040-2042  -   -   6,795,000   453,978   -   -

            
 $ 11,435,000  $ 3,307,096  $ 36,355,000  $ 48,311,904  $ 7,075,000  $ 1,487,425

 
 

 5) NET POSITION 
 

 Designations of Net Position 
 

In addition to the restricted net position, a portion of unrestricted net position, have been designated by the Board of 
Directors for the following purposes as of June 30, 2014 and 2013: 
 

  2014   2013 
    
Designated Betterment $ 4,543,776  $ 3,629,786 
Expansion Reserve  4,457,117   623,834 
Replacement Reserve  21,473,229   24,182,442 
Designated New Supply Fund  24,125   24,000 
Employee Benefits Reserve  307,279   149,705 
    
 Total $ 30,805,526  $ 28,609,767 
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 6) DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 
 
 Plan Description 
 
 The District’s defined plan, (the “Plan”), provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and 

death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.  The Plan is part of the Public Agency portion of the California Public 
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), an agent multiple-employer plan administered by CalPERS, which acts as a 
common investment and administrative agent for participating public employers within the State of California.  A menu of 
benefit provisions as well as other requirements is established by State statute within the Public Employees’ Retirement 
Law. The Plan selects optional benefit provisions from the benefit menu by contract with CalPERS and adopts those 
benefits through District resolution.  CalPERS issues a separate Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.  Copies of the 
CalPERS’ annual financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento, 
California 95814. 

 
Funding Policy 

 
Active classic members in the Plan are required to contribute 8% of their annual covered salary.  By agreement between the 
Employee Association and the District, the represented employees paid 5.25% of covered salaries beginning August 15, 
2011.  Also by agreement, the unrepresented employees began paying 4.5% of covered salaries as of July 15, 2011.  Prior to 
these agreements all employees paid 1% of covered salaries.  In these same agreements, all employees, after June 30, 2012, 
contributed an additional 3.5% of covered salaries.  Effective January 1, 2013, classic represented employees contribution 
was reduced to an additional 2.75% of covered salaries.  For new members (employees hired on or after January 1, 2013 
and are new entrants to the PERS System), employees pay a 6.25% contribution.  The District is required to contribute the 
actuarially determined remaining amounts necessary to fund the 2.7% at age 55 retirement plan benefits for its classic 
members and 2.0% at age 62 for its new members under the California Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) 
provisions.  The actuarial methods and assumptions used are those adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration.  The 
required employer contribution rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 was 25.435%.  The contribution requirements of 
the Plan members are established by State statute and the employer contribution rate is established and may be amended by 
CalPERS. 

 
 Annual Pension Costs 
 
 For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the District’s annual pension cost and actual contribution was $3,294,341.  The 

required contribution for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 was determined as part of the June 30, 2011 actuarial 
valuation. 

 
 The following is a summary of the actuarial assumptions and methods: 
 

Valuation Date June 30, 2011
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method Level Percent of Payroll
Average Remaining Period 21 Years as of the Valuation Date
Asset Valuation Method 15-Year Smoothed Market
Actuarial Assumptions: 
 Investment Rate of Return 7.50% (Net of Administrative Expenses)
 Projected Salary Increase 3.30% to 14.20% Depending on Age, Service, and Type of Employment
 Inflation 2.75%
 Payroll Growth 3.00%
 Individual Salary Growth A merit scale varying by duration of employment coupled with an assumed

annual inflation component of 2.75% and an annual production growth of 0.25%.
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 6) DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - Continued 
 

 Annual Pension Costs - Continued 
 

Initial unfunded liabilities are amortized over a closed period that depends on the Plan’s date of entry into CalPERS.  
Subsequent Plan amendments are amortized as a level percentage of pay over a closed 20-year period.  Gains and losses that 
occur in the operation of the plan are amortized over a 30 year rolling period, which results in an amortization of 6% of 
unamortized gains and losses each year.  If the plan’s accrued liability exceeds the actuarial value of the plan assets, then the 
amortization payment of the total unfunded liability may not be lower than the payment calculated over a 30-year 
amortization period. 

 
 THREE-YEAR TREND INFORMATION FOR PERS  
    
 Fiscal  Annual Pension  Percentage of  Net Pension 
 Year   Cost (APC)  APC Contributed   Obligation  
    
 6/30/14 $ 3,294,341  100% $ 0 
 6/30/13 $ 3,130,754  100% $ 0 
 6/30/12 $ 2,951,409  100% $ 0 

 

 Fund Status and Funding Progress 
 

As of June 30, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 69.4% funded.  The actuarial accrued liability 
(AAL) for benefits was $95,927,777, and the actuarial value of assets was $66,578,121, resulting in an unfunded actuarial 
accrued liability (UAAL) of $29,349,656.  The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) 
was $11,474,462, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 255.8%. 
 
The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial 
statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing 
over the time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 

 
 

 7) OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
 

Plan Description 
 

The District’s defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan, (DPHP), provides medical benefits to eligible retired District 
employees and beneficiaries.  DPHP is part of the Public Agency portion of the California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust 
Fund (CERBT), an agent multiple-employer plan administered by California Public Employees’ Retirement System 
(CalPERS), which acts as a common investment and administrative agent for participating public employers within the State 
of California.  CalPERS issues a separate Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.  Copies of the CalPERS’ annual 
financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento, California 95814. 
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 7) OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - Continued 
 

Plan Description - Continued 
 
Prior to the plan agreements signed in 2011, the eligibility in the plan was broken into 3 tiers, employees hired before 
January 1, 1981, employees hired between January 1, 1981 but before July 1, 1993 and employees hired on or after July 
1, 1993.  Board members elected before January 1, 1995 are also eligible for the plan.  Eligibility also includes age and 
years of service requirements which vary by tier.  Benefits include 100% medical and dental premiums for life for the 
retiree for Tier I, II or III employees, and up to 100% spouse premium for life and dependent premium up to age 19 
depending on the tier.  The plan also includes survivor benefits to Medicare. 
 
Subsequent to the agreements in 2011 and 2012 all employees are eligible for the plan after 20 years of consecutive 
service and unrepresented employees hired before January 1, 2013 are eligible after 15 years.  Survivor benefits are 
covered beyond Medicare. 
 

Funding Policy 
 
The contribution requirements of plan members and the District are established and may be amended by the Board of 
Directors.  Effective January 1, 2013, represented employees hired prior to January 1, 2013 or hired on or after January 
1, 2013 from another public agency that has reciprocity without having a break in service of more than six months, 
contribute .75% of covered salaries.  In addition, unrepresented and represented employees hired on or after January 1, 
2013, and do not have reciprocity from another public agency, contribute 1.75% and 2.5% of covered salaries, 
respectively.  DPHP members receiving benefits contribute based on their selected plan options of EPO, HMO or PPO 
and whether they are outside the State of California.  Contributions by plan members range from $0 to $154 per month 
for coverage to age 65, and from $0 to $154 per month, respectively, thereafter. 
 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation/Asset 
 
The District’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer 
(ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45.  The ARC 
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis is projected to cover the normal annual cost.  Any 
unfunded actuarial liability (or funding excess) is amortized over a period not to exceed thirty years.  The current ARC 
rate is 12.0% of the annual covered payroll. 
 
The following table shows the components of the District’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually 
contributed to the plan, and changes in the District’s net OPEB obligation/asset: 
 

 2014  2013 
   
Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 1,439,000  $ 1,287,000
Interest on Net OPEB Asset (677,544)   (603,338)
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution (ARC) 625,000   543,000
Annual OPEB Cost (Expense) 1,386,456   1,226,662
Contributions Made 2,426,355   2,250,198
Increase in Net OPEB Asset (1,039,899)   (1,023,535)
Net OPEB Asset - Beginning of Year (9,345,437)   (8,321,902)
Net OPEB Asset - End of Year $ (10,385,336)  $ (9,345,437)
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 7) OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - Continued 
 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation/Asset - Continued 
 
For 2014, in addition to the ARC, the District contributed cash benefit payments outside the trust (healthcare premium 
payments for retirees to Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA) in the amount of $940,355, which is 
included in the $2,426,355 of contributions shown on the previous page.  For 2013 this amount was $877,196, which is 
included in the $2,250,198 of contributions shown on the previous page. 
 
The District’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB 
obligation/asset for the fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012 were as follows: 
 

 THREE-YEAR TREND INFORMATION FOR CERBT  
    
 Fiscal  Annual OPEB  Percentage of  Net OPEB 
 Year   Cost (AOC)   OPEB Cost Contributed  Obligation  
    
 6/30/14 $ 1,386,456  175% $ (10,385,336) 
 6/30/13 $ 1,226,662  183% $ (9,345,437) 
 6/30/12 $ 1,239,315  173% $ (8,321,902) 

 
 

Funded Status and Funding Progress 
 
The funded status of the plan as of June 30, 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation date, was as follows: 
 

Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) $ 22,891,000 
Actuarial Value of Plan Assets  $ 11,831,000 
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) $ 11,060,000 
Funded Ratio (Actuarial Value of Plan Assets/AAL)   51.68% 
Covered Payroll (Active Plan Members) $ 11,969,000 
UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll   92.41% 

 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of occurrence of events far into the future.  Examples include assumptions about future employment, 
mortality, and the healthcare cost trend.  Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual 
required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past 
expectations and new estimates are made about the future.  The schedule of funding progress, presented as required 
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about 
whether the actuarial value of the plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued 
liabilities for benefits. 
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 7) OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - Continued 
 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
 
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the 
employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical 
pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point.  The actuarial methods and 
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and 
the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 
 
The following is a summary of the actuarial assumptions and methods: 

 
Valuation Date June 30, 2013 
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal Cost Method 
Amortization Method Level Percent of Payroll 
Remaining Amortization Period 24-Year Fixed (Closed) Period as of the Valuation Date 
Asset Valuation Method 5-Year Smoothed Market 
Actuarial Assumptions:  
 Investment Rate of Return 7.25% (Net of Administrative Expenses) 
 Projected Salary Increase 3.25% 
 Inflation 3.00% 
 Individual Salary Growth CalPERS 1997-2007 Experience Study 
Healthcare Cost Trend Rate Medical:  10% per annum graded down in approximately 

one-half percent increments to an ultimate rate of 5%. 
Dental:  4% per annum. 

 
 

 8) WATER CONSERVATION AUTHORITY 
 
 In 1999 the District formed the Water Conservation Garden Authority (the “Authority”), a Joint Powers Authority, with 

other local entities to construct, maintain and operate a xeriscape demonstration garden in the furtherance of water 
conservation.  The authority is a non-profit public charity organization and is exempt from income taxes.  During the years 
ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the District contributed $119,687 and $120,684, respectively, for the development, 
construction and operation costs of the xeriscape demonstration garden. 

 
 A summary of the Authority’s June 30, 2013 audited financial statement is as follows (latest report available): 
 

Assets $ 1,555,790 
Liabilities  $3,750 
Net Assets $ 1,552,040 
  
Revenues, Gains and Other Support $ 135,000
Expenses  238,551
Changes in Net Assets $ (103,551)
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 9) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 

 Construction Commitments 
 
 The District had committed to capital projects under construction with an estimated cost to complete of $8,488,804 at June 

30, 2014. 
 

 Litigation 
 
 Certain claims, suits and complaints arising in the ordinary course of operation have been filed or are pending against the 

District.  In the opinion of the staff and counsel, all such matters are adequately covered by insurance, or if not so covered, 
are without merit or are of such kind, or involved such amounts, as would not have significant effect on the financial 
position or results of operations of the District if disposed of unfavorably. 

 

 Refundable Terminal Storage Fees 
 
 The District has entered into an agreement with several developers whereby the developers prepaid the terminal storage fee 

in order to provide the District with the funds necessary to build additional storage capacity.  The agreement further allows 
the developers to relinquish all or a portion of such water storage capacity.  If the District grants to another property owner 
the relinquished storage capacity, the District shall refund to the applicable developer $746 per equivalent dwelling unit 
(EDU).  There were 17,867 EDUs that were subject to this agreement.  At June 30, 2013, 1,751 EDUs had been 
relinquished and refunded, 15,031 EDUs had been connected, and 1,085 EDUs have neither been relinquished nor 
connected.  At June 30, 2014, 1,751 EDUs had been relinquished and refunded, 15,073 EDUs had been connected, and 
1,043 EDUs have neither been relinquished nor connected. 

 

 Developer Agreements 
 

The District has entered into various Developer Agreements with developers towards the expansion of District facilities.  
The developers agree to make certain improvements and after the completion of the projects the District agrees to reimburse 
such improvements with a maximum reimbursement amount for each developer.  Contractually, the District does not incur a 
liability for the work until the work is accepted by the District.  As of June 30, 2014, none of the outstanding developer 
agreements had been accepted, however it is anticipated that the District will be liable for an amount not to exceed $221,320 
at the point of acceptance.  Accordingly, the District has accrued a liability as of year end. 

 
 

10) RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

 General Liability 
 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage and destruction of assets, errors and omissions, 
and natural disasters.  Beginning in July 2003, the District began participation in an insurance pool through the Special 
District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA).  SDRMA is a not-for-profit public agency formed under California 
Government Code Sections 6500 et. Seq.  SDRMA is governed by a board composed of members from participating 
agencies.  The mission of SDRMA is to provide renewable, efficiently priced risk financing and risk management services 
through a financially sound pool.  The District pays an annual premium for commercial insurance covering general liability, 
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10) RISK MANAGEMENT - Continued 
 

 General Liability - Continued 
 
excess liability, property, automobile, public employee dishonesty, and various other claims.  Accordingly, the District 
retains no risk of loss.  Separate financial statements of SDRMA may be obtained at Special District Risk Management 
Authority, 1112 “I” Street, Suite 300, Sacramento, CA 95814. 

 
General and Auto Liability, Public Officials’ Errors and Omissions and Employment Practices Liability:  Total risk 
financing limits of $10 million combined single limit at $10 million per occurrence, subject to the following deductibles: 
 

 $500 per occurrence for third party general liability property damage; 
 

 $1,000 per occurrence for third party auto liability property damage; 
 

 50% co-insurance of cost expended by SDRMA, in excess of $10,000 up to $50,000, per occurrence, as respects 
any employment practices claim or suit arising in whole or any part out of any action involving discipline, 
demotion, reassignment or termination of any employee of the member. 

 
 Employee Dishonesty Coverage:  Total of $400,000 per loss includes Public Employee Dishonesty, Forgery or Alteration 

and Theft, Disappearance and Destruction coverage’s effective July 1, 2013. 
 
 Property Loss:  Replacement cost, for property on file, if replaced, and if not replaced within two years after the loss, paid 

on an actual cash value basis, to a combined total of $1 billion per occurrence, subject to a $2,000 deductible per 
occurrence, effective July 1, 2013. 

 
 Boiler and Machinery:  Replacement cost up to $100 million per occurrence, subject to a $1,000 deductible, effective July 1, 

2013. 
 
 Public Officials Personal Liability:  $500,000 each occurrence, with an annual aggregate of $500,000 per each 

elected/appointed official to which this coverage applies, subject to the terms, conditions and exclusions as provided in the 
Memorandum of Coverage’s, deductible of $500 per claim, effective July 1, 2013. 

 
 Comprehensive and Collision:  On selected vehicles, with deductibles of $250/$500 or $500/$1,000, as elected; ACV limits; 

fully self-funded by SDRMA; Policy No. LCA - SDRMA - 201314, effective July 1, 2013. 
 
 Workers’ Compensation Coverage and Employer’s Liability:  Statutory limits per occurrence for Workers’ Compensation 

and $5.0 million for Employer’s Liability Coverage, subject to the terms, conditions and exclusions as provided in the 
Memorandum of Coverage, effective July 1, 2013. 

 

 Health Insurance 
 
 Beginning in January 2008, the District began providing health insurance through SDRMA covering all of its employees, 

retirees, and other dependents.  SDRMA is a pooled medical program, administered in conjunction with the California State 
Association of Counties (CSAC). 
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10) RISK MANAGEMENT - Continued 
 

 Adequacy of Protection 
 
 During the past three fiscal (claims) years none of the above programs of protection have had settlements or judgments that 

exceeded pooled or insured coverage.  There have been no significant reductions in pooled or insured liability coverage 
from coverage in the prior year. 

 
 

11) INTEREST EXPENSE 
 
 Interest expense for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, is as follows: 
 

  2014   2013  
    
Amount Expensed $ 4,872,060  $ 3,977,538 
Amount Capitalized as a Cost of    
 Construction Projects  176,782   995,721 
    
Total Interest $ 5,048,842  $ 4,973,259 

 
 

12)  SEGMENT INFORMATION 
 
 During the June 30, 2011 fiscal year, the District issued Revenue Bonds to finance certain capital improvements.  While 

water and wastewater services are accounted for jointly in these financial statements, the investors in the Revenue Bonds 
rely solely on the revenues of the water services for repayment. 
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12)  SEGMENT INFORMATION - Continued 
 
Summary financial information for the water services is presented for June 30, 2014: 

 
 

Condensed Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2014 

  
 Water Services 

ASSETS  
 Current Assets $ 99,383,693 
 Capital Assets 448,775,521 
 Other Assets  11,756,796 
  
 Total Assets  559,916,010 
  
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES  
 Deferred Amount on Refunding 78,118 
  
 Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 78,118 
  
LIABILITIES  
 Current Liabilities 25,670,427 
 Long-term Liabilities 105,971,711 
  
 Total Liabilities  131,642,138 
  
NET POSITION  
 Invested in Capital Assets 343,531,272 
 Restricted for Debt Service 3,855,673 
 Unrestricted  80,965,045 
  
 Total Net Position $ 428,351,990 
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12)  SEGMENT INFORMATION - Continued 
 
 

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 

  
 Water Services 
Operating Revenues  
 Water Sales $ 81,287,164 
 Connection and Other Fees  1,943,306 
  
 Total Operating Revenues  83,230,470 
  
Operating Expenses  
 Cost of Water Sales  56,068,147 
 Administrative and General  18,608,603 
 Depreciation  15,014,281 
  
 Total Operating Expenses  89,691,031 
  
 Operating Income (Loss)  (6,460,561) 
  
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)  
 Investment Earnings 459,098 
 Taxes and Assessments 3,536,200 
 Availability Charges 685,444 
 Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets (426,140) 
 Rents and Leases  1,317,736 
 Miscellaneous Revenues  2,034,182 
 Donations  (119,687) 
 Interest Expense  (4,872,060) 
 Miscellaneous Expenses  (3,054,447) 
  
 Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)  (439,674) 
  
 Income (Loss) Before Capital Contributions  (6,900,235) 
  
 Capital Contributions  2,725,666 
  
 Change in Net Position (4,174,569) 
  
Total Net Position, Beginning   432,526,559 
  
Total Net Position, Ending $ 428,351,990 
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12)  SEGMENT INFORMATION - Continued 
 
 

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 

  
 Water Services 
Net Cash Provided/(Used) by:  
 Operating Activities $ 6,536,602 
 Non-capital and Related Financing Activities 4,836,386 
 Capital and Related Financing Activities (10,115,070) 
 Investing Activities  (8,693,128) 

  
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (7,435,210) 
  
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning  38,045,323 
  
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending $ 30,610,113 
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Schedule of Funding Progress for PERS 
 

   Actuarial     
   Accrued     UAAL as a 

Actuarial  Actuarial  Liability  Unfunded    Percentage of
Valuation  Value of (AAL) Entry  AAL  Funded  Covered  Covered 

 Date   Assets   Age  (UAAL)   Ratio   Payroll   Payroll 
  (A)  (B)  (B - A)  (A/B)  (C)  [(B-A)/C] 

6/30/12       

Miscellaneous $ 66,578,121 $  95,927,777 $  29,349,656  69.4%  $ 11,474,462  255.8% 

       

6/30/11       

Miscellaneous $ 62,435,349 $  88,411,019 $  25,975,670  70.6%  $ 12,289,529  211.4% 

       

6/30/10       

Miscellaneous $ 57,613,987 $ 81,306,934 $ 23,692,947  70.9%  $ 12,140,989  195.1% 
 
 
 
 
 

Schedule of Funding Progress for DPHP 
 

   Actuarial     
   Accrued     UAAL as a 

Actuarial  Actuarial  Liability  Unfunded    Percentage of
Valuation  Value of (AAL) Entry  AAL  Funded  Covered  Covered 

 Date   Assets   Age  (UAAL)   Ratio   Payroll   Payroll 
  (A)  (B)  (B - A)  (A/B)  (C)  [(B-A)/C] 

6/30/13       

Miscellaneous $  11,831,000 $ 22,891,000 $ 11,060,000  51.68%  $ 11,969,000  92.41% 

       

6/30/11       

Miscellaneous $ 7,893,000 $ 18,289,000 $ 10,396,000  43.16%  $ 12,429,000  83.64% 

       

6/30/09       

Miscellaneous $ 6,273,000 $ 10,070,000 $ 3,797,000  62.29%  $ 11,878,000  31.97% 
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 

Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Otay Water District 
Spring Valley, California 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities of the 
Otay Water District (the “District”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued 
our report thereon dated ________ __, 2014. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the District’s 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that 
have not been identified. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
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contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control 
or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
Riverside, California 
_________ __, 2014 
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_________ __, 2014 

 
 
Board of Directors 
Otay Water District 
Spring Valley, CA 
 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities of the Otay Water District (the “District”) 
for the year ended June 30, 2014.  Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our 
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, as well as certain information related to the 
planned scope and timing of our audit.  We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated 
April 29, 2014.  Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information 
related to our audit. 
 
Significant Audit Findings 
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.  The significant 
accounting policies used by the District are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting 
policies were adopted and the application of existing policies has not changed during the year. We noted no 
transactions entered into by the District during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or 
consensus.  All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.   
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.  
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and 
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected.  The most 
sensitive estimates affecting the business-type activities’ financial statements were: 
 

Management’s estimate of the fair value of investments is based on information provided by financial 
institutions.  We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the fair value of investments 
in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

 
Management’s estimate of capital assets depreciation is based on historical estimates of each capitalized 
item’s useful life.  We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the capital assets 
depreciation in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

 
Management’s estimate of net other postemployment benefits (OPEB) obligation is based on an actuarial 
valuation. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the net OPEB obligation in 
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
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Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial statement 
users.  The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were: 

 
The disclosure of the fair value of investments in Note 2 to the financial statements represents amounts 
susceptible to market fluctuation. 
 
The disclosure of capital assets in Note 3 to the financial statements is based on historical information 
which could differ from actual useful lives of each capitalized item. 
 
The disclosure of other postemployment benefits and the net OPEB obligation in Note 7 to the financial 
statements represents management’s estimate based on an actuarial valuation.  Actual results could differ 
depending on these key factors and assumptions used for the actuarial valuation 
 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent and clear. 
 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. 
 
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other 
than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.  Management has 
corrected all such misstatements.  In addition, none of the misstatements detected as of a result of audit procedures 
and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements 
taken as a whole. 
 
Disagreements with Management 
  
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, 
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s 
report.  We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation 
letter dated _________ __, 2014. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, 
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations.  If a consultation involves application of an accounting 
principle to the District’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be 
expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to 
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with 
other accountants. 
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Other Audit Findings or Issues 
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, 
with management each year prior to retention as the District’s auditors.  However, these discussions occurred in the 
normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 
 
Other Matters 
 
We applied certain limited procedures to the Schedule of Funding Progress for PERS and the Schedule of Funding 
Progress for DPHP, which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial 
statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We did 
not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 
 
We were not engaged to report on the introductory and statistical sections, which accompany the financial 
statements but are not RSI. We did not audit or perform other procedures on this other information and we do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 
 
Restriction on Use 
 
This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of the District and is not 
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
Very truly yours, 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

 
 
Mr. Joseph Beachem 
Chief Financial Officer 
Otay Water District 
Spring Valley, CA  
 
 
We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by the Otay Water District (the 
“District”), solely to assist the District’s senior management in evaluating the investments of the District as of and 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014.  The District’s management is responsible for evaluating the investments 
of the District.  This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards 
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.  The sufficiency of these procedures is 
solely the responsibility of those parties specified in the report.  Consequently, we make no representation 
regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the purpose for which this report has been 
requested or for any other purpose. 
 
Our procedures and findings are as follows: 
 

1. Obtain a copy of the District’s investment policy and determine that it is in effect for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2014. 

 
Finding: At June 30, 2014, the current investment policy (Policy #27) is dated August 10, 2011 

and was amended on July 3, 2013.  This policy was reviewed and approved for the 
2013-2014 fiscal year under Resolution No. 4213 at the July 3, 2013 regular board 
meeting.  Therefore the investment policy is in effect for the time period under review. 

 
2. Select 4 investments held at year end and determine if they are allowable investments under the 

District’s Investment Policy. 
 

Finding: We selected the following investments: FNMA - Maturity 9/6/2016, FHLB - Maturity 
5/19/2017, FHLMC - Maturity 11/28/2016, and FNMA - Maturity 8/26/2016.  All four 
investments are allowable and within maturity limits as stated in the District’s 
investment policy at June 30, 2014. 

 
3. For the four investments selected in #2 above, determine if they are held by a third party custodian 

designated by the District. 
 

Finding: The four investments examined are held by a third party custodian, Union Bank of 
California, designated by the District in compliance with the District’s investment 
policy. Per discussion with the District’s management and evidenced by Union Bank of 
California’s statement, Union Bank does not act as a broker dealer for the District but 
acts as a custodial agent of the District holding the investments in a trust capacity.   
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4. Confirm the par or original investment amount and market value for the four investments selected 
above with the custodian or issuer of the investments. 

 
Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures. 

 
5. Select two investment earnings transactions that took place during the year and recompute the earnings 

to determine if the proper amount was received. 
 

Finding: Selected the following investment earnings transactions: interest earned on FNMA 
Note on December 24, 2013 and interest earned on FHLB Bond on February 24, 2014. 
No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures. 

 
6. Trace amounts received for transactions selected at #5 above into the District’s bank accounts. 
 

Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures. 
 
7. Select five investment transactions (buy, sell, trade or maturity) occurring during the year under review 

and determine that the transactions are permissible under the District’s investment policy. 
 

Finding: We selected the following investment transactions: FHLB Bond sold on October 21, 
2013, FHLMC Note sold on October 22, 2013, and FNMA Note purchased on 
December 19, 2013, FFCB Bond purchased on January 7, 2014, FHLB Bond purchased 
on February 14, 2014. Those transactions were permissible under the District’s 
investment policy. No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures. 

 
8. Review the supporting documents for the five investments selected at #7 above to determine if the 

transactions were appropriately recorded into the District’s general ledger. 
 

Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures. 
 
We were not engaged to, and did not, conduct an audit, the objective of which would be the expression of an 
opinion on the investments of the District for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.  Accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion.  Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our 
attention that would have been reported to you. 
 
This report is limited solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and senior management of the 
Otay Water District and is not limited to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
 
 
 
Riverside, California 
___________ __, 2014 
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STAFF REPORT 
 

    
TYPE MEETING: Regular Board Meeting MEETING DATE: November 5, 2014 

SUBMITTED BY: Mark Watton, 

General Manager 

W.O./G.F. NO:  DIV. NO.  

APPROVED BY: 
 

 Susan Cruz, District Secretary 

 Mark Watton, General Manager 

SUBJECT: Board of Directors 2014 and 2015 Calendar of Meetings 
  

 

GENERAL MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION: 

At the request of the Board, the attached Board of Director’s meeting 

calendar for 2014 and 2015 is being presented for discussion. 

 

PURPOSE: 

This staff report is being presented to provide the Board the 

opportunity to review the 2014 and 2015 Board of Director’s meeting 

calendar and amend the schedule as needed. 

 

COMMITTEE ACTION: 

N/A 

 

ANALYSIS: 

The Board requested that this item be presented at each meeting so 

they may have an opportunity to review the Board meeting calendar 

schedule and amend it as needed. 

 

STRATEGIC GOAL: 

N/A 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

None. 

 

 

LEGAL IMPACT:  

None. 

 

 

 
 

Attachment: Calendar of Meetings for 2014 and 2015 
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Board of Directors, Workshops 

and Committee Meetings 

2014 

 
 

Regular Board Meetings: 

 
Special Board or Committee Meetings (3rd 

Wednesday of Each Month or as Noted) 

January 7, 2014 

February 5, 2014 

March 11, 2014 

April 8, 2014 

May 7, 2014 

June 4, 2014 

July 2, 2014 

August 6, 2014 

September 3, 2014 

October 1, 2014 

November 5, 2014 

December 3, 2014 

January 21, 2014 

February 19, 2014 

March 17, 2014 

April 16, 2014 

May 21, 2014 

June 18, 2014 

July 16, 2014 

August 20, 2014 

September 17, 2014 

October 15, 2014 

November 19, 2014 

December 17, 2014 

 

 

SPECIAL BOARD MEETINGS: 

 

 

BOARD WORKSHOPS: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Board of Directors, Workshops 

and Committee Meetings 

2015 

 
 

Regular Board Meetings: 

 
Special Board or Committee Meetings (3rd 

Wednesday of Each Month or as Noted) 

January 7, 2015 

February 4, 2015 

March 4, 2015 

April 1, 2015 

May 6, 2015 

June 3, 2015 

July 1, 2015 

August 5, 2015 

September 2, 2015 

October 7, 2015 

November 4, 2015 

December 2, 2015 

January 21, 2015 

February 18, 2015 

March 18, 2015 

April 15, 2015 

May 20, 2015 

June 17, 2015 

July 15, 2015 

August 19, 2015 

September 16, 2015 

October 21, 2015 

November 18, 2015 

December 16, 2015 

 

 

SPECIAL BOARD MEETINGS: 

 

 

BOARD WORKSHOPS: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



    

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
    
TYPE MEETING: Regular Board 

 
MEETING DATE: November 5, 2014 

SUBMITTED BY: 

 

 

Dan Martin 
Engineering Manager 
 

PROJECT:  R2087-
001101 

DIV. NO.  2 

APPROVED BY: 
 

 Rod Posada, Chief, Engineering 

 German Alvarez, Assistant General Manager 

 Mark Watton, General Manager 
  
SUBJECT: Informational Item – Temporary Moratorium on the Installation 

of New Recycled Water Facilities on Otay Mesa Update   
  

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION: 
 
No recommendation.  This is an informational item only. 
 
COMMITTEE ACTION:  
 
Please see Attachment A. 
 
PURPOSE: 
 
To update the Board on the status of activities that have occurred 
subsequent to the placement of the temporary moratorium on the 
installation of new recycled water facilities on Otay Mesa. 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
As the District has pursued expansion of the District’s recycled 
water system to the Otay Mesa area, the District has encountered a 
number of issues and risks when considered in total, that challenge 
both the technical and financial feasibility of delivering recycled 
water to Otay Mesa.  On July 2, 2014, staff presented information to 
the Board on the uncertainty of recycled water availability for Otay 
Mesa, the financial feasibility considerations associated with 
anticipated recycled water rates from the City of San Diego, the 
uncertainty of securing easements to support the Otay Mesa Recycled 
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Water Supply Link Project, and the delivery horizon of Indirect 
Potable Reuse (IPR) and/or Direct Potable Reuse (DPR).  As a result 
of the information presented to the Board, the Board voted to place 
a temporary moratorium on the installation of new recycled water 
facilities on Otay Mesa (see Exhibit A for Project location). 
 
As of October 10, 2014, subsequent to the placement of the July 2, 
2014 temporary moratorium on the installation of new recycled water 
facilities on Otay Mesa, staff has focused efforts in the following 
areas: 
 

 Continued efforts with the City of San Diego (City) to discuss 
issues and amendments to the agreements between the District 
and the City. 

 
 Notification to Developers regarding the temporary moratorium 

on the installation of new recycled water facilities on Otay 
Mesa and Developer project assessment and implementation. 

 
 A review and assessment of existing District maintained 

recycled water facilities on Otay Mesa.  
 
Continued efforts with the City to discuss issues and amendments to 
the agreements between the District and the City 
 
On August 12, 2014, the District sent correspondence to the City 
regarding issues related to the October 23, 2003 Agreement Between 
the Otay Water District and the City of San Diego for Purchase of 
Reclaimed Water from the South Bay Water Reclamation Plant 
("Agreement"), as well as issues related to Otay's purchase of 
potable water from the City's Otay Water Treatment Plant.  Within 
the letter staff presented proposals regarding: the “Take-Or-Pay” 
requirement included in the recycled water Agreement, the City’s 
recycled water rates, miscellaneous terms missing from the recycled 
water Agreement, and a proposal regarding the unauthorized use of 
Otay facilities. 
 
Additionally, the August 12, 2014 correspondence includes a proposal 
to simplify terms included in the Agreement for the Purchase of 
Treated Water from the Otay Water Treatment Plant Between the City 
of San Diego and the Otay Water District, dated January 11, 1999 so 
that the cost of the potable water is understood in advance of 
ordering the water. 
 
District staff understands that the City staff is currently 
reviewing the letter and considering the District’s proposals. 
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Notification to Developers regarding the temporary moratorium on the 
installation of new recycled water facilities on Otay Mesa and 
Developer project assessment and implementation. 
 
In the immediate weeks following the July 2, 2014 Board approval of 
the temporary moratorium, staff reached out to the Developer 
community to provide notification to Developers regarding the 
temporary moratorium.  This included direct phone calls to 
Developers and the posting of a notice regarding the temporary 
moratorium on the District’s Public Services web page (Exhibit B).  
The notice informs Developers that during the course of the 
temporary moratorium, the District will not be advancing recycled 
water projects, requiring the installation of new recycled water 
infrastructure, nor issuing permits for new recycled water meters on 
Otay Mesa. Developers have been informed that water to new 
developments on Otay Mesa will be supplied from the District’s 
potable water system to meet current and future Developer project 
demand. 
 
District staff also completed a review of the Developer projects on 
Otay Mesa that are affected by the temporary moratorium.  In total, 
thirty (30) projects were identified.  These projects which include 
both private recycled water systems and public recycled water mains 
were found to be in various stages of project development ranging 
from planning to construction.  Project specific correspondence on 
the thirty projects was sent out by staff in August.  In light of 
the temporary moratorium, staff is working with Developers on 
solutions for each affected project on Otay Mesa to bring the 
recycled water projects to completion. 
 
Each project has been notified that the District will not be issuing 
recycled water meters on Otay Mesa while the temporary moratorium is 
in effect.  Furthermore, each project has been notified that water 
for projects on Otay Mesa will be provided through potable meters 
(domestic and irrigation) while the temporary moratorium is in 
effect and that the associated capacity fees for the potable meters 
will be collected.   
 
Staff reached out to representatives of the Pio Pico Power Plant 
(Pio Pico) project which anticipates needing a 6-inch recycled water 
meter and to Corrections Corporation of America (CCA) whose San 
Diego Correctional Facility project anticipates needing a 4-inch 
recycled water meter to inform them about the temporary moratorium 
and to discuss any potential impacts to their respective projects.  
During discussions with APEX Power Group (APEX), applicants for the 
Pio Pico project, APEX indicated that a moratorium on the 
installation of new recycled water facilities and non-availability 
of recycled water does not appear to impact the Pio Pico project.   
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The San Diego Correctional Facility project is currently under 
construction by CCA.  Staff is working with CCA on modifications to 
the planned construction to mitigate impacts to the project as a 
result of the temporary moratorium.  At this time, CCA has not 
stated if the temporary moratorium or a permanent moratorium will 
impact the overall construction and operations of the project 
facilities. 
 
On October 9, 2014, staff attended a joint meeting of the East Otay 
Mesa Property Owners Association and the Otay Mesa Property Owners 
Association.  Staff presented information on the Otay Water 
District’s temporary moratorium on the installation of new recycled 
water facilities on Otay Mesa.  As a result of the presentation, 
Association representatives inquired how the District would respond 
to a new “Super User” water customer if the opportunity presented 
itself.  
 
A “Super User” that comes to the District or any Water Authority 
member agency could use the Accelerated Forecasted Growth component 
of the Water Authority’s 2010 Urban Water Management Plan of 2,224 
Acre-Feet per year (AFY) for 2015 and increases to 10,948 AFY by 
2035.  The demand associated with accelerated forecasted is intended 
to account for SANDAG’s land-use development currently projected to 
occur between 2035 and 2050, but has the likely potential to occur 
on an accelerated schedule.  This land-use is not included in local 
jurisdictions’ general plans, so their projected demands are 
incorporated at a regional level.  When necessary, this additional 
demand increment, termed, “Accelerated Forecasted Growth,” could be 
used by member agencies to meet the demands of development projects 
not identified in the general land use plans. 
 
The Association representatives also noted that Developers are 
pulling recycled water facilities out of their plans due to the 
temporary moratorium.  The representatives expressed concerns that 
the District may require the recycled water facilities to be 
installed at a later date if a permanent moratorium is not approved.  
Staff responded that the District does not intend to go back and 
require the installation of recycled water facilities removed from 
projects as a result of the temporary moratorium.  
 
Lastly, Association representatives inquired about the possibility 
of a more in-depth review of the District’s financial analysis that 
supports the temporary moratorium.  Staff will work to set up a 
follow-up meeting to present this specific information to 
Association representatives. 
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Review and assessment of existing District maintained recycled water 
facilities on Otay Mesa. 
 
A review of the existing recycled water infrastructure on Otay Mesa 
indicates that the recycled water mains have been tested to potable 
standards.  The District maintains interconnection facilities which 
includes backflow prevention devices at twenty-four (24) locations 
on Otay Mesa.  These devices connect the recycled water mains to the 
existing potable mains and were put into place in order to provide a 
water supply until recycled water is available on Otay Mesa.  A 
significant majority of the recycled water infrastructure on Otay 
Mesa has been placed into service and is currently serving water to 
the active recycled water meters.  In total, less than 1.4 percent 
of the 16.4 miles of recycled water mains are not charged with 
water.  Should a permanent moratorium on the installation of new 
recycled water facilities be placed on Otay Mesa, the existing 
recycled water infrastructure can remain functioning as it does 
today providing water to the District’s customers.  Additionally, 
this infrastructure could serve to provide redundancy to the potable 
system on Otay Mesa which would enhance reliability. 
 
Next Steps 
 
During the coming months, staff plans to meet with City staff to 
discuss the District’s proposals included in the District’s          
August 12, 2014 correspondence. 
 
Staff will also initiate discussions with the San Diego County Water 
Authority (SDCWA) regarding SDCWA capacity fees that may be assessed 
on recycled water meters set on Otay Mesa should the Board decide 
that a future permanent moratorium of recycled water facilities on 
Otay Mesa is required.  Additionally, staff will initiate 
discussions with the United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) 
regarding the $950,000 in grant funds that were received for 
recycled water projects on Otay Mesa.  
 
Staff will continue work on impacted projects on Otay Mesa to bring 
the recycled water projects to completion.  To conclude, staff 
hasn’t seen any reason that would require a change in the direction 
of the moratorium and will continue addressing the questions and 
concerns to the Otay Mesa Developers.  Staff anticipates providing 
an update to the Board in spring of 2015. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:    Joe Beachem, Chief Financial Officer  
 
The issues, risks, and financial analysis, as presented in the      
July 2, 2014 staff report, recommending the temporary moratorium on 
the installation of new recycled water facilities on Otay Mesa 
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indicate that the temporary moratorium will assist in mitigating 
financial impacts to the District should the Board decide that a 
future permanent moratorium of recycled water facilities on Otay 
Mesa is required.   
 
There are financial risks associated with a future permanent 
moratorium.  Those risks include reimbursement of $950,000 in grant 
funds that were received from the United States Bureau of 
Reclamation (USBR) and SDCWA capacity fees. 
  
STRATEGIC GOAL: 
 
This Project supports the District’s Mission statement, “To provide 
high value water and wastewater services to the customers of the 
Otay Water District in a professional, effective, and efficient 
manner” and the District’s Vision, “A District that is innovative in 
providing water services at affordable rates, with a reputation for 
outstanding customer service.”   
 
LEGAL IMPACT:  
 
None. 
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ATTACHMENT A 
 

SUBJECT/PROJECT: 
 

N/A 

Informational Item – Temporary Moratorium on the 
Installation of New Recycled Water Facilities on Otay Mesa 
Update  

  

 
COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 
The Finance, Administration and Communications Committee reviewed this 
item at a meeting held on October 21, 2014 and the following comments 
were made: 
 

 This item provides an update on the status of activities that have 
occurred subsequent to the placement of the temporary moratorium on 
the installation of new recycled water facilities in the Otay Mesa. 
 

 At the July 2, 2014 Board Meeting, staff presented information to 
the Board on the uncertainty of recycled water availability for 
Otay Mesa, the financial feasibility considerations associated with 
anticipated recycled water rates from the City of San Diego, the 
uncertainty of securing easements to support the Otay Mesa Recycled 
Water Supply Link Project, and the delivery horizon of Indirect 
Potable Reuse (IPR) and/or Direct Potable Reuse (DPR).  As a result 
of the information presented to the Board, the Board voted to place 
a temporary moratorium on the installation of new recycled water 
facilities in the Otay Mesa. 
 

 Over the last three months staff has focused efforts related to the 
temporary moratorium in three primary areas: 
 

 The first area includes continued efforts with the City of San 
Diego to discuss issues and amendments to the agreements 
between the District and the City. 

 
o On August 12, 2014, the District sent correspondence to 

the City regarding issues related to the agreement for 
the Purchase of Reclaimed Water from the South Bay Water 
Reclamation Plant as well as issues related to Otay's 
purchase of potable water from the City's Otay Water 
Treatment Plant.  Within the letter staff presented 
proposals regarding: 
 A “Take-Or-Pay” requirement to be included in the 

recycled water Agreement 



 

 

 The City’s recycled water rates 
 Miscellaneous terms missing from the recycled water 

agreement 
 A proposal regarding the unauthorized use of Otay 

facilities (450-1 Reservoir) 
 

The correspondence also included a proposal to simplify 
terms included in the agreement for the purchase of 
treated water from the Otay Water Treatment Plant between 
the City of San Diego and the Otay Water District, dated 
January 11, 1999, so that the cost of the potable water 
is understood in advance of ordering the water.  Staff 
understands that the District’s proposals are currently 
under review and consideration by City staff. 

 
 The second area includes notification to Developers regarding 

the temporary moratorium on the installation of new recycled 
water facilities on Otay Mesa and Developer project assessment 
and implementation. 
 

o In the immediate weeks following the Board’s approval of 
the temporary moratorium, staff reached out to the 
Developer community to inform Developers that during the 
course of the temporary moratorium, the District will not 
be: 
 advancing recycled water projects 
 requiring the installation of new recycled water 

infrastructure 
 or issuing permits for new recycled water meters on 

Otay Mesa. 
 

Developers were informed that water to new developments 
in the Otay Mesa will be supplied from the District’s 
potable water system to meet current and future Developer 
project demand. 
 

o Staff completed a review of the 30 developer projects in 
the Otay Mesa that are affected by the temporary 
moratorium.  These projects, which include both private 
recycled water systems and public recycled water mains, 
were found to be in various stages of project development 
ranging from planning to construction.  Project specific 
correspondence to halt the development of recycled water 
facilities on the 30 Otay Mesa projects was sent out by 
staff in August. 
 

o Staff specifically communicated with Developers 
anticipating large recycled meters including APEX Power 
Group (APEX), applicants for the Pio Pico Power Plant 
project which anticipates needing a 6-inch recycled water 



 

 

meter.  During discussions with APEX, they indicated that 
a moratorium on the installation of new recycled water 
facilities and non-availability of recycled water does 
not appear to impact the Pio Pico project.  Staff noted 
that with potable water, the plant would be able to get 
more cooling cycles than they would with recycled water.  
Thus, the cost would even out. 

 
o Staff also reached out to the Corrections Corporation of 

America (CCA) whose San Diego Correctional Facility 
project anticipates needing a 4-inch recycled water 
meter.  The San Diego Correctional Facility project is 
currently under construction by CCA.  Staff worked with 
CCA on modifications to the planned construction to 
mitigate impacts to the project as a result of the 
temporary moratorium.  At this time, CCA has not stated 
if the temporary moratorium or a permanent moratorium 
will impact the overall construction and operations of 
the project facilities. 

 
o On October 9, 2014, staff attended a joint meeting of the 

East Otay Mesa Property Owners Association and the Otay 
Mesa Property Owners Association.  Staff presented 
information on the Otay Water District’s temporary 
moratorium on the installation of new recycled water 
facilities in the Otay Mesa.  As a result of the 
presentation, Association representatives asked questions 
in the following areas: 

 
 They inquired how the District would respond to a 

new “Super User” water customer if the opportunity 
presented itself.  As outlined in the staff report, 
staff has determined that a “Super User” that comes 
to the District or any Water Authority member agency 
could use the Accelerated Forecasted Growth 
component of the Water Authority’s 2010 Urban Water 
Management Plan which is available for use by member 
agencies to meet the demands of development projects 
not identified in the general land use plans.  Staff 
noted that a response to this inquiry was not 
provided to the Association representatives at the 
October 9, 2014 meeting.  This information will be 
presented to the Association at a future meeting. 

 Association representatives also noted that 
Developers are pulling recycled water facilities out 
of their plans due to the temporary moratorium.  
Representatives expressed concerns that the District 
may require the recycled water facilities to be 
installed at a later date if a permanent moratorium 
is not approved.  Staff responded that the District 



 

 

does not intend to go back and require the 
installation of recycled water facilities removed 
from projects as a result of the temporary 
moratorium. 

 Lastly, Association representatives inquired about 
the possibility of a more in-depth review of the 
District’s financial analysis that supports the 
temporary moratorium.  Staff will work to set up a 
follow-up meeting to present this specific 
information to Association representatives. 

 A copy of a letter from the East Otay Mesa Property 
Owners Association was shared with the committee as 
a result of the meeting.  There is still concern by 
the Property Owners Association that the District 
will not be supplying recycled water to the Otay 
Mesa area.  To keep the Associations informed, the 
District will include them in future discussions. 
 

 The third primary area of effort included a review and 
assessment of existing District maintained recycled water 
facilities in the Otay Mesa. 
 

o A review of the existing recycled water infrastructure in 
the Otay Mesa indicates that the recycled water mains 
have been tested to potable standards. 

o The District maintains interconnection facilities which 
includes backflow prevention devices at twenty-four (24) 
locations in the Otay Mesa.  These devices connect the 
recycled water mains to the existing potable mains and 
were put into place in order to provide a water supply 
until recycled water is available in the Otay Mesa. 

o A significant majority of the recycled water 
infrastructure in the Otay Mesa has been placed into 
service and is currently serving water to the active 
recycled water meters.  In total, less than 1.4 percent 
of the 16.4 miles of recycled water mains are not charged 
with water.   

o Should a permanent moratorium on the installation of new 
recycled water facilities be placed in the Otay Mesa, the 
existing recycled water infrastructure can remain 
functioning as it does today. 

o Additionally, this infrastructure could serve to provide 
redundancy to the potable system in the Otay Mesa which 
would enhance reliability. 
 

 In response to an inquiry from the committee, staff indicated that 
they believe that through the Pure Water Program that the City of 
San Diego is proposing, there will be enough flow to the South Bay 
Water Reclamation Plant to provide adequate supplies to satisfy 
both potable reuse and Otay WD’s recycled water supply needs in the 



 

 

future.  It was indicated that this is a continuing discussion with 
the City and they (the City) are in the process of developing this 
study. 
 

 Staff indicated that the City of San Diego has purple pipe mains in 
the North City and they have been receiving pressure to further 
develop that recycled system.  The City, however, is resisting 
expanding the system due to the cost and the growing acceptance of 
alternative resources such as Indirect Potable and Direct Potable. 

 
 Staff indicated that the next steps in the coming months include: 

 
 Meeting with City staff to discuss the District’s proposals 

included in the District’s August 12, 2014 correspondence. 
 Initiating discussions with the San Diego County Water 

Authority (SDCWA) regarding SDCWA capacity fees that may be 
assessed on recycled water meters set on Otay Mesa should the 
Board decide that a future permanent moratorium of recycled 
water facilities on Otay Mesa is required. 

 Initiating discussions with the United States Bureau of 
Reclamation (USBR) regarding the $950,000 in grant funds that 
were received for recycled water projects on Otay Mesa.  

 Continued work with Developers on impacted projects on Otay 
Mesa to bring the recycled water projects to completion.   
 

 Staff indicated that there is no indication, at this time, that a 
change in the direction of the moratorium is required.  Staff 
anticipates providing an update to the Board in the spring of 2015. 
 

 The committee suggested that a representative from the District 
should attend the East Otay Mesa Property Owners Association and 
the Otay Mesa Property Owners Association meetings.  The committee 
also discussed possibly appointing Director Thompson to attend 
their meetings as the Otay Mesa is located within his division. 
 

 It was discussed that the committee had requested that staff 
provide an update on this issue in six (6) month.  This report will 
serve as a part of the six (6) month update.  There are questions 
that still need to be answered and staff will likely provide 
periodic updates on this issue. 
 

 With the six (6) month update the committee had also requested an 
assessment of the economic impact on development within the area 
due to the lack of recycled water.  That report is currently being 
developed.  Staff noted, however, that there is water that can be 
delivered from CWA’s reserves if it is needed and indicated that it 
is not anticipated that water supply will be an issue impacting 
development within the Otay Mesa. 
 



 

 

Upon completion of the discussion, the committee received staffs’ report 
and presentation to the full board as an informational item. 
 



 

 
  



TEMPORARY MORATORIUM ON THE INSTALLATION OF NEW 

RECYCLED WATER FACILITES IN OTAY MESA 

 

At the July 2, 2014 Otay Water District’s Board of Director’s meeting, the District approved a 

temporary moratorium on the installation of new recycled water facilities in its Otay Mesa service area 

(see shaded area in the map below). The full staff report is available on the District’s website 

http://www.otaywater.gov/Otay/agenda.aspx. 

As a result of this action, during the course of the temporary moratorium, the District will not be 

advancing recycled water projects, requiring the installation of new recycled water infrastructure, nor 

issuing permits for new recycled water meters. Water to new development will be supplied from the 

District’s potable water system to meet current and future developer project demand. The District will 

be contacting active developers currently in the design, plan review or construction phases of their 

projects to review and discuss the specifics of their individual projects with respect to the moratorium. 

Please note the moratorium is limited to Otay Mesa and does not apply to the implementation of 

recycled water projects in east Chula Vista (the District’s Central Area) where recycled water is 

available. 

The District continues to stand firm in its commitment to the use of recycled water in order to minimize 

overall demand for potable water and is proud to operate one of the largest recycled water distribution 

systems in San Diego County. 

If you have questions regarding the temporary moratorium for Otay Mesa, please contact the Otay 

Water District’s Public Services Division at (619) 670-2241. 

OTAY WATER DISTRICT 

Dan Martin, P.E.  
Engineering Manager 
 

 

http://www.otaywater.gov/Otay/board/agendas/Agenda%20Board%20Packet,%207-02-14.pdf
http://www.otaywater.gov/Otay/agenda.aspx
http://www.otaywater.gov/Otay/page.aspx?g=73
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PROJECT:  DIV. NO. All 

APPROVED BY: 
 

 Joseph R. Beachem, Chief Financial Officer 

 German Alvarez, Assistant General Manager 

 Mark Watton, General Manager 
  
SUBJECT: Water Conservation Programs and Services    
  

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION: 

This is an informational item only. 
 
COMMITTEE ACTION:   
 
See Attachment A. 
 
PURPOSE: 
 
To inform the Board of Directors about the District’s water use to-
date and the various programs and services offered through Otay’s 
Water Conservation division. 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
The Otay Water District offers many programs and services to assist and 
educate its customers on ways to save water and lower their water use.  
District customers have historically taken advantage of many of the 
programs offered and the District’s overall water use reflects a more 
conservation minded public. 
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Background 
 
California is experiencing an unprecedented drought due to three years 
of lower than anticipated rainfall.  In response, Governor Brown 
declared a statewide drought emergency on January 17, 2014. 
  
On July 15th the State Water Resources Control Board, in response to 
continued drought conditions, set forth emergency conservation 
regulations. 
 
Pursuant to the regulations adopted by the State Water Resources 
Control Board, Otay is required to report monthly water usage from 
both the previous month and year by the 15th of each month.  To date, 
staff has reported information from June through September 2014.  The 
District’s monthly potable usage is illustrated below.  The numbers 
reported are total potable water purchases in acre-feet. 
 

 
 
Potable purchases were up for much of FY 2014.  Extremely dry 
conditions and higher than normal temperatures resulted in an increase 
in water usage.  So far, FY 2015 is seeing an overall decrease in 
water usage even with higher temperatures than last year.  This shows 
that District customers are taking the drought communications 
seriously and taking action to conserve water. 
 
The availability of reclaimed water coupled with increased 
conservation practices by District customers have resulted in a 20% 
decrease in potable water purchases in the past 10 years. 
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Conservation Targets 
 
In 2009, Governor Schwarzenegger signed the Water Conservation Act 
which requires urban water suppliers to reduce water demand by 20% by 
the year 2020.  That same year, the California Urban Water Conservation 
Council (CUWCC) revised its Water Conservation Best Management 
Practices (BMPs).  In 1991, the CUWCC was created to maximize urban 
water conservation across California.  Otay Water District was one of 
the initial 120 urban water agencies and environmental groups to sign 
the first historic Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) which pledged to 
develop and implement urban water conservation practices to reduce the 
demand of water supplies.  The MOU in 1991 identified 14 BMPs for the 
District to follow to achieve water conservation.  These included 
targeted outreach, rebate program goals and conservation targets. In 
2009, the CUWCC reorganized and added flexibility to its MOU.  The new 
MOU separated the original 14 BMPs into two categories: foundational 
and programmatic.  The foundational BMPs cover operational practices 
and education programs.  These are BMPs that all agencies would report 
on for compliance.  The programmatic BMPs cover residential, commercial 
and landscape conservation programs.  To achieve compliance with the 
programmatic BMPs, agencies had three options for reporting: 
 

1) Checklist Approach: An agency can report on each BMP individually 
as it did in the previous MOU. 

2) Flex-track approach: This approach sets specific savings goals 
based on the calculated savings that would have been achieved in 
the checklist approach. 

3) Gallons-per-capita-per day (GPCD) approach: An agency can satisfy 
the programmatic BMP requirements if it shows a targeted reduction 
in per capita usage over time. 

 
To align itself with the 20x2020 regulations, the District chose the 
gallons-per-capita-per-day (GPCD) approach.  This eliminated the 
District having to meet certain rebate or incentive targets as the 
assumption is that an agency who is taking appropriate conservation 
measures will also have a reduction of overall water use.  The CUWCC 
set bi-annual GPCD targets beginning in 2010 based on average water 
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usage from 1997-2006.  The District is currently already surpassing the 
2018 GPCD target.   
 
In 2010, in accordance with the 20x2020 regulations, the District 
developed GPCD goals for 2015 and 2020 based on water use from 1999 to 
2008 and, as shown below, is meeting both targets.   

 

 
 
Future Conservation Targets 
 
Although the initial drought declaration from the Governor called for a 
20% voluntary reduction in water use statewide, there have not been any 
specific targets given to water agencies by the State Water Resources 
Control Board.  Southern California has been working to reduce water 
use for many years so there is some concern additional savings targets 
may be difficult to achieve.  Recognizing the disparity between 
Southern and Northern California conservation efforts over the past ten 
years, the State Water Resources Control Board is evaluating 
residential GPCD levels for the nearly 400 agencies reporting 
statewide.  The hope is that these figures will assist those water 
agencies who have not taken many steps to conserve determine what their 
targets should be.  According to a report dated October 7, 2014, 
statewide water usage in August was down 11.5% which indicates that 
agencies throughout California are working to conserve.   
With 2013 being the driest year on record statewide, the Metropolitan 
Water District (MWD) decided in 2014 to avoid water allocations by 
withdrawing from storage reserves.  However, in response to continuing 
dry conditions, MWD is currently developing an allocation methodology 
for 2015.  MWD anticipates bringing forward the allocation guidelines 
to their Board in November 2014 with approval expected in December 
2014.  However, with the San Diego County Water Authority’s (CWA) 
investments to diversify its water supply, the impact of the 
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allocations will be mitigated.  For example, a 20% reduction in MWD 
water transfers would translate into a 7% reduction to Otay.  Staff is 
monitoring this situation closely and currently evaluating the 
potential financial impact of reduced water supplies.  Staff will 
update the Board as more information becomes available. 
 
Currently, quarterly GPCD targets are reported within the District’s 
Strategic Plan.  These targets align with the 20x2020 mandate.  As the 
drought continues, staff will be evaluating these levels to determine 
if changes need to be made or additional targets tracked.  
 
Water Conservation Programs 
 
In order to ensure the District continues to meet the 20x2020 goal and 
to offer customers opportunities to lower water use and save money, the 
Water Conservation department has worked closely with the San Diego 
County Water Authority (CWA) and the Metropolitan Water District (MWD) 
to offer a variety of programs. 
 
Educational Programs 
 
Otay has resources available on its website for teachers and students 
to learn more about water and water conservation.  For teachers, 
information is provided about the District sponsored poster and 
photography contests, bus tours to the Water Conservation Garden, 
Splash Labs, and water education websites.  For students, there is 
information about the poster and photography contests, EPA watershed 
resources, and State of California water resources.  
 
In addition, the following school programs are financially subsidized 
by the District through the San Diego County Water Authority.    
 
Water Garden Field Trips:  Every year Otay funds up to 30 school bus 
tours to the Water Conservation Garden.  Schools contact the Garden 
directly to schedule their field trips.  In Fiscal Year 2014, 27 
classes and over 1,400 students visited the Garden coming from the 
District’s service area. 
 
School-wide Assemblies: CWA provides elementary school assemblies at no 
cost to the school.  Depending on school size, two options are 
available: 1) H20, Where did you go?  For schools over 500 students or 
2) Waterology for schools with 200 to 500 students.  As a member of 
CWA, Otay helps fund these programs that are available to any 
elementary school in San Diego County.  In Fiscal Year 2014, CWA 
provided assemblies for eight District schools and over 4,600 students. 
 
Splash Lab & Green Machine: The Splash Science Mobile Lab is a self-
contained mobile science laboratory that comes to schools to educate 
classes on the impact of water pollution on the environment and the 
importance of water conservation.  The Green Machine is a mobile field 
trip to educate students on the importance of a healthy environment.  
Otay Water District, in conjunction with CWA, funds eight Splash Lab or 
Green Machine visits per year.  The Splash Lab is designed for grades 4 
through 6, whereas the Green Machine is designed for Kindergarten 



 

 

through 4th grade.  Last year, the Splash Lab visited La Presa 
Elementary School.  
 
Teacher Workshops: Otay, through its membership in CWA, also provides 
free workshops for teachers.  Currently, workshops on water smart 
gardening and regional water quality testing are available for 
qualified teachers.  
 
Reduction in school spending and a focus on performance-based standards 
have resulted in less requests by school officials for in-school 
educational resources.  Garden field trips are popular among District 
schools and demand is very high.  An increase in the number of field 
trips budgeted could result in greater conservation exposure to 
students.  Staff will be working with Garden staff to determine if 
additional funding may be warranted for next year’s budget. Staff also 
plans to do more outreach campaigns to District schools to educate them 
on the programs above and get feedback on other services the District 
can provide to schools.   
 
Residential Programs 
 
Partnering with CWA and MWD, Otay provides a variety of conservation 
programs and services to District customers. Customers are made aware 
of these programs through a variety of sources such as the District 
website, the ‘‘Pipeline’’ newsletter, public outreach at community 
events and MWD and CWA marketing efforts.  
 
California Friendly Landscape Classes: Otay customers can sign-up for 
free three-hour classes on WaterSmart landscaping.  Classes are taught 
throughout San Diego County on various days and times.  The classes 
are designed to teach individuals how to design sustainable landscapes 
for the San Diego climate.   
 
Garden Friendly Plant Fairs: Otay Water District partners with Home 
Depot to offer plant fairs in the fall and spring.  Each plant fair 
features discounts on more than 20 types of water efficient plants. 
Otay staff is on hand to provide information on water conservation 
programs and services. 
 
WaterSmart Landscape Makeover Series:  CWA offers a series of four 
classes which provide homeowners with the information needed to 
makeover a traditional turf yard with drought tolerant landscaping.  
The classes cover everything from turf removal to design and 
irrigation.  
 
Community Outreach: Otay participates in several community events 
throughout the year such as Bonitafest and Harborfest. The focus of 
the District’s presence is to communicate the wide variety of 
conservation programs available to residents and answer conservation 
related questions. 
 



 

 

Rebates: The chart below shows historical residential rebate data for 
the District and estimated water savings as a result of the water 
savings device purchased.  The annual water savings is determined by 
MWD and assumes the devices are replacing old, less efficient 
products. (Attachment B)  
 

Fiscal Year  Device Type 
Number 

of 
Rebates

Estimated Water 
Savings (AF/year) 

2012  Toilet  90 2.21 

   Washer  763 26.32 

   Rotating Nozzle  1,388 6.11 

   WBIC  22 5.25 

2013  Toilet  19 0.47 

   Washer  561 19.35 

   Rotating Nozzle  689 3.03 

   WBIC  18 4.51 

2014  Toilet  225 5.54 

  Washer  457 15.77 

  Rotating Nozzle  811 3.57 

  WBIC  18 3.11 

2015 (YTD)   Toilet  169 4.16 

  Washer  150 5.18 

  Rotating Nozzle  538 2.37 

  WBIC  3 0.26 

 
In the early 1990’s, federal and state laws were enacted which 
required only low-flow toilets, and water efficient shower heads and 
faucets be installed in new and existing homes.  Given the average 
replacement cycle (3-5 percent per year) and the large amount of homes 
built within the District after 1992, it is estimated that the vast 
majority of homes are equipped with these water saving devices.  High 
efficiency washing machines are another large indoor water saver.  
Regulations on washing machine efficiency started in the early 2000’s 
and do not appear to have reached a saturation point yet.  Since 1994, 
over 10,000 residential rebates have been distributed for clothes 
washers.   
 
Turf Removal Programs: As indoor devices became more and more water 
efficient, water industry experts turned the focus to outdoor water 
efficiency as a way to assist in water conservation.  Outdoor 
irrigation contributes to between 40% and 60% of all water use in the 
District.  The removal of water intensive turf and inefficient 
landscape irrigation products can save customers a large amount of 
water each month.  In order to assist Otay customers with migrating to 
a more drought tolerant outside landscape, the District has offered a 



 

 

variety of turf removal programs since 2008.  Below is a chart showing 
residential customer participation in the programs. 
 

Fiscal 
Year 

Program 
Coordinating 

Agency 
Number of 
Rebates 

Total 
Square 
Footage 

Estimated 
Water Savings 
(AF/Year) 

2008 
Artificial Turf 
Rebate  OWD  34  24,041  3.12533

2009  Cash for Plants  OWD  24  37,694  4.90022

2010  Cash for Plants  OWD  18  21,847  2.84011

2011  Cash for Plants  OWD  17  28,353  3.68589

2012  Cash for Plants  OWD  18  25,098  3.26274

2013  Cash for Plants  OWD  5  6,683  0.86879

2013  Turf Replacement  CWA  7  5,628  0.73164

2014  Turf Replacement 
CWA & 
MWD  31  24,637  3.20281

2015 
(YTD)  Turf Replacement 

CWA & 
MWD  3  2,475  0.32175

 
The MWD program provides rebates of $2.00 per square-foot when 
converting existing live turf grass to a low water use alternative.  
This may include artificial or synthetic turf or other permeable 
surfaces.  MWD’s program includes front, side, and backyards.  This 
can be combined with the CWA Turf Replacement Rebate.  CWA provides 
rebates of $1.50 per square-foot when replacing live irrigated grass 
in front yards with low water use non-invasive plants.  There have 
been complaints that CWA’s process is time consuming and difficult to 
navigate.  As a result, the participation of the CWA program by 
District customers has been significantly lower.  In FY 2014, 24 
customers took advantage of the MWD rebate and only seven customers 
participated in the CWA program.  In response, CWA is currently 
reviewing the program to make changes to the qualification process.  
There is also discussion about partnering with artificial turf 
suppliers to offer discounts to San Diego residents since the CWA 
rebate does not include artificial turf.   
 
Expanded media publicity of the drought has resulted in a large 
increase in turf removal applications since July 2014.  In FY 2014, 
there were 34 total applications approved by MWD.  So far, in FY 2015, 
there have been 98 applications approved. These applications represent 
139,819 square feet of turf removal which, if all are completed, would 
result in an estimated 18 acre-feet of water savings.  It is estimated 
that approximately 7,700 square feet of turf would need to be replaced 
to save one acre-foot of water annually. 
 
Site Water Audits: Otay partners with CWA to provide residential 
customers free indoor and outdoor water audits.  Beginning in October, 



 

 

CWA has expanded this program to allow customers the option to waive 
the indoor portion of the audit in exchange for assistance programming 
their irrigation controllers.  Recognizing that the biggest 
opportunities for savings are outdoor, this will give the homeowner 
additional tools to effectively manage irrigation schedules. 
 
PACE Financing Program: The Property Assessed Clean Energy program 
(PACE) offers financing options for homeowners on a variety of water 
and energy savings projects.  Customers who may not be able to afford 
the up-front costs of artificial turf removal or an irrigation 
overhaul can apply for a loan which is paid through the property tax 
system.  The amount of the loan can be $5,000 to $20,000 and can be 
paid off between 5 and 20 years.  There are a variety of lenders that 
participate in this program.  To find a lender one may visit 
www.energycenter.org and search by zip code. 
 
Commercial Programs 
 
Site Water Audits: Otay partners with the MWD and CWA to provide 
commercial customers an audit by a certified irrigation professional.   
 
Water Smart Irrigation Upgrade Program: Otay provides funding for 
commercial sites to replace older irrigation equipment with more 
efficient components.  Weather-based irrigation controllers (WBIC) and 
rotating nozzles are excluded from this program as they are already 
covered under existing MWD rebates.  The program reimburses customers 
up to 40% of the component costs up to a maximum of $5,000.  Otay had 
one property management company take advantage of this program in FY 
2014. 
 
Water Savings Incentive Program: This program is funded by MWD and 
open to all commercial customers.  Customers who install water 
efficient equipment or change processes to produce water savings can 
apply to be reimbursed for project costs.  Customers can receive up to 
$.60 per 1,000 gallons saved per year over the project life, up to 10 
years.  Incentives are limited to 50% of eligible project costs.  
Emerald Textiles, a healthcare laundry service company in the Otay 
Mesa area has recently participated in this program with the 
installation of a water treatment and recycled system.  The company 
expects to see a 60% reduction in water usage which equals over 30 
million gallons per year or 95 acre-feet.  
 
Rebates: The chart below shows historical commercial rebate data for 
the District and estimated water savings as a result of the water 
saving devices purchased.  The annual water savings is determined by 
MWD and assumes the devices are replacing old, less efficient 
products. (Attachment C)  Commercial rebate response has historically 
been much lower than residential.  One reason for low response is the 



 

 

labor costs for replacing fixtures can far exceed the cost of the 
products themselves. 
 

Fiscal Year  Device Type 
Number of 
Rebates 

Estimated 
Water Savings 
(AF/year) 

2013  Rotating Nozzle  1,375  0.9 

  Toilet  72  1.77 

   Flow Regulator  300  11.49 

   WBIC  16  4.48 

2014  Rotating Nozzle  725  7.33 

  Toilet  298  0.15 

  Ice Making Machine  1  13.05 

  Zero Water Urinal  12  1.47 

 2015 (YTD)  Rotating Nozzle  160  0.7 

 
Turf Removal Programs: The MWD and CWA programs explained in the 
residential section are also available to commercial customers.  Below 
is a chart showing commercial participation in turf removal programs 
since 2008. 
 
 
 

Fiscal Year  Program 
Coordinating 

Agency 
Number of 
Rebates 

Square 
Footage 

Estimated 
Water Savings 
(AF/Year)  

2008  Artificial Turf Rebate  OWD  1  76,709  9.97217

2009  Cash for Plants/Artificial Turf  OWD  5  126,315  16.42095

2010  Cash for Plants  OWD  10  83,291  10.82783

2011  Cash for Plants  OWD  6  26,381  3.42953

2012  Cash for Plants  OWD  6  49,673  6.45749

2013  Cash for Plants  OWD  3  26,670  3.4671

2013  Turf Replacement  CWA  1  6,000  0.78

2014  Turf Replacement  CWA & MWD  0  0  0

2015 (YTD)  Turf Replacement  CWA & MWD  1  4,746  0.61698

 
  



 

 

 
Budget 
 
All programs listed above are either included in the Fiscal Year 2015 
budget or through Otay’s CWA membership.  The table below shows the 
amount budgeted for each item.  
 

Programs Budget 
Garden Field Trip  $  19,900 
Bus Costs  $    7,000 
Splash Lab  $    1,800 
Residential Clothes Washer  $  17,500 
Residential WBIC  $    3,000 
Commercial Smart Irrigation Program  $  15,000 
Multi-Family Toilet  $    2,000 
Site Audits  $  17,000 
Demonstration Garden $100,000

Total    $ 183,200
 

Additional Conservation Efforts 
 
Marketing Efforts: Otay Water District engages in various marketing 
campaigns to give customers the latest conservation and drought 
information.  YouTube videos, social media posts, bill inserts, and 
newsletters have all recently been distributed to Otay customers to 
inform them of the District’s move to a Level 2 drought and the 
mandatory restrictions in place. 
 
Water Waste Reporting: Customers can go to the District website or 
call Customer Service to report all types of water waste such as water 
run-off, leaks or washing down paved surfaces.  These reports are 
acted on by District staff with letters and/or site visits as 
warranted.  Customers who do not remedy the situation are referred to 
the Water Conservation department.  Water Conservation will attempt to 
contact the customer to discuss the issue and, if not resolved, may 
take additional steps such as water turn-off or fines for non-
compliance of water waste restrictions. 
 
Leak Notification: As part of the meter reading process, customers 
whose meter registers a leak alarm due to continuous usage for 24 hours 
are notified via email, phone call, or site visit.  The type of 
notification is dependent on various thresholds for larger than 
expected usage.   
 
 
 
 



 

 

Future Conservation Efforts 
 
District staff will continue to market the conservation programs and 
services offered to customers and participate in interagency 
conservation meetings to keep updated on the latest drought 
information.  Should drought conditions continue and the need for 
additional conservation be required, staff will coordinate outreach 
campaigns to various customer types to determine programs or funding 
that can be added to assist with reducing water use. 
 
The District is considering a cooperative endeavor to establish a 
demonstration garden which is more central to the District’s 
customers.  Fiscal year 2015 has an approved budgeted amount of 
$100,000 for the demonstration garden.   
 
Staff is currently working with IT to improve the District’s 
conservation web pages.  Staff would like to better organize the 
available information and use links and drop-down menus for faster 
navigation.  In addition, there is a plan to add an interactive 
calculator to give customers the ability to estimate how their water 
conservation efforts can translate to a lower water bill. 
 
While the current drought conditions do not seem to be diminishing, 
District customers are taking warnings seriously and doing their part 
to conserve water.  A reduction in overall water use and an increase 
in incentive program participation shows the public is committed to 
reducing water consumption. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   Joe Beachem, Chief Financial Officer 

 
This is an informational item only and has no fiscal impact. All 
programs are included in the Water Conservation budget.  The total 
budgeted costs for FY 2015 are $183,200.  Other costs of the 
conservation programs is incorporated into the general cost of water 
paid to CWA and MWD. 
 
STRATEGIC GOAL: 
 
Actively manage water supply and demand. 

 
LEGAL IMPACT: 
 
None. 
 
Attachments: 

A) Committee Action Form 
B) Residential Programs and Rebates 
C) Commercial Programs and Rebates  



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
   

ATTACHMENT A 
 

SUBJECT/PROJECT: 
 

 

Water Conservation Programs and Services    

 
 
COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 
The Finance, Administration and Communications Committee reviewed this 
item at a meeting held on October 21, 2014 and the following comments 
were made: 
 

 This item provides an update on the District’s historical water 
use, an overview of the water conservation program history and 
current water conservation actions.  Currently, the District is 
seeing customers respond to the numerous drought messages they 
have received with lower water use and an increase in rebate 
program activity. 
 

 It was indicated that on July 15th the State Water Resources 
Control Board set forth emergency conservation regulations in 
response to ongoing drought conditions in the State of 
California.  Pursuant to these regulations, Otay is required to 
report water use from both the previous month and previous year 
by the 15th of each month.  Otay has complied with this 
regulation and has reported information from June through 
September 2014.  To date, Otay water purchases were down in both 
August and September of 2014 compared with 2013.  This reduction 
coincides with the declaration of a Level 2 drought on August 
6th. 
 

 Staff provided a history on water use and water conservation 
targets.  It was indicated in 2009, Governor Schwarzenneger 
signed the Water Conservation Act which requires Urban water 
suppliers to reduce water demand by 20% by the year 2020.   That 
same year, the California Urban Water Conservation Council 
(CUWCC) revised its Water Conservation Best Management Practices.  
Otay Water District was one of 120 agencies and organizations to 



 

 

sign the first CUWCC MOU in 1991 which pledged to develop and 
implement water conservation practices to reduce water supply 
demand.  That MOU included 14 BMPs for agencies to use to achieve 
water conservation.  These BMPS included outreach, rebate program 
goals and conservation targets. 
 

 The 2009 MOU reorganized the BMPs into two categories: 
 

 Foundational:  The Foundational BMPs cover operational and 
education programs.  All agencies are required to report on 
the foundational BMPs to ensure compliance. 

 Programmatic:  The Programmatic BMPs cover rebate targets 
and conservation programs for residential, commercial and 
landscape customers. 
 
To show compliance in these BMPS, the CUWCC gave agencies 
the option to pick one of three reporting tracks: 1) 
Checklist approach (like the old method where an agency just 
tracks each individual program); 2) Flex-track approach: An 
agency must achieve certain savings goals which are 
determined by the calculated savings that would have been 
achieved in the checklist model; or 3) Gallons per capita 
per day approach (GPCD).  An agency can satisfy the 
programmatic BMP requirements if it shows a targeted 
reduction in per capita usage over time. 

 
 As the District will need to comply with the 20x2020 regulations, 

the District chose the GPCD approach to also satisfy the CUWCC 
programmatic reporting requirements.  This eliminated the 
District from having to meet certain rebate or program targets as 
long as it showed a reduction in per capita usage.  The targets 
were set in 2010 and are reported on bi-annually to the CUWCC.  
At this time, the District is already surpassing the 2018 goals 
set by the CUWCC of 158.29 GPCD. 
 

 Also in 2010, the District in accordance with the 20x2020 
regulations, developed GPCD targets for 2015 and 2020.  The 2015 
target is 171.2 GPCD and the 2020 target is 152.2 GPCD.  The 
District is currently exceeding the 2020 goal with a GPCD of less 
than 140 GPCD. 
 

 Although during the initial drought declaration in January 
Governor Brown called for a 20% voluntary reduction in water use 
statewide, there have not been any specific targets given to 
water agencies by the State Water Resources Control Board.  
Recognizing there has been a disparity between Northern and 
Southern California Water Conservation actions in the past 10 
years, the Water Board is evaluating residential GPCD levels for 



 

 

the nearly 400 agencies reporting.  The hope is these figures 
will help agencies that have not taken steps to conserve 
determine what their targets should be.  Even without clear 
targets, it does appear that Californians are working to 
conserve.  Statewide water usage was down 11.5% in August. 
 

 Although the District has not received any revised conservation 
targets by the State Water Board, the District is closely 
monitoring the allocations that may come down from MWD in 2015.  
MWD is currently working on the methodology for allocations and 
plans to bring forward the guidelines to the Board in November 
with approval in December.  However, since San Diego has worked 
to diversify its water supply, any allocations MWD does impose 
will be mitigated.  Staff is monitoring the situation and also 
evaluating the potential financial impact and will update the 
Board as more information becomes available. 
 

 Currently, quarterly GPCD targets are monitored and reported 
within the District’s strategic plan.  These targets align with 
the 20x2020 mandate.  If the drought continues, staff will be 
evaluating these levels to determine if changes need to be made 
or additional targets tracked. 
 

 In order to ensure the District continues to meet the 20x2020 
goal and offer the customers ways to lower water use and save 
money, the Water Conservation Department has worked closely with 
CWA and MWD to offer a variety of programs. 
 

 Staff reviewed the educational programs available to schools and 
educators.  Please reference the list of educational programs on 
page five (5) of staffs’ report.  Staff indicated that reduction 
in school spending and a focus on performance-based standards 
have resulted in less requests by school officials for in-school 
educational resources.  Garden field trips are popular and staff 
will be working with Garden staff to determine if additional 
funding may be warranted for next year’s budget.  Staff also 
plans to do more outreach to District schools to educate them on 
the programs currently available and get feedback on other 
services the District can provide to schools. 

 
 Staff reviewed the programs available to residential customers.  

Please reference pages six (6) thru nine (9) of staffs’ report 
for a list and details of each program. 
 

 In the early 1990s, federal and state laws were enacted that 
required water efficient toilets, shower heads and faucets be 
installed in new and existing homes.  It is estimated, at this 
point in time, that the vast majority of homes within the 



 

 

District’s service area are equipped with these water savings 
devices. 
 

 Regulations on washing machines were enacted in the 2000’s.  At 
this time, we do not feel this equipment has reached a saturation 
point, but it is on its way.  Since 1994, over 10,000 residential 
rebates for clothes washers have been issued to District 
customers. 
 

 As indoor devices became more and more water efficient, water 
industry experts are turning the focus to outdoor water 
efficiency.  Outdoor irrigation contributes to between 40 to 60% 
of all water use in the District.  The removal of water intensive 
turf and inefficient irrigation products can save customers a 
large amount of water per month.  In order to assist customers 
with the removal of turf and the installation of drought tolerant 
landscape, the District has offered a variety of turf removal 
programs since 2008.  Currently, customers can combine two rebate 
programs, one through CWA and one through MWD to receive up to 
$3.50 per square foot for turf removal.  The programs have 
different qualifications with MWD allowing artificial turf and 
permeable surfaces and CWA only covering drought tolerant plant 
material.  The MWD program has been more popular with District 
residents, however, some have taken advantage of both programs. 
 

 Expanded media publicity of the drought and the turf removal 
rebate program has resulted in a large increase in rebate 
approvals since July 2014.  In FY 2014, there were 34 total 
applications approved by MWD.  So far, in FY 2015, there have 
been 98 applications approved which represents 139,819 sq. feet, 
which could result in an estimated 18 acre foot of water savings. 
 

 Staff reviewed the programs available to commercial customers.  
Please reference the list of commercial programs on page nine (9) 
of staffs’ report. 
 

 In addition to the various programs, Otay also engages in various 
marketing efforts to promote conservation.  Youtube videos, 
social media campaigns, newsletters and inserts have all recently 
been distributed to inform them of the District’s move to a Level 
2 drought and the mandatory restrictions in place.  Customers can 
also report water waste they observe on our website or by calling 
Customer Service.  These incidents are tracked and acted on 
either through a letter or site visit.   Customers are also being 
notified when our meter reading system signals a leak alarm on 
their meter which triggers if there has been continuous usage for 
24 hours. 
 



 

 

 District staff will continue to market the conservation programs 
and services offered to customers and participate in interagency 
meetings to keep updated on the latest drought information.  
Should drought conditions continue and the need for additional 
conservation be required, staff will coordinate outreach 
campaigns to various customer types to determine programs or 
funding that can be added to assist with reducing water use. 
 

 Staff is currently working with IT to improve the District’s 
conservation web pages. 
 

 As the current drought conditions do not seem to be diminishing, 
District customers are taking warnings seriously and doing their 
best to conserve water.  A reduction in overall water use and an 
increase in incentive program participation shows the public is 
committed to reducing water conservation. 
 

 All programs listed in staffs’ report are either included in the 
FY 2015 budget or through CWA’s membership. 
 

 In response to an inquiry from the committee, staff indicated 
that three (3) rebates have been issued for turf replacement, 
thus far, in FY 2015.  There are currently 98 applications that 
have been approved for turf removal and these customers will 
receive their rebate as long as they complete their landscape 
turf replacement project. 
 

 It was estimated that if the rebate requests continue at the 
current rate, there will be approximately 350 to 360 applications 
received in FY 2015.  Staff noted, however, that not all 
applicants complete their projects.  Staff indicated that MWD has 
reserved $84 million, thus far, for the turf removal rebate in 
this fiscal year.  It was indicated in response to an inquiry 
from the committee, that once an application is approved, MWD 
sets the funding aside and that funding is reserved for that 
application.  The budget, at this time, is $100 million and there 
are discussions that MWD may increase this funding further to 
meet demand. 
 

 Staff indicated that customers are advised in discussions and on 
the District’s website that rebates are available while funding 
is available.  It was discussed that all rebate programs do have 
a threshold and the District does not want to guarantee funding 
if it is possible that it may not be available. 
 

 It was indicated that CWA is working on streamlining their rebate 
process due to complaints that their requirements are very 



 

 

onerous.  CWA no longer requires a plant list and a design plan 
which is helping to speed up the application process.  It was 
noted that CWA rebates are based on square footage of grass that 
is replaced with drought tolerant material.  MWD’s rebate only 
requires that the replacement materials (mulch, gravel, 
artificial turf, water tolerant plants, or a combination of 
these) allows water to filter through. 
 

 In response to another inquiry from the committee regarding the 
low participation in the commercial programs, staff indicated 
that they believe it is the difficulty in acquiring the rebate 
through CWA.  Staff stated that they distributed the CWA drought 
signs to several landscape contractors in the Otay Mesa and Chula 
Vista areas as the District works with the contractors on the 
turf removal program.  The feedback from one of the landscape 
contractors for a larger HOA was that the application process 
through CWA for the turf removal was taking 10 months.  The 
contractor indicated that the HOA filled out the application 
packet and the they (landscape contractor) provided the design 
and plans and filed the application.  The application was 
returned to the contractor by CWA’s consultant for additional 
water savings data and a revised plant list.  The landscape 
contractor contacted the Otay WD and requested that the District 
intervene in the process.  In response to the request, the 
District requested that they fast track the application as the 
HOA board was ready to walk away from the project due to the long 
(10 month) review process.  The contractor indicated that they 
had completed another project with no problems, but this project 
was taking extremely long due to a change in CWA’s process.  
These issues have been brought to CWA’s attention.  It was 
requested that if these issues continue, to elevate it to the 
District’s (Otay WD) General Manager so he can bring it to CWA’s 
attention as well. 
 

 Staff shared with regard to commercial customers that in 2009, 
when the District implemented a significant rate increase, many 
commercial customers (from 2009 to 2011) made changes to their 
landscapes at their own cost because there were long term rate 
savings.  These commercial customers are not reflected in the 
numbers as they did not take advantage of the rebate program. 
 

 It was discussed that, thus far, the District’s customers have 
dropped their consumption 20% from the District’s highest usage.  
This indicates that customers are hearing the messages to 
conserve and are responding to that request.  It was noted that 
the reduced water use can also be contributed to the downturn in 
the economy and the increase in water rates. 
 



 

 

 It was discussed that the District’s new residential construction 
is more dense with smaller lots or no yards.  The District per 
capita water use will, thus, likely stay low.  Staff noted that 
during FY 2009 the District’s customer water use dropped 28% due 
to foreclosures and the downturn in the economy and the District 
has shown a 5% increase in use since 2009. 

 
Upon completion of the discussion, the committee received staffs’ 
report and supported presentation to the full board as an 
informational item. 
 



 
 

Residential Water Efficient Programs & Rebates 
 

Water Smart Checkup  
Free Indoor and Outdoor Water Conserving Recommendations 
 Dial 1/866/883-1332 or visit watersmartcheckup.org to schedule an 

appointment 
 
Turf Replacement Program = SD County Water Authority (CWA) Rebate   

$1.50/square foot for replacing grass in the front yard with a Water Smart 
landscape   
 Dial 1/866/685-2322 or visit turfreplacement.watersmartsd.org 

for application form and qualifying standards 
 
** Since the rebates listed below are subject to change or termination by the 
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California at any time, please call 
1/888/376-3314 or visit www.SoCalWaterSmart.com for confirmation of available 
rebates** 

 
Rebates                     Total Rebate 
         

**High Efficiency Washer (HEW)       $135.00 ** 
   
**High Efficiency Toilet(HET)        $100.00** 
 
**Rain Barrel 4 barrel maximum        $75.00/barrel**  
 
**Weather Based Irrigation Controller (WBIC)     $140.00 ** 

Under 1 irrigated acre 
 

**Weather Based Irrigation Controller (WBIC)      $35.00/station** 
   Over 1 irrigated acre 
 

**Rotating Nozzles           $4.00 /nozzle**  
1 rebate per residential address (15 nozzle minimum) 

 
**Moisture Sensor    Added to irrigation controller        $80.00**  

         
**Turf Replacement             $2.00/sqft ** 

  May be added to CWA rebate above 
  Review each wholesale water agency’s qualifying standards  
 

For additional information on any program, please contact: 
Richard.Namba@otaywater.gov 

          619/670-2730    10.1.2014 
 

Attachment B



 
 

Commercial Water Efficient Programs & Rebates 
 

Commercial Landscape Survey 
Free Landscape and Irrigation Audit 
 Dial 1/866/883-1332 or visit watersmartcheckup.org to schedule an 

appointment 
 
Commercial Turf Replacement Rebate = SD County Water Authority  

$1.50/square foot for replacing grass with a Water Smart landscape   
 Dial 1/866/685-2322 or visit turfreplacement.watersmartsd.org 

for application form and qualifying standards 
 
 
** Since the commercial rebates listed below are subject to change or termination by the 
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California at any time, please call 
1/888/376-3314 or visit www.SoCalWaterSmart.com for confirmation of available 
rebates** 

 
Rebates (More commercial rebates available at website)      Total Rebate 
         

**High Efficiency Tank Toilets       $100/multi-family ** 
   
**High Efficiency Flushometer Toilet         $100** 
 
**Ultra Low & Zero Water Urinals         $200** 
 
** Air Cooled Ice Machines                                              $1,000** 
 
**Weather Based Irrigation Controller (WBIC)      $35/station**   

 
**Rotating Nozzles             $4 /nozzle** 
 
**Large Rotary Nozzles                                $13/Set**  
 
**In-Stem Flow Regulators                $1/Regulator** 

 
**Moisture Sensor    Added to irrigation controller       $35/station** 

          
**Turf Replacement                   $2/sqft** 

  May be added to CWA rebate above when meeting requirements 
    
               
 For additional information on any program, please contact: 

Richard.Namba@otaywater.gov 
          619/670-2730    7.1.2014 

Attachment C



  

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
    
TYPE MEETING: Regular Board MEETING DATE: November 5, 2014 

 

 

SUBMITTED BY:    

 

 

 
 
Andrea Carey, 
Customer Service Manager 

PROJECT:  DIV. NO. All 

APPROVED BY: 
 

 Joseph R. Beachem, Chief Financial Officer 

 German Alvarez, Assistant General Manager 

 Mark Watton, General Manager 
  
SUBJECT:  Proposed Water Conservation Demonstration Garden Partnership 

 
  

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION: 

This is an informational item only. 
 
COMMITTEE ACTION:   
 
See Attachment A. 
 
PURPOSE: 
 
To provide the Board with information regarding the potential sites 
for a water conservation demonstration garden. 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
Staff has reviewed multiple options for a potential demonstration 
garden in Chula Vista and has narrowed it down to four sites.  After 
visiting them and discussing details with the partner entities, staff 
has identified Otay Ranch Town Center as a preferred location for the 
water conservation demonstration garden.  The information below will 
provide the details staff used to identify potential sites and the 
specific attributes of the four sites considered. 
 
Background 
In 1992, Otay was a founding member of the nationally renowned five- 
acre Water Conservation Garden and continues to be a supporting 
member.  The Water Conservation Garden, located in the northern part 
of the District, provides visitors with information and examples of 
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water-wise gardening.  As the District’s population continues to grow 
in the southern region of San Diego County, Otay is investigating the 
viability of a partnership to provide those customers with a more 
convenient water demonstration garden in Chula Vista. A location that 
might have greater exposure to a larger portion of the District’s 
customer base. 
  
The need to conserve water has grown after several years of below 
normal rainfall which has created water supply shortages.  This has 
led to Governor Brown’s statewide proclamation to conserve water in 
January 2014.  Following suit, Otay declared a Level 2 Supply Alert 
on August 6, 2014 that initiates mandatory water restrictions.  Since 
grass is the most water dependent species of the landscape, Otay is 
committed to assisting residential sites in removing grass to 
conserve water.  While generous grass removal rebates exist, the 
District is looking at the option to provide an additional water 
conserving demonstration garden that would serve as an inspiration 
for homeowners that commit to taking out non-functional grass around 
the house.  The demonstration garden would illustrate that water 
conserving plants provide a multitude of colors, textures, sizes, and 
shapes that would enhance property value while conserving significant 
amounts of water.       
 
Partnership Responsibilities 
Since this project would benefit both partnering organizations in 
meeting community outreach educational objectives and environmental 
sustainability goals, organization specific responsibilities have 
been identified.  If the initial responsibilities are agreeable to 
the partnering organizations and a tentative site has been 
determined, future meetings will focus on finalizing a contract that 
will insure the design, maintenance, and longevity of the partnership 
demonstration garden.  
 
Otay Water District would provide: 

 Cost of a professionally designed water conservation 
demonstration garden design plan that meets the 
landscape/aesthetic standards of the partnering organization and 
the community outreach goals of the Otay Water District. 

 Cost of the installation of irrigation system, hardscape 
material and landscape plants that would be identified in the 
mutually agreed upon design, irrigation, planting, and 
supplemental design plan documents. 

 Cost of interpretive signage that identifies water savings when 
removing grass and replacing it with California friendly, 
drought tolerant, and water conserving plants.  

 Promotion of the water conservation demonstration garden. 
 Promotion of water sustainability partnership. 

  



Partnership agency would provide: 
 An area of high visibility to locate the garden with a map of 

the site. 
 Water supply for installation of low volume irrigation system to 

maintain landscape.  
 Public access and egress during site’s normal hours of business 

operation. 
 Public parking. 
 Garden maintenance and water costs. 
 Promotion of the water sustainability partnership.  

 
Potential Demonstration Garden Partnership Sites 
A preliminary review of the District’s Chula Vista service area 
identified potential garden sites that included governmental and 
commercial entities.  Sites reviewed include:  
 

 Chula Vista College (future site);  
 High Tech High;  
 HOA common ground areas;  
 Millenia at Otay Ranch;  
 Otay Lake;  
 Otay Ranch Town Center;  
 City of Chula Vista Open Space;  
 Salt Creek Community Center;  
 Salt Creek Golf Course;  
 Sea World’s Aquatica Park;  
 Southwestern College; and   
 U.S. Olympic Training Center.   

 
A variety of factors were considered as criteria for identifying 
potential sites and eliminating other sites that would not be 
compatible with District goals in supporting a water conservation 
demonstration garden at this time.  Factors considered in identifying 
a potential partner in the District’s Chula Vista service area 
include:  
 

 space available;  
 location;  
 daily hours of accessibility;  
 parking;  
 restrooms;  
 water service;  
 maintenance commitment;  
 build-out date;  
 shared vision of demonstration garden value;  
 environmental stewardship; and 
 long-term return on investment.  



Of the sites considered, the following four sites best fit the 
criteria. Preliminary meetings to discuss a partnership and 
mutually beneficial goals of a demonstration garden have 
generated positive support from each of the potential partners.  

 
1. Otay Ranch Town Center (ORTC)  

2015 Birch Road, Suite 500 
Chula Vista, CA 91915 

 Governing Authority: General Growth Properties (GGP) REIT 
 Location: Board District 1 

 

Site Location: Proposed garden site located adjacent to the western 
side of the Macy’s store located across the street from the ORTC dog 
park. 
Space Available: 10,987 square feet 
 
ORTC supports the demonstration garden partnership proposal.  On  
July 8, 2014 there was an inspection of the proposed demonstration 
garden site.   The REI (Recreational Equipment Incorporated) store is 
in close proximity and supports environmentally friendly 
sustainability projects. 
 
Attributes of ORTC Site  
 
Accessibility: Easy public access and egress via 125 Expressway, 
Birch Road, and Olympic Parkway.  
Parking: Ample free public parking in ORTC parking lots. 
Restroom Facilities: Public restroom facilities are available.  
Maintenance: Brickman/Valley Crest Landscape Company currently 
maintains ORTC’s landscaped areas.  They are a highly regarded 
landscape partnership that also maintains Grossmont Center and 
Fashion Valley shopping malls and their landscaping meets commercial 
marketing standards. 
Improvements: Undeveloped site does not require removal and disposal 
of existing landscape. 
Exposure: ORTC provides the broadest public exposure of a water 
conservation demonstration garden to Chula Vista constituents who 
reflect a wide range in age, ethnicity, gender, and income.    
 
Limitations of ORTC Site 
 

 Commercial for-profit mall site. 
o Long-term financial survivability of ORTC is unknown. 
o Long-range development plan of ORTC is unknown. 

 Demonstration garden site can be displaced by future commercial 
mall tenant. 

o Length of demonstration garden partnership must be 
negotiated. 

o Partnership contract must protect District’s financial 
investment in site. 



 Currently, a completely vacant site with no irrigation 
infrastructure in place. 

 
 

2. Salt Creek Community Center (SCCC)  
2710 Otay Lakes Road 
Chula Vista, CA 91915 

Governing Authority: City of Chula Vista Park & Recreation 
Department 

 Location: Board District 1 with Board District 5 located north 
of Otay Lakes Road 

 
Site Location: Adjacent to entry road and SCCC parking lot.  This is 
a 24-acre community center and park that provides a wide range of 
recreational activities. 
Space Available: 5,095 square feet 
 
SCCC supports the demonstration garden partnership proposal.  An 
inspection of the proposed demonstration garden site took place on 
September 4, 2014. 
 
Attributes of Salt Creek Community Center Site 
 
Accessibility: Easy public access off Otay Lakes Rd. 
Parking: Ample public parking is available.  
Restroom Facilities: Public restroom facilities are available.  
Maintenance: Provided by Parks Department and existing irrigation 
system can be reused for demonstration garden landscape. 
Improvements: Site consists of grass that must be removed or 
eradicated. 
Exposure: Community center is used by many people living in the area 
for health and sporting events. 
 
Limitations of Salt Creek Community Center Site 
 

 Located at eastern edge of District’s Chula Vista residential 
service area. 

o Primary users of SCCC programs are those living near the 
community center and park. 

 Limited square footage available restricts demonstration garden 
design plan potential. 

 Site maintenance would be provided by city staff with already a 
large service area to maintain. 

 
3. Rice Canyon Open Space Preserve (RCOSP) 

North side of the intersection of Buena Vista Way and Rancho Del 
Rey Parkway 
Chula Vista, CA 91910 
 
Governing Authority: City of Chula Vista, Open Space Department 
Location: Board District 2 



Site Location: Demonstration garden site would be immediately 
adjacent to Rancho Del Rey Parkway. 
Space Available: 4,850 square feet 

 
RCOSP staff supports demonstration garden partnership proposal. 
On September 25, 2014 there was an inspection of proposed 
demonstration garden site.  There is an existing succulent and cactus 
section at the site.  

 
Attributes of Rice Canyon Open Space Preserve Site 
 
Accessibility: Public access off Rancho Del Rey Parkway near Buena 
Vista Way.  
Parking: Limited parking is available. Eight paved spots exist with a 
large gravel overflow area for additional cars. 
Restroom Facilities: Public restroom facilities are not available on- 
site. 
Maintenance: Maintenance is currently provided in part by Open Space 
staff and contracted out to Blue Skies Landscape Maintenance Company. 
Improvements: Water is available on-site to irrigate demonstration 
garden area. 
Exposure: RCOSP is the future site of Chula Vista sponsored 
composting and sustainability classes.  The City of Chula Vista is 
applying for a $40,000 grant for RCOSP upgrades. 
 
Limitations of Rice Canyon Open Space Site 
 

 Smallest square footage available of the sites considered. 
 A lack of design plan or planting plan is apparent in the 

current distribution of plant material. 
 Site is currently not well maintained with weeds growing 

throughout.    
 Space occupied by cactus and succulents is four times as large 

as the partnership garden area. 
o Adjacent cactus and succulents have been planted in a 

haphazard, random arrangement.   
o Aesthetics of a professionally designed demonstration 

garden space will be a stark contrast to a succulent garden 
designed with good intentions, volunteer staff, and lack of 
a unifying design plan. 

o Imbalance in space allocated to existing succulents 
compared to proposed demonstration garden area creates a 
false sense of relative importance and value.  

 Minimal signage exists to identify or interpret existing plant 
material. 

o Interpretive signage has not kept up with addition of new 
succulents and cactus. 

 
  



 
4. Southwestern College 

900 Otay Lakes Road 
Chula Vista, CA 91910 
 
Governing Authority: Southwestern Community College District 

 Location: Board District 4 
 
Still awaiting partnership acknowledgement following the June 18, 
2014 campus meeting.   

 
Site Location: Centrally located within District’s Chula Vista 
service area. 
Space Available: Demonstration garden site on campus has not been 
specifically identified within the four-acre garden with adjacent 
undeveloped space available. 
 
Attributes of Southwestern College Site 
 
Accessibility: Public access and egress to navigate campus roads 
difficult due to normal student traffic. 
Parking: Limited public parking available campus-wide.  Parking 
tickets issued if parking without a permit or in wrong lot. 
Restroom Facilities: Public restroom facilities are currently not 
available in the SBBG.  However, restrooms are located outside the 
SBBG in classroom buildings. 
Maintenance: Docents may be available to support demonstration 
garden.  
Improvements: Awaiting a specific site to determine what would need 
to be removed or retrofitted.  
Exposure: Landscape and Nursery Technology Department offering 
courses since 1975.  Faculty and students available to support 
demonstration garden.  Site of South Bay Botanical Garden (SBBG). 
 
Limitations of Southwestern College Site 
 

 Multi-tiered college administrative proposal review and approval 
levels.  

o Southwestern College’s commitment to supporting the L&NT 
Department and the SBBG’s long-term role as a campus 
resource is uncertain based upon budgetary support for 
faculty positions and garden maintenance.  

 Campus facilities operate on a Monday through Friday schedule. 
 The South Bay Botanical Garden site is located in southwestern 

corner of the campus. 
o Limited hours of operation and public accessibility. 
o SBBG operates on a Tuesday – Saturday schedule. 
o Limited public parking adjacent to SBBG.  
o Garden maintenance within SBBG dependent on student and 

volunteer availability. 
o SBBG was poorly maintained during June 18, 2014 walk 

through inspection.  



Future Actions 
At this time, based on the criteria identified and of the sites 
reviewed, Otay Ranch Town Center appears to be the best fit for a 
demonstration garden in Chula Vista.  However, staff will continue to 
evaluate the potential sites with more focused conversations with 
potential partnering organizations.  This is necessary to develop a 
clear path of how a demonstration garden might be accomplished.  In 
the event staff and a potential partner have a viable path to 
accomplish a garden, staff will bring this option to the Board for 
direction. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   Joe Beachem, Chief Financial Officer 

Fiscal year 2015 has an approved budgeted amount of $100,000 for the 
demonstration garden.  Since staff time has been budgeted separately 
under operating salaries and benefits, the full $100,000 may be used 
to hire third parties to complete the demonstration garden.  To date, 
none of this budget has been spent. 
 
At this point, staff has been solely focused on evaluating potential 
sites.  With more certainty of the viability of a particular site, 
the next step will be to develop a request for proposal and obtain 
bids.  Staff will have a better understanding of how to best use the 
budgeted amount further along in the process. 
 
STRATEGIC GOAL: 
 
Work with local agencies to influence developers, builders, and the 
community to incorporate practical water efficient practices. 

 
LEGAL IMPACT: 
 
None. 
 
Attachments:  
 

A) Committee Action 
B) Presentation 
 

  



 

 
   

ATTACHMENT A 
 

SUBJECT/PROJECT: 
 

 

Proposed Water Conservation Demonstration Garden 
Partnership 
 

 
COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 
The Finance, Administration and Communications Committee reviewed this 
item at a meeting held on October 21, 2014 and the following comments 
were made: 
 

 This report is to provide the Board information regarding the 
potential sites for a water conservation demonstration garden. 
 

 Staff has reviewed multiple options for a potential demonstration 
garden in Chula Vista and has narrowed the options down to four 
sites. 
 

 After visiting the potential sites and discussing details with 
the partner entities, staff has identified Otay Ranch Town Center 
as a preferred location for the water conservation demonstration 
garden. 
 

 Staff indicated that Otay WD is a founding member of the Water 
Conservation Garden located at Cuyamaca College and has been a 
large participant.  Because a good portion of the District’s 
customers reside in the City of Chula Vista, the District is 
investigating the viability of a partnership to provide customers 
in Chula Vista a more convenient water demonstration garden. 
 

 The parameters that staff considered for the selection of a site 
are: 
 

 The site should be located in the southern portion of the 
District (Chula Vista area) 

 Should be a willing partnering agency 
 Have space availability 
 Location should be accessible to the general public 
 Have onsite parking 
 Have access to water for irrigation 

 



 

 

 Otay’s responsibilities in the development of the demonstration 
garden would be: 
 

 Cover the cost for a professional garden design plan 
 Cover the cost for the installation of the irrigation 

system, hardscape material, and landscape plants 
 Cover the cost of interpretive signage 
 Promote the demonstration garden 
 Promote the water sustainability partnership 

 
 The partner’s responsibilities are: 

 
 Provide an area with high visibility 
 Provide water supply 
 Provide public access 
 Cover maintenance and water costs 
 Promote the water sustainability partnership 

 
 Otay identified four (4) potential sites: 

 
 Otay Ranch Town Center (ORTC) 

o Attributes include: 
 Located adjacent to the western side of Macy’s 

store, across the street from the ORTC dog park 
 Provides 10,987 square feet 
 Owned by General Growth Properties 
 Located within Division 1 
 Has easy access via the 125 Expressway, Birch Road 

and Olympic Parkway 
 Ample free parking 
 Has public restroom facilities 
 Maintained by a landscaper, Brickman/Valley Crest 

Landscape Co. 
 Provides broadest public exposure to a wide 

variety of constituents 
o Limitations include: 

 Location is on a commercial for profit mall:  
Their long-term financial outlook is unknown and 
their long-range development plan is unknown. 

 Demonstration garden site could be displaced by a 
future commercial tenant so the length of the 
demonstration garden partnership must be 
negotiated and the agreement must protect the 
District’s financial investment 

 It is a vacant site with no irrigation structure 
in place 



 

 

 
 Salt Creek Community Center (SCCC): Otay WD reached out the 

City of Chula Vista’s Parks and Recreation and this is the 
site that they offered as a potential site 

o Attributes include: 
 Location is adjacent to entry point at Otay Lakes 

Road and parking lot 
 Provides 5,096 square feet 
 Maintained by the City of Chula Vista Parks and 

Recreation Department 
 Located in Division 1 
 Easy access off Otay Lakes Road 
 Ample free parking 
 Has public restroom facilities 
 Site consists of grass that must be removed 
 It is a community center and is used by many 

people living in the area 
o Limitations include: 

 Located at the eastern edge of the District’s 
Chula Vista service area and the primary users of 
the community center are those living nearby 

 Limited square footage available, restricts garden 
design plan potential 

 Site maintenance would be provided by city staff 
who already have a large service area to maintain.  
There is also concerns if there were budgetary 
issues at the City of Chula Vista. 
 

 Rice Canyon Open Space Preserve (RCOSP);  The District was 
approached by City of Chula Vista Open Space Department who 
was looking to apply for a grant for this particular 
location 

o Attributes include: 
 Adjacent to Rancho del Rey Parkway 
 4,850 square feet 
 Maintained by the City of Chula Vista Open Space 

Department 
 Located in Division 2 
 Easy access off Rancho del Rey Parkway near Buena 

Vista Way 
 Eight paved spots available for parking with a 

large gravel overflow area 
 Maintained by City contractor, Blue Skies 

Landscape Maintenance Company 
 Water is available onsite for irrigation, existing 

landscape would need to be removed/re-purposed 



 

 

 RCOSP is the future site of Chula Vista sponsored 
composting and sustainability classes 

o Limitations include: 
 No public restrooms available onsite 
 Smallest square footage of all sites considered 
 Existing cactus and succulent garden would be 

adjacent to demonstration garden which is four 
times the size of the proposed site 
 There would be a stark contrast between the 

professionally designed garden and the 
succulent garden installed by volunteers with 
no design plan 

 Minimal signage exists to identify existing 
plant material 

 The site is currently not maintained well and has 
weeds growing though out 
 

 Southwestern College 
o Attributes include: 

 Centrally located within Chula Vista 
 Site has not been specifically identified 
 Located in Division 4 
 Restrooms are located outside existing South Bay 

Botanical Garden (SBBG) 
 Docents may be available to support garden 
 Current site of SBBG, Landscape and Nursery 

Technology Department offering courses since 1975 
o Limitations include: 

 Public access is difficult due to normal student 
traffic 

 Limited public parking available campus-wide 
 Multi-tiered college administrative proposal 

review and approval levels; commitment to support 
demonstration garden is uncertain 

 Campus facilities operate on a Monday through 
Friday schedule 

 The SBBG site is located in the southwestern 
corner of campus 
 Limited hours of operability and 

accessibility (Tuesday-Saturday) 
 Garden maintenance is dependent on student 

and volunteer availability 
 Garden was poorly maintained during walk 

through on June 18, 2014 
 



 

 

  At this time, staff believes that the ORTC is the best fit for a 
demonstration garden.  Staff will begin to have a more focused 
conversation with the potential partnering organizations. 
 

 The District has an approved budget of $100,000 for the 
demonstration garden and the full $100,000 may be used for the 
completion of the garden.  At this time, none of this funding has 
been expended.  Staff is currently focused on evaluating 
potential sites for the demonstration garden.  Once there is more 
certainty on a specific site, then a Request for Proposal would 
be developed for the design of the garden. 
 

 The committee commented that the ORTC location, though it has 
plenty of parking, is not very visible as it is tucked behind 
Macy’s and would be only visible to those utilizing the dog park.  
Staff indicated that signs could be utilized to direct visitors 
to the site and noted that the Millenium project is also directly 
across from the proposed site.  Staff indicated that the District 
would need to promote the site as well. 
 

 The committee indicated that a water conservation gardening class 
is offered periodically at Southwestern College and suggested 
that staff consider such sites as it would be a good compliment 
to the class participants to be able to see an example of a water 
conserving garden after attending the class.  Staff explained 
that parking was extremely limited at Southwestern College and 
metered parking was not available near the current Botanical 
Garden site.  It was discussed that the intent of having a 
demonstration garden within the Chula Vista community is to have 
something that is convenient to the community.  The members of 
the community likely visit the ORTC mall periodically and it 
would be more convenient for them to visit the demonstration 
garden while at the mall as opposed to driving to Cuyamaca 
College. 
 

 Staff shared that they learned that the City of Chula Vista has 
specific strategic targets and one of those targets is related to 
turf grass.  The turf grass within the various City parks are 
identified as grass that gets “used” or “not used.”  So those 
areas that are identified as “used” cannot be retrofitted into a 
demonstration garden as the community uses that grass.  This 
limits available space for a demonstration garden.  It was much 
more difficult than staff anticipated to find a location for the 
demonstration garden. 

 
Upon completion of the discussion, the committee received staffs’ 
report and supported presentation to the full board as an 
informational item. 



Water Conservation 
Demonstration Garden

Attachment B

November 5, 2014



Parameters for Site Selection

• Southern portion of the District (Chula Vista area)
• Willing partnering agency
• Space available
• Accessible to the general public
• Onsite parking
• Access to water for irrigation
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OWD Responsibilities

• Cost of professional garden design plan
• Cost of installation of irrigation system, hardscape material, 

and landscape plants
• Cost of interpretive signage
• Promotion of the demonstration garden
• Promotion of the water sustainability partnership
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Partner Responsibilities

• An area of high visibility
• Water supply
• Public access
• Maintenance and water costs
• Promotion of the water sustainability partnership
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Potential Sites
• Otay Ranch Town Center (ORTC)

• Salt Creek Community Center (SCCC)

• Rice Canyon Open Space Preserve (RCOSP)

• Southwestern College
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Otay Ranch Town Center (ORTC)
Site Location: Adjacent to the western side of Macy’s store, 
across the street from the ORTC dog park

Size of Space: 10,987 square feet

Governing Authority: General Growth Properties

Location: Board District 1
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Attributes of ORTC Site
Accessibility:  Easy access via 125 Expressway, Birch Road and Olympic Parkway

Parking:  Ample free parking available

Restrooms:  Public restroom facilities available

Maintenance:  Brickman/Valley Crest Landscape Co.

Improvements:  Completely undeveloped site

Exposure:  Provides broadest public exposure to a wide variety of constituents
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Limitations of ORTC Site
• Commercial for‐profit mall

• Long‐term financial outlook unknown
• Long‐range development plan unknown

• Demonstration garden site could be displaced by future commercial tenant
• Length of demonstration garden partnership must be negotiated
• Partnership contract must protect District’s financial investment

• A vacant site with no irrigation structure in place
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ORTC Site
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Salt Creek Community Center (SCCC)
Site Location:  Adjacent to entry point at Otay Lakes Rd and 
parking lot

Size of Space:  5,095 square feet

Governing Authority:  City of Chula Vista Park & Recreation 
Department

Location:  Board District 1
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Attributes of SCCC Site
Accessibility:  Easy access off Otay Lakes Road

Parking:  Ample free parking available

Restrooms:  Public restroom facilities available

Maintenance:  Provided by Chula Vista Parks Department

Improvements:  Site consists of grass that must be removed

Exposure:  Community center is used by many people living in the area
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Limitations of SCCC Site
• Located at the eastern edge of District’s Chula Vista service area

• Primary users of SCCC programs are those living nearby

• Limited square footage available, restricts garden design plan potential

• Site maintenance would be provided by city staff with an already large 
service area to maintain
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SCCC Site
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Rice Canyon Open Space Preserve (RCOSP)

Site Location: Adjacent to Rancho Del Rey Parkway

Size of Space: 4,850 square feet

Governing Authority: City of Chula Vista Open Space Department

Location: Board District 2
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Attributes of RCOSP Site
Accessibility:  Easy access off Rancho del Rey Parkway near Buena Vista Way

Parking:  Eight paved spots available with a large gravel overflow area

Restrooms:  No restrooms available onsite

Maintenance:  Blue Skies Landscape Maintenance Company

Improvements:  Water is available on‐site for irrigation, existing landscape would need to be 
removed/re‐purposed

Exposure:  RCOSP is the future site of Chula Vista sponsored composting and sustainability 
classes
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Limitations of RCOSP Site
• Smallest square footage of all sites considered

• Existing cactus and succulent garden would be adjacent to demonstration 
garden and four times the size

• Stark contrast between professionally designed garden and succulent 
garden installed by volunteers with no design plan

• Minimal signage exists to identify existing plant material

• Site is currently not maintained well with weeds growing throughout
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RCOSP Site
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Southwestern College

Site Location:  Centrally located within Chula Vista

Size of Space:  Site has not been specifically identified

Governing Authority:  Southwestern Community College District

Location:  Board District 4

22



23



Attributes of Southwestern Site
Accessibility:  Public access difficult to normal student traffic

Parking:  Limited public parking available campus‐wide

Restrooms:  Restrooms located outside existing South Bay Botanical Garden (SBBG)

Maintenance:  Docents may be available to support garden

Improvements:  Awaiting a specific site to determine what would need to be removed or 
retrofitted

Exposure:  Current site of SBBG, Landscape and Nursery Technology Department offering 
courses since 1975
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Limitations of Southwestern Site
• Multi‐tiered college administrative proposal review and approval levels

• Commitment to support demonstration garden is uncertain

• Campus facilities operate on a Monday through Friday schedule

• The South Bay Botanical Garden Site is located in the southwestern corner of 
campus

• Limited hours of operability and accessibility (Tuesday‐Saturday)
• Limited public parking
• Garden maintenance dependent on student and volunteer availability
• Garden was poorly maintained during walk through on June 18, 2014
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Southwestern College Site
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Next Steps
• At this time, staff believes Otay Ranch Town Center to be the best 
fit for a demonstration garden

• Staff will begin having more focused conversations with the 
potential partnering organizations

• Staff will begin analysis on feasibility of a mutually beneficial 
garden site
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SUBJECT: General Manager’s Report 

  

 

 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES: 

 

Purchasing and Facilities: 

 

 Purchase Orders – There were 131 purchase orders in effect 

during the month of September with an adjusted total value of 

$350,819. Forty-five percent of the value was on blanket 

orders, exceeding Purchasing’s 15% strategic plan objective.  

 

Human Resources:      
  

 Holiday Event – Mark your calendars to attend this year’s 

holiday party scheduled for Saturday, December 13th, from 6:00 

- 11:00 pm on the Berkeley Ferry Boat.     
 

 Open Enrollment – Open Enrollment was held in the month of 

October. An Informational meeting was held on October 22nd.  
 

 Recruitments – HR is in the process of recruiting for Water 

Systems Supervisor, Lead Water System Operator and Pump 

Mechanic I/II, and is preparing to recruit for Systems Support 

Analyst. 
 

 New Hires/Promotions: 

o Jake Vaclavek was appointed to System Operations Manager 

on October 13th. Jake joined the District in April of 1993 

and has held the positions of Water Systems Operator 

I/II/III, Assistant Disinfection Technician, Lead Water 

Systems Operator, and served as the Water Systems 

Supervisor for 9+ years. 
 

tita.ramos-krogman
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o The District participates in the San Diego County Water 

Authority Intern program and one Intern began working in 

the Operations Department in October.    

 

Safety & Security:    
 

 

 Emergency WebEOC - District participated and completed the 

monthly WebEOC exercise as part of the District’s emergency 

communications and response plan. 

 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND STRATEGIC PLANNING: 
 

 Data Storage Migration - IT Staff completed the replacement of 

the existing storage area network (SAN) equipment and data 

migration from the District’s legacy storage infrastructure.  

The new solution offers increased capacity, features, 

performance, reliability and security.    

 

 Website Executive Dashboard - IT staff has begun the design of 

an Executive Dashboard for the purpose of providing service, 

financial and water performance indicators to the public.  

These visual indicators will be provided via the District’s 

public website and it’s estimated that the prototype will be 

completed by December 2014.  

 

FINANCE: 
 

 FEMA Training - Staff completed an additional two days of 

training on Advanced Incident Command Situations to ensure the 

District is best prepared for any emergency.  
 

 Fiscal Sustainability – CWA is holding a series of three 

meetings to see if the member agencies can come to a consensus 

on how to allocate the cost of Carlsbad Desal water to the 

member agencies.  If CWA increases their fixed cost to 

accomplish this, some agencies will benefit and some will pay 

more.  Those agencies planning their own water supply projects 

will incur added costs if the fixed charges are increased.   
 

 Water Use Declines – The District’s water use in September 

dropped by 5.75% when compared to September 2013. Customers 

responded positively to the call to conserve water despite the 

warmer than average temperatures in September.   In the county, 

CWA reported a year-over-year reduction in potable water use of 

4% in September based on data submitted by the 24 member 

agencies. 
 

 Outreach Event - The Fall Garden Expo at the Water Conservation 

Garden will be held on Saturday, November 15th.    
 

 Financial Reporting: 

o For the three months ended September 30, 2014, there are 

total revenues of $26,964,482 and total expenses of 
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$25,098,045.  The revenues exceeded expenses by 

$1,866,437. 
 

o The market value shown in the Portfolio Summary and in the 

Investment Portfolio Details as of September 30, 2014 

total $80,123,282.27 with an average yield to maturity of 

0.61%. The total earnings year-to-date are $126,933.54. 

 

ENGINEERING AND WATER OPERATIONS: 

 

Engineering:  

 

 SR-11 Potable Water Utility Relocations:  This project consists 

of two (2) groups of potable water relocations to accommodate 

the construction of the future SR-11 right-of-way and connector 

ramps.  The first group includes relocation of existing 

pipelines in Sanyo Avenue and utility easements and is 

currently in the construction phase.  The contractor, Coffman 

Specialties Inc., is preparing to begin work to lower the 

District’s 18-inch transmission main to accommodate the 

Caltrans freeway retaining wall footings.  A construction 

contract award for the second group of relocations (6-inch 

potable water blow off relocation), will be presented at the 

January 2015 Board Meeting.  The project is on schedule and 

within budget.  (P2453) 

 

 870-1 Reservoir Access Road Paving:  This project consists of 

paving the existing perimeter dirt road around the 870-1 

Reservoir.  A construction contract was awarded by the Board on 

October 1, 2014 to RAP Engineering, Inc.  A Pre-Construction 

Meeting was held on October 24, 2014 to initiate work on this 

project.  The project is on schedule and within budget.  

(P2515) 

 

 944-1, 944-2, & 458-2 Reservoir Interior/Exterior Coatings & 

Upgrades:  This project consists of removing and replacing the 

interior and exterior coatings of the 944-1 0.3 MG Reservoir, 

the 944-2 3.0 MG Reservoir, and the 458-2 1.8 MG Reservoir 

along with providing structural upgrades to ensure the tanks 

comply with both State and Federal OSHA standards as well as 

American Water Works Association and County Health Department 

standards.  A construction contract was awarded by the Board on 

October 1, 2014 to Olympus & Associates (Olympus).  Flyers were 

sent out to residents near the site notifying them of the 

project, and to provide them contact information should they 

have any questions.  A Pre-Construction Meeting was held on 

October 24, and Olympus plans to mobilize to the site in early 

November.  The project is on schedule and within budget.  

(P2531, P2532, P2535) 
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 Calavo Basin Sewer System Rehabilitation: This project consists 

of removing and replacing approximately 1,200 linear feet of 8-

inch PVC sewer pipeline and construction of 220 feet of new 8-

inch PVC sewer pipeline in the residential streets of the 

Calavo Gardens area near Avocado Boulevard.  This project was 

advertised on July 31, 2014.  A Pre-Bid Meeting was held on 

August 21, 2014.  Bids were opened on September 11, 2014.  The 

low bidder was Arrieta Construction for $529,490.  This item 

will be presented at the November 2014 Board Meeting to award a 

construction contract.  The project is on schedule and within 

budget.  (S2033) 

 

 Rosarito Desalination:  The State Department on September 10, 

2014 signed the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the 

District and the State Department for the preparation of the 

project’s CEQA/NEPA document based on the approval by the Board 

to delete the design services during construction from AECOM’s 

contract.  The execution of this MOU means that the CEQA/NEPA 

process associated with the project and the Presidential Permit 

can begin.  The first step in the process will be the 

publication of the Notice of Preparation/Notice of Intent and 

the scheduling of the scoping meeting for the CEQA/NEPA document 

in early 2015.  NSC Agua submitted to Secretariat of Environment 

and Natural Resources (SEMARNAT) the third and last 

environmental report on September 2, 2014.  Staff, together with 

District’s consultants and representatives from NSC Agua, held a 

telephone conference call on October 1, October 9, and October 

22, 2014 to discuss the project and coordinate on complying with 

the California Water Resources Control Board Drinking Water 

Program regulatory requirements and an impending meeting with 

DDW staff on October 28.  NSC Agua is continuing the seawater 

quality testing.  (P2451) 

 

 870-2 Pump Station Replacement:  This project consists of a new 

pump station to replace the existing Low Head 571-1 and High 

Head 870-1 Pump Stations.  The project is currently 

transitioning from the 30% to 60% design level.  The project is 

on schedule and within budget.  (P2083) 

 

 Water Facilities Master Plan Update:  This project will update 

the District’s existing Water Resources Master Plan that was 

previously updated in October 2008 and revised in May 2013.  

The consultant (Atkins) is anticipated to provide a 30% draft 

for staff review in November 2014.  (P1210) 

 

 For the month of September 2014, the District sold 7 meters 

(63.5 EDUs) generating $593,917 in revenue.  Projection for 

this period was 12.8 meters (15.3 EDUs) with budgeted revenue 

of $140,758.  Total revenue for Fiscal Year 2015 is $1,001,854 

against the annual budget of $1,689,093. 
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Water Operations: 

 

 Total number of potable water meters is 49,298. 

 

 The September potable water purchases were 3,149 acre-feet 

which is 9.0% below the budget of 3,460.6 acre-feet.  The 

cumulative purchases through September is 9,917.3 acre-feet 

which is 0.6% above the cumulative budget of 9,862.8 acre-feet. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 The September recycled water purchases and production was 553.2 

acre-feet which is 10.7% above the budget of 499.5 acre-feet.  

The cumulative production and purchases through September is 

1,706.2 acre-feet which is 17.7 % above the cumulative budget 

of 1,450.2 acre-feet. 
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 Recycled water consumption for the month of September is as 

follows: 

 

o Total consumption was 524.3 acre-feet or 170,793,832 gallons 

and the average daily consumption was 5,693,128 gallons per 

day. 

o Total recycled water consumption as of September for FY 2015 

is 1600.4 acre-feet. 

o Total number of recycled water meters is 707. 

 

 Wastewater flows for the month of September were as follows: 

 

o Total basin flow, gallons per day: 1,594,894. 

o Spring Valley Sanitation District Flow to Metro, gallons per 

day: 528,069. 

o Total Otay flow, gallons per day: 1,066,825. 
o Flow Processed at the Ralph W. Chapman Water Recycling 

Facility, gallons per day: 1,049,894. 

o Flow to Metro from Otay Water District, not including 

solids, was 16,931 gallons per day. 
 

 By the end of September there were 6,089 wastewater EDUs. 

 



REVENUES: 
Potable Water Sales 
Recycled Water Sales 
Potable Energy Charges 
Potable System Charges 
Potable MWD & CW A Fixed Charges 
Potable Penalties 

Total Water Sales 
Sewer Charges 
Meter Fees 
Capacity Fee Revenues 
Betterment Fees for Maintenance 
Non-Operating Revenues 
Tax Revenues 
Interest 
Transfer from Potable General Fund 

Total Revenues 

EXPENSES: 
Potable Water Purchases 
Recycled Water Purchases 
CWA-lnfrastructure Access Charge 
CWA-Customer Service Charge 
CWA-Emergency Storage Charge 
MWD-Capacity Res Charge 
MWD-Readiness to Serve Charge 

Subtotal Water Purchases 
Power Charges 
Payroll & Related Costs 
Material & Maintenance 
Administrative Expenses 
Legal Fees 
Expansion Reserve 
Betterment Reserve 

Replacement Reserve 

New Supply Fee 
Transfer toSewer General Fund 
OPEB Trust 
Potable General Fund 
Sewer Replacement 

Total Expenses 

EXCESS REVENUES(EXPENSE) 

F:/MORPT/FS2015-0914 

OT A Y WATER DISTRICT 

COMPARATIVE BUDGET SUMMARY 

FOR THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2014 

Annual 
Budget Actual Budget 

$ 45,669,500 $ 15,122,388 $ 14,882,100 
8,826,600 3,451,744 3,274,500 
2,145,600 688,748 672,500 

12,337,500 2,814,049 2,810,000 
10,936,200 2,782,710 2,785,000 

870,300 263,338 264,300 
80,785,700 25,122,977 24,688,400 

3,007,700 695,036 693,100 
51,500 21,043 12,900 

1,150,600 283,419 287,700 
301,800 120,083 75,500 

1,947,800 464,620 462,700 
3,763,700 96,804 75,400 

77,400 22,000 19,400 
553,800 138,500 138,500 

$ 91 ,640,000 $ 26,964,482 $ 26,453,600 

$ 34,521,500 $ 10,938,782 $ 10,875,500 
1,60 1,500 549,291 480,740 
1,901,400 468,138 468,300 
1,792,200 445,975 446,100 
4,741,200 1,170,528 1,170,600 

701,400 149,498 149,400 
1,800,000 454,335 450,000 

47,059,200 14,176,547 14,040,640 
2,838,400 1,043,978 1,006,600 

19,747,600 4,898,475 4,868,300 
3,619,800 835,506 897,000 
5,009,200 851,417 984,490 

410,000 52,922 102,500 
2,538,900 634,700 634,700 
3,530,000 882,500 882,500 

3,270,200 817,600 817,600 

705,000 176,300 176,300 

553,800 138,500 138,500 
647,100 161,800 161,800 

1,583,800 396,000 396,000 
127,000 31,800 31,800 

$ 91,640,000 $ 25,098,045 $ 25,138,730 

$ $ 1,866,437 $ 1,314,870 

Exhibit A 

YTD 
Variance Var% 

$ 240,288 1.6% 
177,244 5.4% 

16,248 2.4% 
4,049 0.1% 

(2,290) (0.1%) 

{962~ {0.4%~ 
434,577 1.8% 

1,936 0.3% 
8,143 63 .1% 

(4,281) (1.5%) 
44,583 59.1% 

1,920 0.4% 
21,404 28.4% 

2,600 13.4% 
0.0% 

$ 510,882 1.9% 

$ (63,282) (0.6%) 
(68,551) (14.3%) 

162 0.0% 
125 0.0% 
72 0.0% 

(98) (0.1%) 
{4,335~ {1.0%~ 

{135,906~ {1.0%~ 
(37,378) (3.7%) 
(30,175) (0.6%) 
61,494 6.9% 

133,074 13.5% 
49,578 48.4% 

0.0% 
0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 

$ 40,686 0.2% 

$ 551,567 

10/27/2014 7:52AM 



Investments 

Federal Agency Issues- Callable 

Federal Agency Issues - Coupon 

Certificates of Deposit - Bank 

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 

San Diego County Pool 

Investments 

Cash 

Passbook/Checking 
(not included in yiefd calculations) 

Total Cash and Investments 

Total Earnings 

Current Year 

Average Daily Balance 

Par 
Value 

55,735,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

81 ,784.76 

10,972,020.57 

10,270,913.59 

79,059,718.92 

1,215,382.85 

80,275,101 '77 

September 30 Month Ending 

41 ,909.49 

81,662,178.32 

OTAY 
Portfolio Management 

Portfolio Summary 
September 30, 2014 

Market 
Value 

55,642,736.20 

2,001 ,080.00 

81 ,784.76 

10,975,298.46 

10,207,000.00 

78,907,899.42 

1,215,382.85 

80,123,282.27 

Fiscal Year To Date 

126,933.54 

82,911,710.24 

Book 
Value 

55,739,704.61 

2,002,217.34 

81 ,784.76 

10,972,020.57 

10,270,913.59 

79,066,640.87 

1 ,215,382.85 

80,282,023.72 

Effective Rate of Return 0.62% 0.61% 

%of 
Portfolio 

70.50 

2.53 

0.10 

13.88 

12.99 

100.00% 

Term 

1,006 

878 

730 

732 

732 

Days to 
Maturity 

782 

695 

478 

569 

569 

YTM YTM 
360 Equiv. 365 Equiv. 

0.731 0.741 

0.558 0.566 

0.030 0.030 

0.243 0.246 

0.463 0.469 
--
0.623 0.632 

0.230 0.233 

0.623 0.632 

I hereby certify that the investments contained in this report are made in accordance with the District Investment Policy Number 27 adopted by the Board of Directors on May 7, 2014. The market 
value informatioJl-Pro:v:ide~ractive Data Corporation. The investments provide sufficient liquidity to meet the cash flow requirements of the District for the next six months of expenditures. 

-----.>_ 

Reporting period 09/01/2014-09/30/2014 

Run Date: 10/15/2014 • 09:12 

;'0- ;;L.f-l'f 

Portfolio OTAY 

AP 
PM (PRF _PM1) 7.3.0 

Report Ver. 7.3.3b 



OTAY WATER DISTRICT 
INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO REVIEW 

September 30, 2014 

INVESTMENT OVERVIEW & MARKET STATUS: 

The federal funds rate has remained constant now for over 5 years. On December 16, 2008, at the Federal Reserve Board's regular 
scheduled meeting, the federal funds rate was lowered from 1.00% to "a target range of between Zero and 0.25%" in response to the 
nation's ongoing financial crisis, as well as banking industry pressure to ease credit and stimulate the economy. This marked the ninth 
reduction in a row since September 18,2007, when the rate was 5.25%. There have been no further changes made to the federal funds rate 
at the Federal Reserve Board's subsequent regular scheduled meetings, the most recent of which was held on September 17, 2014. They 
went on to say: "In determining how long to maintain the current 0 to 114 percent target range for the federal funds rate, the Committee 
will assess progress--both realized and expected--toward its objectives of maximum employment and 2 percent inflation. This assessment 
will take into account a wide range of information, including measures of labor market conditions, indicators of inflation pressures and 
inflation expectations, and readings on financial developments. The Committee continues to anticipate, based on its assessment of these 
factors, that it likely will be appropriate to maintain the current target range for the federal funds rate for a considerable time ajier the 
asset purchase program ends, especially if projected inflation continues to run below the Committee's 2 percent longer-run goal, and 
provided that longer-term inflation expectations remain well anchored. " 

Despite the large drop in available interest rates, the District's overall effective rate of return at September 30, 2014 was 0.61 %, which was 
one basis point above the previous month. At the same time the LAIF return on deposits has declined over the previous month, reaching 
an average effective yield of 0.246% for the month of September 2014. Based on our success at maintaining a competitive rate of return 
on our portfolio during this extended period of interest rate declines, no changes in investment strategy regarding returns on investment are 
being considered at this time. This desired portfolio mix is important in mitigating any liquidity risk from unforeseen changes in LAIF or 
County Pool policy. 

In accordance with the District's Investment Policy, all District funds continue to be managed based on the objectives, in priority order, of 
safety, liquidity, and return on investment. 

PORTFOLIO COMPLIANCE: September 30, 2014 
Investment State Limit Ota:y Limit Ota:y Actual 

8.01: Treasury Securities 100% 100% 0 
8.02: Local Agency Investment Fund (Operations) $50 Million $50 Million $10.97 Million 
8.02: Local Agency Investment Fund (Bonds) 100% 100% 0 
8.03: Federal Agency Issues 100% 100% 71.92% 
8.04: Certificates of Deposit 30% 15% 0.10% 
8.05: Short-Term Commercial Notes 25% 10% 0 
8.06: Medium-Term Commercial Debt 30% 10% 0 
8.07: Money Market Mutual Funds 20% 10% 0 
8.08: San Diego County Pool 100% 100% 12.79% 
12.0: Maximum Single Financial Institution 100% 50% 1.51% 



$57,741,922 
71.9% 

OtayWater District 
Investment Portfolio: 09/30/2014 

Total Cash and Investments: $80,282,024 

$1,297,168 
1.6% 

C Banks (Passbook/Checking/CO) • Pools (LAIF & County) C Agencies & Corporate Notes 

$21,242,934 
26.5% 



Target: Meet or Exceed 100% of LAIF 

!9 0.70 
c: 
Cll 
E 0.60 -1/) 
Cll 
> 
.E 
c: 
0 
c: ... 
:I -Cll 
0:: 

Performance Measure FY-15 
Return on Investment 

Month 

gLAIF •Otay c Difference 



CUSIP Investment# 

Federal Agency Issues- Callable 

3133EC6F6 

3133EC7H1 

313382YY3 

3134G4PXO 

3133EDKF8 

3134G4UCO 

3135GOXR9 

3134G4WJ3 

3130A2HW9 

3130AOVG2 

3135GOYW7 

3134G54N2 

3134G55T8 

3130A25S1 

3136G1XZ7 

3134G5A47 

3134G55X9 

3134G4WH7 

3130A1Q84 

3130A1RB6 

3130A1RB6 

3130A1SE9 

3134G56A8 

3134G56NO 

3136G23GO 

3130A1ZX9 

3134G5BL8 

2258 

2260 

2268 

2277 

2291 

2305 

2269 

2284 

2303 

2281 

2276 

2293 

2295 

2299 

2274 

2301 

2298 

2285 

2292 

2289 

2290 

2288 

2297 

2300 

2304 

2296 

2302 

Issuer 

Federal Farm Credit Bank 

Federal Farm Credit Bank 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage 

Federal Farm Credit Bank 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage 

Fannie Mae 

Average 
Balance 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal National Mortage Assoc 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal National Mortage Assoc 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage 

Federal National Mortage Assoc 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage --=--=-----
Subtotal and Average 

Federal Agency Issues - Coupon 

55,272,501 .92 

3135GOYE7 2286 Federal National Mortage Assoc 

Subtotal and Average 2,002,264.28 

Certificates of Deposit - Bank 

20500031 83-6 2283 California Bank & Trust 

Run Date: 1 0/15/2014 - 09:12 

OTAY 
Portfolio Management 

Portfolio Details- Investments 
September 30, 2014 

Purchase 
Date 

12/05/2012 

12/17/2012 

05/22/2013 

12/27/2013 

04/29/2014 

09/08/2014 

06/06/2013 

03/19/2014 

07/07/2014 

02/25/2014 

12/04/2013 

05/28/2014 

06/12/2014 

06/19/2014 

12/19/2013 

06/30/2014 

06/10/2014 

03/20/2014 

05/08/2014 

05/15/2014 

05/15/2014 

05/19/2014 

06/16/2014 

06/26/2014 

08/15/2014 

05/22/2014 

07/17/2014 

04/01/2014 

01/22/2014 

Par Value 

3,000,000.00 

3,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

1,030,000.00 

2, 705,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

55,735,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

81 ,784 .76 

Market Value 

3,003,480.00 

3,003,870.00 

1 ,995,560.00 

1,991 ,900.00 

1,993,840.00 

1,998,940.00 

1,997,240.00 

1,996,960.00 

1,997,460.00 

2,000,700.00 

2,000,700.00 

1 ,999,140.00 

1,996,040.00 

1,995,700.00 

1,992,480.00 

1,994,460.00 

1,995,320.00 

1,995,400.00 

1,995,600.00 

1,028,887.60 

2, 702,078.60 

1 ,995,120.00 

1,997,680.00 

1 ,995, 760.00 

1,992,960.00 

1,990,640.00 

1,994,820.00 

55,642,736.20 

2,001 ,080.00 

2,001 ,080.00 

81 ,784.76 

Stated 
Book Value Rate 

3,000,000.00 

3,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,002,608.81 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,002,095.80 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

1,030,000.00 

2,705,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

55,739,704.61 

2,002,217.34 

2,002,217.34 

81 ,784.76 

0.350 

0.340 

0.350 

0.500 

0.550 

0.650 

0.550 

0.625 

0.660 

0.700 

0.750 

0.750 

0.700 

0.700 

0.670 

0.650 

0.810 

0.900 

1.010 

1.020 

1.020 

1.000 

1.000 

1.000 

1.050 

1.050 

1.220 

0.625 

0.030 

Page 1 

YTM Days to Maturity 
S&P 360 Maturity Date 

AA 0.345 243 06/01/2015 

320 08/17/2015 

509 02/22/2016 

635 06/27/2016 

667 07/29/2016 

667 07/29/2016 

706 09/06/2016 

719 09/19/2016 

737 10/07/2016 

786 11 /25/2016 

786 11/25/2016 

789 11/28/2016 

803 12/12/2016 

0.335 

AA 0.345 

0.493 

0.542 

0.570 

AA 0.542 

0.616 

0.651 

0.690 

0.685 

0.740 

AA 0.690 

0.690 810 12/19/2016 

0.661 810 12/19/2016 

0.641 821 12/30/2016 

0.799 891 03/10/2017 

0.888 901 03/20/2017 

0.996 950 05/08/2017 

1.006 957 05/15/2017 

1.006 957 05/15/2017 

0.986 961 05/19/2017 

0.986 989 06/16/2017 

0.986 999 06/26/2017 

1.036 1 ,049 08/15/2017 

1.036 1,056 08/22/2017 

1.203 1,112 10/17/2017 

0.731 

0.558 

0.558 

0.030 

782 

695 08/26/2016 

695 

478 01/22/2016 

Portfolio OTAY 
AP 

PM (PRF _PM2) 7.3.0 

Report Ver. 7.3.3b 



CUSIP Investment# Issuer 

Subtotal and Average 

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 

LA IF 9001 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

LAIF BABS 2010 9012 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

Subtotal and Average 
- -

San Diego County Pool 

SO COUNTY POOL 9007 San Diego County 

Subtotal and Average 

Total and Average 

Run Date: 1 0/15/2014 - 09: 12 

Average 
Balance 

81,784.76 

11,835,353.90 

10,270,913.59 

81,662,178.32 

OTAY 
Portfolio Management 

Portfolio Details - Investments 
September 30, 2014 

Purchase 
Date Par Value Market Value 

81,784.76 81,784.76 

10,972,020.57 10,975,298.46 

07/01/2014 0.00 0.00 

10,972,020.57 10,975,298.46 

10,270,913.59 10,207,000.00 

10,270,913.59 10,207,000.00 

79,059,718.92 78,907,899.42 

Stated 
Book Value Rate 

81,784.76 

10,972,020.57 0.246 

0.00 0.228 

10,972,020.57 

10,270,913.59 0.469 

10,270,913.59 

79,066,640.87 

Page2 

YTM Daysto Maturity 
S&P 360 Maturity Date 

0.030 478 

0.243 

0.225 ---------
0.243 

0.463 ---------
0.463 

0.623 569 

Portfolio OTAY 

AP 
PM (PRF _PM2) 7.3.0 



CUSIP Investment# Issuer 

Union Bank 

UNION MONEY 9002 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

PETTY CASH 9003 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

UNION OPERATING 9004 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

PAYROLL 9005 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

RESERVE-10 COPS 9010 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

RESERVE-10 BABS 9011 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

UBNA-2010 BOND 9013 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

UBNA-FLEX ACCT 9014 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

Average Balance 

Total Cash and Investments 

Run Date: 1011512014 - 09:12 

Average 
Balance 

0.00 

81 ,662,178.32 

OTAY 
Portfolio Management 
Portfolio Details -Cash 

September 30, 2014 

Purchase 
Date Par Value 

10,001.75 

2,950.00 

1 '133,235.87 

07/01/2014 27,891 .35 

1,687.67 

5,042.78 

07/01/2014 51 .89 

07/01/2014 34,521 .54 

80,275,101 .77 

Market Value Book Value 

10,001 .75 10,001 .75 

2,950.00 2,950.00 

1 '133,235.87 1 '133,235.87 

27,891 .35 27,891 .35 

1,687.67 1,687.67 

5,042.78 5,042.78 

51 .89 51 .89 

34 ,521 .54 34,521 .54 

80,123,282.27 80,282,023.72 

Stated 
Rate S&P 

O.Q10 

0.250 

0.010 

0.010 

Page 3 

YTM Daysto 
360 Maturity 

0.010 

0.000 

0.247 

0.000 

0.010 

0.010 

0.000 

0.000 

0.623 569 

Portfolio OTAY 

AP 
PM (PRF _PM2) 7.3.0 



CUSIP Investment# Fund Issuer 

Security Type: Federal Agency Issues- Callable 

3134G4WH7 2285 99 FHLMC 

3134G54N2 

3134G4WJ3 

3134G55T8 

3134G56A8 

3134G5BL8 

3134G4UCO 

3134G56NO 

3134G5A47 

3134G55X9 

3134G4PXO 

3135GOYW7 
3136G23GO 

3136G1XZ7 

3130A1RB6 

3130A1RB6 

3130A1Q84 

3130A25S1 

3130A2HW9 

3130A1ZX9 

3130A1SE9 

3130AOVG2 

313382YY3 

3133EC6F6 

3133EOKF8 

3133EC7H1 

3135GOXR9 

2293 

2284 

2295 

2297 

2302 

2305 

2300 

2301 

2298 

2277 

2276 

2304 

2274 

2290 

2289 

2292 

2299 

2303 

2296 

2288 
2281 

2268 

2258 

2291 

2260 

2269 

Run Date: 10/15/2014 - 11 :23 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

FHLMC 

FHLMC 
FHLMC 

FHLMC 

FHLMC 

FHLMC 

FHLMC 

FHLMC 

FHLMC 

FHLMC 

FNMA 

FNMA 

FNMA 

FHLB 

FHLB 

FHLB 

FHLB 

FHLB 

FHLB 

FHLB 

FHLB 

FHLB 

FFCB 

FFCB 

FFCB 

FANM 

Subtotal 

OTAY 
Interest Earnings 

Sorted by Security Type - Fund 
September 1, 2014- September 30, 2014 

Period Yield on Beginning Book Value 

Adjusted Interest Earnings 

Ending 
Par Value 

Beginning 
Book Value 

Ending Maturity Current Yield This Interest 
Earned 

Amortization/ Adjusted Interest 

2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 0.00 

2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 2,002,177.03 

2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 

2,705,000.00 2,705,000.00 

1,030,000.00 1,030,000.00 

2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 

3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 

3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 

55,735,000.00 53,737' 177.03 

Book Value Date Rate Period Accretion Earnings 

2,000,000.00 03/20/2017 

2,000,000.00 11/28/2016 

2,000,000.00 09/19/2016 

2,000,000.00 12/12/2016 

2,000,000.00 06/16/2017 

2,000,000.00 10/17/2017 

2,002,608.81 07/29/2016 

2,000,000.00 06/26/2017 

2,000,000.00 12/30/2016 

2,000,000.00 03/10/2017 

2,000,000.00 06/27/2016 

2,002,095.80 11/25/2016 

2,000,000.00 08/15/2017 

2,000,000.00 12/19/2016 

2, 705,000.00 05/15/2017 

1 ,030,000.00 05/15/2017 

2,000,000.00 05/08/2017 

2,000,000.00 12/19/2016 

2,000,000.00 10/07/2016 

2,000,000.00 08/22/2017 

2,000,000.00 05/19/2017 

2,000,000.00 11/25/2016 

2,000,000.00 02/22/2016 

3,000,000.00 06/01/2015 
2,000,000.00 07/29/2016 

3,000,000.00 08/1 7/2015 

2,000,000.00 09/06/2016 

55,739,704.61 

0.900 

0.750 

0.625 

0.700 

1.000 

1.220 

0.650 

1.000 

0.650 

0.810 

0.500 

0.750 
1.050 

0.670 

1.020 

1.020 

1.010 

0.700 

0.660 

1.050 

1.000 

0.700 

0.350 

0.350 

0.550 

0.340 

0.550 

0.075 1,500.00 0.00 1 ,500.00 

0.063 1,250.00 0.00 1,250.00 

0.052 1,041 .67 0.00 1,041 .67 

0.058 1,166.67 0.00 1,166.67 

0.083 1,666.66 0.00 1,666.66 

0.102 2,033.34 0.00 2,033.34 

0.048 830.56 -91 .19 739.37 

0.083 1,666.67 0.00 1,666.67 

0.054 1,083.33 0.00 1,083.33 

0.068 1 ,350.00 0.00 1,350.00 

0.042 833.33 0.00 833.33 

0.058 1,250.00 -81 .23 1 '168.77 
0.088 1,750.00 0.00 1,750.00 

0.056 1 '116.67 0.00 1 '116.67 

0.085 2,299.25 0.00 2,299.25 

0.085 875.50 0.00 875.50 

0.084 1,683.33 0.00 1,683.33 

0.058 1 '166.67 0.00 1 '166.67 

0.055 1 '100.00 0.00 1 '100.00 

0.088 1,750.00 0.00 1,750.00 

0.083 1 ,666.66 0.00 1,666.66 

0.058 1 '166.67 0.00 1 '166.67 

0.029 583.33 0.00 583.33 

0.029 875.00 0.00 875.00 

0.046 916.66 0.00 916.66 

0.028 850.00 0.00 850.00 

0.046 916.67 0.00 916.67 

0.062 34,388.64 -172.42 34,216.22 

Portfolio OTAY 
AP 

IE (PRF _ IE) 7.2.0 

Report Ver. 7.3.3b 



Ending 
CUSIP Investment# Fund Issuer Par Value 

Security Type: Federal Agency Issues - Coupon 

3135GOYE7 2286 99 FNMA 2,000,000.00 

Subtotal 2,000,000.00 

Security Type: Certificates of Deposit - Bank 

2050003183-6 2283 99 CB&T 81 ,784.76 

Subtotal 81 ,784.76 
---· 

Security Type: Union Bank 

RESERVE-10 BABS 9011 99 CA 5,042.78 

RESERVE-1 0 COPS 9010 99 CA 1,687.67 

UNION OPERATING 9004 99 CA 1 '133,235.87 
UNION MONEY 9002 99 CA 10,001 .75 

Subtotal 1,149,968.07 
-- -

Security Type: Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 

LA IF 9001 99 CA 10,972,020.57 

Subtotal 10,972,020.57 

Security Type: San Diego County Pool 

SO COUNTY POOL 9007 99 soc 10,270,913.59 

Subtotal 10,270,913.59 

Total 80,209,686.99 

Run Date: 10/15/201 4 - 11 :23 

OTAY 
Interest Earnings 

September 1, 2014- September 30,2014 

Beginning Ending Maturity Current Yield This 
Book Value Book Value Date Rate Period 

-----

2,002,314.45 2,002,217.34 08/26/2016 0.625 0.047 

2,002,314.45 2,002,217.34 0.047 

81 ,784.76 81,784.76 01 /22/2016 0.030 0.002 

81 ,784.76 81,784.76 0.002 
--

5,042.30 5,042.78 0.010 0.001 

1,687.43 1,687.67 0.010 0.001 

1,944,939.77 1 '133,235.87 0.250 0.020 
10,005.64 10,001 .75 0.010 0.017 

1,961,675.14 1 '149,968.07 0.020 

13,072,020.57 10,972,020.57 0.246 0.018 

13,072,020.57 10,972,020.57 0.018 

10,270,913.59 10,270,913.59 0.469 0.039 

10,270,913.59 10,270,913.59 0.039 

81 '125,885.54 80,216,608.94 0.051 

Interest 
Earned 

1,041.67 

1,041 .67 

2.04 

2.04 

0.05 

0.02 

392.62 
1.74 

394.43 

2,393.01 

2,393.01 

3,959.23 

3,959.23 

42,179.02 

Page2 

Adjusted Interest Earnings 

Amortization/ 
Accretion 

-97.11 

-97.11 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

-269.53 

Adjusted Interest 
Earnings 

944.56 

944.56 

2.04 

2.04 

0.05 

0.02 

392.62 
1.74 

394.43 

2,393.01 

2,393.01 

3,959.23 

3,959.23 

41 ,909.49 

Portfolio OTAY 
AP 

IE (PRF _IE) 7.2.0 
Report Ver. 7.3.3b 



CUSIP Investment# Issuer 
Percent 

of Portfolio 

Issuer: STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

Union Bank 

UNION MONEY 9002 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

UNION OPERATING 9004 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

RESERVE-10 COPS 9010 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

RESERVE-10 BABS 9011 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

UBNA-FLEX ACCT 9014 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

Subtotal and Balance 

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 

LAIF 9001 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

Subtotal and Balance 

Issuer Subtotal 15.182% 

Issuer: California Bank & Trust 

Certificates of Deposit- Bank 

Subtotal and Balance 

Issuer Subtotal 0.102% 

Issuer: Fannie Mae 

Federal Agency Issues- Callable 

Subtotal and Balance 

Issuer Subtotal 2.491% 

Issuer: Federal Farm Credit Bank 

Federal Agency Issues- Callable 

Subtotal and Balance 

Run Date: 10/1512014 - 11:22 

OTAY 
Activity Report 
Sorted By Issuer 

September 1, 2014- September 30, 2014 

Par Value 

Beginning Current Transaction 
Balance Rate Date 

0.010 

0.250 

0.010 

0.010 

2,037,694.80 

0.246 

13,072,020.57 

15,109,715.37 

81,784.76 

81,784.76 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

8,000,000.00 

Purchases or 
Deposits 

2,013,854.44 

125,857.92 

0.24 

0.48 

0.00 

2,139,713.08 

2,500,000.00 

2,500,000.00 

4,639,713.08 

0.00 

0.00 

Par Value 

Redemptions or 
Withdrawals 

2,013,858.33 

937,561 .82 

0.00 

0.00 

10,604.88 

2,962,025.03 

4,600,000.00 

4,600,000.00 

7,562,025.03 

0.00 

0.00 

Ending 
Balance 

1,215,382.85 

10,972,020.57 

12,187,403.42 

81,784.76 

81,784.76 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

8,000,000.00 

Portfolio OTAY 

AP 
DA (PRF _DA) 7.2.0 

Report Ver. 7.3.3b 



Percent 
CUSIP Investment # Issuer of Portfolio 

Issuer Subtotal 9.966% 

Issuer: Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Agency Issues- Callable 

Subtotal and Balance 

Issuer Subtotal 22.093% 

Issuer: Federal Home Loan Mortgage 

Federal Agency Issues- Callable 

3134G4UCO 2305 Federal Home Loan Mortgage 

Subtotal and Balance 

Issuer Subtotal 27.406% 

Issuer: Federal National Mortage Assoc 

Federal Agency Issues- Callable 

Subtotal and Balance 
-

Federal Agency Issues -Coupon 

Subtotal and Balance 

Issuer Subtotal 9.966% 

Issuer: San Diego County 

San Diego County Pool 

Subtotal and Balance 

Issuer Subtotal 12.795% 

Total 100.000% 

Run Date: 1011512014 - 11 :22 

OTAY 
Activity Report 

September 1, 2014- September 30, 2014 

Par Value 

Beginning Current Transaction Purchases or 
Balance Rate Date Deposits 

8,000,000.00 0.00 

17,735,000.00 

17,735,000.00 0.00 

0.650 09/08/2014 2,000,000.00 

20,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 

20,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 

6,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

8,000,000.00 0.00 

10,270,913.59 

10,270,913.59 0.00 

81 '197 ,413. 72 6,639,713.08 

Par Value 

Redemptions or 
Withdrawals 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

7,562,025.03 
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Ending 
Balance 

8,000,000.00 

17,735,000.00 

17,735,000.00 

22,000,000.00 

22,000,000.00 

6,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

8,000,000.00 

10,270,913.59 

10,270,913.59 

80,275,101 .77 

Portfolio OTAY 
AP 

DA (PRF _DA) 7.2.0 
Report Ver. 7.3.3b 



CUSIP Investment # 

Fund: Treasury Fund 

3134G4WH7 

3134G54N2 

3134G4WJ3 

3134G55T8 

3134G56A8 

3134G5BL8 

3134G4UCO 

3134G56NO 

3134G5A47 

3134G55X9 

3134G4PXO 

3135GOYW7 

3136G23GO 

3135GOYE7 

3136G1XZ7 

3130A1RB6 

3130A1RB6 

3130A1Q84 

3130A25S1 

3130A2HW9 

3130A1ZX9 

3130A1SE9 

2285 

2293 

2284 

2295 

2297 

2302 

2305 

2300 

2301 

2298 

2277 

2276 

2304 

2286 

2274 

2290 

2289 

2292 

2299 

2303 

2296 

2288 

3130AOVG2 2281 

313382YY3 2268 

RESERVE-10 BABS 9011 

RESERVE-10 COPS 9010 

PAYROLL 9005 

PETIY CASH 9003 

UNION OPERATING 9004 

UBNA-2010 BOND 9013 

UNION MONEY 9002 

Run Date: 10/15/2014 -1 1:21 

Fund 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

Investment 
Class 

Fair Value 

Fair Value 

Fair Value 

Fair Value 

Fair Value 

Fair Value 

Fair Value 

Fair Value 

Fair Value 

Fair Value 

Fair Value 

Fair Value 

Fair Value 

Fair Value 

Fair Value 

Fair Value 

Fair Value 

Fair Value 

Fair Value 

Fair Value 

Fair Value 

Fair Value 

Fair Value 

Fair Value 

Amortized 

Amortized 

Amortized 

Amortized 

Amortized 

Amortized 

Amortized 

Maturity 
Date 

03/20/2017 

11/28/2016 

09/19/2016 

12/12/2016 

06/16/2017 

10/17/201 7 

07/29/2016 

06/26/2017 

12/30/2016 

03/10/2017 

06/27/2016 

11/25/2016 

08/15/2017 

08/26/2016 

12/19/2016 

05/15/2017 

05/15/2017 

05/08/2017 

12/19/2016 

10/07/2016 

08/22/2017 

05/19/2017 

11/25/2016 

02/22/2016 

OTAY 
GASB 31 Compliance Detail 

Sorted by Fund - Fund 
September 1, 2014- September 30, 2014 

Beginning 
Invested Value 

1,998,200.00 

2,002,460.00 

2,000,520.00 

1,999,720.00 

2,000,700.00 

2,000,240.00 

0.00 

1,999,260.00 

1,998,160.00 

1,998,300.00 

1,995,740.00 

2,002,340.00 

2,000,220.00 

2,001 ,300.00 

1,995,080.00 

2,707,732.05 

1,031 ,040.30 

1,999,680.00 

1,997,860.00 

1,998,820.00 

1,995,960.00 

1,999,340.00 

2,002,280.00 

1,996,940.00 

5,042.30 

1,687.43 

27,891 .35 

2,950.00 

1,944,939.77 

51 .89 

10,005.64 

Purchase 
of Principal 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

2,002,700.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Addition 
to Principal 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.48 

0.24 

0.00 

0.00 

125,857.92 

0.00 

2,013,854.44 

Redemption 
of Principal 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

937,561 .82 

0.00 

2,013,858.33 

Adjustment in Value 

Amortization 
Adjustment 

~00 

~00 

~00 

~00 

~00 

~00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

~00 

~00 

~00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

~00 

Change in 
Market Value 

-2 ,800.00 

-3 ,320.00 

-3 ,560.00 

-3 ,680.00 

-3,020.00 

-5,420.00 

-3 ,760.00 

-3,500.00 

-3 ,700.00 

-2,980.00 

-3,840.00 

-1,640.00 

-7,260.00 

-220.00 

-2,600.00 

-5 ,653.45 

-2 ,152.70 

-4 ,080.00 

-2,160.00 

-1,360.00 

-5,320.00 

-4,220.00 

-1,580.00 

-1,380.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Ending 
Invested Value 

1 ,995,400.00 

1 ,999,140.00 

1,996,960.00 

1,996,040.00 

1,997,680.00 

1,994,820.00 

1,998,940.00 

1,995 ,760.00 

1,994,460.00 

1,995,320.00 

1,991 ,900.00 

2,000,700.00 

1,992,960.00 

2,001 ,080.00 

1,992,480.00 

2,702,078.60 

1,028,887.60 

1,995,600.00 

1,995,700.00 

1,997,460.00 

1,990,640.00 

1 ,995,120.00 

2,000, 700.00 

1,995,560.00 

5,042.78 

1,687.67 

27,891 .35 

2,950.00 

1 '133,235.87 

51 .89 

10,001 .75 

Portfolio OTAY 

AP 

GD(PRF_GD)7.1.1 
Report Ver. 7.3.3b 



OTAY 
GASB 31 Compliance Detail 

Sorted by Fund - Fund 

Investment Maturity Beginning Purchase 
CUSIP Investment # Fund Class Date Invested Value of Principal 

Fund: Treasury Fund 

LAIF BABS 2010 9012 99 Fair Value 0.00 0.00 

LA IF 9001 99 Fair Value 13,075,925.84 0.00 

UBNA-FLEX ACCT 9014 99 Amortized 45,126.42 0.00 

3133EC6F6 2258 99 Fair Value 06/01/2015 3,004,890.00 0.00 

3133EDKF8 2291 99 Fair Value 07/29/2016 1,999,100.00 0.00 

3133EC7H1 2260 99 Fair Value 08/17/2015 3,005,490.00 0.00 

2050003183-6 2283 99 Amortized 01/22/2016 81 ,784.76 0.00 

3135GOXR9 2269 99 Fair Value 09/06/2016 1,998,640.00 0.00 

SO COUNTY POOL 9007 99 Fair Value 10,181 ,000.00 0.00 

Subtotal 81 ,106,417.75 2,002,700.00 

Total 81 ,1 06,417.75 2,002,700.00 

Run Data: 10/15/2014 - 11 :21 

Adjustment In Value 

Addition Redemption Amortization Change In 
to Principal of Principal Adjustment Market Value 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

2,500,000.00 4,600,000.00 0.00 -627.38 

0.00 10,604.88 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 -1,410.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 -5,260.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 -1 ,620.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 -1 ,400.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 26,000.00 

4,639,713.08 7,562,025.03 0.00 -63,523.53 

4,639,713.08 7,562,025.03 0.00 -63,523.53 

Page 2 

Ending 
Invested Value 

0.00 

10,975,298.46 

34,521 .54 

3,003,480.00 

1,993,840.00 

3,003,870.00 

81,784.76 

1,997,240.00 

10,207,000.00 

80,123,282.27 

80,1 23,282.27 

Portfolio OTAY 
AP 

GO (PRF _GO) 7.1.1 
Report Ver. 7.3.3b 



Security ID 

3134G5BL6 

3134G4WH7 

3134G5A47 

3134G56NO 

3134G4UCO 

3134G4PXO 

3134G4WJ3 

3134G56A6 

3134G55T6 

3134G55X9 

3134G54N2 

3135GOYW7 

3136G23GO 

3136G1XZ7 

3130AOVG2 

3130A1SE9 

313362YY3 

3130A25S1 

3130A1Q64 

3130A1RB6 

3130A2HW9 

3130A1ZX9 

3130A1RB6 

3133EDKF6 

3133EC6F6 

3133EC7H1 

3135GOXR9 

Investment# Fund 

2302 

2265 

2301 

2300 

2305 

2277 

2264 

2297 

2295 

2296 

2293 

2276 

2304 

2274 

2261 

2266 

2266 

2299 

2292 

2290 

2303 

2296 

2269 

2291 

2256 

2260 

2269 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

99 

Run Date: 10/15/2014 - 11:25 

OTAY 
Duration Report 

Sorted by Investment Type - Investment Type 
Through 09/30/2014 

Issuer 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage 

Federal National Mortage Assoc 

Federal National Mortage Assoc 

Federal National Mortage Assoc 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Farm Credit Bank 

Federal Farm Credit Bank 

Federal Farm Credit Bank 

Fannie Mae 

Investment 
Class 

Fair 

Fair 

Fair 

Fair 

Fair 

Fair 

Fair 

Fair 

Fair 

Fair 

Fair 

Fair 

Fair 

Fair 

Fair 

Fair 

Fair 

Fair 

Fair 

Fair 

Fair 

Fair 

Fair 

Fair 

Fair 

Fair 

Fair 

Book 
Value 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,002,606.61 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,002,095.60 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,705,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

1,030,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

3 ,000,000.00 

3,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 
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Par 
Value 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,705,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

1,030,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

3 ,000,000.00 

3,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

Market Current 
Value Rate 

1,994,620.00 1.220000 

1,995,400.00 .9000000 

1,994,460.00 .6500000 

1,995,760.00 1.000000 

1,996,940.00 .6500000 

1,991 ,900.00 .5000000 

1,996,960.00 .6250000 

1,997,660.00 1.000000 

1,996,040.00 .7000000 

1,995,320.00 .6100000 

1,999,140.00 .7500000 

2,000, 700.00 . 7500000 

1,992,960.00 1.050000 

1,992,460.00 .6700000 

2,000,700.00 .7000000 

1,995,120.00 1.000000 

1,995,560.00 .3500000 

1,995,700.00 .7000000 

1,995,600.00 1.010000 

2,702,076.60 1.020000 

1,997,460.00 .6600000 

1,990,640.00 1.050000 

1,026,667.60 1.020000 

1 '993,640.00 .5500000 

3,003,460.00 .3500000 

3,003,670.00 .3400000 

1,997,240.00 .5500000 

YTM Current 
360 Yield 

1.203 

0.666 

0.641 

0.966 

0.570 

0.493 

0.616 

0.966 

0.690 

0.799 

0.740 

0.665 

1.036 

0.661 

0.690 

0.966 

0.345 

0.690 

0.996 

1.006 

0.651 

1.036 

1.006 

0.542 

0.345 

0.335 

0.542 

1.307 

0.995 

0.775 

1.079 

0.679 

0.735 

0.703 

1.044 

0.791 

0.907 

0.770 

0.660 

1.175 

0.642 

0.664 

1.094 

0.510 

0.796 

1.096 

1.062 

0.724 

1.215 

1.062 

0.720 

0.176 

0.062 

0.627 

Maturity/ Modified 
Call Date Duration 

1011712017 

03/20/2017 

1213012016 

06/2612017 

07129/2016 

06/2712016 

0911912016 

06/16/2017 

12112/2016 

03/10/201 7 

11126/2016 

11 /25/2016 

06/15/2017 

12/19/2016 

11/25/2016 

05/19/2017 

02/2212016 

12/19/2016 

05/06/2017 

05/15/2017 

10/07/2016 

06/22/2017 

05/15/2017 

07/29/2016 

06/01 /2015 

06/1712015 

09/06/2016 

2.971 

2.435 

2.222 

2.664 

1.612 

1.725 

1.950 

2.657 

2.170 

2.405 

2.131 

2.124 

2.616 

2.190 

2.129 

2.562 

1.365 

2.190 

2.551 

2.570 

1.996 

2.635 

2.570 

1.612 

0.664 

0.676 

1.914 

Portfolio OTAY 

AP 
DU (PRF _DU) 7.1.1 

Report Ver. 7.3.3b 



OTAY 
Duration Report 

Sorted by Investment Type - Investment Type 
Through 09/30/2014 

Investment Book Par 
Securi~ ID Investment # Fund Issuer Class Value Value 

3135GOYE7 2286 99 Federal National Mortage Assoc Fair 2,002,217.34 2,000,000.00 

2050003183-6 2283 99 California Bank & Trust Amort 81 ,784.76 81 ,784.76 

LAIF BABS 2010 9012 99 STATE OF CALIFORNIA Fair 0.00 0.00 

LA IF 9001 99 STATE OF CALIFORNIA Fair 10,972,020.57 10,972,020.57 

SD COUNTY 9007 99 San Diego County Fair 10,270,913.59 10,270,913.59 

Report Total 79,066,640.87 79,059,718.92 

Run Date: 10/15/2014 - 11 :25 Page 2 

Market Current YTM 
Value Rate 360 

2,001 ,080.00 .6250000 0.558 

81 ,784.76 .0300000 0.030 

0.00 .2460000 0.243 

10,975,298.46 .2460000 0.243 

10,207,000.00 .4690000 0.463 

78,907,899.42 

Current 
Yield 

0.596 

0.030 

0.246 

0.246 

0.469 

0.680 

Maturity/ Modified 
Call Date Duration 

08/26/2016 1.887 

01/22/2016 1.308 

0.000 

0.000 

0.000 

1.536 

Portfolio OTAY 

AP 
DU (PRF _DU) 7.1.1 

Report Ver. 7.3.3b 





Check Total

7,494.18

15,136.96

15,827.48

SHAREPOINT SERVICES (8/14/14) 437.50 437.50

952109 09/11/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 418.84

2041367 10/01/14 08488 ABLEFORCE INC 4439 09/09/14

952192 09/12/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 824.92

951518 09/04/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 527.71

952126 09/11/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 909.28

951516 09/04/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 876.91

952394 09/15/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 1,319.28

951797 09/08/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 1,033.85

951796 09/08/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 1,381.08

952393 09/15/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 1,329.09

951724 09/05/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 1,664.55

951798 09/08/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 1,524.29

SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 2,020.61

952125 09/11/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 1,997.07

953442 09/29/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 357.04

2041366 10/01/14 01910 ABCANA INDUSTRIES 951374 09/02/14

952702 09/18/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 411.97

953413 09/26/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 378.62

953444 09/29/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 529.68

953226 09/25/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 463.96

953441 09/29/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 851.40

952877 09/19/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 695.44

952605 09/17/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 921.05

953443 09/29/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 909.28

952908 09/22/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 1,018.15

953228 09/25/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 953.42

953440 09/29/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 1,322.23

953412 09/26/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 1,113.30

952876 09/19/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 1,708.69

952905 09/22/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 1,635.13

1,796.49 1,796.49

2041463 10/15/14 01910 ABCANA INDUSTRIES 952600 09/17/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 1,867.60

TRASH SERVICES (AUG 2014) 373.06 373.06

2041525 10/22/14 15875 ABC CONSTRUCTION CO Ref002436528 10/20/14 UB Refund Cst #0000214442

12202195 08/29/14 COMMUNITY OUTREACH / DESAL (AUG 2014) 2,234.58

2041334 09/24/14 02362 ALLIED WASTE SERVICES # 509 0509005692776 09/01/14

 Amount 

2041416 10/08/14 15645 (W)RIGHT ON COMMUNICATIONS INC 12202194 08/29/14 COMMUNITY OUTREACH (A) (AUG 2014) 5,259.60

CHECK REGISTER

Otay Water District

Date Range:  9/18/2014 - 10/22/2014

Check # Date Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Inv. Date Description
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Check Total Amount 

CHECK REGISTER

Otay Water District

Date Range:  9/18/2014 - 10/22/2014

Check # Date Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Inv. Date Description

5,479.80

4,225.75

1,446.00

31.20

1,149.92

160.00

TELEPHONE SERVICES (MONTHLY) 5,907.59 5,907.592041376 10/01/14 07785 AT&T 000005714024 09/02/14

316.66

2041375 10/01/14 11282 ASHTON, PATRICK 092914 09/29/14 SAFETY BOOT REIMBURSEMENT 145.79 145.79

1,110.00 1,110.00

2041419 10/08/14 08967 ANTHEM BLUE CROSS EAP 41253 09/23/14 EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (OCT 2014) 316.66

PAGERS (SEPT 2014) 251.72 251.72

2041374 10/01/14 00002 ANSWER INC 10540 09/22/14 ANSWERING SERVICES (MONTHLY)

2041467 10/15/14 06166 AMERICAN MESSAGING L11095700J 10/01/14

09/25/14 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL 80.00

R1183-14 09/25/14 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL 80.00

927.20

9003586116 09/25/14 MISC ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES 222.72

2041373 10/01/14 10831 AMERICAN BACKFLOW PREVENTION R1184-14

CONSULTING SERVICES 6,750.00 6,750.00

2041527 10/22/14 01463 ALLIED ELECTRONICS INC 9003523756 09/10/14 ETHERNET SWITCHES

165982 09/23/14 FAC CONVERSIONS / 1004-2 RES (9/23/14-9/30/14) 10.40

2041466 10/15/14 14256 ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES INC 173483 09/02/14

FAC CONVERSIONS / SC STATION (9/23/14-9/30/14) 10.40

165977 09/23/14 FAC CONVERSIONS / 1655-1 HS (9/23/14-9/30/14) 10.40

2041418 10/08/14 14811 ALARMS UNLIMITED INC 165984 09/23/14

MONTHLY MONITORING (OCT 2014) 1,407.00

166260 10/01/14 MONTHLY MONITORING (OCT 2014) 39.00

2041465 10/15/14 14811 ALARMS UNLIMITED INC 166761 10/01/14

1,541.69

165983 09/23/14 FACILITY CONVERSIONS 1,527.86

165981 09/23/14 FACILITY CONVERSIONS 1,156.20

LAND SURVEYING (8/1/14-8/31/14) 7,280.00 7,280.00

2041372 10/01/14 14811 ALARMS UNLIMITED INC 165976 09/23/14 FACILITY CONVERSIONS

2041371 10/01/14 15024 AIRX UTILITY SURVEYORS INC 11 09/04/14

131352395 09/16/14 AQUA AMMONIA 1,532.40

131352393 09/16/14 AQUA AMMONIA 835.80

1,320.00

2041464 10/15/14 07732 AIRGAS SPECIALTY PRODUCTS INC 131352394 09/16/14 AQUA AMMONIA 3,111.60

1,844.59 1,844.59

2041370 10/01/14 11803 AEROTEK ENVIRONMENTAL OE01075624 09/18/14 TEMPORARY EMPLOYMENT (9/1/14-9/6/14) 1,320.00

DEVELOPER PROJECTS (8/2/14-9/5/14) 36,570.94 36,570.94

2041526 10/22/14 15867 AEROSTAR SES LLC Ref002436520 10/20/14 UB Refund Cst #0000206233

2041369 10/01/14 11462 AEGIS ENGINEERING MGMT INC 1313 09/10/14

104.81

2041368 10/01/14 12174 AECOM TECHNICAL SERVICES INC 21 09/08/14 DISINFECTION SYSTEM (ENDING 8/22/14) 10,206.31 10,206.31

50.32 50.32

2041333 09/24/14 15818 ADRIANA WOODCOCK Ref002436066 09/22/14 UB Refund Cst #0000182040 104.81

2041417 10/08/14 15845 ADRIAN JIMENEZ Ref002436250 10/06/14 UB Refund Cst #0000204266

Page 2 of 14

C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesackhsh@@1064724EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesavendr@@2354494EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesainhsh@@2420749EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesackhsh@@1064733EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesavendr@@2358095EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesainhsh@@2420748EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesackhsh@@1068146EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesavendr@@2355712EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesainhsh@@2420831EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesackhsh@@1064701EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesavendr@@2EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesainhsh@@2420747EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesackhsh@@1069043EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesavendr@@2352781EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesainhsh@@2420906EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesainhsh@@2420746EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesainhsh@@2420998EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesackhsh@@1064731EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesavendr@@2357631EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesainhsh@@2420745EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesackhsh@@1070711EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesavendr@@1463EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesainhsh@@2420997EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesainhsh@@2420830EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesackhsh@@1069061EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesavendr@@2361318EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesainhsh@@2420905EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesainhsh@@2420829EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesackhsh@@1068155EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesavendr@@2361894EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesainhsh@@2420828EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesainhsh@@2420904EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesackhsh@@1069063EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesavendr@@2361894EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesainhsh@@2420903EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesainhsh@@2420743EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesainhsh@@2420744EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesackhsh@@1064741EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesavendr@@2361894EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesainhsh@@2420742EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesackhsh@@1064742EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesavendr@@2362113EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesainhsh@@2420741EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesainhsh@@2420901EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesainhsh@@2420902EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesackhsh@@1069048EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesavendr@@2354439EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesainhsh@@2420900EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesackhsh@@1064735EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesavendr@@2358630EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesainhsh@@2420740EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesackhsh@@1070744EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesavendr@@2362988EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesainhsh@@2420996EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesackhsh@@1064734EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesavendr@@2358282EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesainhsh@@2420739EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesackhsh@@1064736EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesavendr@@2359018EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesainhsh@@2420738EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesackhsh@@1063957EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesavendr@@2362934EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesainhsh@@2420687EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesackhsh@@1068170EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesavendr@@2362962EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs
C:/Users/devenr/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.Outlook/HK1LHMW9/eagleesainhsh@@2420827EDEN Customer documentsstddocs,apdocs


Check Total Amount 

CHECK REGISTER

Otay Water District

Date Range:  9/18/2014 - 10/22/2014

Check # Date Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Inv. Date Description

2,429.06

UB Refund Cst #0000004701 159.08 159.082041423 10/08/14 15835 CATHY MILLER Ref002436238 10/06/14

13,809.70

2041533 10/22/14 15864 CASSIE LEA Ref002436517 10/20/14 UB Refund Cst #0000205162 29.02 29.02

63.40 63.40

2041380 10/01/14 15177 CAROLLO ENGINEERS INC 0137041 09/15/14 DESIGN FOR 870-2 PS (8/1/14-8/31/14) 13,809.70

UB Refund Cst #0000206840 131.95 131.95

2041532 10/22/14 04653 CARO, PATRICIA 101614PC 10/17/14 TUITION REIMBURSEMENT

2041338 09/24/14 15828 CARMEN KITAGAWA Ref002436076 09/22/14

38.50

2041337 09/24/14 15823 CARMEN GONZALEZ Ref002436071 09/22/14 UB Refund Cst #0000203554 40.04 40.04

10.42 10.42

2041379 10/01/14 02758 CARMEL BUSINESS SYSTEMS INC 7812 08/08/14 DESTRUCTION SERVICES (8/5/14) 38.50

TRAVEL EXPENSE REIMB (10/7/14) 126.00 126.00

2041531 10/22/14 15869 CARLOS JIMENEZ Ref002436522 10/20/14 UB Refund Cst #0000207282

333124 09/23/14 SAFETY ITEMS 31.96

2041472 10/15/14 11057 CAREY, ANDREA 100714 10/10/14

333154 09/29/14 SAFETY ITEMS 335.14

333155 09/29/14 SAFETY ITEMS 275.93

2,259.59 2,259.59

2041471 10/15/14 01004 CALOLYMPIC SAFETY 333156 09/29/14 SAFETY ITEMS 1,786.03

PRINTING AND MAILING 1,945.95 1,945.95

2041336 09/24/14 01432 CALIFORNIA URBAN WATER G1_2014-0179 09/18/14 2014 DUES

2041422 10/08/14 11461 BUSINESS PRINTING CO INC 3541093014 09/30/14

2,639.46

2041335 09/24/14 14112 BSE ENGINEERING INC 52942 08/26/14 ELECTRICAL SERVICES (7/1/14-7/31/14) 2,666.89 2,666.89

70.00 70.00

2041421 10/08/14 08156 BROWNSTEIN HYATT FARBER 578371 09/22/14 LEGISLATIVE ADVOCACY (THRU 8/31/14) 2,639.46

UB Refund Cst #0000208760 20.55 20.55

2041378 10/01/14 02977 BROWN, VINCENT 0382092414 09/29/14 CERTIFICATION RENEWAL

2041530 10/22/14 15872 BRENDA SWANSON Ref002436525 10/20/14

55.57

2041470 10/15/14 02434 BLACK BOX CORPORATION IN0179738 09/24/14 ETHERNET CONVERTER 760.42 760.42

20.30 20.30

2041420 10/08/14 15848 BEVERLY O'DAY Ref002436253 10/06/14 UB Refund Cst #0000209021 55.57

2015 WFMP UPDATE (7/1/14-8/31/14) 28,987.60 28,987.60

2041529 10/22/14 15863 BEATRIZ HERNANDEZ Ref002436516 10/20/14 UB Refund Cst #0000198514

2041377 10/01/14 12810 ATKINS 1201750 09/09/14

5,933.72

2041469 10/15/14 12810 ATKINS 1202893 09/22/14 DESIGN SERVICES (7/28/14-8/31/14) 595.00 595.00

1,229.08 1,229.08

2041528 10/22/14 07785 AT&T 000005801668 10/02/14 TELEPHONE SERVICES (9/2/14-10/1/14) 5,933.72

TELEPHONE SERVICES (MONTHLY) 5,907.59 5,907.59

2041468 10/15/14 07785 AT&T 000005800473 10/01/14 TELEPHONE SERVICES (SEPT 2014)

2041376 10/01/14 07785 AT&T 000005714024 09/02/14
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Check Total Amount 

CHECK REGISTER

Otay Water District

Date Range:  9/18/2014 - 10/22/2014

Check # Date Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Inv. Date Description

13,560.00

284.00

4,058.00

1,775.00

882.72 882.72

INTERNET SERVICES (9/29/14-10/28/14) 450.00 450.00

2041480 10/15/14 06415 CUMMINS CAL PACIFIC LLC 00876572 07/25/14 ENGINE DIAGNOSTICS

2041479 10/15/14 02756 COX COMMUNICATIONS INC 6701092914 09/29/14

2003193E609630914 10/17/14 SHUT DOWN TEST (9/2/14) 142.00

2003193E609800914 10/17/14 SHUT DOWN TEST (9/15/14) 142.00

2003193E609910914 10/17/14 SHUT DOWN TEST (9/22/14) 284.00

2003193E609930914 10/17/14 SHUT DOWN TEST (9/24/14) 142.00

SHUT DOWN TEST (9/26/14) 710.00

2003193E602350914 10/17/14 SHUT DOWN TEST (9/22/14) 355.00

5365091514 09/15/14 UPFP PERMIT RENEWAL (10/31/14-10/31/15) 446.00

2041538 10/22/14 00184 COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO 2003193E602130914 10/17/14

UPFP PERMIT RENEWAL (10/31/14 - 10/31/15) 2,186.00

5363091514 09/15/14 UPFP PERMIT RENEWAL (10/31/14 - 10/31/15) 1,426.00

2041383 10/01/14 00184 COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO 5364091514 09/15/14

SHUT DOWN TEST (8/8/14) 142.00

2003193E609160814 10/09/14 SHUT DOWN TEST (8/1/14) 142.00

2041478 10/15/14 00184 COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO 2003193E609230814 10/09/14

2,196.10

2041537 10/22/14 00099 COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO DPWAROTAYMWD081409/10/14 EXCAVATION PERMITS (AUG 2014) 3,644.30 3,644.30

410.54 410.54

2041340 09/24/14 00099 COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO DPWAROTAYMWD071409/01/14 EXCAVATION PERMITS (JULY 2014) 2,196.10

TAPE STORAGE (SEPT 2014) 429.77 429.77

2041382 10/01/14 12334 CORODATA MEDIA STORAGE INC DS1264386 09/24/14 TAPE STORAGE (AUG 2014)

09/29/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORIDE TANKS 3,690.00 3,690.00

2041477 10/15/14 12334 CORODATA MEDIA STORAGE INC DS1264804 09/30/14

7,260.00

50011512 08/04/14 DATA SERVICES / REALQUEST (8/1/14-7/31/15) 6,300.00

2041476 10/15/14 02643 CORE-ROSION PRODUCTS C2014407

FRAMES 415.26 415.26

2041475 10/15/14 15049 CORELOGIC SOLUTIONS LLC 50011513 08/04/14 DATA SERVICES / METROSCAN (8/1/14-7/31/15)

2041381 10/01/14 08160 COMPLETE OFFICE 16439110 09/08/14

16,335.00

2041474 10/15/14 08160 COMPLETE OFFICE 16504900 09/25/14 COPY PAPER 2,159.33 2,159.33

500.00 500.00

2041473 10/15/14 12674 CITY OF CHULA VISTA U004081914 08/19/14 UTILITY PERMITS (1/1/14-6/30/14) 16,335.00

AD&D & SUPP LIFE INS (OCT 2014) 4,324.43 4,324.43

2041536 10/22/14 00446 CITY OF CHULA VISTA 120614 10/20/14 SPONSORSHIP

2041535 10/22/14 15256 CIGNA GROUP INSURANCE / LINA 9267101014 10/10/14

76.91

2041339 09/24/14 15256 CIGNA GROUP INSURANCE / LINA 09520492670914 09/10/14 AD&D & SUPP LIFE INS (SEPT 2014) 4,323.83 4,323.83

6,682.50 6,682.50

2041424 10/08/14 15843 CHANG JIN OH Ref002436248 10/06/14 UB Refund Cst #0000177845 76.91

UB Refund Cst #0000004701 159.08 159.08

2041534 10/22/14 03232 CDW GOVERNMENT INC NX57897 08/22/14 ANTIVIRUS & BACKUPS

2041423 10/08/14 15835 CATHY MILLER Ref002436238 10/06/14
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Check Total Amount 

CHECK REGISTER

Otay Water District

Date Range:  9/18/2014 - 10/22/2014

Check # Date Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Inv. Date Description

935.00

1,400.00

3,466.47

7,134.48

COFFEE SUPPLIES 40.90 40.902041386 10/01/14 04066 FIRST CHOICE SERVICES - SD 026079 09/04/14

INVENTORY 4,607.28

0484443 09/18/14 INVENTORY 2,527.20

2041485 10/15/14 03546 FERGUSON WATERWORKS # 1083 0488572 09/18/14

ENCORE 700 PUMP DRIVE UNIT 3,461.02

901866802 09/16/14 ENCORE700 PUMP 5.45

2041541 10/22/14 15396 EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES LLC 901838288 08/26/14

1,460.00

2041484 10/15/14 15396 EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES LLC 901870103 09/18/14 ENCORE700 PUMP 794.38 794.38

255.00 255.00

2041385 10/01/14 14320 EUROFINS EATON ANALYTICAL INC L0183455 09/12/14 OUTSIDE LAB SERVICES (8/19/14-8/21/14) 1,460.00

UB Refund Cst #0000172141 43.00 43.00

2041483 10/15/14 14320 EUROFINS EATON ANALYTICAL INC L0185313 09/24/14 OUTSIDE LAB SERVICES (9/2/14)

4090390 09/08/14 LAB ANALYSIS (8/23/14-8/26/14) 310.00

2041345 09/24/14 15817 ERICA HIGHFILL Ref002436065 09/22/14

LAB ANALYSIS (8/27/14-9/4/14) 600.00

4090283 09/02/14 LAB ANALYSIS (8/15/14-8/22/14) 490.00

4090974 09/29/14 LAB ANALYSIS (9/13/14-9/19/14) 445.00

2041384 10/01/14 03227 ENVIROMATRIX ANALYTICAL INC 4090600 09/15/14

752.55 752.55

2041482 10/15/14 03227 ENVIROMATRIX ANALYTICAL INC 4090803 09/22/14 LAB ANALYSIS (9/5/14-9/12/14) 490.00

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (SEPT 2014) 729.20 729.20

2041429 10/08/14 08023 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT SPECIALISTS 0066322IN 08/31/14 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (AUG 2014)

2041540 10/22/14 08023 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT SPECIALISTS 0066711IN 09/30/14

95.00

2041481 10/15/14 15752 ELECTRONIC CONTROL SYSTEMS INC 27884 09/26/14 ACCESS CONTROL SYSTEM 4,186.00 4,186.00

41.62 41.62

2041428 10/08/14 02447 EDCO DISPOSAL CORPORATION 5458093014 09/30/14 RECYCLING SERVICES (SEPT 2014) 95.00

UB Refund Cst #0000171994 32.69 32.69

2041344 09/24/14 15827 DOUGLAS HERSH Ref002436075 09/22/14 UB Refund Cst #0000206792

2041427 10/08/14 15841 DONNA GANT Ref002436246 10/06/14

372.90

2041539 10/22/14 13919 DEBORA LEDESMA-RIVERA Ref002436513 10/20/14 UB Refund Cst #0000070178 56.01 56.01

158.58 158.58

2041426 10/08/14 15837 DAVID LISSNER Ref002436242 10/06/14 UB Refund Cst #0000093761 372.90

UB Refund Cst #0000206351 58.94 58.94

2041343 09/24/14 15814 DAVID FOLEY Ref002436062 09/22/14 UB Refund Cst #0000011397

2041342 09/24/14 15825 DARUS STEELMAN Ref002436073 09/22/14

34.54

2041341 09/24/14 15819 DANIELLE BLOMBERG Ref002436067 09/22/14 UB Refund Cst #0000184355 17.85 17.85

882.72 882.72

2041425 10/08/14 15850 DAISUKE KOBAYASHI Ref002436255 10/06/14 UB Refund Cst #0000213426 34.54

2041480 10/15/14 06415 CUMMINS CAL PACIFIC LLC 00876572 07/25/14 ENGINE DIAGNOSTICS
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Check Total Amount 

CHECK REGISTER

Otay Water District

Date Range:  9/18/2014 - 10/22/2014

Check # Date Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Inv. Date Description

1,305.27

4,665.08

12,420.20

83630 08/29/14 BILL PRINTING SERVICES (AUG 2014) 3,392.88

TEMPBADGE VMS SYSTEM 676.75 676.75

2041393 10/01/14 08969 INFOSEND INC 83631 08/29/14 BILL PRINTING SERVICES (AUG 2014)

2041490 10/15/14 12285 IDENTICARD SYSTEMS 9325554274 09/16/14

1,016.34

2041431 10/08/14 12285 IDENTICARD SYSTEMS 9325432193 09/03/14 TEMPBADGE VMS SYSTEM 81.55 81.55

42.93 42.93

2041392 10/01/14 12285 IDENTICARD SYSTEMS 9325443445 09/04/14 TEMPBADGE VMS SYSTEM 1,016.34

BI-NATIONAL CONSULTANT SVCS (AUG 2014) 1,800.00 1,800.00

2041547 10/22/14 00062 HELIX WATER DISTRICT 9980101314 10/13/14 WATER USAGE (8/7/14-10/8/14)

2041391 10/01/14 04472 HECTOR I MARES-COSSIO 115 09/23/14

13,738.43

2041489 10/15/14 15349 HDR INC 178566B 10/07/14 CONSULTING SERVICES (SEPT 2014) 12,827.00 12,827.00

5,460.34 5,460.34

2041390 10/01/14 10973 HDR ENGINEERING INC 8 09/12/14 CORROSION SERVICES (7/27/14-8/23/14) 13,738.43

MONTHLY CONTRIBUTION TO LTD 5,460.34 5,460.34

2041546 10/22/14 02795 HARTFORD INSURANCE CO, THE Ben2436578 10/23/14 MONTHLY CONTRIBUTION TO LTD

09/28/14 SOFTWARE PROGRAMMING (6/10/14-9/29/14) 3,852.50 3,852.50

2041327 09/24/14 02795 HARTFORD INSURANCE CO, THE Ben2436083 09/25/14

3,405.29

9033147 09/17/14 HACH APA6000 MODULE REPAIR 1,259.79

2041488 10/15/14 15370 HALAX2 INC 103

HACH APA6000 MODULE REPAIR 1,620.51 1,620.51

2041487 10/15/14 00174 HACH COMPANY 9047230 09/26/14 HACH ANALYZERS

10/20/14 UB Refund Cst #0000205193 1,846.55 1,846.55

2041389 10/01/14 00174 HACH COMPANY 9012195 09/04/14

1,244.36

9536341069 09/08/14 WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES 60.91

2041545 10/22/14 15865 GRANITE CONSTRUCTION COMPANY Ref002436518

WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES 67.39 67.39

2041388 10/01/14 00101 GRAINGER INC 9536341051 09/08/14 WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES

2041544 10/22/14 00101 GRAINGER INC 9536341077 09/08/14

11.17

2041543 10/22/14 15860 GLORIA BROWN Ref002436512 10/20/14 UB Refund Cst #0000059352 169.56 169.56

949.65 949.65

2041346 09/24/14 15822 GEORGE EVANS Ref002436070 09/22/14 UB Refund Cst #0000198660 11.17

BI-WEEKLY PAYROLL DEDUCTION 81.00 81.00

2041387 10/01/14 07224 FRAZEE INDUSTRIES INC 45172 09/15/14 PAINT

2041326 09/24/14 02344 FRANCHISE TAX BOARD Ben2436097 09/25/14

81.00

2041542 10/22/14 02344 FRANCHISE TAX BOARD Ben2436592 10/23/14 BI-WEEKLY PAYROLL DEDUCTION 81.00 81.00

298.39 298.39

2041430 10/08/14 02344 FRANCHISE TAX BOARD Ben2436339 10/09/14 BI-WEEKLY PAYROLL DEDUCTION 81.00

2041486 10/15/14 04066 FIRST CHOICE SERVICES - SD 026967 09/18/14 COFFEE SUPPLIES
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Check Total Amount 

CHECK REGISTER

Otay Water District

Date Range:  9/18/2014 - 10/22/2014

Check # Date Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Inv. Date Description

17,741.65

9,241.45

1,684.65

1,684.65

42,819.75

825.00

150.00

2041436 10/08/14 07294 LLERENAS, JESUS 100614 10/06/14 SAFETY BOOT REIMBURSEMENT 150.00 150.00

15.03 15.03

2041396 10/01/14 07784 LICON, HECTOR 092114 09/25/14 SAFETY BOOT REIMBURSEMENT 150.00

INTERNSHIP AGREEMENT (10/6/14-10/12/14) 275.00 275.00

2041351 09/24/14 15820 LENNY MARTINEZ Ref002436068 09/22/14 UB Refund Cst #0000188814

51893 10/03/14 INTERNSHIP AGREEMENT (9/21/14-9/27/14) 275.00

2041552 10/22/14 12843 LAWTON GROUP, THE 51906 10/17/14

275.00 275.00

2041435 10/08/14 12843 LAWTON GROUP, THE 51888 09/26/14 INTERNSHIP AGREEMENT (9/8/14-9/14/14) 550.00

TRAVEL EXPENSE REIMB (9/15/14-9/18/14) 1,237.18 1,237.18

2041493 10/15/14 12843 LAWTON GROUP, THE 51898 10/10/14 INTERNSHIP AGREEMENT (9/29/14-10/5/14)

5684 09/09/14 AS NEEDED PAVING SERVICES FY15 15,127.00

2041350 09/24/14 03336 KREINBRING, THERESA 091514091814 09/22/14

1,472.92 1,472.92

2041395 10/01/14 05840 KIRK PAVING INC 5670 09/11/14 AS NEEDED PAVING SERVICES FY15 27,692.75

TRAVEL EXPENSE REIMB (10/5/14-10/8/14) 224.48 224.48

2041551 10/22/14 15874 KIEWIT BUILDING GROUP Ref002436527 10/20/14 UB Refund Cst #0000214001

2041492 10/15/14 15858 KERR, MICHAEL 100514100814 10/13/14

1,430.34

2041349 09/24/14 15821 JUNGSU CHOI Ref002436069 09/22/14 UB Refund Cst #0000194375 26.35 26.35

63.67 63.67

2041348 09/24/14 15831 JP GUNITE INC Ref002436079 09/22/14 UB Refund Cst #0000208198 1,430.34

UB Refund Cst #0000208505 67.76 67.76

2041550 10/22/14 15871 JOSHUA STANLEY Ref002436524 10/20/14 UB Refund Cst #0000208696

2041434 10/08/14 15847 JOSHUA HUDDLESTON Ref002436252 10/06/14

146.28

2041347 09/24/14 15824 JOSEPH WILLIAMS Ref002436072 09/22/14 UB Refund Cst #0000204549 6.17 6.17

93.85 93.85

2041433 10/08/14 15836 JOHN BOGARDUS Ref002436241 10/06/14 UB Refund Cst #0000042122 146.28

UB Refund Cst #0000213181 151.52 151.52

2041549 10/22/14 15862 JODIE JENSEN Ref002436515 10/20/14 UB Refund Cst #0000198339

2041432 10/08/14 15849 JO LIN CHOU Ref002436254 10/06/14

CREDIT MEMO -3,000.00

630982 09/02/14 CHLORINE TP 4,684.65

-3,000.00

632525 09/17/14 CHLORINE TP 4,684.65

2041394 10/01/14 10563 JCI JONES CHEMICALS INC 631023

2041491 10/15/14 10563 JCI JONES CHEMICALS INC 632578 CREDIT MEMO

EMAIL SERVICES (8/2/14-9/2/14) 5,010.49

1410000596 10/01/14 EMAIL SERVICES (9/2/14-10/2/14) 4,230.96

2041548 10/22/14 13899 INTERMEDIA.NET INC 1409001618 09/01/14

83783 09/03/14 BILL PRINTING SERVICES (AUG 2014) 1,928.57
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Check Total Amount 

CHECK REGISTER

Otay Water District

Date Range:  9/18/2014 - 10/22/2014

Check # Date Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Inv. Date Description

78.96

548.42

1,262.99

1,469.72

5,500.00 5,500.00

UB Refund Cst #0000208728 18.50 18.50

2041439 10/08/14 02371 MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE US14019206 09/15/14 ANNUAL FEE 96 COPS (SEPT 2014-AUG 2015)

S340201810 09/02/14 UNIFORM SERVICES 64.00

2041354 09/24/14 15832 MONGE FAMILY TRUST 12-23-94 Ref002436080 09/22/14

340201808 09/08/14 UNIFORM SERVICES 91.52

340201812 09/09/14 UNIFORM SERVICES 91.52

340202710 09/08/14 UNIFORM SERVICES 99.97

340203751 09/15/14 UNIFORM SERVICES 94.25

340201858 09/02/14 UNIFORM SERVICES 114.17

340202945 09/09/14 UNIFORM SERVICES 114.17

UNIFORM SERVICES 400.06

340202946 09/09/14 UNIFORM SERVICES 400.06

2041398 10/01/14 15136 MISSION UNIFORM SERVICE 340201859 09/02/14

340205078 09/23/14 UNIFORM SERVICES 85.47

D340201804 09/02/14 UNIFORM SERVICES 78.67

340204848 09/22/14 UNIFORM SERVICES 94.25

340205918 09/29/14 UNIFORM SERVICES 91.25

340204006 09/16/14 UNIFORM SERVICES 397.28

340204005 09/16/14 UNIFORM SERVICES 114.17

207.17 207.17

2041495 10/15/14 15136 MISSION UNIFORM SERVICE 340205079 09/23/14 UNIFORM SERVICES 401.90

UB Refund Cst #0000207476 10.77 10.77

2041556 10/22/14 00237 MISSION JANITORIAL & ABRASIVE 42617301 09/04/14 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES

09/04/14 CUSTOMER SERVICE SUPPLIES 1,151.95 1,151.95

2041438 10/08/14 15846 MIKE ILEMAN Ref002436251 10/06/14

535.34

96363919 08/01/14 SCADA MATERIALS 13.08

2041397 10/01/14 01183 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO 11007470

REPROGRAPHICS SERVICES 383.00 383.00

2041555 10/22/14 01183 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO 99610530 08/25/14 WASHDOWN WATER PARTS

2041353 09/24/14 02882 MAYER REPROGRAPHICS INC 0088721IN 09/08/14

27.16

2041554 10/22/14 15868 MARTHA SALINAS Ref002436521 10/20/14 UB Refund Cst #0000206838 24.44 24.44

831.27 831.27

2041437 10/08/14 14818 MARTHA FELIX Ref002436240 10/06/14 UB Refund Cst #0000034421 27.16

CERTIFICATION REIMBURSEMENT 90.00 90.00

2041553 10/22/14 10512 MAIL MANAGEMENT GROUP INC OWD8941 07/29/14 PRINTING SERVICES

2041352 09/24/14 15288 MAGEE, STEVEN 9062091814 09/18/14

MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT (AUG 2014) 70.00

090114093014 10/01/14 MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT (SEPT 2014) 8.96

2041494 10/15/14 03019 LOPEZ, JOSE 080114083114 10/01/14
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Check Total Amount 

CHECK REGISTER

Otay Water District

Date Range:  9/18/2014 - 10/22/2014

Check # Date Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Inv. Date Description

185.71

315.93

12,858.67

BI-WEEKLY PERS CONTRIBUTION 180,190.10 180,190.102041401 10/01/14 00078 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RET SYSTEM Ben2436085 09/25/14

1,171.21

2041500 10/15/14 15642 PRINT BUTTON, THE 7092 09/23/14 BUSINESS CARDS 38.72 38.72

1,445.10 1,445.10

2041561 10/22/14 03351 POSADA, ROD 101514101714 10/20/14 TRAVEL EXPENSE REIMB (10/15/14-10/17/14) 1,171.21

EQUIPMENT RENTAL (10/1/14-12/31/14) 207.36 207.36

2041357 09/24/14 03351 POSADA, ROD 091114091914 09/24/14 TRAVEL EXPENSE REIMB (9/11/14-9/19/14)

2041400 10/01/14 00053 PITNEY BOWES INC 495491 09/03/14

666.32

2041356 09/24/14 00137 PETTY CASH CUSTODIAN 092414 09/24/14 PETTY CASH REIMBURSEMENT 2,420.73 2,420.73

7,775.00 7,775.00

2041499 10/15/14 00137 PETTY CASH CUSTODIAN 101414 10/14/14 PETTY CASH REIMBURSEMENT 666.32

UB Refund Cst #0000205373 74.31 74.31

2041498 10/15/14 15598 PDF ELECTRIC & SUPPLY CO INC 131193 09/16/14 ETHERNET MODULES

2041560 10/22/14 15866 PAUL MURPHY Ref002436519 10/20/14

300550 09/15/14 INVENTORY 3,224.88

300456 09/05/14 PULL-THRU ADAPTER 1,094.47

292.25

2041399 10/01/14 01002 PACIFIC PIPELINE SUPPLY 300457 09/05/14 INVENTORY 8,539.32

13.73 13.73

2041497 10/15/14 01002 PACIFIC PIPELINE SUPPLY 300543 09/23/14 PULL-THRU ADAPTER 292.25

ENGINEERING SERVICE 2,021.78 2,021.78

2041355 09/24/14 15816 OSCAR MORALES Ref002436064 09/22/14 UB Refund Cst #0000128232

723138624001 08/05/14 OFFICE SUPPLIES 19.43

2041559 10/22/14 13115 ONESOURCE DISTRIBUTORS LLC S4441404002 09/18/14

09/11/14 OFFICE SUPPLIES 246.29

722053323001 07/31/14 OFFICE SUPPLIES 50.21

125.64

730846860001 09/19/14 OFFICE SUPPLIES 60.07

2041444 10/08/14 00510 OFFICE DEPOT INC 729244633001

BINDING MACHINE 907.19 907.19

2041496 10/15/14 00510 OFFICE DEPOT INC 730405750001 09/17/14 OFFICE SUPPLIES

2041558 10/22/14 00510 OFFICE DEPOT INC 728298147001 09/05/14

98.80

2041443 10/08/14 15840 ODINA DOW Ref002436245 10/06/14 UB Refund Cst #0000147717 74.62 74.62

42.17 42.17

2041442 10/08/14 10251 NOJAN TALEBZADEH Ref002436239 10/06/14 UB Refund Cst #0000005810 98.80

BI-WEEKLY DEFERRED COMP PLAN 6,883.27 6,883.27

2041441 10/08/14 15844 NEW VISTA REALTY Ref002436249 10/06/14 UB Refund Cst #0000197663

2041328 09/24/14 03523 NATIONAL DEFERRED COMPENSATION Ben2436089 09/25/14

7,233.27

2041557 10/22/14 03523 NATIONAL DEFERRED COMPENSATION Ben2436584 10/23/14 BI-WEEKLY DEFERRED COMP PLAN 7,233.27 7,233.27

2041440 10/08/14 03523 NATIONAL DEFERRED COMPENSATION Ben2436331 10/09/14 BI-WEEKLY DEFERRED COMP PLAN 7,233.27
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Check Total Amount 

CHECK REGISTER

Otay Water District

Date Range:  9/18/2014 - 10/22/2014

Check # Date Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Inv. Date Description

1,235.00

460.90

2041450 10/08/14 02680 SAN DIEGO COUNTY TREASURER 7075 10/02/14 PROPERTY TAXES ON APN 585-160-20-00 150.44 150.44

460.90 460.90

2041564 10/22/14 03752 SAN DIEGO COUNTY SHERIFF Ben2436590 10/23/14 BI-WEEKLY PAYROLL DEDUCTION 460.90

BI-WEEKLY PAYROLL DEDUCTION 460.90 460.90

2041329 09/24/14 03752 SAN DIEGO COUNTY SHERIFF Ben2436095 09/25/14 BI-WEEKLY PAYROLL DEDUCTION

2041449 10/08/14 03752 SAN DIEGO COUNTY SHERIFF Ben2436337 10/09/14

43.53

2041405 10/01/14 02586 SAN DIEGO COUNTY ASSESSOR 2014078 09/13/14 ASSESSOR DATA 125.00 125.00

9,704.45 9,704.45

2041448 10/08/14 15851 SAM RENFROW Ref002436256 10/06/14 UB Refund Cst #0000214051 43.53

INVENTORY 5,657.04 5,657.04

2041404 10/01/14 09148 S & J SUPPLY COMPANY INC S100039327001 09/10/14 INVENTORY

2041509 10/15/14 09148 S & J SUPPLY COMPANY INC S100043320001 09/24/14

150.00

2041508 10/15/14 02620 ROTORK CONTROLS INC CI08869 09/16/14 BW ACTUATOR 4,186.84 4,186.84

110.49 110.49

2041447 10/08/14 15834 ROGERS, TREVOR 09/27/14 10/02/14 SAFETY BOOT REIMBURSEMENT 150.00

MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT (05/19/14-09/03/14) 16.80 16.80

2041563 10/22/14 15870 ROBERT CLYDE Ref002436523 10/20/14 UB Refund Cst #0000207746

2041358 09/24/14 04542 ROBAK, MARK 051914090314 09/15/14

WELDING SERVICES 735.00

9769 07/21/14 WELDING & 2" WET TAP ON 24" STEEL 500.00

2041507 10/15/14 00521 RICK POST WELD & WET TAPPING 9817 09/27/14

840.00

2041506 10/15/14 08972 RICK ENGINEERING COMPANY 0039253 09/24/14 CAMPO ROAD SUPPORT (7/26/14-8/29/14) 48,102.78 48,102.78

12.59 12.59

2041403 10/01/14 15600 RICHARD J THORMAN 091214 09/12/14 CONSULTING SERVICES 840.00

TRASH SERVICES (OCT 2014) 530.33 530.33

2041446 10/08/14 15838 RICHARD J MCGRATH Ref002436243 10/06/14 UB Refund Cst #0000104332

2041505 10/15/14 15857 REPUBLIC SERVICES INC #509 0509005762652 09/25/14

3,361.00

2041562 10/22/14 15859 RENE BOATMAN Ref002436511 10/20/14 UB Refund Cst #0000009741 221.85 221.85

1,570.00 1,570.00

2041504 10/15/14 02041 RBF CONSULTING 888081 09/17/14 INSPECTION SERVICES (ENDING 8/31/14) 3,361.00

SAFETY SUPPLIES 1,217.70 1,217.70

2041503 10/15/14 15853 RAYMUND CARIG 1134100714 10/10/14 CUSTOMER REFUND

2041502 10/15/14 01342 R J SAFETY SUPPLY CO INC 32878901 09/24/14

40.00

2041402 10/01/14 01342 R J SAFETY SUPPLY CO INC 32878900 09/05/14 SAFETY SUPPLIES 1,854.58 1,854.58

181,049.62 181,049.62

2041445 10/08/14 10294 QWIKPRINTS 142441326 09/01/14 FINGERPRINTING SERVICES 40.00

BI-WEEKLY PERS CONTRIBUTION 180,190.10 180,190.10

2041501 10/15/14 00078 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RET SYSTEM Ben2436327 10/09/14 BI-WEEKLY PERS CONTRIBUTION

2041401 10/01/14 00078 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RET SYSTEM Ben2436085 09/25/14
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Check Total Amount 

CHECK REGISTER

Otay Water District

Date Range:  9/18/2014 - 10/22/2014

Check # Date Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Inv. Date Description

168,240.88

164,416.67

1,584.31

1,870.00

675.00

AC MAINTENANCE (MONTHLY) 1,068.002041409 10/01/14 15176 SOUTHCOAST HEATING & C54378 09/15/14

3,646.74

2041514 10/15/14 00258 SLOAN ELECTRIC COMPANY 0064138 09/23/14 FAIRBANKS MORSE PUMP/MOTOR 19,504.50 19,504.50

4,000.00 4,000.00

2041408 10/01/14 03612 SIMON WONG ENGINEERING 17667 08/31/14 WOODEN TRESTLE IMPROVEMENT (ENDING 8/31/14) 3,646.74

LABORATORY SERVICES (10/8/14) 230.00 230.00

2041451 10/08/14 13327 SILVA-SILVA INTERNATIONAL 1410 10/01/14 DESAL PROJ CONSULTANT (SEPT 2014)

4J08002 10/08/14 LABORATORY SERVICES (10/1/14) 205.00

2041567 10/22/14 15307 SIERRA ANALYTICAL LABS INC 4J20002 10/20/14

LABORATORY SERVICES (10/1/14) 240.00

4J06001 10/06/14 LABORATORY SERVICES (9/24/14) 230.00

2041513 10/15/14 15307 SIERRA ANALYTICAL LABS INC 4J08001 10/08/14

4G18005 07/18/14 LABORATORY SERVICES (7/9/14) 205.00

4124010 09/24/14 LABORATORY SERVICES (9/17/14) 160.00

4124004 09/24/14 LABORATORY SERVICES (8/6/14) 205.00

4124003 09/24/14 LABORATORY SERVICES (7/30/14) 205.00

4124007 09/24/14 LABORATORY SERVICES (8/27/14) 205.00

4124006 09/24/14 LABORATORY SERVICES (8/20/14) 205.00

4124008 09/24/14 LABORATORY SERVICES (9/3/14) 230.00

4124009 09/24/14 LABORATORY SERVICES (9/10/14) 205.00

155.47

2041407 10/01/14 15307 SIERRA ANALYTICAL LABS INC 4124005 09/24/14 LABORATORY SERVICES (8/13/14) 250.00

394.00 394.00

2041359 09/24/14 15815 SHIRLEY HARPENAU Ref002436063 09/22/14 UB Refund Cst #0000037011 155.47

UB Refund Cst #0000208779 75.04 75.04

2041512 10/15/14 07676 SAN MIGUEL FIRE PROTECTION SMG25771 09/24/14 ANNUAL INSPECTION

2041566 10/22/14 15873 SAN DIEGO REAL ESTATE OWNED Ref002436526 10/20/14

UTILITY EXPENSES (MONTHLY) 1,534.12

100314 10/03/14 UTILITY EXPENSES (MONTHLY) 50.19

2041565 10/22/14 00121 SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC 092414a 09/24/14

092614 09/26/14 UTILITY EXPENSES (MONTHLY) 6,149.22

100214 10/02/14 UTILITY EXPENSES (MONTHLY) 4,903.00

UTILITY EXPENSES (MONTHLY) 117,518.08

092314a 09/23/14 UTILITY EXPENSES (MONTHLY) 35,846.37

092314 09/23/14 UTILITY EXPENSES (MONTHLY) 1,200.01

2041511 10/15/14 00121 SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC 100114 10/01/14

77,428.26

091814 09/18/14 UTILITY EXPENSES (MONTHLY) 53,570.52

092414 09/24/14 UTILITY EXPENSES (MONTHLY) 36,042.09

BID ADVERTISEMENT 122.10 122.10

2041406 10/01/14 00121 SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC 092514 09/25/14 UTILITY EXPENSES (MONTHLY)

2041510 10/15/14 00247 SAN DIEGO DAILY TRANSCRIPT 463283 09/16/14

02680 SAN DIEGO COUNTY TREASURER 7075 PROPERTY TAXES ON APN 585-160-20-00
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Check Total Amount 

CHECK REGISTER

Otay Water District

Date Range:  9/18/2014 - 10/22/2014

Check # Date Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Inv. Date Description

1,548.00

65,907.00

320.02

2,462.03

09/22/14 CAL CARD EXPENSES (MONTHLY) 664.13 664.13

2,062.91

GM082214 08/22/14 CAL CARD EXPENSES (MONTHLY) 399.12

2041519 10/15/14 07674 US BANK 8763092214

PORTABLE TOILET RENTALS (9/3/14-9/30/14) 79.98 79.98

2041457 10/08/14 07674 US BANK GM092214 09/22/14 CAL CARD EXPENSES (MONTHLY)

1142344493 09/20/14 PORTABLE TOILET RENTALS (9/20/14-10/17/14) 79.98

2041414 10/01/14 15675 UNITED SITE SERVICES INC 1142296052 09/03/14

1142344371 09/19/14 PORTABLE TOILET RENTALS (9/19/14-10/16/14) 79.98

1142344372 09/19/14 PORTABLE TOILET RENTALS (9/19/14-10/16/14) 79.98

98.17 98.17

2041518 10/15/14 15675 UNITED SITE SERVICES INC 1142344373 09/19/14 PORTABLE TOILET RENTALS (9/19/14-10/16/14) 80.08

EQUIPMENT CALIBRATION 215.28 215.28

2041456 10/08/14 15675 UNITED SITE SERVICES INC 1142316179 09/11/14 PORTABLE TOILET RENTALS (9/11/14-10/8/14)

2041517 10/15/14 00870 TRANSCAT INC 910817 09/23/14

48.36

2041455 10/08/14 15839 TONY DANIEL Ref002436244 10/06/14 UB Refund Cst #0000123378 50.38 50.38

12,410.70 12,410.70

2041454 10/08/14 15842 TONI BROOKS Ref002436247 10/06/14 UB Refund Cst #0000177005 48.36

SAN DEVICES/SERVICES 160,664.03 160,664.03

2041413 10/01/14 15398 TIMMONS GROUP INC 163084 09/09/14 CONSULTANT SERVICES (THRU 8/31/14)

2041412 10/01/14 15766 TEGILE SYSTEMS INC 2130 09/03/14

129.60

2041516 10/15/14 02376 TECHKNOWSION INC 2531 09/23/14 SCADA SERVICES 630.00 630.00

17,025.30 17,025.30

2041571 10/22/14 14576 SWIATKOWSKI, KEITH 100914 10/17/14 SAFETY BOOT REIMBURSEMENT 129.60

WATER SYSTEM FEES (7/1/13 - 6/30/14) 14,483.07 14,483.07

2041453 10/08/14 12809 STUTZ ARTIANO SHINOFF 96038 09/23/14 LEGAL SERVICES (AUG 2014)

2041452 10/08/14 01460 STATE WATER RESOURCES LW1460514 09/18/14

287.21

2041411 10/01/14 10670 STANDARD & POOR'S FINANCIAL 10349471 09/09/14 ANALYTICAL SERVICES 6/29/17 2,000.00 2,000.00

500.00 500.00

2041570 10/22/14 15861 SRM CONTRACTING & PAVING Ref002436514 10/20/14 UB Refund Cst #0000196429 287.21

2014-15 WORKERS' COMPENSATION 5,805.63 5,805.63

2041569 10/22/14 01717 SPRING VALLEY CHAMBER OF 090214 09/02/14 SPONSORSHIP

091014 09/18/14 PROPERTY DEDUCTIBLE 500.00

2041515 10/15/14 03516 SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK 48736 09/05/14

197.81 197.81

2041410 10/01/14 03516 SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK 48364 09/02/14 2014-15 WORKERS' COMPENSATION (OCT-DEC 2014) 65,407.00

IT AC MAINTENANCE (MONTHLY) 205.00 205.00

2041360 09/24/14 15826 SOUTHLAND HOME MORTGAGE LLC Ref002436074 09/22/14 UB Refund Cst #0000206357

2041568 10/22/14 15176 SOUTHCOAST HEATING & C54385 09/15/14

AC MAINTENANCE (MONTHLY) 1,068.00

C54398 09/15/14 AC MAINTENANCE (MONTHLY) 480.00

2041409 10/01/14 15176 SOUTHCOAST HEATING & C54378 09/15/14
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Check Total Amount 

CHECK REGISTER

Otay Water District

Date Range:  9/18/2014 - 10/22/2014

Check # Date Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Inv. Date Description

28,530.75

56,094.55

6,154.42

609.66

115.00 115.00

2041524 10/15/14 07780 WEBER SCIENTIFIC 640075 07/14/14 LABORATORY SUPPLIES 609.66

MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT (8/1/14-8/31/14) 193.54 193.54

2041523 10/15/14 01343 WE GOT YA PEST CONTROL 91390 09/24/14 BEE REMOVAL

2041364 09/24/14 03781 WATTON, MARK 080114083114 09/19/14

179.20

2041461 10/08/14 03781 WATTON, MARK 090114093014 10/02/14 TRAVEL EXPENSE REIMB (9/1/14-9/30/14) 132.48 132.48

2,500.00 2,500.00

2041365 09/25/14 03781 WATTON, MARK 080114083114 09/19/14 MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT (8/1/14-8/31/14) 179.20

GARDEN COSTS (2ND QTR FY 2014-2015) 24,405.50 24,405.50

2041575 10/22/14 00215 WATER EDUCATION FOUNDATION 2014 10/17/14 SPONSORSHIP

2041522 10/15/14 14879 WATER CONSERVATION GARDEN 1135 09/19/14

117.70

2041332 09/24/14 15709 WASHINGTON STATE SUPPORT Ben2436099 09/25/14 BI-WEEKLY PAYROLL DEDUCTION 230.76 230.76

1,160.79 1,160.79

2041460 10/08/14 07487 WARRIX, DENNY 100614DW 10/06/14 SAFETY SHOES 117.70

UB Refund Cst #0000208028 25.75 25.75

2041363 09/24/14 15829 W L BUTLER CONSTRUCTION INC Ref002436077 09/22/14 UB Refund Cst #0000207664

2041362 09/24/14 15830 VICTOR GARCIA Ref002436078 09/22/14

9732447122 09/21/14 WIRELESS SERVICES (8/22/14-9/21/14) 1,253.35

9732447123 09/21/14 WIRELESS SERVICES (8/22/14-9/21/14) 849.89

1,146.26

2041521 10/15/14 03329 VERIZON WIRELESS 9732447118 09/21/14 WIRELESS SERVICES (8/22/14-9/21/14) 4,051.18

1,207.39 1,207.39

2041331 09/24/14 06414 VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS Ben2436093 09/25/14 BI-WEEKLY 401A PLAN 1,146.26

BI-WEEKLY 401A PLAN 907.39 907.39

2041574 10/22/14 06414 VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS Ben2436588 10/23/14 BI-WEEKLY 401A PLAN

2041459 10/08/14 06414 VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS Ben2436335 10/09/14

12,952.80

2041330 09/24/14 01095 VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS Ben2436091 09/25/14 BI-WEEKLY DEFERRED COMP PLAN 12,116.76 12,116.76

12,936.98 12,936.98

2041573 10/22/14 01095 VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS Ben2436586 10/23/14 BI-WEEKLY DEFERRED COMP PLAN 12,952.80

SECURITY SERVICES (SEPT 2014) 461.20 461.20

2041458 10/08/14 01095 VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS Ben2436333 10/09/14 BI-WEEKLY DEFERRED COMP PLAN

GM92214 09/22/14 CAL CARD EXPENSES (MONTHLY) 127.79

2041520 10/15/14 06829 US SECURITY ASSOCIATES INC 774400 09/30/14

CAL-CARD EXPENSES (MONTHLY) 30,106.68

OP101714 10/21/14 CAL CARD EXPENSES (MONTHLY) 25,860.08

2041572 10/22/14 07674 US BANK AD082214 08/22/14

CAL CARD EXPENSES (MONTHLY) 27,691.97

GM091914 08/12/14 CAL CARD EXPENSES (MONTHLY) 838.78

09/22/14 CAL CARD EXPENSES (MONTHLY) 664.13 664.13

2041361 09/24/14 07674 US BANK OP091714 09/24/14

2041519 10/15/14 07674 US BANK 8763092214
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Check Total Amount 

CHECK REGISTER

Otay Water District

Date Range:  9/18/2014 - 10/22/2014

Check # Date Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Inv. Date Description

SAFETY BOOT REIMBURSEMENT 150.00 150.00

Amount Pd Total: 1,732,173.71

Check Grand Total: 1,732,173.71

2041462 10/08/14 02160 WOODS, MARVIN 092614 09/29/14

TRAVEL EXPENSE REIMB (9/22/14-9/24/14) 265.20 265.202041415 10/01/14 02230 WILLIAMSON, KELLI 092214092414 09/29/14
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